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GOVERNING BODY

	MEETING DATE:
	Thursday 13th June 2019
	

	VENUE:
	Health Place, Wrawby Road, Brigg 
DN20 8GS
	

	TIME:
	13:30 – 16:00
	



AGENDA 
PART 1 – PUBLIC
	Item
No.
	Timings
	Item
	Led by
	Action 
Required
	Enclosed/
Verbal 

	1.
	13:30
	Welcome, Announcements, Apologies and Quoracy 
	Chair
	To note
	Verbal 

	2.
	13:31
	Declarations of Interest
In relation to any item on the agenda of the meeting members are reminded of the need to declare:
(i) any interests which are relevant or material to the CCG;
(ii) Any changes in interest previously declared;
or
(iii) Any financial interest (direct or indirect)
on any item on the agenda
Any declaration of interest should be brought to the attention of the Chair in advance of the meeting or as soon as they become apparent in the meeting. For any interest declared the minutes of the meeting must record:
(i)  the   name   of   the   person   declaring    
    The interest;
(ii)	the  agenda  item  number  to  which  the interest relate;
(iii)  The nature of the interest;
To be declared under this section and at the top of the agenda item which it relates to.
	Chair
	To note
	Verbal

	3.
	13:33
	Gifts and Hospitality Declarations
Members are reminded of the need to declare the offer and acceptance/refusal of gifts or hospitality in the CCG’s public register
	Chair 
	To note
	Verbal

	4.
	13:34
	Minutes of the meeting held on 11th April 2019
	Chair
	For approval 
	


	5.
	13:39
	Action Log-Actions update from 11th April 2019 
	Chair 
	For update
	


	6.
	13:44
	Matters Arising (not covered on the agenda) GP membership of CCG Committees – Quality,  Performance & Finance Committee 
	Chair 
	To note
	Verbal

	7.
	
	GOVERNANCE AND ASSURANCE 
	
	
	

	7.1
	13:49
	Use of Corporate Seal 
No use of Seal 
	CO
	To note
	Verbal

	7.2
	13:50
	Chief Officer’s Update
	CO
	To note 
	


	7.3
	14:00
	NLCCG Annual Report (including Annual Governance Statement and Accounts)  
	COO/CFO
	To note
	


	7.4
	14:15
	Annual Audit Letter
	CFO
	For 
Approval 
	


	8.
	
	Quality, Performance & Finance 
	
	
	

	8.1
	14:20
	Integrated Quality, Performance & Finance Report 
	DoN&Q/
CFO/
COO
	For approval 
	


	9.0
	
	STRATEGY AND COMMISSIONING 
	
	
	

	9.1
	14:50
	Planning update 2019/20 

	CFO
	To note
	


	9.2
	15:00
	Primary Care Networks  

	DoPC
	To note
	


	10.0
	
	GENERAL 
	
	
	

	10.1
	
	No items for discussion 

	
	
	

	11
	
	REPORTS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
	
	
	

	11.1
	15:10
	CCG Quality, Performance & Finance Committee Summary 
	Chair QP&FC
	To note
	


	11.2
	15:12
	CCG Integrated Audit & Governance Committee Summary 
	Chair 
IA&GC
	To note
	


	11.3
	15:14
	CCG Planning & Commissioning Committee Summary 
	Chair P&CC
	To note
	


	11.4
	15:16
	CCG Primary Care Commissioning Committee Summary 
	Chair PCCC
	To note
	


	12.0
	
	ANY OTHER BUSINESS
	
	
	

	
	15:20
	
	
	
	

	13.0
	
	DATE AND TIME OF NEXT PUBLIC MEETING 
	
	
	

	
	
	Thursday 8th August 2019 13:30 
Board Room, Health Place, Brigg 
	
	
	



To resolve that because publicity would be prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted, the public and press be excluded from the meeting in accordance with the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 1960.

	Key to Abbreviations:
	

	Chair
	Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body Chair

	CO
	Chief Officer

	COO
	Chief Operating Officer  

	CFO
	Chief Finance Officer

	DoN&Q
	Director of Nursing and Quality

	DoPC
	Director of Primary Care 

	Chair IA&GC
	Chair of the Integrated Audit & Governance Committee

	Chair QP&FC
	Chair of the Quality, Performance & Finance Committee 

	Chair PCCC
	Chair of the Joint Commissioning Committee

	Chair F&PC
	Chair of the Finance & Performance Committee

	Chair P&CC
	Chair of the Planning & Commissioning Committee 

	HC&V 
	Humber Coast & Vale 
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Welcome to the Chief Officer’s Update for 
May/June 2019 featuring news and highlights 
from NHS North Lincolnshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 
 


We are supporting British Steel   
 


Following concerns regarding the British Steel 
site in Scunthorpe‘s ability to carry on trading, 
the CCG has been offering support in a 
number of ways. 
 
Understandably, there will be a period of 
uncertainty and anxiety. British Steel is such 
an important part of our Place that 
announcements like these may affect 
thousands of our residents across North 
Lincolnshire. So we will continue to do all we 
can. 
 


Annual General Meeting update 
 


60 people have already signed up to attend 
our Annual General Meeting. 
 
The event will take place at North Lindsey 
College Events Centre in Scunthorpe on 
Thursday 11th July 2019.  
 
I’m pleased to say that former rugby league 
player Jamie Peacock MBE will be in 
attendance and discussing tips about health 
and wellbeing. 
 
Networking will begin at 6pm and I would 
encourage all our primary care colleagues, 
health provider colleagues and members of 
the public to attend.  
 
Staff Annual General Meeting  
 
We are currently organising our first Staff 
AGM – which will take place in the autumn. 
 
I am a keen advocate of such an event. It is 
imperative that as an organisation we have 
time way from the day job to reflect upon how 
effective we are as a team and what our future 
priorities should be.  
 
It is an opportunity for interactive workshops 


It is an opportunity for interactive workshops and 
discussions on how we continue our work towards 
helping North Lincolnshire build a healthy future. 
 
Ray of Sunshine Award 2019 
 
Healthwatch North Lincolnshire is initiating 
nominations for its annual Ray of Sunshine Award. 
 
Anyone from the health or care teams within North 
Lincolnshire who has been a ray of sunshine can 
be put forward and the winner will be announced 
at Healthwatch North Lincolnshire’s Festival of 
Wellbeing at Normanby Hall Country Park on July 
28. 
 
The closing date is July 1, so please do visit 
www.healthwatchnorthlincolnshire.co.uk for details 
on how to nominate. 
 
Inspiring the next generation  
 
I’m delighted to report that the CCG has teamed 
up with Education and Employers to support its 
‘Primary Futures’ campaign to connect schools in 
North Lincolnshire with local volunteers describing 
their employment. 
 
The campaign aims to broaden children’s 
aspirations and spark their imagination about the 
huge range of jobs available to them in the future. 
 
With recruitment and retention being an issue in 
North Lincolnshire, this is a fantastic opportunity 
for us to talk to children about careers in their local 
NHS. The programme needs more volunteers so 
whatever your job, whether you are a trainee or a 
consultant, a paramedic, a GP or a nurse, I would 
encourage you to get involved. All you have to do 
is commit a couple of hours to go into your local 
primary school and talk about your job.  
 
You can register at: 
www.primaryfutures.org/schools. 
 
Emma Latimer 
NHS North Lincolnshire CCG Chief officer 
June 2019 
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A warm welcome 


From the CCG’s Chief Officer, Emma Latimer 


 


Welcome to our Annual Report for 2018/19. 
 
 


This report provides a local overview of our achievements during the year the National Health Service 


celebrated its 70th birthday. 


 
Following a challenging year in 2017/18 the CCG has made some notable achievements, thanks to the 


energy and commitment of our staff. 


 
I want to thank everyone who has contributed to the continued improvement of our local NHS over the 


past year. It is down to the hard work of my colleagues and our partners that we have made significant 


progress to start to transform the landscape of healthcare in North Lincolnshire. 


 
I would also like to thank all members of the public who have taken the time to help shape the work that 


the CCG does, whether that is through attending local Patient Participation Groups or attending any of 


our meetings. Your feedback plays a pivotal role in developing local services so that they best meet the 


needs of the local communities that the CCG serves. 


 
The leadership of the CCG has been strengthened this year, including a new Chief Operating Officer, 


Alex Seale, new Medical Director, Dr Satpal Shekhawat and new Director of Nursing and Quality, Clare 


Linley. Also newly appointed was CCG Chair, Dr Faisel Baig, a local GP who grew up in Scunthorpe. Dr 


Baig has made a significant impact on the way health and care is commissioned in North Lincolnshire 


and I sincerely thank him for his contribution. 


 
Like many NHS organisations across the country, 2018/19 has been a year of financial challenge for 


the CCG. 


 
I am pleased to say that the organisation’s relationship with North Lincolnshire Council is stronger than 


ever. The CCG has worked closely with them and its local NHS provider partners and I can report that 


by the year end the CCG had met all of the requirements of its financial plan. 


 
We welcome the publication of the NHS Long Term Plan. It sets a clearer direction for the NHS, with a 


strong focus on prevention, community care and mental health in line with our CCG's strategic direction. 


More detail about the NHS Long Term Plan can be found on page 11. 
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This past year we have been forging stronger links and undertaking better engagement with our 


communities to inform the CCG’s direction of travel. We have strengthened links with groups in our 


community who are less often heard, such as young people, carers, older people, the working 


population and faith groups to ensure that everyone has an opportunity to inform and influence our 


commissioning. 


 
We have had many successes this year to be hugely proud of, but, there remains much more to do and 


we will continue to work in close collaboration with our partners during the next year and beyond to 


ensure that we help the people of North Lincolnshire build a healthy future. 


 


 


Emma Latimer 


Accountable Officer 


NHS North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
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‘North Lincolnshire is close to my heart’ 
 


 


By the CCG’s Chair, Dr Faisel Baig 


It has been quite a year – a year in which how we commission healthcare in North Lincolnshire has 


moved forward at speed. Everyone working in our local NHS should feel proud. 


Before I detail just some of the work that has been going on, I would like to explain my involvement 


and why I am so passionate about North Lincolnshire. 


I am a local General Practitioner (GP) and have been a GP Member of our CCG's Governing Body 


since 2015. I have clinically led various areas including urgent care, mental health and dementia, and 


community services redesign. I commenced my elected role as Chair of the CCG Governing Body in 


June 2018. 


I grew up and was educated in Scunthorpe. I completed my medical training in Manchester and was 


offered a sought after GP post in a city I had grown accustomed to during my training. But I wanted to 


come home. My parents live locally in Scunthorpe, and my father has always reminded me of my roots 


and the obligation to give something back to a community that had set the foundations for me. I now 


live in Scunthorpe with my wife, a trainee GP, and my two young sons. 


The pace of change over the last twelve months has been swift. The CCG exited formal legal 


directions in August 2018, highlighting the confidence NHS England has in our ability. We have placed 


a strong emphasis on transforming our community services and supporting primary care development, 


with the vision that care is predominantly based around our patients, close to their homes. This has 


included the successful implementation of weekend and evening primary care access. 


We have forged better relationships with all partners, including North Lincolnshire Council, our 


providers and neighbouring CCGs. If we are serious about improving healthcare for patients locally, 


then we need to keep building on these relationships so that we are collaboratively commissioning 


services that our population requires, whilst always focusing on prevention of illness at the 


same time. Prompt access to mental health support and quality care is a top priority for us and we 


have spent a lot of time developing a new, all-age mental health strategy. 


Talking to you, our community, about changes is vital. We appointed an entirely new communications 


and engagement team this year and they are always out and about talking to people in Scunthorpe, 


Brigg, Barton and surrounding villages. We are always asking for your views because this is your NHS. 


Although, like other areas, we have our healthcare challenges in North Lincolnshire, we also have some 


solid foundations. Our general practice is very strong, we have nineteen good practices with 


dedicated GPs, nurses and practice teams that we should be very proud of. It is these practices that 
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form the membership of our CCG. Our Governing Body GP members and Medical Director belong to 


these member practices. 


We have made some positive steps in a very short period of time. This has been a real team effort and I 


would like to extend a very sincere thank you to our Chief Officer, Emma Latimer, our Governing Body, 


our Executive Team and every member of staff working for the CCG for their immense commitment, as 


well as all our providers, partners and those who may not always carry an official title but are so involved 


in helping our patients. 


In order to make continuing improvements to North Lincolnshire's NHS, we rely on your support. We 


know we have a long way to go but with such dedication and goodwill, the future looks bright. 


Thank you for taking the time to read our Annual Report. 


 


Dr Faisel Baig 


Chair 


NHS North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
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Performance Report 
 
 


Emma Latimer 


Accountable Officer 


24 May 2019 
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Overview 


We are NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


NHS North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is responsible for planning and paying for 


healthcare services in the area. This is what we call ‘commissioning’. 


 
Our ambition is to help local people live healthier lives and to make sure that when people do require 


health treatment they receive the best possible standard of care. 


 
If you are registered with a North Lincolnshire GP practice, we are responsible for commissioning most 


of your healthcare. This includes mental health care, maternity services, treatments you receive in 


hospital, urgent and emergency care and some community services. 


 
We are clinically led, which means that local doctors, nurses and other healthcare professionals have a 


central role in the work of the CCG. Our clinicians see North Lincolnshire patients every day and 


understand what our local population needs, making them ideally placed to make decisions about local 


care. 


 
Our CCG brings together all 19 local practices and other health professionals to plan and design 


services to meet the needs of local patients. The number of patients registered with our GP practices is 


around 179,000. For a full breakdown of our member practices, branch sites, patient list sizes and 


locality, please turn to the Accountability section of this report. 


 
Where appropriate, we will jointly commission services with partners such as neighbouring North East 


Lincolnshire CCG or North Lincolnshire Council. The main health provider organisations that we have 


contractual arrangements for services with are: 


 Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust 


 Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust 


 East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust 


 Savoy Ventures Limited. 


 


We also work with Healthwatch North Lincolnshire, the independent champion for local people who use 


health and social care services. We hold six Governing Body meetings and an Annual General Meeting 


each year, all of which are open to the public. For dates, times and venues, please contact us via the 


details below or visit our website: www.northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk 


 


You can contact us at: 



http://www.northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/
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NHS North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 


Health Place 


Wrawby Road 


Brigg 


North Lincolnshire 


DN20 8GS 


 
Tel: 01652 251000 


Email: NLCCG.ContactUs@nhs.net 


Website: www.northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk 


Twitter: @northlincsccg 


 


Financial Snapshot 


At the start of 2018/19 we were allocated an overall budget of £239.865 million from NHS England. 


This diagram shows how that money has been spent: 


 



mailto:NLCCG.ContactUs@nhs.net

http://www.northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/
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Working together 


North Lincolnshire CCG is an active member of the Humber, Coast and Vale Health and Care 


Partnership. 


 
The partnership is a collaboration of nearly 30 different organisations across a geographical area of 


more than 1,500 square miles taking in cities, market towns and remote rural and coastal communities. 


 
We are working together to plan for the future of health and care services across North Lincolnshire and 


beyond and to find new ways to tackle the challenges that we face locally. 


 
Humber, Coast and Vale Health and Care Partnership priorities 


 
 


The partnership’s collective priorities for its population are as follows: 


 
 


 Healthier people – improving health and life expectancy through prevention initiatives and 


support for people to take care of themselves and their loved ones 


 
 Better out-of-hospital care – creating services in local communities that are properly joined-up 


so people can only go into hospital when it is absolutely necessary and do not stay longer than 


they need to 


 
 Better in-hospital care – creating more efficient hospital-based services for those who need 


them, making the best use of the resources and workforce across the system to plan and deliver 


hospital-based services 


 
 Better mental health care – ensuring that mental health is seen to be equally important as 


physical health 


 
 Better cancer care – helping more people survive cancer and support people in our region to 


live well and beyond cancer 


 
 Balancing the books – We want to make the most of every penny available to deliver good 


quality local services within the funding available. 


 
How the partnership will achieve these aims: 


In order to achieve these ambitions, the partnership has established six work streams in each of the six 


areas covered by the CCGs within the partnership. 
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These place-based programmes are primarily working on achieving the first two priorities of healthier 


people and better out-of-hospital care. 


 
In addition, there are three cross-cutting programmes of work which are working across the whole of 


the Humber, Coast and Vale area to plan services for local people. These programmes will help the 


partnership achieve its priorities to improve hospital-based care, mental health care and cancer care. 







11  


 


The NHS Long Term Plan 
 


 


A lot has changed in the 70 years since the NHS was created. As medicine advances, health needs 


change and society develops, the NHS has to continually move forward so that in 10 years’ time we will 


have a service fit for the future. 


 
In 2018 the Government announced £20.5bn of additional funding for the NHS in England by 2023/24. 


The NHS Long Term Plan, launched in January 2019 by NHS England, sets out priorities for how this 


money will be spent over the next ten years. 


 
The NHS Long Term Plan will make sure the NHS has a bright future ahead of it. It will ensure that 


every penny is invested on the things that matter most, from providing high quality lifesaving treatment 


and care for patients and their families, to reducing pressure on hard-working NHS staff and investing in 


exciting new technologies. 


 
The plan was drawn up by those who know the NHS best, including frontline health and care staff, 


patient groups and other experts. It sets out how the NHS can overcome challenges by: 


 
 Doing things differently: giving people more control over their own health and the care they 


receive. Encouraging more collaboration between GPs, their teams and community services, as 


‘Primary Care Networks’, to increase the services they can provide jointly. Increasing the focus 


on NHS organisations working with partners as an ‘Integrated Care System’, to plan and deliver 


services which meet the needs of their communities 


 
 Preventing illness and tackling health inequalities: the NHS will increase its contribution to 


tackling some of the most significant causes of ill health, including new action to help people 


stop smoking, overcome drinking problems and avoid Type 2 diabetes, with a particular focus 


on the communities and groups of people most affected by these problems 


 
 Backing our workforce: increasing the NHS workforce, training and recruiting more 


professionals – including thousands more clinical placements for undergraduate nurses, 


hundreds more medical school places, and more routes into the NHS such as apprenticeships. 


The NHS will be a better place to work, so more staff stay in the NHS and feel able to make 


better use of their skills and experience for patients 
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 4. Making better use of data and digital technology: providing more convenient access to 


services and health information for patients with a new NHS App as a digital ‘front door’, better 


access to digital tools and patient records for staff, and improvements to the planning and 


delivery of services based on the analysis of patient and population data 


 
 Getting the most out of taxpayers’ investment in the NHS: working with doctors and other 


health professionals to identify ways to reduce duplication in how clinical services are delivered, 


make better use of the NHS’ combined buying power to get commonly-used products for less, 


and reducing spend on administration. 


 
The NHS Long Term Plan will help inform NHS North Lincolnshire CCG’s strategic vision over the 


coming years. We have completed our own local strategic plan, which dovetails neatly into the priorities 


identified by NHS England. This is available on the CCG’s website: 


https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publication-scheme/what-are-our-priorities-and-how-are-we-doing/ 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publication-scheme/what-are-our-priorities-and-how-are-we-doing/
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Highlights of the year 


Improvement and Assessment Framework (IAF) Rating 


The CCG Improvement and Assessment Framework was first introduced in 2016/17. This framework 


describes how CCGs will receive an annual assessment by NHS England derived from their 


performance in indicators across 29 areas, including leadership and financial management. 


 
We were delighted to exit formal legal directions in August 2018 after being given an improved rating by 


NHS England. 


 
Significant progress has been made since we entered the national improvement process in 2017 and 


the success over the past eighteen months is thanks to the energy and commitment of our staff. 


 
There is more work to be done in the coming year to ensure that we continue our journey of 


improvement, but we are pleased to be on the right track. 


 
Delegated commissioning of primary care (local GP practices) 


In February, the CCG was successful in its application to take on the delegated commissioning of 


primary care (GP services) from April 1, 2019. This means that the CCG is now able to plan and pay for 


local GP services, instead of NHS England. 


 
This is really good news and means that the full primary medical care budget will also transfer to the 


CCG at the same time. 


 
Plans developing for new Urgent Treatment Centre in Scunthorpe 


In February, more than 1,000 people responded to our survey about plans for a new Urgent Treatment 


Centre in North Lincolnshire, which will be co-located alongside the Accident and Emergency 


department at Scunthorpe General Hospital. 


 
This service, which will be led by local GPs, will launch in late 2019 and will help safeguard A&E 


services for those that have a genuine emergency need. 


 
We were pro-active with our approach to engaging with residents about this development and were 


delighted to build new relationships with the community in the process. This feedback is now being 


used to develop the specification for the new service. 


 
Our patients are getting help sooner 


In 2018, receptionists and clerical staff in North Lincolnshire GP practices were trained to help patients 


identify the most appropriate place for their care. 
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This means people don’t always have to wait to see a doctor first. Sometimes they can be seen faster, 


and more appropriately, by seeing a different healthcare professional such as a pharmacist, practice 


nurse or mental health practitioner. 


 
 


By working this way, it helps to free up time for GPs to care for patients with complex or serious health 


conditions. More importantly, it means that patients are being seen by the most appropriate healthcare 


professional for their needs. 


 
 


Evening and weekend GP appointments 


In October, we launched evening and weekend GP appointments for North Lincolnshire patients. This 


includes weekday evenings (6.30pm-8pm), Saturdays (8am-8pm) and Sundays (10am-2pm). 


 
To promote the new service we have undertaken an extensive, integrated communications and 


engagement campaign to inform our local population. 


 
Uptake of these appointments in North Lincolnshire (above 90%) is much higher than the national 


average and the CCG was commended by NHS England for its successful roll-out. 


 
Building stronger relationships 


Our relationship with North Lincolnshire Council is stronger than ever and we have committed to 


working in a more integrated way as a health and care system, both in North Lincolnshire and across 


the Humber. 


 
We have strengthened links with groups in our community who are less often heard, such as young 


people, carers, older people, the working population and faith groups to ensure that everyone has an 


opportunity to inform and influence our commissioning. 


 
More joined-up care for our patients 


Patients across North Lincolnshire are benefitting from more joined-up healthcare thanks to the roll-out 


of a new initiative to share information between NHS providers. 


 
Healthcare professionals can now see up-to-date information about their patients, even if they’ve been 


treated somewhere else. This improves the safety and the quality of care for people accessing a 


number of services, including out-of-hours GP appointments, community nursing and end-of-life care. 
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That is because the two main patient record systems used across the region (EMIS Web and 


SystmOne) are now working together for the first time to share information. The Humber region is the 


first area in the country to successfully link these two clinical systems. 


 
Men's Health: bringing the NHS to British Steel 


We held our first ever Men’s Health event in March, 2019. 


 
 


Our Chair, Dr Faisel Baig, spoke to British Steel workers about key men’s health issues – and gave 


some important guidance on signs and symptoms to watch out for. He spoke about some of the most 


commonly-missed (or ignored) symptoms, including chest pain, shortness of breath and unexplained 


weight loss. 


 
Dr Baig delivered the interactive session to help encourage local people to feel more comfortable about 


discussing their physical and mental health. 


 
Patients can now see a Physiotherapist at a local GP surgery 


In 2018/19 we introduced a new scheme that means that residents in North Lincolnshire can see a 


physiotherapist rather than a GP at a local surgery if they are seeking an appointment for joint or 


muscle pain. 


 
Appointments with the new First Contact Physio service are available to book for all patients registered 


with a North Lincolnshire GP practice by contacting their usual surgery. 


 
Around one-in-five people book in to see their doctor with a musculoskeletal problem, and often have to 


wait for a GP referral to get access to physiotherapy advice for such conditions. 


 
Early evaluation shows that patients are getting speedier access to specialist assessment and advice 


which is more efficient for patients and frees up GP time to see patients who need to see a doctor. 


 
Online GP consultations launched in North Lincolnshire 


More than 70,000 patients across North Lincolnshire can now access 24/7 online consultations with 


their GP practice after the introduction of new technology in 2018/19. 


 
North Lincolnshire CCG launched technology in six GP practices across the region for patients who 


want to consult online, which in many cases avoids the need to make a visit to the practice altogether. 
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This is great news for patients across North Lincolnshire, who can now access GP support at a time 


that suits them. 


 
New service for frail patients 


A specialist assessment service was launched for frail patients in 2018. Patients now receive a multi- 


disciplinary assessment in one place and a care plan to support them to stay healthy for as long as 


possible. 


 
New Weight Management Service 


A new Tier 3 Weight Management Service (for patients with severe or complex obesity) has been rolled 


out. Previously, patients had to travel away from the area but can now access the service in North 


Lincolnshire. 


 
This links into the Tier 2 Service (for patients with less severe obesity), provided by North Lincolnshire 


Council. 


 
New patient transport provider 


Savoy Ventures Limited began providing the non-emergency patient transport service from March, 


2019. The firm took over from the previous provider, Thames Ambulance Service Limited, following a 


detailed procurement process. 


 
The non-emergency transport system exists to support people to get to and from hospital when they are 


too poorly or are otherwise physically unable to manage the journey themselves. 


 
Scunthorpe GP practice and pharmacy honoured at Lincolnshire Health Awards 


A GP surgery and pharmacy in Scunthorpe were named as ‘GP Practice of the Year’ and ‘Pharmacy 


Team of the Year’ at The Lincolnshire Health Awards. 


 
The Birches Medical Practice and Ancora Healthcare Pharmacy were awarded their respective titles at 


the annual celebration event, which recognises healthcare excellence across Greater Lincolnshire. 


 
2018 marked the first year of North Lincolnshire’s involvement in the Awards. 
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What do we want to achieve now? 
 


Our ambition is to improve our performance and achieve a rating of “good” from NHS England.  


We want to commission services that ensure the residents of North Lincolnshire receive high quality 


and safe healthcare, delivered in the most suitable location by staff with appropriate skills and 


experience. 


 
In early 2019, our Governing Body approved a strategy for how we intend to deliver a healthy future for 


our population. The strategy will guide how we plan and pay for healthcare services in North 


Lincolnshire over the next five years. It details how we plan to provide high quality, proactive care - 


which is more joined up, improves outcomes, safety and experience and makes best use of the “North 


Lincolnshire pound”. 


 
Our strategy is available to view on our website at: https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publication- 


scheme/what-are-our-priorities-and-how-are-we-doing/. 


 


Our health and care system faces significant challenges and we can only resolve these by working 


together more closely with our partners. 


 
We recognise that our population is made up of individuals who live in our local communities, and we 


must wrap services around people rather than their conditions or diseases. Healthcare plans will 


consider the whole person, not just an isolated condition. 


 
Our goal is to keep our population as healthy as possible, targeting prevention and wellbeing 


interventions, thereby improving the overall health and wellbeing of our population and reducing the 


demand on the health and care system. We will promote healthy behaviours and an active lifestyle. 


 
The significant features of our strategy for 2019/20 are: 


1. Shifting our focus from ‘in hospital’ services to ‘out of hospital’ services 


2. A shift from reactive to preventative care 


3. Cultural and behavioural change - people will take a greater responsibility for their own health 


and wellbeing 


4. Equal value on mental and physical health throughout all we do 


5. These changes will support a healthier, more sustainable future for North Lincolnshire. 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publication-scheme/what-are-our-priorities-and-how-are-we-doing/

https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publication-scheme/what-are-our-priorities-and-how-are-we-doing/
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We will do this by commissioning a greater range of services out of hospital so that where appropriate 


people will not need to attend a hospital to get the care they need.  


We will also support people to manage their health needs better, including how to manage their own 


health and wellbeing. We will also work with our local hospitals to make sure they have safe, good 


quality and sustainable services for those who need to use them. 
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Performance analysis - how are we doing? 


Operational and Constitutional Indicators 
 


The CCG’s performance against the rights and pledges set out in the NHS Constitution and a number 


of identified areas of focus are reported to our Governing Body through a set of defined key indicators 


and associated targets. 


 
The CCG achieved 16 of these 31 standards (see tables below). This is the 18/19 year end position 


with the exception of Dementia, which is February 2019 position. 


 
 


Performance has been achieved in the following: 


 Cancer 2 Week Waits 
 Cancer 31 Day Diagnosis to first definitive Treatment 


 Cancer 31 Day Subsequent Waits – Anti Drug Regimens 
 Cancer 31 Day Subsequent Waits – Surgery 


 Cancer 31 Day Subsequent Waits – Radiotherapy 
 Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment Times – Screening Service 


 Operations Cancelled for the 2nd time 


 IAPT (Improving Access to Psychological Therapies) 18 Week Waits 


 Early Intervention 2 Week Waits 


 Mental Health CPA Follow Up 


 Clostridium Difficile 


 Ambulance Category 1 90th Centile 
 Ambulance Category 4 90th Centile 


 IAPT Entering Treatment 


 IAPT Recovery Rates 
 12 Hour Trolley Waits 


 


 


 


Performance has not been achieved in the following: 


 18 Week Referral to Treatment Times 


 52 Week Waiting Times 


 6 Week Diagnostic Waiting Times 


 4 Hour A&E Waiting Times 


 Cancer 2 Week Waits: Breast Symptoms 


 Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment Times – GP Referral 


 Ambulance Category 1 Mean Waiting Times 


 Ambulance Category 2 Mean Waiting Times 


 Ambulance Category 2 90th Centile 


 Ambulance Category 3 90th Centile 


 Cancelled Operations 


 Mixed Sex Accommodation 


 Dementia Diagnosis Rates 
 MRSA 
 IAPT 6 Week Waits 


 







20  


 
 


Performance challenges remain across a range of indicators including but specifically the following: 


 
 


Referral to Treatment Times and 52 Weeks 


Referral to Treatment times continue to fall below required standards, specifically at our two main local 


acute providers Northern Lincolnshire & Goole NHS Foundation Trust (NLaG) and Hull and East 


Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust (HEY). 


 
Specialties with significant pressure continue to be Ear, Nose and Throat, General Surgery, Pain 


Management and Orthopaedics. 


 
The CCG has successfully maintained the overall waiting list size, and has in fact reduced this number 


by 2.6%, and has seen a reduction in the very long waiting patients. 


 
In March 2019, the CCG reported 18 breaches of the maximum 52-week standard despite efforts to 


eliminate these. It is expected that these patients will be treated in the first few weeks of 2019/20 with 


no patients experiencing over 52-week waits by the end of April 2019. 


 
A&E Four Hour Waits 


This target has been challenging during 2018/19 and the year-end position did not meet the target. The 


operating plan confirmed that NLaG and therefore the CCG would not deliver the national threshold of 


95% for A&E Performance but would commit to deliver a significant improvement compared to 2017/18. 


 
The March 2019 position was 82.1% of patients waiting less than four hours which is an 


improvement on the March 2018 position of 79.4%. This saw an annual average of 84.9% being 


achieved. 


 
A key action taken by NLaG to improve performance is an increase in senior decision makers at the 


front door and to have this presence for a longer duration than previously. This has resulted in a better 


flow of patients through the department, improved referrals to specialist services and improved support 


for A&E staff in decision making. In particular, this has been seen in high occupancy periods where 


performance levels have been sustained. 


 
Access to beds remains a challenge for the Trust. 
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Cancer Waiting Times 


The CCG has experienced difficulties with some of the pathways at different times during 


2018/19 although, on the whole, delivery of cancer waits has been strong. 


 
In particular the 62 Day Referral to Treatment waiting times have not delivered to the standard required. 


Many of the breaches in this area related to cross Trust pathways, increases in clinical complexity and 


specific issues around the reliability of equipment and delays in diagnostics. 


 
NLaG successfully secured £256,000 of 62-day cancer improvement funding through the Cancer 


Alliance which will enable the development of straight-to-test pathways in colorectal and secure 18 


days of mobile scanning to reduce patients awaiting computed tomography (CT) scans. 


 
Six Week Diagnostic Waiting Times 


Diagnostic Six Week Waiting Times remains an area of significant concern with CCG level performance 


at 11.84% in March 2019 - against a target of 1%. The majority of the breaches relate to Magnetic 


Resonance Imaging (MRI) at NLaG. 


 
A second CT scanner at Scunthorpe General Hospital is now live and operational. By the end of May 


the Trust hopes to have an increase in available slots which will improve the six week wait for CT 


scanning. MRI remains a pressure with insufficient capacity to meet demand on services. The Trust is 


using as much mobile scanning capacity as is available. 


 
Work has begun to build an MRI unit at the Diana Princess of Wales (DPOW) Hospital in Grimsby with 


two scanners, followed by a second CT scanner at DPOW and a further extension to the Blue Sky 


Imaging Suite at the Scunthorpe site for a second MRI scanner. 


 
There are arrangements in place to outsource studies for reporting, initially on an ad hoc basis, but are 


working towards a fixed contract with guaranteed volumes. This should enable the achievement of 


satisfactory reporting times. 


 
The Trust is advising patients of delays in reporting and clinicians have been advised of escalation 


processes to expedite reporting. 


 
Ambulance Response Programme (ARP) 


East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS) performance against the ARP standards continued to be a 


challenge for the Trust in 2018/19, with ongoing performance pressures reported by the Trust in North 


Lincolnshire. 
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During 2018/19, EMAS intermittently achieved two of the six national ARP standards in North 


Lincolnshire. These are Category One calls 90th Centile standard (for people with a life-threatening 


injury or illness) and Category Four calls (for less urgent situations). EMAS did not meet the required 


standards for Category 2 calls or Category 3 calls in North Lincolnshire during 2018/19. 


The CCG continues to work closely with the Trust and partners to improve EMAS performance in North 


Lincolnshire. It reviews the quality impact of performance challenges through the contract management 


process and via quality monitoring initiatives, including clinical site visits, thematic reviews of quality 


data (including incidents, complaints and concerns) and the development of a joint EMAS improvement 


plan with partners. Key findings from these quality monitoring initiatives are included in the integrated 


Quality Performance and Finance Report, which is submitted to the Governing Body meeting. 


 


 
Dementia 


The CCG’s position in relation to percentage of dementia diagnosis rates is underachieving at 61.9% in 


February 2019 against the target of 66.7%. The STP levels are higher at 72.5%. 


 
This continues to be an area of focus for the CCG and plans are in place in the following areas to 


improve performance: 


 Dementia screening is to be included in the primary care quality scheme to be delivered at care 


network level in 2019/20 


 Work will be undertaken with the local mental health provider to streamline the pathway for 


diagnosis 


 Increasing the number of people whose care plan has been reviewed in the previous 12 months. 


 Implementing the dementia strategy. 


 


Increasing Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 


It is anticipated that the North Lincolnshire IAPT service, provided by Rotherham Doncaster and South 


Humber NHS Foundation Trust (RDaSH) will have achieved all targets in Quarter Four of 2018/19. 


There were issues with staff training during Quarter Three but the trust has increased capacity 


significantly over the last quarter to resolve the position and brought the annual position back on track. 


 
Where performance falls below the required standards, the CCG is closely monitoring the impact on 


safety, experience and effectiveness of care for patients. 


 
Current performance positions 


Detailed in the following are the current performance positions against the CCG’s operational and 


constitutional targets, which form part of the reporting framework to its Governing Body. 
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Most are monitored monthly by the CCG’s performance and quality teams and form part of its 


Integrated Quality and Performance Report (IQPR). Deviation and off-track performance is reported 


and monitored as part of the Integrated Governance Report (IGR), which is received monthly by the 


Quality, Performance and Finance Committee (QPF). 


 
 
 


Cancer Waiting Times  


 
Period 


 


 
Actual 


 


National 


Target 


 


Improvement 


Target 


 


 
Variance 


Annual 


Direction 


of Travel 


Cancer 2 Week Wait Mar-19 94.0% 93% - 1%  


Cancer 2 Week Wait: Breast Symptoms Mar-19 85.7% 93% - -7%  


Cancer 31 Day: First Definitive Treatment Mar-19 94.8% 96% - -1%  


Cancer 31 Day: Subsequent Treatment for Surgery Mar-19 100% 94% - 6% 
 


 


Cancer 31 Day: Subsequent Treatment for Anti Cancer Drug Regimen Mar-19 100% 98% - 2% 
 


 


Cancer 31 Day: Subsequent Treatment for Radiotherapy Mar-19 100% 94% - 6.0%  


Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment Mar-19 63.4% 85% - -22%  


Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment from NHS Screening Service Mar-19 100% 90% - 10%  


 
Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment; Consultant Upgrade of status 


 
 


Mar-19 


 


Not included in indicator count due to small number and no 


target. 


 
Hospital Cancellations  


 
Period 


 


 
Actual 


 


National 


Target 


 


Improvement 


Target 


 


 
Variance 


Annual 


Direction 


of Travel 


Cancelled Operations Q4 18-19 7.0% n/a -   


Cancelled Operations for the 2nd Time Mar-19 0 0 - 0 
 


 


 
Mental Health  


 
Period 


 


 
Actual 


 


National 


Target 


 


Improvement 


Target 


 


 
Variance 


Annual 


Direction 


of Travel 


Dementia Diagnosis Rate Mar-19 61.4% 66.7% - -5.30% 
 


 


IAPT Entering Treatment Levels 18-19 19.0% 19.0% - 0.00%  


IAPT Recovery Rates 18-19 51.3% 50% - 1.3% 
 


 


IAPT <6 Week Waits Mar-19 65.2% 75% - -9.8%  


IAPT <18 Week Waits Mar-19 99.1% 95% - 4.1%  


CPA Follow Ups Q4 18-19 100% 95% - 5.0% 
 


 


Early Intervention Psychosis (1st Episode Psychosis) 2 Week Wait Mar-19 100.0% 50% - 50.0% 
 


 


 
Healthcare Associated Infections  


Period 


 
Actual 


National 


Target 


Improvement 


Target 


 
Variance 


 
Variance 


MRSA 18-19 1 0  1  


C Difficile 18-19 28 30  -2  
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Improving quality 


The CCG has a duty to improve the quality of the services that it commissions under the Health and 


Social Care Act (2012). Services commissioned by the CCG need to be safe, effective, provide good 


patient experience and improve continuously. Examples of how the CCG discharged its duty under the 


Act during 2018/19 are provided below. 


 
Quality governance arrangements 


The CCG has a Quality, Performance and Finance (QP&F) Committee that reports to the Governing 


Body. 


 
In 2018/19, we welcomed a new Director of Nursing and Quality who has strengthened the line of sight 


on all quality indicators to the QP&F Committee and the Governing Body. This was achieved by 


reviewing and refreshing the format of reports to the QP&F Committee and the Governing Body, 


reviewing and strengthening the assessment of the quality impact of our performance through the 


Integrated Quality and Performance Report, and developing and beginning to implement criteria for 


assuring CCG performance and performance of the CCG’s main providers. 


 
You can read the integrated reports that were submitted to the Governing Body in 2018/19 at: 


www.northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk. 


 


Quality Assurance Framework 


The Quality Assurance Framework describes the range of approaches utilised by the CCG to assure 


itself of the quality of the services it commissions. Some of these resources are described below. 


 
The CCG continues to meet with providers via the contract meeting process to view quality 


performance. In 2018/19, the CCG established the Quality and Performance Meeting with its 


primary mental health provider, RDaSH. 


 
During 2018/19, the CCG completed a number of in-depth reviews of its commissioned services to 


provide assurance to the QP&F Committee where areas of quality concern have been identified. This 


included reviews of the local mental health crisis services, local arrangements for safeguarding adults 


and children and a review of registered nurse staffing levels at NLaG. 


 
Findings from these reviews have been used to support development of local improvement plans. 


The CCG also undertook several Quality Risk Profiles (QRPs) of local services provided by NLaG in 


2018/19. These QRPs were undertaken in response to concerns identified by the CQC and from 


feedback provided by our patients. 



http://www.northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/
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The QRPs identified that improvements have been made in some local services which resulted in 


reduction in the overall level of risk to quality in these services when compared with the last QRP 


exercise in 2017. 


 
The CCG has a regular programme of quality assurance visits that take place across a range of 


providers. Some of these quality assurance visits are undertaken with neighbouring North East 


Lincolnshire CCG, with the recommendations and actions agreed from these visits incorporated into 


action plans that are reviewed via quality contract meetings. 


 


Quality in our provider organisations 


Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust (NLaG) 


In May 2018, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) undertook a comprehensive inspection of services 


provided by Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust. The CQC awarded the Trust an 


overall rating of “Requires Improvement” - this is an improvement on the previous inspection rating of 


“Inadequate” in 2016. 


 
We are pleased to see the improvement in the CQC’s overall rating of the Trust’s services. 


Improvement was also identified in the Trust’s overall rating of the ‘Safe’ domain and the rating of 


services provided at Scunthorpe Hospital, including urgent and emergency services and services for 


children and young people. 


 
The Trust did not secure improvement in the CQC rating at Goole Hospital or for the community 


services it provides in North Lincolnshire. 


 
The Trust has implemented a range of safety measures across all Trust sites in response to the 


findings from the CQC inspection to secure sustained improvement. The CCG continues to work with 


the Trust in this regard through the contract management process. 


 
The CCG, in partnership with North East Lincolnshire CCG and Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS 


Foundation Trust, also continues to drive improvement as part of the System Improvement Board. 


 
Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust (RDaSH) 


In June 2018, the CQC published its outcome rating from the inspection of RDaSH services undertaken 


in January and February 2018. The CQC rated the Trust as “Good”. 







26  


 
During 2018/19 RDaSH continued to make progress against the areas for improvement that were 


identified by the CQC during their latest inspection, including changes to the Trust’s quality governance 


arrangements and enhancements made to the electronic patient record. 


 
The CCG continues to work with RDaSH to improve the Crisis Service and to improve waiting times for 


the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) provided in North Lincolnshire. 


 
East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust (EMAS) 


The CQC did not undertake an inspection of EMAS services in 2018/19. The latest CQC inspection of 


EMAS services was undertaken in 2017 with a rating of “Requires Improvement.” 


 
The Trust continues to demonstrate good progress against the CQC improvement actions including 


increased learning from incidents and patient feedback across the organisation and new governance 


arrangements across the Trust. 


 
During the year, EMAS has undertaken several new initiatives to increase staffing levels across the 


Lincolnshire division, including local and national recruitment campaigns and innovative staff training 


opportunities. As a result of these initiatives, EMAS staffing levels increased during 2018/19. 


 
The CCG is actively working with EMAS to improve ambulance response times in North Lincolnshire. 


 
 


Patient Transport Services 


During 2018/19, the CCG recommissioned the patient transport service in North Lincolnshire to improve 


patient experience, following a programme of public engagement. Savoy Ventures began as the new 


provider for this service on March 7, 2019. This service was previously provided by Thames Ambulance 


Service Limited (TASL). The new provider’s performance against a range of service indicators will 


continue to be monitored by the CCG. 


 
Supporting Primary Care services 


During 2018/19, the CQC published its outcome rating from inspections undertaken in two North 


Lincolnshire GP practices. South Axholme Practice achieved a rating of “Good” and Market Hill 8-8 


achieved a rating of “Requires Improvement”. 


 
As of March 31, 2019, 18 of the 19 GP Practices in North Lincolnshire are currently rated ‘Good’ and 


one is currently rated as ‘Requires Improvement’. There are no GP practices that are currently rated as 


inadequate. 
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Primary care quality and performance data is reviewed by the CCG QP&F Committee on a monthly 


basis. Any areas of good practice or areas of concern relating to primary care are addressed by the 


CCG Primary Care Team. 


 
Reducing avoidable harm from healthcare acquired infections 


During 2018/19, the Specialist Nurse for Infection Prevention and Control provided advice to the CCG 


in relation to infection prevention and control and provided leadership and expert advice to local 


providers to ensure compliance with standards and practice across North Lincolnshire. 


 
Support continues to be provided to care homes through quality monitoring visits and service 


improvement plans. 


 
The CCG achieved the reduction target for incidence of Clostridium Difficile (C.diff) in 2018/19. 


Excellent work continues to take place across the whole health economy to review cases of C.diff and 


to learn from the outcomes of the reviews. 


 
The CCG was required to reduce incidents of E.coli blood stream infections by 10% in 2018/19. 


However, there have been 131 reported cases between April 1, 2018 and February 13, 2019 and this 


target was not achieved. An action plan has been developed with our providers to achieve the required 


reductions in hospital and the community services during 2019/20. 


 
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) 


As part of the two year contracting process for 2017/19, the CCG commissioned a number of national 


and local CQUIN schemes which encourage healthcare providers to deliver clinical quality 


improvements and drive transformational change. During 2018/19 this included: 


 Development of an integrated service established at NLaG to improve services for people with 


mental health needs who attend Accident and Emergency (A&E), with care plans co-produced 


with patients to ensure they are supported within the community


 An Advice and Guidance service that allows GPs to seek advice from consultants prior to 


referring patients into hospital care to reduce referrals into secondary care where appropriate


 Implementation of a shared care protocol between primary care services and RDaSH to further 


support patients with a mental health condition in the community.


 
Safeguarding vulnerable people 


The CCG continues to fulfil its statutory obligations as outlined in Section 11 of the Children Act (2004), 


and Care Act (2014) and actively demonstrates a commitment to safeguarding children and adults with 


care and support needs across the community we serve. The CCG also actively works to ensure that 


the health and wellbeing of looked after children (LAC) is promoted. There is a strong commitment to 
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safeguarding arrangements at an Executive and Governing Body level. Safeguarding arrangements 


have been reviewed and monitored by the Executive Team and through the QP&F Committee. The 


Governing Body has received the CCG’s Annual Report, as well as the Annual Reports from North 


Lincolnshire Local Safeguarding Children and Safeguarding Adult Boards. 


 
The CCG has worked closely with North Lincolnshire Council and Humberside Police in 2018/19 as one 


of 17 (national) early adopter sites of new multi-agency safeguarding children arrangements. 


 
The Children and Social Work Act 2017 requires Local Safeguarding Children Boards (LSCB) to be 


replaced by new local flexible arrangements led by three local safeguarding partners (Local Authorities, 


Clinical Commissioning Groups and Chief Officers of Police) by September 2019. North Lincolnshire 


Children’s Multi-Agency Resilience and Safeguarding Board (C-MARS) was launched on November 2, 


2018, with responsibility for the strategic leadership, scrutiny and resourcing being shared equally 


between the three statutory partners. The CCG’s Safeguarding Executive Lead has acted as Vice Chair 


of the C-MARS Board since its launch, along with being the C-MARS lead for scrunity, assurance and 


training. 


 
The CCG is also an active member of the North Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adult Board (NLSAB). The 


Designated Nurse and Head of Safeguarding continues to lead on and actively contribute to the C- 


MARS and NLSAB statutory functions and priority work streams. 


 
During 2018/19, the CCG has increased its specialist safeguarding professional capacity, with the 


appointment of a named GP for Safeguarding, who will also take on the role as clinical lead for mental 


capacity and an additional safeguarding nurse specialist for the 2019/20 year. 


 
Enhancing patient experience 


The CCG is committed to making sure that the views and experiences of patients and the public inform 


every stage of the work of the CCG. Seeking patient experience has been integral to the procurement 


of new health services during 2018/19. This included extensive public engagement around the Urgent 


Treatment Centre and similar work on extended opening hours in GP services. 


 
The CCG continues to provide valuable support to patients accessing the services it commissions, and 


the intelligence that is gained is used by the CCG in planning future services, quality monitoring and 


service improvement. 
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The CCG recognises that complaints can often be the catalyst for change and improvement and 


provide valuable insight into services, care and the compassion received by patients and their relatives. 


Feedback is used to continually drive improvements. All feedback received by the CCG, including the 


outcome of formal investigations, forms part of the CCG’s continuous quality improvement process and 


is managed with the relevant service provider via the contract management process. For example, an 


issue raised by a patient relating to our Individual Funding Request (IFR) process led to a change in 


practice by our IFR service. 


 
The CCG welcomes feedback on experiences of local health services. You can contact the Patient 


Experience Team with concerns, complaints and compliments via: 


 
Address: Patient Relations, Health House, Grange Park Lane, Willerby, East Yorkshire, HU10 6DT 


Telephone: 01652 251125 


Email: NLCCG.PALS@nhs.net 


 
 


 
NHS Continuing Healthcare (CHC) 


NHS Continuing Healthcare is defined as care for adults aged 18 or above which is procured and 


funded solely by the NHS and therefore free at the point of delivery to those individuals who are 


eligible. NHS CHC can be delivered in a care setting or as a package of care within an individual’s own 


home. 


To be eligible for NHS CHC individuals are required to be assessed and identified as having a ‘primary 


healthcare need’ as set out in the National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare and NHS– 


Funded Nursing Care (2012). 


 
A primary health need is identified by looking at the following characteristics: 


 nature of the individual’s needs


 intensity of their needs


 unpredictability of their needs


 complexity of the care required.


 


During 2018/19, the CCG continued to make improvements in its approach to supporting people who 


receive NHS funded care by undertaking a rigorous quality review of the CHC service. The purpose of 


this review was to ensure maximum efficiency, effectiveness and quality within this complex service and 


included an analysis of workforce, documentation, policy and processes. 



mailto:NLCCG.PALS@nhs.net
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Through the efficiencies that were made through this review, the CCG was able to achieve the national 


CHC improvement targets in 2018/19, which included: 


 reducing time taken by the CHC Assessment Team to determine whether a person is eligible for 


NHS CHC


 achieving the required outcomes for our patients


 Improving communication with our partners.


 


In addition to the above in 2018/19 we further aligned our partnership working with the Local Authority 


through the delivery of the domiciliary care framework. 


 
The CCG continues to offer a Personal Health Budget (PHB) to everyone who is eligible for NHS 


funded care and support and we will continue to focus on increasing the number of PHBs through 


personalised integrated care in 2019/20. 


 
Improving and assuring quality across the Humber Coast & Vale area 


The CCG is an active partner in contributing to the Humber, Coast and Vale Health and Care 


Partnership (HCV) work streams. The CCG is working with CCGs across the Humber to develop a 


shared approach to assessing the quality, equality and wider impact of commissioning decisions made 


at HCV level and CCG level, which we hope to adopt in 2019/20. 


 
Key highlights from our Research and Development (R&D)Team 


Throughout 2018/19, NHS North Lincolnshire CCG has met the statutory duty to ‘promote research, 


innovation and the use of research evidence’ (Health and Social Care Act, 2012) in the following ways: 


 In 2018/19 the percentage of North Lincolnshire GP Practices recruiting patients into National 


Institute for Health Research (NIHR) clinical research trials has increased from 19% to 37%. This 


means that nearly half of the GP practices in North Lincolnshire are now taking part in NIHR 


research


  During 2018/19 North Lincolnshire CCG has shown its commitment to R&D by following the 


national policy guidance on Excess Treatment Costs (ETCs) and approved five ETCs 


 A Northern Lincolnshire Research and Development group has been established to support and 


grow research in the health and care community. This includes a range of stakeholders and has a 


North Lincolnshire community representative on the group


 Work has begun with the Medical Director to explore how the research agenda can be further 


strengthened.
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The key aims of the development work will be to: 


 Further develop and raise the awareness of the primary care research agenda within North 


Lincolnshire, specifically across the three localities and GP Federation in North Lincolnshire 


 Support and further develop practices within the localities and GP Federation to become more 


research aware and potentially facilitate them to become more involved in primary care activities 


 Increase the number of patients engaged in primary care research in North Lincolnshire 


 Support shared learning and experience to enable GPs and other health care professionals to 


have the necessary ‘headspace’ and time to build up the knowledge and skill set(s). For 


example, from developing an idea(s) into a specific research question or to undertake a piece of 


evaluative work. 


 
We will work towards these aims in the following ways: 


 The potential development of a CCG GP Clinical Lead for research who will help drive forward 


the key areas above 


 Forming collaborative links with the Academy of Primary Care at Hull York Medical School. This 


is located within the Institute for Clinical and Applied Health Research (ICAHR) at the University 


of Hull and will allow us to explore different work streams which will cut across research, 


education and innovation 


 Exploring possible links with the Medical School at the University of Lincoln. 
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Reducing health inequality 


Public Sector Equality Duty 


The Public Sector Equality Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate 


discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different people when 


carrying out their activities. 


 
The CCG discharges its duty by ensuring that the varying needs of our local population are at the heart 


of our commissioning process and our engagement work and that their views are taken into account as 


part of this process. 


 
We remain committed to ensuring that our services are commissioned in a way that aims to meet the 


needs of our local population. The Equality Delivery System (EDS2) framework has been used to 


support the mainstreaming of equalities into all our core business functions. 


 
The CCG uses the Equality Delivery System self-assessment tool to assess how its commissioning of 


services addresses local health inequalities. The CCG self-assessment and resulting action plan is 


reported to the CCG Quality, Performance and Finance Group; a sub-committee of the Governing 


Body. 


 


We gain assurance that our providers are meeting their statutory requirements under the Equality Act 


2010 through our contract management process. 


 
A partnership approach to equalities 


The CCG continues to work collaboratively with NLaG via the Equality and Inclusion Meeting, with joint 


work planned for 2019/20 including a review of the EDS3 and a joint mentoring scheme. 


 
The CCG continued to be an active member of the North Lincolnshire Equalities and Inclusion Forum 


hosted by North Lincolnshire Council in 2018/19. Through this Forum we have formed closer links with 


the population, and we have used these links to gain feedback on the EDS2 framework. 


 
The CCG also strengthened its attendance at the Yorkshire and Humber Equality and Diversity Network 


Meeting in 2018/19 to form closer partnership working with peers. Through this network we access 


information on national and local best practice which we use to support improvement in our local 


arrangements including national developments with the Disability Equality Scheme and the updated 


EDS tool template. 
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Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) 


In accordance with the Public Sector Equality Duty, the CCG has shown due regard to the Workforce 


Race Equality Standard (WRES) during 2018/19. We have collated staff data as outlined within the 


WRES reporting template for 2018 and aim to improve representation and workplace experiences at all 


levels for black and minority ethnic staff. The CCG has published its Workforce Race Equality Standard 


(WRES) report and is working with local providers to ensure the WRES is incorporated in a meaningful 


way. 


 
Gender pay gap reporting 


The CCG employed 67 staff as at March 31 2018, measured by headcount, excluding Governing Body 


Members and therefore is not subject to this reporting duty. 


 
However, the CCG regularly analyses its workforce data, including pay band by gender. Salaries are 


reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, which follows national guidelines and best practice. Pages 


99 to 100 of this Annual Report lists the salaries and total remuneration received by members of the 


CCG Governing Body. 


 
Equality Impact Assessments 


Equality Impact Assessments are undertaken as a routine part of our commissioning processes and we 


have reviewed the approach used to ensure that this process is as effective as possible. 


 
The new Equality Impact Assessment tool further supports the CCG in understanding the relevance 


and effect that our policies and service changes could have on the diverse population that the CCG 


serves. 


 
Translation services 


Our translation service is provided by Ongo Translation Services and is available to CCG staff and 


North Lincolnshire GP Practices. This service is available on a face to face basis, via telephone and via 


British Sign Language. 


 
CCG Equality and Inclusion meeting 


The CCG’s Equality and Inclusion Group (E&I) meets on a bi-monthly basis, or more frequently when 


necessary. The meeting is chaired by the CCG’s Head of Quality and reports to the CCG’s Quality 


Performance and Finance Committee. Delivery of the CCG’s E&I plan is reviewed at the Equality and 


Inclusion Group. 
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Commissioning to reduce health inequalities 


The CCG’s commissioning priorities from which its commissioning plans for 2018/19 were developed 


are underpinned by the Local Integrated Strategic Assessment. 


 
The Integrated Assessment, developed by the Local Authority, CCG and other partners is an 


assessment of local health and wellbeing considering a range of factors including environmental, 


community safety, health, geographical, economic and social inclusion and diversity which all take 


account of the wider determinants of health. This comprises a suite of documents which form an 


integrated intelligence base about the place of North Lincolnshire, which is summarised within the wider 


Integrated Strategic Assessment. 


 
The CCG uses this information to support it in prioritising its plans to ensure they focus on areas of 


greatest need. It helps the CCG identify geographical areas or population groups who have greater 


need, enabling the CCG to focus on these groups with the aim of reducing health inequalities. 


 
The CCG considers in the commissioning of its services the opportunities for commissioning targeted 


services to address health inequalities within North Lincolnshire. In addition, the CCG, working in 


conjunction with the Local Authority, identifies those areas where integrated commissioning of health 


and care provision will better meet the needs of the local population. 


 


The CCG plans for 2018/19 focussed on 


 Prevention 


o Promoting a healthy start in life through the reduction in the number of mothers who 


smoke 


o Increasing the number of healthy years people have through early identification and 


management of long term conditions such as lung disease and cancer 


o Promoting healthier life choices to prevent ill health, including the commissioning of a 


Tier 3 weight management service (specialist weight management services) provided 


locally in the community, which provides an additional level of service above the Tier 2 


weight management services (lifestyle interventions) provided by the Local Authority. 


 Reducing reliance an acute services 


o Managing demand for healthcare through redesign of services to ensure patients are 


provided with the lowest level of intervention which is clinically appropriate and the 


delivery of more care through community based services. 


 Out of Hospital Care 


o Commissioning community-based services which are delivered within care networks. 


Care networks are based on geographical locations with integrated health and care 


delivery and primary care at the heart. 
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 Primary care 


o Ensuring primary care is sustainable for the future, through further development of 


integrated care networks, centred on primary care. This is supported by investment in 


recruitment and retention of workforce and primary care infrastructure (premises and 


Information Technology). 


 Vulnerable people 


o Focusing on securing improvements in both adult and children and young people’s 


mental health and wellbeing 


o Improving dementia care, including increased awareness, prompt diagnosis and good 


quality post-diagnostic treatment and support 


o Ensuring services promote the principles of Rights, Independence, Choice and 


Inclusion. 


 Medicines management 


o Ensuring high quality and safe prescribing which reflects national and local guidance, 


including reducing prescribing of medicines where clinically indicated to improve 


quality of life. 
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Health and Wellbeing Strategy 


The North Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy focuses on what a range of services can do 


better together for the health and wellbeing of North Lincolnshire. It identifies opportunities for working 


together differently whilst delivering value for money. 


 
This ensures that North Lincolnshire is a healthy place to live where people enjoy improved wellbeing 


and where inequalities are significantly reduced. 


 
NHS North Lincolnshire CCG is one of the key partners to this strategy and whilst work has continued 


with partners to implement the strategy during 2018/19, the CCG has also significantly contributed to 


the development of the North Lincolnshire Place Plan for 2019/20. In developing this plan, the CCG has 


engaged widely with stakeholders to ensure there has been contribution from a wide range of partners. 


Public sector partners have committed to improving outcomes for the residents of North Lincolnshire. 


People being safe, well, prosperous and connected are the outcomes that we are working together to 


improve.  


 


This place plan sets out how NHS health commissioners, NHS health providers and North Lincolnshire 


Council will work together with stakeholders to improve health and wellbeing outcomes for the people 


of North Lincolnshire. The plan highlights reduction in health inequalities as one of the areas the 


system needs to focus on. 


 
The CCG consults with members of the Health and Wellbeing Board through a number of forums, in 


particular the North Lincolnshire Strategic Leadership Group. Whilst there have been recent changes to 


the governance structures, the CCG has maintained and strengthened its links with the local authority 


and other stakeholders during 2018/19 and continues to work towards greater integration and 


integrated commissioning. 


 
NHS North Lincolnshire CCG is coterminous with North Lincolnshire Council and therefore only has one 


Health and Wellbeing Board. 


 
Progress against the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 


The CCG and partners have made significant progress in supporting the mental health and wellbeing of 


children and young people through the development and embedding of Mental Health Champions in all 


schools, providing children and young people and also staff a first point of contact to discuss concerns 


regarding mental health and wellbeing. 
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In addition, the CCG is working with the local authority to successfully implement an infant mental 


health programme. A multi-agency Infant Mental Health Alliance was established in 2018 and is 


working on a number of priorities in particular improvements in parental attachment during infancy. The 


Emotional Health and Wellbeing Board provides the oversight of plan delivery. This is a partnership 


board with representation from health, social care, education and mental health providers as well as 


health and care commissioners. 


 
The CCG has contributed to the implementation of the HCV perinatal mental health plan. This has seen 


the development of a hub and spoke perinatal mental health model, enabling local women to access 


specialist services within the region, with elements of service provided as outreach and improving 


access. 


 
To address smoking in pregnancy, all maternity staff in acute and community services are trained to 


support the delivery of conversations with expectant mums around smoking cessation. Training for 


local authority staff has also been provided, focused specifically on smoking in pregnancy. 
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Engaging people and communities 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 


 


Our vision and strategy for engagement and public involvement 


We are committed to involving patients and the public in the design, delivery and review of our services. 


Our vision for engagement is to improve the health and wellbeing of the local population, reduce 


inequalities and commission high quality, safe and sustainable healthcare by building strong 


relationships with stakeholders and using effective methods of public engagement and involvement. 


 
Under the Health and Social Care Act (2012) we have a legal duty to engage and involve our local 


population in decisions that affect them; to involve patients and carers in decisions relating to their care 


and treatment; and to involve the public in the planning and buying of healthcare services. 


In addition to being a statutory duty we believe that meaningful patient and public participation can help 


us to develop and deliver services that are safe, effective and efficient. 


 
In August 2018, NHS North Lincolnshire CCG recruited a new communications and engagement team, 


having previously shared a service with North East Lincolnshire CCG. Our Engagement and Public 


Involvement Strategy was refreshed and ratified by our Governing Body in February 2019, and sets out 


our principles for engagement. The CCG: 


 Will meet its statutory duties to involve, engage and consult the public 


 Will communicate via clear and concise means and transparently 


 Expects to be accountable for the way in which it involves, engages and consults 


 Believes responding to feedback from the public is as important as receiving it 


“The new communications and engagement team has introduced innovative new ways to bring 


the CCG and the population of North Lincolnshire together to achieve the best outcomes for our 


local population.” 


Janice Keilthy, NLCCG Lay Member for Patient and Public Involvement 


“One way we are working to improve the dialogue between the CCG and our different local 


communities is by cross-referencing methods of engagement with equality monitoring data to 


see which methods are most useful to which communities. This will help plan future 


engagement work.” 
 


Heather McSharry, NLCCG Lay Member for Equalities and Inclusion 


“We have changed the way we connect with our population.” 
 


Erika Stoddart, NLCCG Lay Member for Governance 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Engagement-strategy-201920.pdf

https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Engagement-strategy-201920.pdf
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 Believes in consistency and coherence in engagement and communication but will vary its 


approach to reflect local circumstances and sensitivities 


 Will learn lessons from its engagement and communication activity and respond accordingly 


 Believes engagement and communication must be authentic by operating within the context 


of financial and operational realities 


 Will ensure effective links to tap into wider networks and groups – beyond just health 


 Will ensure that people who engage with us are fully supported to do so. 


 


How we work with our partners in the local community 


We are committed to working with the voluntary, community and faith sector, to ensure that we hear 


from and respond to the most vulnerable members of our community. We recognise that there are 


groups in our community who may have different needs. We consider these groups when planning 


patient and public involvement and go out to hear their views in a way that is most suited to them. 


 
We are always learning about our evolving local community and regularly review our approach to 


engaging with them. We use a range of methods to engage with different groups and targeted outreach 


to broaden our engagement to reflect our local population e.g. young people, older people, carers, 


working population etc. For each engagement project, we plan our approach so that as far as possible 


we offer equality of opportunity to be involved. 


 
A key focus of our engagement work this year has been getting to know the diverse groups across 


North Lincolnshire, to ensure that the voices of our most vulnerable communities are heard in our 


commissioning. We know that we have more work to do in the coming year to ensure our list of local 


contacts is up to date and to add new groups we have discovered. 


 
We have attended meetings and spoken to people about how they can get involved with North 


Lincolnshire CCG. Aside from groups we have visited as part of engagement on specific services, we 


have created links with the North Lincolnshire Youth Council, Carers Advisory Partnership, Winterton 


Seniors Forum and Scunthorpe Central Mosque. These partners are happy for us to return to visit 


them in the future. 


 
We know that one of the less often heard groups of people in our local community is the working 


population. This year we have worked with our largest local employer, British Steel, to engage with 


their workforce, including talking to staff in their canteen and holding a discussion with a local GP about 


men’s health. 
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The CCG has continued to meet with other public sector bodies on the North Lincolnshire Equality and 


Inclusion Forum, to share best practice of engaging with those who experience the worst health 


outcomes. To help us understand how well we are supporting or providing services fairly to all groups 


of people, the CCG carries out equality monitoring of attendance at public engagement events, 


membership of PCAG and Embrace and participation in our surveys. 


 


Working with local people 


Our patient network, Embrace, provides us with an opportunity to reach out to a wider group of people 


than those who might otherwise choose to be involved. Embrace allows us to call on local people, 


patients, carers and voluntary sector representatives to be directly involved in topics that interest them. 


It provides us with a network for sharing key messages and engagement opportunities to enable people 


to be more closely involved in shaping local services. 


 
In the coming year, we aim to increase the number of people signing up to Embrace, to achieve a 50% 


increase in our membership by April 2020. This will ensure more local people are connected and 


engaging with us. To join Embrace, please contact us or visit our website: 


https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/tell-us-what-you-think/embrace/ 


 


Throughout 2018/19 we have supported engagement work for the Humber Acute Services Review of 


hospital services, facilitating involvement of North Lincolnshire representatives in this process including 


the establishment of a Citizen’s Panel. This has assisted people in North Lincolnshire to have the 


opportunity to give their views and help shape plans for the future delivery of the region’s hospital 


services. 


 
From April 1, 2015 it has been a contractual requirement for all GP practices across England to 


establish and maintain a Patient Participation Group. Patient Participation Groups are the building 


blocks for engagement at GP practice level and each GP practice has set up a group of patients 


interested in engaging with their work. 


 
We work with Healthwatch North Lincolnshire to jointly host our local Patient Participation Group (PPG) 


Chairs Forum which meets quarterly. We use these valuable meetings to provide PPG Chairs with 


information about how local health services are provided and support them to share good practice and 


to develop their PPG. We listen to what they tell us about the views of their practice populations and 


use this insight to monitor and develop our plans for local services. Along with having a chance to 


network with each other and share views on how PPGs function. 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/tell-us-what-you-think/embrace/
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Some of the topics the meetings have discussed during 2018/19 include: 


 Urgent care 


 Care navigation 


 Enhanced summary care records 


 Extended hours GP provision. 
 
 


The CCG has listened to previous feedback from our engagement events where people in North 


Lincolnshire said they wanted us to be easier to reach and to show that we are listening well. During 


2018/19 we have started to hold informal Café Conversation drop in sessions to ensure that the CCG is 


regularly listening to people’s experiences of the services we commission. We intend to vary the 


location of these sessions to give all areas of North Lincolnshire an opportunity to join us in their local 


community. Feedback from people at these events is relayed back to our Quality and Commissioning 


teams to inform service planning. 


 
We provide support to enable people to be involved, including training and reimbursement of expenses 


for those who attend meetings. We are able to note the communication preferences of those who join 


our Embrace network so that we can be responsive to individual need. 


 


You said, we did 


 
 


Renal patient transport service 


On March 26, 2018, the CCG announced it was to commission a new non-emergency patient transport 


service (PTS). To inform the new service specification the CCG wanted to engage separately with the 


group of patients who use PTS to access renal services. Face-to-face engagement with patients 


undergoing dialysis took place at the renal unit at Scunthorpe General Hospital over a one week period 


between April 26 and May 2, using a short survey. 


 
Patients’ views made a difference as they told us: 


• For renal patients, who have a requirement for planned regular journeys, punctuality and 


comfort of service provision is important. 


 


 


• There should be standards of care to ensure all drivers see their patients safely into their home 


and provide assistance with mobility issues when required. 


The service specification states that patients should arrive at the healthcare setting no earlier 
than thirty minutes before their booked treatment start time and be collected from the 


healthcare setting no later than thirty minutes after their treatment has finished. 
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• The vehicles being used to transport renal patients should meet the specific access needs of the 


patient and provide a comfortable journey particularly after dialysis when some patients 


experience nausea and fatigue. 


 


 


GP Extended Access 


From June to September 2017, the CCG carried out public engagement to gather the views and 


experiences of local people to contribute to designing a new service specification for extended access 


to GP practice services. During 2018/19 the new service was established and a ‘You Said We Did’ 


document was produced to tell people how the views of the public had been reflected in the service 


specification. 


 
Our Patient and Community Assurance Group (PCAG) worked with us to ensure the ‘You Said We Did’ 


document was written in plain English, without jargon and that it clearly demonstrated how views had 


been taken into account. The document was reviewed following the feedback from PCAG, and has 


since been widely shared and is available to view on our website at: https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/. 


 


Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC) engagement 


In line with national NHS guidance, NHS North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is 


developing plans during 2019 for an Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC), which will be co-located 


alongside the Accident and Emergency department at Scunthorpe General Hospital. 


 
Between January 9 and February 3, 2019, North Lincolnshire CCG gathered the views of patients and 


members of the public to help shape the new service. 


 
We set out to understand: 


 What people already know about urgent care in North Lincolnshire 


 What people know about when to use urgent care services 


 How people would prefer to access new services 


 What works well when patients need help for minor conditions 


 Any concerns about accessing this type of care. 


The service specification states that the provider must ensure the patient gains entry to their 


residence. 


The service specification states that transport provision for priority patients must take account 


of the possible difference in the needs of the patient prior to and after treatment. 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/
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A survey questionnaire was available online via a website link and posted on the NLCCG website. The 


link was sent to members of our Embrace patient network, stakeholders and key contacts in the local 


community. The link was posted on our social media pages and shared by local Facebook groups in 


Scunthorpe and surrounding villages. 


 
Paper copies of the questionnaire were also made available at GP practices and completed face to face 


at the following groups: 


 Children’s Centres in Scunthorpe 


 GP surgeries in each care network area 


 The Forge homeless project, Scunthorpe 


 Café Conversation, The Arc café, Westcliff, Scunthorpe 


 British Steel, Scunthorpe 


 Barton Healthcare Event 


 Winterton Seniors Forum 


 Accident and Emergency, Scunthorpe General Hospital 


 Crosby Community Association. 


 


The key questions from the survey were discussed at the following groups: 


 NLCCG Patient and Community Assurance Group 


 MIND mental health peer support group 


 North Lincolnshire Youth Council 


 Carers Advisory Partnership 


 Maternity Voices Partnership 


 North Lincolnshire Patient Participation Group Chairs Forum 


 Scunthorpe Central Mosque 


 South Axholme PPG 


 Cambridge Avenue PPG. 


 


The feedback from the survey and discussion groups is being analysed and will be fed into the Urgent 


Treatment Centre procurement process in the coming months. A ‘You Said We Did’ feedback 


document will be shared on our website and we have committed to return to the community groups to 


talk to them about how their views were taken into account. 
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Reviewing our engagement 


Our Patient and Community Assurance Group (PCAG) is responsible for overseeing our engagement 


work and assuring not only that we are carrying out our statutory duties to a high standard, but that we 


are responding effectively to the feedback we receive and using this to inform and influence our 


commissioning. 


 
PCAG group members were recruited via our Embrace patient network and nominations from the local 


voluntary and community sector. In addition to Embrace members, we have representation on the 


group from the Youth Council, Healthwatch North Lincolnshire, Cloverleaf Advocacy, Westcliff 


Community Works and the Humber and Wolds Rural Action group. Meetings are chaired by our CCG 


Lay Member for Patient and Public Involvement. 


 
Formal meetings of PCAG commenced in April 2018, following a series of training sessions about the 


local and national NHS and good practice in public engagement. During 2018/19 our PCAG spent time 


reflecting on their role and progress so far. They considered plans for engagement and the CCG’s 


response to feedback about the following: 


 Engagement on proposals for Urgent Treatment Centre 


 Musculoskeletal and pain services 


 Feedback on engagement on GP extended hours 


 Engagement to support re-procurement of patient transport service 


 Out of hospital model / community services 


 Ophthalmology services engagement outcomes. 


 


Throughout 2018/19 we have been identifying ways to continuously improve our approach to patient 


and public involvement and the structured review of our engagement activity is helping us learn what 


works well and plan for the future. We would like to thank all of our patient and public participants. We 


really appreciate the time people have given to find out about our work and give us their views. 


 


Keeping You Informed 


Our communications strategy 


It is very important to us that local people are kept fully informed of what we are doing to improve their 


health and care. It is our goal to provide this information in a number of different ways, which are easy 


to understand. 


 
We want to make sure that people from all walks of life are considered when planning how we should 


communicate important healthcare information the public. We believe our patients should be fully 


informed about proposed changes to new or existing services. 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/tell-us-what-you-think/patient-and-community-assurance-group-pcag/
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Evening and weekend GP appointments – a case study 


In 2018/19 we rolled-out a number of high profile multimedia campaigns to increase awareness of 


changes that were being made to healthcare across North Lincolnshire. 


 
One such campaign was to promote the introduction of routine evening and weekend GP appointments 


to the public. We communicated this new offering to the public in a 


number of different ways throughout October and beyond, including: 


 A month-long radio advertising campaign on Lincs FM


 ‘Streetliner’ external bus adverts on all Stagecoach bus routes in 


North Lincolnshire


 Animated adverts on ATM machines


 Petrol pump adverts


 Distribution of branded drinks coasters to local food and drink outlets in North Lincolnshire


 A sponsored wraparound edition of the Scunthorpe Telegraph


 Promoted Facebook posts across the patch


 Google pay-per-click advertising for those searching for healthcare-related terms in the area


 Leaflets and posters in all GP surgeries and at Scunthorpe General Hospital


 A dedicated page on our website with key information


 A press release resulting in coverage in local media, including BBC Radio Humberside


 Face-to-face conversations with local patient groups.


 
 


Media Relations 


It’s imperative that we have a proactive press office. This means we don’t just respond to press 


enquiries that are sent to us – we issue press releases and arrange media interviews ourselves on key 


issues to increase publicity and maintain our transparency. 


 
We also work very closely with our GP member practices to support them in promoting their news to 


their patients. In 2018/19 we issued a wide range of press releases to local media (which are also 


available on our website), including the following headlines: 


 
New scheme in North Lincolnshire means patients can see a physiotherapist at local GP surgery 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/new-scheme-in-north-lincolnshire-means-patients-can-see-a-physiotherapist-at-local-gp-surgery/





46  


 
Have your say on plans to develop an Urgent Treatment Centre in North Lincolnshire 


Scunthorpe GP practice and pharmacy scoop top health awards 


New community partnership helps the homeless in Scunthorpe 


 
 


You can read all our press releases at: https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/news/ 
 
 


New website 


In January 2019 we launched a brand new, mobile-compatible website. 


The new-look platform helps us to more effectively communicate and 


engage with stakeholders and the public. 


 
A key element of the new website is the ability to easily showcase our 


latest news on the homepage so that key updates are more-easily seen. The new design is also 


sleeker, more modern and easier to navigate. 


 
You can visit our website at: https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk 


 
 


Social media 


In August 2018, we relaunched our Facebook page and created an 


Instagram account to help us communicate to our younger, more digitally- 


present audiences. 


 
Since then, we’ve grown our social media following exponentially by 


crafting tailored, engaging content for each of our three platforms 


(Facebook, Instagram and Twitter). 


 
We use a combination of video, photography, illustrations, animations, web links, GIFs and text-only 


content to communicate effectively. 


 
As well as posting key health messages, we diversify our content by piggy-backing onto the day’s news 


agenda. This has helped us grow our combined social media audience to more than 10,000 people. 


 


 
Include screengrab of 


website homepage 


Include: 


https://twitter.com/n 


orthlincsccg/status/1 


04775711792560128 


1 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/have-your-say-on-plans-to-develop-an-urgent-treatment-centre-in-north-lincolnshire/

https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/scunthorpe-gp-practice-and-pharmacy-scoop-top-health-awards/

https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/new-community-partnership-helps-the-homeless-in-scunthorpe/

https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/news/

https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/
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Inspiring the next generation of healthcare workers 


In early 2019, we worked with the Inspiring the Future programme (run by the charity Education and 


Employers) which encourages volunteers to go into local schools and talk about their jobs. Several of 


our staff - from a variety of backgrounds - attended events to help raise the aspirations and broaden the 


horizons of local pupils and help counter gender and social stereotyping. 


 
In March, our Chair, Dr Faisel Baig, delivered a rousing careers talk to students at his former school, St 


Bede’s Academy, in Scunthorpe. Dr Baig attended St Bede’s and went on to study medicine at The 


University of Manchester before returning to his hometown of Scunthorpe to work as a GP and “give 


something back”. 


 
Emma Latimer shares powerful cervical screening story 


In March 2019, our Chief Officer, Emma Latimer, spoke publicly of her own experiences of having her 


cervical smear test - and how it may have saved her life. 


 
Speaking to BBC Radio Humberside for The Burnsy Show on the anniversary of Jade Goody's death 


from cervical cancer, Emma spoke candidly about needing treatment for abnormal cells picked up 


through the routine screening. 


 
Emma shared her story to help publicise Market Hill practice’s 8am-8pm drop-in smear test clinic on 


Saturday, March 23, 2019. The practice, based in Scunthorpe, organised the sit-and-wait clinic to 


help boost the numbers of women attending cervical screening appointments. 
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Sustainable development 


The CCG is committed to shaping and commissioning health services that are environmentally 


appropriate, meet the health needs of the local population and are financially sustainable. 


 
Sustainability is about the effective use of natural resources and behaving in a way that manages and 


minimises the impact we have on our environment. It requires the CCG to pay particular attention to 


travel, facilities management and procurement. As a commissioner of healthcare services and as an 


employer, the CCG recognises the need to minimise its impact on the environment. 


 
During 2018/19, the CCG maintained its initiatives from 2017/18 to reduce its carbon footprint. These 


include: 


 Installing large domestic recycling bins for staff to use


 Asking staff to turn off all computer monitors when not in use by implementing a screensaver 


reminder


 Undertaking monthly health and safety walk rounds reminding staff of their responsibility to 


ensure that all sockets and electrical equipment are turned off or unplugged when not in use.


 
Governance 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG continues to use a Sustainability Impact Assessment (SIA) template, as 


this tool enables the CCG to assess and anticipate the likely sustainability implications of a policy, 


strategy or service design/redesign. The template is embedded within the organisation’s corporate 


templates that support decision making functions. 


 
Travel 


To support its ambition to reduce its carbon footprint, the CCG continues to use unified communications 


tools as an alternative to face-to-face meetings. These include Skype for Business, Virtual Meeting 


Room technology and teleconferencing. 


 
Facilities management 


NHS Property Services Limited (NHS PS) own and manage the building from which the CCG operates. 


The CCG has a lease/rental agreement with NHSPS and all utility bills go directly to them as the 


'landlord'. 


 
The tables below highlight the CCG’s carbon footprint for gas, electricity and water. There has been a 


decrease in the usage of electricity, gas and water over the past year. The reason for the decrease in 


energy usage is down to good internal building management by staff in ensuring that radiators are 


turned off when not required and that lights and electrical sockets are turned off when not in use. 
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Replacing fluorescent bulbs with LED bulbs has made a big impact and has also improved lighting 


throughout the building which in turn has made for a better working environment. 


 
 


  


Gas Cons (kWh) 
 


 


120,000 
   


100,000    


80,000    


60,000   Gas Cons (kWh) 


40,000    


20,000    


0    


 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19  


  


Water Cons (m²) 
 


 


1,400 
   


1,200    


1,000    


800    
   Water Cons (m²) 


600    


400    


200    


0    


 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19  


  


Elec Cons (kWh) 
 


 


120,000 
   


115,000    


110,000    


105,000   Elec Cons (kWh) 


100,000    


95,000    


90,000    


 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19  







50  


 


Access to information 
 


During the period between April 1, 2018 and March 31, 2019, the CCG processed the following 


requests for information under the Freedom of Information Act (2000) (FOIA). 


 


 


 
Number of FOIA requests received and processed 


 
257 


Percentage of requests responded to within 20 working days 
 


99.6% 


 
Average time taken to respond to an FOIA request 


 
16 days 


 
 
 


One FOI response was issued to the applicant outside of the 20 working day deadline due to an 


administrative error. 


The CCG provided the full information requested in 103 cases. The CCG did not provide the 


information requested in 52 cases because an exemption was applied either to part of, or to the whole 


request. Examples of exemptions include: 


 The information being accessible by other means 


 The cost of providing the information exceeding the limits set by the FOIA 


 Disclosure of information being likely to prejudice the commercial interests of any person 


 The information requested relating to personal data. 
 


The CCG did not provide information in 38 cases where the CCG did not hold the information. In these 


cases, where possible the applicant was redirected to the correct organisation for the information. 


There were no requests received that have been referred for internal review. 
 


The Section 45 Code of Practice under FOIA recommends that public authorities with more than 100 


Full Time Equivalent (FTE) employees publish FOIA compliance statistics as part of their publication 


schemes. As a matter of best practice the CCG publishes its FOIA reports on a quarterly basis at the 


link below: https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publication-scheme/what-are-our-priorities-and-how-are- 


we-doing/ 


Our publication scheme contains documents that are routinely published; this is available on our 


website: https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publication-scheme/ 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publication-scheme/what-are-our-priorities-and-how-are-we-doing/

https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publication-scheme/what-are-our-priorities-and-how-are-we-doing/

https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publication-scheme/
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Accountability report 
 
 


Emma Latimer 


Accountable Officer 


24 May 2019 







52  


Corporate Governance Report 


North Lincolnshire CCG Members’ Report 


The Members’ Report contains details of our CCG member practices, our Governing Body 


membership, membership of the Integrated Audit and Governance Committee and where people can 


find Governing Body member profiles and the register of interests. 


 
Our CCG membership 


 
NHS North Lincolnshire CCG is a clinically led organisation that brings together local GP practices and 


other health professionals to plan and design services to meet local patients’ needs. Our GP practices 


serve a population of around 179,000 people. 


 
The CCG has 19 member practices – including a number of branch surgeries – taking the overall 


number of medical centres in North Lincolnshire to 34. 


 
Our member practices 


The CCG’s Member GP practices are listed in the table on page 53. 


 
 


Our CCG Governing Body membership for 2018/19 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG’s Governing Body meets in public on a bi-monthly basis. It has 


responsibility for leading the development of the CCG’s vision and strategy – as well as providing 


assurance to the Council of Members with regards to the achievement of the CCG’s objectives. 


 


Residents and partner organisations are encouraged to attend these meetings to develop a better 


understanding of their NHS - both locally and nationally. 







 


 


PRACTICE SITES FROM WHICH SERVICES ARE DELIVERED 


Ashby Turn Primary Care Partners The Link, Scunthorpe, DN16 2UT 


West Common Lane Teaching Practice Dorchester Road, Scunthorpe, DN17 1YH 
 Collum Lane, Scunthorpe, DN16 3EL 


The Killingholme Surgery Town Street, South Killingholme, DN40 3EL 


The Birches Medical Practice Ironstone Centre, West Street, Scunthorpe, DN15 3EL 
 Ashby Branch Surgery, Collum Lane, Scunthorpe, DN16 2SZ 


Riverside Surgery Barnard Avenue, Brigg, DN20 8AS 
 Broughton Surgery, 27 Brooklands Avenue, Broughton, DN20 


Cedar Medical Practice 275 Ashby Road, Scunthorpe, DN16 2AB 
 Ironstone Centre, West Street, Scunthorpe, DN15 3EL 


Central Surgery King Street, Barton Upon Humber, DN18 5ER 
 The Surgery, St Nicholas School, Ulceby, DN39 6TB 
 The Village Surgery, Howe Lane, Goxhill, DN19 7JD 


Ancora Medical Practice 291 Ashby Road, Scunthorpe, DN16 2AB 
 20 Detuyll Street, Scunthorpe, DN15 7LS 


Cambridge Avenue Medical Centre Medical Centre, Cambridge Avenue, Bottesford, Scunthorpe, DN16 3LG 
 Messingham Health Centre, Wendover Road, DN17 3SN 


Market Hill Ironstone Centre, West Street, Scunthorpe, DN15 6HX 


Church Lane Medical Centre Orchid Rise, Scunthorpe, DN15 7AN 


West Town Surgery 80 High Street, Barton Upon Humber, DN18 5PU 


The Surgery Traingate, Kirton in Lindsey, DN21 4PQ 
 Scotter Surgery, Scotton Road, Scotter, Gainsborough, DN21 3SB 


The Oswald Road Medical Centre 70-80 Oswald Road, Scunthorpe, DN15 7PG 


South Axholme Practice The Surgery, High Street, Epworth, DN9 1EP 
 Haxey Surgery, 30 Church Street, Haxey, DN9 2HY 
 Pinfold Surgery, Station Road, Owston Ferry, DN9 1AW 
 Jubilee Surgery, School Lane, West Butterwick, DN17 3LB 


Trent View Medical Practice 45 Trent View, Keadby, DN17 3DR 
 Crowle Medical Centre, The Health Centre, Chancery Lane, Crowle, Scunthorpe, DN17 4HN 
 Skippingdale Surgery, Ferry Road West, Scunthorpe, DN15 8EA 


The Medical Centre Victoria Road, Barnetby, North Lincs, DN38 6HZ 


The Surgery Manlake Avenue, Winterton, DN15 9TA 
 Norfolk Avenue, Burton Upon Stather, DN15 9EW 


Bridge Street Surgery 53 Bridge Street, Brigg, North Lincs, DN20 8NT 
 Broughton Surgery, 8 Brigg Road, Broughton, Brigg, DN20 0JW 


 


 


53 







54  


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG Board Membership 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Chair and Chief Officer 


Dr Faisel Baig 


Chair 


Membership Dates: 


June 1, 2018 - Present 


Emma Latimer 


Chief Officer 


Membership Dates: 


April 1, 2018- Present 


GP Members 


Dr Neveen Samuel 


Membership Dates: 


April 1, 2018 -Present 


 
Dr Hardik Gandhi 


Membership Dates: 


April 1, 2018-Present 


 
Dr Pratik Basu 


Membership Dates: 


October 1, 2018-Present 


Dr Salim Modan 


Membership Dates: 


April 1, 2018-Present 


 
Dr Gary Armstrong 


Membership Dates: 


June 1, 2018-Present 


Secondary Care Consultant 


Dr Richard Shenderey 


Membership Dates: 


April 1, 2018-Present 


Lay Members 


Erika Stoddart 


Lay Member for Governance 


Membership Dates: 


April 1, 2018-Present 


 
Janice Keilthy 


Lay Member for Public & Patient Involvement 


Membership Dates: 


April 1, 2018-Present 


Heather McSharry 


Lay Member for Equality & Inclusion 


Membership Dates: 


April 1, 2018-Present 


Other Executive Directors (Voting Board Members) 


Emma Sayner 


Chief Finance Officer 


Membership Dates: 


April 1, 2018-Present 


Alex Seale 


Chief Operating Officer 


Membership Dates: 


November 5, 2018-Present 


Clare Linley 


Director of Nursing and 


Quality Membership Dates: 


September 3, 2018-Present 


Other Executive Directors (In Attendance) 


Dr Satpal Shekhawat 


 
Associate Medical Director 


Membership Dates: 


September 1, 2018-Present 


Director of Public Health 


North Lincolnshire Council 


Membership Dates: 


April 1, 2018-Present 


Penny Spring 
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Departing members 


Robert Jaggs-Fowler, Associate Medical Director, April 1-August 31, 2018 


Catherine Wylie, Director of Nursing, April 1-September 3, 2018 


Julie Warren, Interim Chief Operating Officer, April 1-October 31, 2018 


Margaret Sanderson, Chair, April 1-May 31, 2018 


 
Our committees 


Five committees assist in the delivery of the statutory functions and key strategic objectives of the 


CCG. 


 Integrated Audit and Governance Committee


 Planning and Commissioning Committee


 Quality, Performance and Finance Committee


 Primary Care Commissioning Committee


 Remuneration Committee.


 


For full details of committee functions, membership and attendance for 2018/19 please see pages 60 to 


85 of the Governance Statement. 


 
Register of Interests 


Information about our obligation to declare conflicts of interest can be found in the CCG’s constitution. 


 
 


For further information regarding the CCG’s Conflict of Interest processes please visit: 


https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publications/lists-and-registers/ 


 


Personal data-related incidents 


The CCG recognises the importance of maintaining data in a safe and secure environment. It uses the 


Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation (SIRI) tool to assess any matters involving potential data loss 


to the organisation. 


 
The CCG had no such incidents during 2018/19. 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publications/lists-and-registers/
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Statement of disclosure to auditors 


 
 


Each individual who is a member of the CCG at the time the Members’ Report is approved confirms: 


 So far as the member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the CCG’s auditor 


is unaware that would be relevant for the purposes of their audit report


 The member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order to make him or herself 


aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the CCG’s auditor is aware of it.


 
 


 


Emma Latimer 


Accountable Officer 


24 May 2019 


 
Modern Slavery Act 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG fully supports the Government’s objectives to eradicate modern slavery 


and human trafficking but does not meet the requirements for producing an annual Slavery and Human 


Trafficking Statement as set out in the Modern Slavery Act (2015). 


 
Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response (EPRR) 


The CCG is required to develop and maintain sufficient plans to ensure that the organisation and all 


commissioned services are well prepared to respond effectively to major incidents or emergencies. 


 
These plans serve to mitigate the risk to public and patients and ensure that critical functions can be 


maintained in the event of unforeseen disruption to services. Our key role and responsibilities in 


relation to EPRR include: 


 Ensuring all contracts with commissioned provider organisations (including independent and third 


sector) contain relevant EPRR elements, including business continuity


 Monitoring compliance by each commissioned provider organisation with their contractual 


obligations in respect of EPRR and with applicable core standards


 Ensuring robust escalation procedures are in place so that if a commissioned provider has an 


incident the provider can inform the CCG 24 hours a day, seven days a week


 Ensuring effective processes are in place for the CCG to properly prepare for and rehearse 


incident response arrangements with local partners and providers
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 Being represented at the Local Health Resilience Partnership (LHRP), either on their own behalf 


or through a nominated lead CCG representative


 Providing a route of escalation for the LHRP in respect of commissioned provider EPRR 


preparedness


 Supporting NHS England in discharging its EPRR functions and duties locally, including 


supporting health economy tactical coordination during incidents.


 


We certify that the CCG has incident response plans in place, which are fully compliant with the NHS 


England EPRR Framework (2015). 


 
The CCG regularly reviews and makes improvements to its EPRR plans, including business continuity. 


These plans provide assurance that the CCG has robust processes in place to meet its statutory 


duties. 
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Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities 


The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical Commissioning Group 


shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be appointed by the NHS Commissioning 


Board (NHS England). NHS England has appointed Emma Latimer to be the Accountable Officer of 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG. 


 
The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer are set out under the National Health Service Act 2006 


(as amended), Managing Public Money and in the Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer 


Appointment Letter. They include responsibilities for: 


 The propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable Officer is 


answerable


 For keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 


financial position of the Clinical Commissioning Group and enable them to ensure that the 


accounts comply with the requirements of the Accounts Direction)


 For safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for taking reasonable 


steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities)


 The relevant responsibilities of accounting officers under Managing Public Money


 Ensuring the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and economically (in accordance 


with Section 14Q of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and with a view to 


securing continuous improvement in the quality of services (in accordance with Section14R of the 


National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended)


 Ensuring that the CCG complies with its financial duties under Sections 223H to 223J of the 


National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).


 
Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has directed each Clinical 


Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the 


basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give 


a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and of its income and 


expenditure, Statement of Financial Position and cash flows for the financial year. 


In preparing the accounts, the Accountable Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the 


Government Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to: 


 Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the relevant accounting and 


disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis 


 Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis 
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 State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Government Financial Reporting 


Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the accounts 


 Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis 


 Confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable 


and take personal responsibility for the Annual Report and Accounts and the judgements required 


for determining that it is fair, balanced and understandable. 


 
As the Accountable Officer, I have taken all the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware 


of any relevant audit information and to establish that NHS North Lincolnshire CCG’s auditors are 


aware of that information. So far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the 


auditors are unaware. 


 


 


Emma Latimer 


Accountable Officer 


24 May 2019 
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Annual Governance Statement 


North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group is a body corporate established by NHS England on 


April 1, 2013, under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 


 
The Clinical Commissioning Group’s statutory functions are set out under the National Health Service 


Act 2006 (as amended). The CCG’s general function is arranging the provision of services for 


persons for the purposes of health services in England. The CCG is, in particular, required to arrange 


for the provision of certain health services to such an extent as it considers necessary to meet the 


reasonable requirements of its local population. 


 


From August 14, 2017 until August 14, 2018, the Clinical Commissioning Group was subject to “legal 


directions” from NHS England issued under Section 14Z21 of the National Health Service Act 2006. 


 
Full details of the legal directions are available at: 


https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/directions-for-nhs-north-lincolnshire-clinical- 


commissioning-group/ 


 


The main provisions of the legal directions were as follows: 


 The full disclosure to NHS England of the Capability and  Capacity  Review (CCR) that the 


CCG has commissioned together with the production of an Improvement Plan to deliver the 


recommendations of the CCR 


 The development of a credible financial recovery plan for Governing Body approval that ensures 


the CCG operates within its annual budget in 2017/18 remaining recurrent in subsequent years, 


financial analysis and reasons for deterioration; delivers efficiency initiatives and allocates 


resources, with a clear risk assessment 


 To commission and complete the Governance Review and implement 


recommendations 


 That  NHS  England  will  be  involved  in  the   process   to  make   any  new appointments to 


the Executive Team and the next tier of management. 


 
In response to the legal directions the CCG developed and implemented an Improvement Plan. 


The Governing Body worked closely with NHS England to deliver against all the agreed actions. 


Actions included the review of Governing Body functions using the Board Maturity Matrix, 


implementation of a financial recovery plan, comprehensive review and alignment of committee 


structures and the development of an integrated report that covered the full gambit of the Governing 


Body’s responsibilities. 



https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/directions-for-nhs-north-lincolnshire-clinical-commissioning-group/

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/directions-for-nhs-north-lincolnshire-clinical-commissioning-group/
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As a result of comprehensive work conducted, NHSE has recognised the successful work undertaken 


and the legal directions ceased on August 14, 2018. This work has also placed the CCG in a strong 


position to be removed from special measures. 


 
General context 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG comprises 19 practices covering a  population of approximately 


179,000. It is served by one main acute provider, including community services (NLaG), one specialist 


acute provider (Hull and East Yorkshire Trust, HEY) and one mental health provider (Rotherham, 


Doncaster and South Humber Foundation Trust, RDaSH). North Lincolnshire CCG is largely 


coterminous with the local authority (North Lincolnshire Council). For 2018/19 it had a total budget of 


£239.865 million. 


 
 


The NHS North Lincolnshire CCG area is geographically large, with more than half of its population 


living in rural areas. This creates distinct  neighbourhoods  and  localities, each  with  their  own 


unique characteristics and sense of identity, with different population profiles and needs.  For 


example, the Scunthorpe North locality comprises mainly younger citizens, high levels of rented 


accommodation, with higher levels of black and minority ethnic residents than elsewhere in the CCG 


area. Whereas the Axholme locality comprises a higher number of more affluent, older people, living in 


private accommodation, with a higher incidence of long term conditions associated with the older 


population. 


 
Scope of responsibility 


As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that 


supports the achievement of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst 


safeguarding of public funds and assets for which I am personally responsible in accordance with the 


responsibilities assigned in HM Treasury’s “Managing Public Money”. 


 
I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 


amended) and in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 


 
I am responsible for ensuring that the Clinical Commissioning Group is administered prudently and 


economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, safeguarding financial propriety 


and regularity. I also have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 


control within the Clinical Commissioning Group as set out in this governance statement. 
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Governance arrangements and effectiveness 


The main function of the Governing Body is to ensure that the group has made appropriate 


arrangements for ensuring it exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and economically and 


complies with such generally accepted principles of good governance as are relevant to it. 


 
NHS North Lincolnshire CCG has a constitution that  has been agreed by the Council of  Members  


and sets out the responsibilities and arrangements in place to commission services for the residents   


of North Lincolnshire. The constitution includes the Scheme of Delegation and Reservation, Authority 


to Act, Standing Orders and Prime Financial Policies. It identifies the governing principles, rules and 


procedures to ensure accountability and probity for the running of the CCG, ensuring that decisions  


are taken in a transparent and open manner promoting the best interests for the people for whom we 


commission services. 


 
The NHS North Lincolnshire CCG Constitution includes provisions which regulate: 


 Its membership and geographical area of coverage 


 The arrangements for the discharge of our functions and those of our Governing Body 


 The procedures we will follow in making decisions and securing transparency in decision making 


 Arrangements for discharging our duties in relation to registers of interests and managing 


conflicts of interests. 


 
The Governing Body has its functions identified as set out in the Constitution which has been agreed by 


member practices. 


 
The CCG maintains a constitution and associated standing orders, prime financial policies and 


scheme of delegation, all of which have been approved by the CCG membership and certified as 


compliant with the requirements of NHS England. Taken together these documents enable the 


maintenance of a robust system of internal control. The Scheme of Delegation defines those 


decisions that are reserved to the Council of Members and those that are the responsibility of its 


Governing Body (and its committees), CCG committees, individual officers and other employees. 


The Council of Members comprises representatives of the 19 member practices and has overall 


authority on the CCG’s business. 


 
The Governing Body has responsibility for leading the development of the CCG’s vision and strategy, 


as well as providing assurance to the Council of Members with regards to the achievement of the 


CCG’s objectives. It has established  committees to assist  in the delivery of the statutory functions  


and key strategic objectives. 
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The CCG’s Improvement Plan, produced in response to legal directions, included a review of existing 


committee structures. Following extensive consultation, it was agreed in January 2018 that the 


following committees would support the Governing Body: 


 Integrated Audit and Governance Committee 


 Quality Performance and Finance Committee 


 Planning and Commissioning Committee 


 Primary Care Joint Commissioning Committee 


 Remuneration Committee 


 Senior Leadership Team. 


 


The Governing Body 


During 2018/19, the Governing Body met six times in public and was quorate at each meeting. The 


Governing Body also held six workshop sessions. Attendance figures for the Governing Body and 


other committees are attached at Appendix 1. 


 
Work that helped promote Governing Body assurance and effectiveness included: 


 Full and active participation in the Health and Wellbeing Board and its supporting working 


groups 


 Regular reviews of the CCG’s Strategic Risk Register 


 Full and active participation in the Humber, Coast and Vale Health and Care Partnership 


 Participation in the CCG Improvement and Assessment Framework review for NHS England 


 Review of the Improvement Plan in response to the legal directions; including the medium 


term financial recovery plan. 


 
The Governing Body is supported by a number of the strategic committees, which are set out below. 


 
 


The Integrated Audit and Governance Committee 


Chaired by the CCG Lay Member for Governance, and including additional lay representation, the 


Committee met seven times during the year and was quorate at each meeting. 


 
The Committee is responsible for providing assurance to the Governing Body on processes operating 


within the organisation for risk, control and governance. It has delegated responsibility for oversight of 


risk management and internal control, internal audit, external audit and value for money whilst 


reviewing the findings of other significant assurance functions including counter fraud. 
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Highlights of its work include: 


 Reviewing of draft annual report and annual accounts 


 Tackling compliance issues e.g. taxation, legal and constitutional issues (e.g. tender waivers) 


and gaining relevant assurances 


 Reviewing counter fraud and security work 


 Monitoring the implementation of audit recommendations 


 Reviewing compliance with General Data Protection Requirements 


 Reviewing compliance with conflicts of interest compliance 


 Regular updating of detailed financial policies and procedures, scheme of delegation and 


progress against the financial recovery plan 


 Supporting the development of assurance mapping to record internal, semi-independent 


assurance to the CCG linking with the strategic risk register. 


 


Planning and Commissioning Committee 


The Planning and Commissioning Committee met 11 times and was quorate at 10 out of the 11 


meetings. The Planning and Commissioning Committee is chaired by a GP Board Member with 


delegated authority from the Council of Members. Its remit  is  to ensure the planning, 


commissioning and procurement of commissioning-related business is in line with the commissioning 


strategy and organisational objectives. 


 


Highlights of its work include: 


 Reviewing of the progress and delivery of main work programmes 


 Supporting the development of the Specialist Assessment for Frail and Elderly service 


 Developing the vision and service specification for local urgent care provision and re-design of 


local services to reflect the national integrated urgent care specification 


 Developing and agreeing the service specification for integrated musculoskeletal, pain and 


rheumatology services 


 Developing and agreeing the service specification for community-based ophthalmology services 


 Supporting the development and agreement of a service specification for patient transport 


services 


 Supporting and developing of the Tier 3 weight management service 


 Supporting and overseeing the review of clinical commissioning policies and the Individual 


Funding Request process 


 Overseeing contracting and delivery of operations and strategy 


 Supporting the development of the dementia strategy in conjunction with partners 
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 Holding eMBED Health Consortium (eMBED) and other relevant organisations to account 


for operational, financial and performance issues. 


 
The Quality Performance and Finance Committee 


The Quality Performance and Finance Committee is chaired by the CCG Lay Member for Patient & 


Public Involvement. The Committee met 11 times during the year and all meetings were quorate. The 


remit of the Committee is to ensure the continuing development, monitoring and reporting of 


performance outcome metrics in relation to the CCG’s quality improvement, financial performance and 


management plans. 


 
Highlights of the work undertaken by the Committee include: 


 Reviewing the Integrated Quality and Performance report making more explicit the assessment 


of the quality impact of performance 


 Strengthening the line of sight on all quality indicators to the Quality, Performance and Finance 


Committee 


 Undertaking a number of in depth reviews to provide assurance to the Committee where areas of 


quality concern have been identified. Reviews undertaken include Mental Health Crisis Services 


and the Fractured Neck of Femur 


 Developing a framework to provide a consistent approach to determining the committee’s level of 


assurance. 


 
Primary Care Joint Commissioning Committee 


This is a joint committee with NHS England with the principal purpose of jointly commissioning primary 


medical services for the people of North Lincolnshire. It is chaired by the CCG Lay Member for Patient 


and Public Involvement and has met four times, with each meeting being quorate. 


 
Highlights of work undertaken by the Committee include: 


 Approving service model and specification for improving access into primary care 


 Approving primary care quality scheme and its commissioning at network level 


 Reviewing and approving of practice mergers, closure of lists and the Primary Care 


Transformation Fund bids 


 Commissioning a primary care estates strategy 


 Approving a primary care workforce strategy 


 Approving a £3 per head investment for a primary care physiotherapy scheme 


 Successfully applying for delegated commissioning for primary care. 
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The Remuneration Committee 


The Remuneration Committee is chaired by the Lay Member for Patient and Public Involvement. The 


Committee’s membership also consists of a further Lay Member and two Governing Body GP 


Members. The Committee has delegated responsibility from the Governing Body for advising it on all 


aspects of salary not covered by Agenda for Change, arrangements for the termination of 


employment, monitoring and evaluating the performance of Governing Body members and approving 


human resources policies and procedures. 


 
The Remuneration Committee met three times during the year and was quorate at each meeting, 


and its main performance role in 2018/19 was to undertake a review of Very Senior Managers’ 


terms and conditions. 


 
The CCG’s use of the UK Corporate Governance Code 


To ensure compliance with best governance practice, the CCG also refers to the UK Corporate 


Governance code. 


 
Though the CCG is not formally required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code 


provisions, it has used the principles of the Corporate Governance Code as a guide to improving 


corporate governance, including those aspects of the Code that are considered most relevant to the 


CCG and best practice. 


 
Using the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code to support best practice, the CCG 


has: 


 Reviewed declarations of interest and compliance with statutory requirements 


 Participated in a 360 degree stakeholder review against a range of performance 


criteria 


 Undertaken an assurance mapping exercise against a range of functions 


 Reviewed counter fraud and security arrangements 


 Considered the Strategic Risk Register at public meetings of the Governing Body 


 Reviewed Very Senior Managers’ (VSM) roles, responsibilities, remuneration and 


performance 


 Reviewed Governing Body appointments and clinical leads. 
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The CCG’s discharge of statutory functions and corporate governance 


Following establishment, the arrangements put in place by the CCG (and explained within the 


Corporate Governance Framework) and developed with extensive expert external legal input, have 


been reviewed to ensure compliance with the all relevant legislation. That legal advice also informed 


the matters reserved for Membership Body and Governing Body decision and the scheme of 


delegation. 


 
In light of the Harris Review 2013, the CCG has reviewed all of the statutory duties and powers 


conferred on it by the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and other associated legislative 


regulations. As a result,  I  can confirm  that NHS  North Lincolnshire CCG is clear about the 


legislative requirements associated with each of the statutory functions for which it is responsible, 


including any restrictions on delegation of those functions. 


 
Responsibility for each duty and power has been  clearly  allocated  to  a  lead director. 


Directorates have confirmed that their structures provide the necessary capability and capacity to 


undertake all of the CCG’s statutory duties. 


 
Risk management arrangements and effectiveness 


Arrangements for the identification, mitigation and management of risk play an integral role in the 


overall corporate CCG’s governance functions. 


 
As outlined in its Risk Management Strategy, NHS North Lincolnshire CCG has adopted a risk 


management process where logical steps are taken to manage risks effectively. Following on from 


setting priorities, potential risks or opportunities are then identified and evaluated before a course of 


action is determined to address the identified risks. As few risks remain static and new issues are 


likely to emerge, it is essential that all risks captured are routinely monitored. 


 
In addition, reporting of risk issues and in particular reporting and reflecting on any adverse  events 


that do occur is essential to ensure that the CCG  continuously improves its risk management 


activities. Risk management is embedded within the activities of NHS North Lincolnshire CCG through 


the risk process. The assurance framework is reviewed by the Senior Leadership Team  which 


ensures  that  the process is kept live  and  relevant.   Members of staff are able to report any 


concerns through an electronic desktop incident reporting process, which is actively encouraged and 


each incident is reviewed and investigated as applicable. Finally, the CCG is also committed to 


eliminating avoidable risks relating to either staff, patients, clients or other stakeholders. 
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In particular, North Lincolnshire CCG is committed to eliminating any form of discrimination and aims 


to commission services that are accessible, delivered in a way that respects the needs of each 


individual whilst being inclusive to everyone. 


 
All new policies, projects or functions have an equality impact assessment conducted on them. The 


CCG has a tool and guidance for use by staff to help identify the likely impact. Specific training has 


been provided to CCG members and staff. 


 
In addition, NHS North Lincolnshire CCG actively engages with public stakeholders, for example: 


 Partnership working with the local authority through the Health and Wellbeing Board and liaison 


with the Health Scrutiny Panel 


 Seeking assurance on our approach to patient and public involvement through working with local 


community members on our Patient and Community Assurance Group (PCAG) 


 Our Council of Members, which is made up of a healthcare representative from each CCG 


member practice. The Council of Members is engaged in the development of the NHS North 


Lincolnshire CCG strategy and plans 


 Governing Body meetings are held in public, allowing a transparent and public decision making 


process 


 Engaging through Embrace, the CCG’s patient engagement network comprising local people who 


are interested in being involved in CCG decision making 


 Working closely with our local Healthwatch in jointly hosting the North Lincolnshire Patient 


Participation Group Chairs’ Forum 


 Meeting with voluntary, community and social enterprise sectors and faith groups 


 Public drop-in sessions to ensure that the CCG is regularly listening to people’s experiences of 


the services we commission. 


 
The CCG’s capacity to handle risk 


The Risk Management Strategy is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 


eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide 


reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. Governance and internal control of the 


organisation is an ongoing process designed to: 


 Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of NHS 


North Lincolnshire CCG 


 Evaluate the likelihood and impact of those risks being realised and manage them efficiently, 


effectively and economically. 
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The Integrated Audit and Governance Committee has assured itself that the organisation has 


adequate arrangements in place for countering fraud and reviews the outcomes of counter fraud work. 


 
North Lincolnshire CCG implements anti-fraud prevention measures and counter fraud risks in 


compliance with NHS Protect Standards on countering fraud, bribery and corruption. To ensure 


compliance with the Standards the CCG contracts with an external provider AuditOne who supply 


Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS) services to the organisation via an annual fraud plan. 


 
The Fraud Plan includes initiatives to promote fraud awareness, deterrence and prevention and also to 


investigate suspected cases of fraud, and if required, apply a range of potential sanctions including 


criminal, civil and disciplinary measures. Progress against the Internal Audit Plan is monitored at the 


Integrated Audit and Governance Committee. The Local Counter Fraud Specialist is directly 


responsible to the Chief Financial Officer and all fraud work is reported to the CCG Integrated Audit 


and Governance Committee. 


 
The CCG’s policies have been updated to reflect counter fraud policy and the 2010 


Bribery Act as standard. 


 
The key elements of the Risk Management Strategy are: 


 To support the Governing Body in carrying out its duties effectively. The Quality Performance 


and Finance Committee provides assurance (and Integrated Audit and Governance Committee 


independent assurance) that the risk registers and assurance framework are regularly reviewed 


and updated and that corresponding robust and adequately progressed risk treatment plans exist 


 That the Accountable Officer has overall accountability for ensuring there is a sound system in 


place for the management of risk and is responsible for ensuring systems and processes are 


implemented to comply with the strategy. 


 
New risks identified for inclusion on the risk register and assurance framework are assessed for 


likelihood and consequence using a 5 x 5 risk matrix in accordance with the risk management 


strategy. The Strategic Risk Register identifies the risks to the delivery of the organisation’s strategic 


objectives whilst the Corporate Risk Register focuses on operational risks. 


 
If the assessment of the risk is higher than the risk appetite, further action will be taken to reduce the 


likelihood and/or impact of the risk occurring. 
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Risks  to  data   security   are   managed   through   a   suite   of   information governance policies 


and all qualifying CCG staff have undertaken the Electronic Staff Record (ESR) Information 


Governance training. Any data security incidents are reported through the CCG’s incident reporting 


system and notified to the Head of Governance for investigation. 


 
Risk Assessment 


The CCG recognises the need for a robust focus on the identification and management of risks and 


therefore places risk within an integral part of our overall approach to governance. Consequently, risk 


management is an explicit process in every activity undertaken by CCG staff. 


 
The CCG has a robust process for identification and mitigation of risks and where there have been 


serious incidents, responding to them quickly and ensuring that lessons learned from them are 


implemented swiftly across the CCG. 


 
The Risk Management Strategy reflects the risk management processes within the CCG and its 


responsibilities for management of risks. Those risks which were deemed to be a strategic risk have been 


allocated to the Strategic Risk Register and risk owners asked to identify assurances on control; positive 


assurances; gaps in control and gaps in assurance. The operational risks remain on the corporate 


register or directorate risk registers. 


 
An Assurance Framework based upon Department of Health and “best practice” guidance was 


adopted by the CCG in July 2017. 


 
A key element of the framework is the Strategic Risk Register that provides a structure and process to 


enable the organisation to focus on the risks that might compromise the achievement of its strategic 


objectives. 


 
The Strategic Risk Register maps out the key controls to mitigate the risks and provides a mechanism 


to inform the Governing Body of the assurances received about the effectiveness of these controls.  It 


is a dynamic tool and is reviewed at public meetings of the Governing Body and regularly by the 


Quality Performance and Finance Committee. The Integrated Audit and Governance Committee 


provides independent assurance. The Strategic Risk Register provides an effective focus on strategic 


and reputational risk rather than operational issues, and highlights any gaps in control  and 


assurances. It provides the  Governing  Body  with  confidence that systems and processes are in 


place and that it operates in a way that is safe and effective. 
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The key risks on the assurance framework as of the end of March 2019 are highlighted in the table 


below: 


 
 
Risk description 


Current 


risk 


rating 


If the CCG fails to take relevant action to improve health inequalities and promote 
population health it will face increases in preventable illnesses and a subsequent 
increase in demand for services 


 
12 


If the CCG fails to deliver a new model of integrated community services there will not 
be capacity or resources to fund a sustainable acute model 


15 


If the CCG fails to deliver alternative out of hospital provision in the right place the 


acute sector does not have a workforce or resources to deliver the forecast demand 
15 


Without additional investment in mental health services , the CCG may not deliver 
against the requirements of the Five Year Forward view, NHS Long Term Plan and 
planning guidance in terms of both ensuring robust core mental health services and 
requirements for new service developments 


 


12 


If the CCG fails to deliver its QIPP plan for 2018/19 this will have a detrimental effect 


on CCG financial resources 
8 


There is a risk that general practices will not engage in the Five Year Forward View 


work programme, which could result in Primary Care not being fit for the future or able 


to work to scale. This could impact on patient access to primary care services 


 
8 


There is a risk of harm to patients due to failure of NLaG to meet all control targets for 


quality 
16 


If the CCG fails to achieve its financial control target in 2018/19 there is a risk that the 


CCG could return to legal directions 


 


8 


If the CCG fails to deliver its constitutional targets this may result in the CCG being 
assessed as inadequate 


15 


If the CCG does not have sufficient capacity or capability to deliver work programmes 
the CCG will not deliver on its strategic priorities. 


9 


If there is a ‘hard EU exit’ local providers could face significant pressure on staff and 
resources that could impact on care provided within North Lincolnshire. 


12 


Risk of harm to patients due to EMAS failure to reach control standards. 16 
 


Each ‘strategic’ risk is owned by a lead director. Plans are in place to review risks and where 


appropriate address them. The Quality Performance and Finance Committee reviews the Corporate 


Risk Register and Strategic Risk Register. The Corporate Risk Register identifies the highest rated 


operational risks faced by the CCG. The Governing Body reviews the Strategic Risk Register twice 


yearly. 


 
The Integrated Audit and Governance Committee also reviews the Strategic Risk Register, providing 


independent assurance to the Governing Body. The Executive Team additionally reviews and revises 
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the Strategic Risk Register on a bi-monthly basis. This gives significant assurance that systems are in 


place and that there is a clear audit trail. 


 
A Heads of Service meeting, with representatives from each directorate, reviews the CCG’s Directorate 


Risk Registers. This meeting determines if risks are appropriately assigned and do not overlap, key 


risks are being actively identified and escalated if appropriate to the Corporate Risk Register. Individual 


Risk Registers are reviewed at directorate team meetings. All staff members are encouraged to 


participate in identifying and reviewing risks. 


 
During 2018, the CCG undertook an exercise to map the ‘risk appetites’ of all Governing Body 


members and Heads of Service. The risk profiling enables the CCG to better understand the 


tolerances for identified risks and enable a more balanced and focused approach to risk mitigation. 


 
The CCG recognises that it remains on a  journey  of  improvement  and  intends  to review, 


improve and strengthen its approach with a range of improvements next year. This work will include: 


 More emphasis on the effectiveness of risk mitigation plans both at a strategic and operational 


level 


 Ongoing work to promote embedding risk management in CCG activities and as a key tool in 


the strategic leadership of the CCG 


 Provision of more links to strategic risks that identify a full range of mitigating actions being 


taken by the CCG 


 A continuing focus on partnership risks and in relation to procurement and project initiatives. 


 


Internal Control Framework 


A system of internal control consists of a set of processes and procedures in the CCG to ensure it 


delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It is designed to identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate 


the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage 


them efficiently, effectively and economically. 


 
The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather than 


eliminating all risk. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of 


effectiveness. 


 
The system of internal control was based on a process to: 


 Identify and prioritise risks to the achievement of the CCG’s objectives 


 Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised 
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 The impact should they be realised 


 Manage them effectively. 


 


The CCG’s system of  internal control has been  in place for the year up to  March 31, 2019 and    


up to the date of the approval of the annual report and accounts. 


 
Underpinning the prime financial policies, the CCG had detailed financial policies and a supporting 


scheme of delegation. Since legal directions were imposed on the CCG in 2017 by NHS England, due 


to its failure to meet financial requirements and governance concerns, the CCG has been working with 


NHS England to comply with all the legal direction requirements. This work has included: 


 Production and implementation of an Improvement Plan to ensure the capacity, capability and 


governance of the CCG is fit for purpose 


 A Financial Recovery Plan that is regularly reviewed by the Governing Body 


 Implementation of a governance action plan that was submitted and approved by NHS England 


 Work to further enhance the CCG’s financial delegation process 


 With the receipt of the community sustainability fund the CCG will achieve the NHSE agreed 


financial plan. 


 
No deficiencies were found during the year in the application of the CCG’s approach to whistleblowing. 


 
 


Annual audit of conflicts of interest management 


The revised statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest for CCGs (published June 2016) 


requires CCGs to undertake an annual internal audit of conflicts of interest management. To support 


the CCG’s undertaking of this task, NHS England has published a template audit framework. 


 
The CCG has carried out an annual audit of conflicts of interest and has received a good level of 


assurance on its work. 


 
The CCG’s Register of Interests is provided on its website: 


https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publications/lists-and-registers/ 


 


The CCG has undertaken in-house training and awareness-raising for staff and submitted positive 


quarterly and annual returns to NHS England regarding compliance with national requirements. 



https://northlincolnshireccg.nhs.uk/publications/lists-and-registers/
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Data quality 


Data was collated and managed by eMBED on behalf of North Lincolnshire CCG. Data was presented 


to the Governing Body, its sub committees and Council of Members. It is sourced from national 


systems and local data sources. Where possible the data is triangulated from national systems and 


alternative sources to ensure accuracy. eMBED had in place internal procedures and controls in order 


to ensure data presented was of the best quality possible. Any data issues noted in source data is 


reviewed and identified with the source provider. 


 
Should data issues arise resulting from internal processes, a route cause analysis is undertaken, 


corrective actions put in place and ongoing learning identified. 


 
The Quality Performance and Finance Committee also reviewed the range and quality of data from key 


providers which following further refinement enabled the committee to more effectively monitor the 


range of performance indicators. 


 
Information Governance 


The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by which the NHS 


handles information about patients and employees, in particular personal identifiable information. 


 
The NHS Information Governance Framework is supported by an information governance toolkit and 


the annual submission process provides assurances to the Clinical Commissioning Group, other 


organisations and to individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and 


effectively. 


 
Data security risks are addressed through mapping all information assets for the CCG, identifying data 


owners and risk assessing all data flows in and out including security during transfers and at rest. The 


Information Technology environment has also been risk assessed to ensure that adequate security  


for information on the networks is in place. 


 
NHS North Lincolnshire CCG places high importance on ensuring there are robust information 


governance systems and processes in place to help protect patient and corporate information. The 


CCG has an information governance management framework that it applies to the management of all 


information assets. The framework includes an Information Governance Group which is a sub group of 


the Quality Performance and Finance Committee. The CCG continued to develop information 


governance processes and procedures in line with the Data Security & Protection Toolkit and Senior 


Information Risk Officer (SIRO) guidance and ensuring it is embedded amongst CCG staff. 
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The CCG also has an appointed Data Protection Officer. 


 
 


The CCG has ensured all qualifying staff members undertake annual information governance training 


and have implemented a number of measures to ensure they are aware of their information 


governance roles and responsibilities. 


There are policies and processes in place for information incident reporting and investigation of serious 


incidents. 


 
Processes implemented allow the CCG to fulfil its requirements under the Freedom of Information Act 


and Data Protection Act relating to the protection, use and processing of subject access requests. 


 
The CCG has an incident reporting system for all staff and local general practices that encompasses 


information governance incidents allowing staff a single point of reporting.  The development of 


policies and the framework has allowed us to achieve a level two compliance with all the relevant Data 


Security Protection toolkit standards. 


 
The CCG has included information risk within the CCG’s Risk Management Policy and have processes 


in place to identify information asset owners and controllers. We have processes where the 


Information Asset Owners assess risks to assets in their areas and report to the SIRO annually. 


 
The CCG uses an Integrated Governance dashboard to summarise its performance. The dashboard 


summarises performance against mandatory information governance requirements. It is reviewed on a 


regular basis by the CCG Quality Performance and Finance Committee. 


 
The CCG continues to develop and enhance information risk assessment and management 


procedures as part of overall risk management and on-going work is undertaken to fully embed an 


information risk culture throughout the organisation. 


 
The CCG has submitted a satisfactory level of compliance with the Information Governance Toolkit 


Assessment following completion of actions from the internal audit report. NHS North Lincolnshire 


CCG had no lapses of data security during 2018/19. 


 
Business critical models 


The CCG recognises the principles reflected in the Macpherson Report as a direction of travel for 


business modelling in respect of service analysis, planning and delivery. 
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Key business critical models have been identified, however, further work is planned during 2018/19 to 


provide additional details of why  these  areas  are  business critical, associated key risks and to 


further develop the quality assurance process. In line with the Macpherson Report, we recognise and 


have identified that policy simulation (its impact on people and finances), forecasting, financial 


evaluation, allocation, workforce, procurement and planning are key areas where we use models. 


Current quality assurance systems are in place to manage our business risks, including: 


 Business intelligence reporting and financial reporting 


 Customer feedback (e.g. patient complaints) 


 Risk assessment (including risk registers and an assurance framework) 


 Internal and external audit 


 Review of executive leads and work portfolios 


 Public and patient involvement and engagement 


 Third party assurance mechanisms (including service auditor reports, NHS England, EPRR and 


business continuity). 


 
The CCG can confirm that these quality assurance processes are used across its business critical 


areas as appropriate. 


 
In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Internal Audit (HoIA) is required 


to provide an annual opinion, based upon and limited to the work performed, on  the  overall 


adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance 


processes (i.e. the organisation’s system of internal control). Plans are in place to mitigate against any 


identified failures. 


 
This is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with management and approved by the 


Audit and Integrated Governance Committee, which aims to provide a reasonable level of assurance 


subject to any inherent limitations. 


 
The Head of Internal Audit Opinion includes their opinion on the Assurance Framework, and the risk 


based audit assignments across the critical business systems to inform the Annual Governance 


Statement. 


 
The CCG has also conducted an assurance mapping exercise to identify the CCG’s assurance 


landscape and this continues to be further developed as systems, processes and partner 


relationships continue to evolve and embed. 
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The Head of Internal Audit Opinion does not imply that Internal Audit has reviewed all risks and 


assurances relating to the organisation. The opinion is substantially derived from the conduct of risk- 


based plans generated from a robust and organisation-led Assurance Framework. As such, it is one 


component that the Governing Body takes into account in making its Annual Governance Statement. 


 
Third party assurances 


In developing the CCG Assurance Map and review of sources of assurance,  the CCG  has 


considered services provided by service organisations and the assurance required as received by or 


via service auditor reports. To date, reliance has been placed on the assurance reports received from 


NHS Business Services Agency for prescription payments, procurement services, and SBS Financial 


Accounting, and from NHS Digital and for NHS Electronic Staff Records (ESR). 


 
eMBED provide a range of services including Information Management Technology, transactional 


Financial Services, and Human Resources for the CCG. Regular review meetings monitor 


performance against agreed targets. 


 
The CCG received a risk based audit of financial services from eMBED that gave substantial assurance 


that identified risks are being managed effectively. Compliance with the control framework was found to 


be taking place. 


 
Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust provides payroll services. The CCG received a risk 


based audit of governance, risk management and control arrangements that gave substantial 


assurance that the risks identified are managed effectively. Compliance with the control framework was 


found to be taking place. 


 
The CCG has an Assurance Map which is monitored by the Integrated Audit and Governance 


Committee. The Assurance Map includes the identification of issues or concerns relating to third party 


service providers enabling the CCG to take actions as appropriate. 


 
Control Issues 


Identification and mitigation and management of control issues is a key feature of sound risk 


management systems. 


 
As of the year end position, the CCG met 16 out of 31 constitutional targets. Details of the 


performance against these targets and highlights of plans to support improved performance for the 


future are set out in the performance section of the Annual Report. 
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As a result of comprehensive work conducted, NHSE has recognised the successful work undertaken 


and legal directions ceased on August 14, 2018. These had been imposed on the CCG in 2017 when 


it failed to meet its statutory financial duties. 


 
The removal from legal directions followed the successful implementation of an improvement plan 


that focused on capacity, capability, financial leadership, governance and financial recovery. Whilst 


the CCG remains under ‘special measures’ the significant improvements made strengthens the case 


for removal from special measures during 2019. 


 
 


Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources 


Sound corporate governance has  played  a  key  role  within  the  CCG’s overall pursuit of 


improved economy, efficiency and effectiveness. Following the comprehensive review of financial 


governance conducted during 2018/19, the CCG has continued to strengthen its arrangements and 


provide additional value for money assurances. 


 
2018/19 performance 


The CCG’s control total for 2018/19 was set at a deficit of £4m. As a result, the CCG was eligible for 


funding from the Commissioning Sustainability Fund (CSF) which will allow the CCG to deliver a 


balanced in year position and therefore carry forward a lower level of cumulative deficit than would 


otherwise have been the case. 


 
A summary of the CCG’s Financial Performance in 2018/19 can be seen below. 
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Medium term financial strategy 


The CCG has submitted a financial plan for 2019/20, which indicates that the CCG will return to in year 


financial balance from 2018/19, with assistance from the Commissioner Transformation Fund (CTF). 


 
Between 2018/19 and 2019/20, the CCG will maintain in year financial balance based on receiving 


£4m of CTF funding in 2018/19 and just £1m in 2019/20, which represents a £3m improvement in the 


CCG’s underlying recurrent financial position. 


 
A financial recovery plan and five year financial plan are also being developed in line with NHS 


England timescales to set out the CCG’s approach to returning to full compliance with NHS planning 


business rules and recurrent long term balance over the medium term. 


 
Governance arrangements to promote improvements in economy, efficiency and effectiveness 


The Governing Body has overarching responsibility for ensuring that NHS North Lincolnshire CCG has 


appropriate arrangements in place to exercise its functions effectively, efficiently and economically and 


in accordance with the group’s principles of good governance (its main function). 


 
The CCG’s Constitution allows for the delegation of responsibility to ensure appropriate arrangements 


are in place for the CCG to fulfil this duty to the Integrated Audit and Governance Committee and 


requires that it undertakes functions as set out in its Terms of Reference as agreed by the Governing 


Body. 


 
The Internal Audit and Integrated Governance Committee receives regular reports on financial 


governance and reviews the Annual Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and Head of Internal 


Audit Opinion. The Governing Body receives a finance report from the Chief Finance Officer at every 


meeting, where open challenge takes place. 


 
The Chief Finance Officer is a member of the Governing Body and is responsible for providing 


financial advice to the group and for ensuring financial control and accounting systems are in place. 


The role of Chief Finance Officer includes: 


 Being the Governing Body’s professional expert on finance and ensuring, through robust 


systems and processes, the regularity and propriety of expenditure is fully discharged 


 Making appropriate arrangements to support and monitor the CCG’s finances 


 Overseeing robust audit and governance arrangements leading to propriety in the use of the 


CCG’s resources 
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 Being able to advise the Governing  Body  on the  effective,  efficient and economic use of 


the CCG’s allocation to remain within that allocation and deliver required financial targets and 


duties 


 
 Producing the financial statements for audit and publication in accordance with the statutory 


requirements to demonstrate effective stewardship of public money and accountability to NHS 


England 


 Being the Governing Body’s lead officer for business intelligence. 


 


The year-end results for the Quality of Leadership Indicator will be available from July 2019 at 


https://www.nhs.uk/service-search/performance/search, following the publication of the CCG Annual 


Report and Accounts. 


 
The duty for managing public money and the delegation of functions 


The CCG’s Accountable Officer (AO) delegates responsibilities to support compliance with the 


standards set out in Annex 3.1 of ‘Managing Public Money’ (July 2013 annexes revised July 2015). 


The Annex identifies feedback from delegation chains as a key input to the Governance Statement. 


 
The CCG systems enable the AO to work with staff to make informed decisions about planned 


progress and take corrective action as appropriate. The CCG reviews a wide range of feedback from 


delegated functions including assessing the use of resources, management of risks and budget 


management. For example, the CCG holds regular meetings with North East Commissioning Service 


(NECS) Medicines Management Team to review performance and achievement of QIPP targets. 


 
Feedback from the ongoing assessment of delegated functions is acted upon as appropriate. For 


example, risks relating to completion of Information Asset Flows were identified through the Information 


Governance Sub Group and corrective action taken to ensure compliance. 


 
Finally, the Annual Governance Statement draws to a close by summarising external viewpoints on the 


CCG’s governance arrangements, before ending with the Accountable Officer’s personal review of the 


CCG’s governance, risk management and internal control arrangements. 



https://www.nhs.uk/service-search/performance/search
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Counter fraud arrangements 


The Integrated Audit and Governance Committee has assured itself that the organisation has adequate 


arrangements in place  for  countering  fraud  and regularly reviews the outcomes of counter fraud 


work. The CCG has an accredited Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS) in place to undertake work 


against NHS Counter Fraud Authority Standards; the LCFS resource is contracted in from AuditOne and 


is part of a wider Fraud Team resource with additional LCFS resource available as and when required. 


 
The Chief Finance Officer is accountable for fraud work undertaken and a Counter Fraud Annual 


Report (detailing counter fraud work undertaken against each standard) is reported to the Integrated 


Audit and Governance Committee annually. 


 
There is an approved and proportionate risk-based counter-fraud work plan in place which is monitored at 


each Integrated Audit and Governance Committee meeting. In line with NHS Counter Fraud Authority 


Commissioner Standards, which first became effective on April 1, 2015 and are reviewed annually, the 


CCG completed an online Self Review Tool (SRT) quality assessment in March 2019 to assess the work 


completed around anti-fraud, bribery and corruption work and assessed itself as an ‘Amber’ rating. This 


self- assessment (SRT) detailing our scoring was approved by the Chief Finance Officer prior to 


submission. Should a NHS Counter Fraud Authority quality assurance inspection be undertaken then any 


recommendations would be acted upon – to date the CCG has not been subject to an NHS Counter 


Fraud Authority quality inspection. 


 
Head of Internal Audit Opinion 


Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the Clinical Commissioning 


Group, the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and objective opinion on the adequacy and 


effectiveness of its system of risk management, governance and internal control. 


 
The Head of Internal Audit concluded that: 


 


My overall opinion is: 


From my review of your systems of internal control, I am providing good assurance that the system of 


internal control has been effectively designed to meet the organisation’s objectives. Compliance with 


the control framework was not found to be taking place in a consistent manner and some moderate 


remedial action is required. 
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During the year, Internal Audit issued the following audit reports: 


 


Audit Area Audit Rating CCG Response 


Commissioning/Joint 
Commissioning 


Substantial 
 


Patient & Stakeholder Engagement Good 
 


Medicines Management Good 
 


Conflicts of Interest Good 
 


Board Assurance Framework 
 


Good 


 


Financial Management/Financial 
Control 


 
Good 


 


 


Provider Management and 
Reporting 


 
Good 


 


 
 
 
 


Partnership Governance & 
Funding (Better Care Fund) 


 
 
 
 


 
Reasonable 


In response to the Audit findings the CCG 


agreed a number of actions : 


 


Ensuring declarations of interest at each 


Joint Senior Leadership meeting 


 


Performance reporting for discreet 


schemes 


 


Establish SMART performance measures 


for future schemes 


 
 
 
 
 


Services for Vulnerable People 
(Continuing Healthcare/MH and 
LD) 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Reasonable 


In response to the Audit findings the CCG 


agreed to a number of actions including: 


 


Ensuring service specifications are in 


place by March 31
,
 2019 


To continue work with providers to ensure 


that key performance indicator targets are 


met 


 


Ensuring that reviews with service users 


are taking place on a timely basis 
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Review of the effectiveness of governance, risk management and internal control 


As Accountable Officer, I have specific responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 


internal control. In addition, as Accountable Officer for the whole of the CCG, the Chief Officer is 


responsible for achieving the organisational objectives in the context of sound and appropriate 


business processes and reporting risks to the Governing Body. 


 
My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal 


auditors and the executive managers and clinical leads within the CCG who have responsibility for the 


development and maintenance of the internal control framework. 


 
Drawing on the performance information available to me, my review is also informed by 


comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and other reports. 


 
The Assurance Framework itself provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls that 


manage risks to the CCG achieving its principal objectives have been reviewed. 


 
I have been advised on the implications of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 


control by the Governing Body, the Integrated Audit and Governance Committee and Quality, 


Performance & Finance Committee. Where appropriate a plan is in place to address weaknesses and 


ensure continuous improvement of the system. 


 
In particular, my review is also informed by: 


 External Audit providing progress reports to the Integrated Audit and Governance Committee and 


the Annual Completion Report within the CCG 


 Internal Audit review of systems of internal control and progress reports to the Integrated Audit 


and Governance Committee, especially the Head of Internal Audit Opinion 


 Assurance reports on risk and governance received from the Integrated 


Audit and Governance Committee 


 Performance management systems 


 Internal committee structure with delegated responsibility for risk identification, evaluation, 


control, review and assurance 


 Review of the Strategic Risk Register action plans to address any identified weaknesses and 


ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place via the Assurance Framework and 


also via action plans embedded within the risk registers 


 The Corporate Risk Register. 
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In addition to myself, the following committees and officers have played a significant part in 


maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control in 2018/19 and have 


managed risks assigned to them. 


 
The Governing Body 


Responsible for providing clear commitment and direction for risk management within the organisation. 


The Governing Body delegates responsibility for oversight and independent assurance on risk 


management to the Integrated Audit and Governance Committee and delegates responsibility for 


operational and clinical risk management to the Quality, Performance & Finance Committee. 


 
The Integrated Audit and Governance Committee 


Responsible for providing an independent assurance of the arrangements for risk management within 


the organisation, with specific responsibilities for financial risk management. It undertakes its own 


annual self-assessment of its effectiveness and reviews Internal and External Audits, the Assurance 


Framework, financial governance reports and the Register of Interests. 


 
The Quality Performance and Finance Committee 


As the Committee with overarching responsibility for risk management, it provides assurance to the 


Governing Body that appropriate clinical risk management arrangements are in place across the 


organisation. The Committee is underpinned by various sub groups covering areas including health and 


safety, emergency planning, information governance, infection control, quality in contracts and incident 


management. 


 
Chief Finance Officer 


As Senior Responsible Officer for NHS finances across the CCG, the Chief Finance Officer is 


responsible for ensuring that the organisation complies with the CCG's Constitution to achieve financial 


targets and reports financial risks to the Governing Body. 


 
The NHS England Local Area Team 


The CCG has quarterly Assurance Reviews with the Local Area Team of NHS England. These reviews 


were positive. 
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Conclusion 


The Annual Governance Statement reflects the significant and successful work undertaken during 


the year that saw the CCG being removed from legal directions. The CCG has also built a solid 


foundation to secure further improvements during 2019/20. With the exception of the internal control 


issues I have outlined in my statement, my review confirms that the CCG has a system of internal 


controls that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives that is ‘fit for purpose’ and 


that these issues either have been, or are being, mitigated and addressed. 


 


 


Emma Latimer 


Accountable Officer 


24 May 2019 
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Annual Governance Report Appendix 
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Dr Satpal Shekhawat (Chair) wef 01.06.18 - 31.08.2018 






x
 






















x
 


    
Dr Gary Armstrong (Chair) wef 01.09.2018 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


 
Emma Latimer Chief Officer 


     







x
 










x
 



 Julie Warren Turnaround Director (until 31.10.2018) 


           



Richard Young (Director of Commissioning) until 


16.05.18 


x
 


x
 


















      
Alex Seale Chief Operating Officer wef 05.11.2018 


            Catherine Wylie - Director of Risk & Quality 


Assurance & GB Nurse (until 03.09.2018) 










x
 


         
Clare Linley (Director of Nursing & Quality) 






x
 


x
 


















x
 






x
 







 Dr Faisel Baig 






















x
 























 Dr Salim Modan 






x
 






x
 






x
 


























 


Dr Neveen Samuel 


          










 


Dr Satpal Shekhawat GP Member 


            Dr Robert Jaggs-Fowler Medical Director (until 


31.08.2018) 










x
 


















     Dr Satpal Shekhawat Associate Medical Director (wef 


01.09.2018) 


x
 


  x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


 


Bill Lovell Deputy Chief Finance Officer 


x
 


x
 














x
 






x
 






x
 






x
 


 
Chloe Nicholson Quality Manager 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 






















x
 






 
Hazel Moore Head of Nursing 










x
 










x
 


























 
Jane Ellerton Head of Strategic Commissioning 


x
 














































Janice Keilthy Lay Member for Patient and Public 


Involvement 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 










x
 










 
Sarah Glossop Designated Nurse and Head of 


Safeguarding 


























x
 


      
Heather McSharry Lay Member Equality & Inclusion 






















x
 










x
 










  
Geoff Day Director of Primary Care 


x
 






x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 


x
 






x
 


x
 







 Penny Spring Director of Public Health 






 x
 


 







   



  
Cheryl George Consultant in Public Health 






  



  



     
Jilla Burgess Allen Consultant in Public Health 
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D


a
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











































Janice Keilthy Lay Member Patient & 


Public Involvement (Chair) 














x
 










x
 














x
 


Heather McSharry Lay Member 


Equality & Inclusion Vice Chair 


      


x
 


x
 










x
 


Catherine Wylie Director of Risk & 


Quality Assurance & GB Nurse (Left 


03.09.2018) 






x
 


















     
Clare Linley Director of Nursing & 


Quality (wef 03.09.2018 to present) 






x
 


x
 


x
 










x
 










x
 


x
 Emma Sayner Chief Finance Officer 


      x
 


x
 


x
 







 Dr Faisel Baig Clinical Lead for QIPP 


      











 
 Dr Salim Modan - GP 


       











x
 Dr Neveen Samuel - GP 






x
 


















     Dr Hardik Gandhi - GP 


x
 










x
        Dr Pratik Basu - GP 






























x
 














Jane Ellerton - Strategic Head of 


Commissioning 


















 




















 Hazel Moore Head of Nursing 


      x
 


x
 






x
 


x
 


Dr Robert Jaggs-Fowler Medical 


Director (left 31/08/2018) 


























     Dr Satpal Shekhawat - Associate 


Medical Director 






x
 


















x
 















 John Pougher Head of Governance 






x
 



































 Chloe Nicholson Quality Manager 


        x
 










Bill Lovell Deputy Chief Finance 


Officer 






































  Louise Tilley Interim Deputy Chief 


Finance Officer 


 



x
 










x
 














x
 






Sarah Glossop Designated Nurse 


Safeguarding Children 


    



















x
 



 Julie Warren Turnaround Director 














x
 


       
Alex Seale Chief Operating Officer 


x
 


x
 














x
 














  
Geoff Day Director of Primary Care 
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Integrated Audit & Governance Committee 01.04.18 - 31.03.19 


 
 
 
 
 


Date of 


meetings 


E
ri


k
a
 S


to
d


d
a
rt


 L
a
y


 M
e
m


b
e
r 


G
o


v
e
rn


a
n


c
e
 -
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h


a
ir


 


J
a
n


ic
e


 K
e
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th


y
 -


 L
a
y
 M


e
m


b
e
r 


P
P


I 


H
e
a
th


e
r 


M
c


S
h


a
rr


y
 -


 L
a
y
 


M
e
m


b
e


r 
E


q
u


a
li
ty


 &
 D


iv
e


rs
it


y
 


D
r 


T
o


b
y
 B


lu
m


e
n


th
a
l 


01.03.18 Cancelled 


08.03.18    x 


18.04.18    


23.05.18    


23.05.18    


04.07.18    


05.09.18     


07.11.18   x  


09.01.19     


06.03.19 x    
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Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability and 


Audit Report. Disclosures on remote contingent liabilities, losses and special payments, gifts, 


and fees and charges are included as notes in the Financial Statements of this report at 


pages 116 to 138. An audit certificate and report will also be included in this Annual Report 


at pages 139-142. 
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Remuneration Report and Staff Report 


 
Remuneration Committee 


The Remuneration Committee comprises the following members, who are supported by 


Human Resource and other staff as required. 


 
 


RC Role NAME Main CCG Role 


Chair Janice Keilthy Lay Member 


Member Erika Stoddart Lay Member - Governance 


Member Dr Faisel Baig CCG Chair / GP 


Member Dr Salim Modan CCG Member / GP 


Member Dr Satpal Shekhawat CCGMember /GP/then Associate Medical Director 


 
 


 
Policy on the remuneration of Senior Managers 


The Interim Chief Officer and interim Chief Finance Officer work across both Hull and North 


Lincolnshire CCGs, but are employed by Hull CCG, and so North Lincolnshire and Hull CCG 


share the costs of these two posts on a 50:50 basis, excluding PRP and incidental 


expenses. 


 
For 2018/19 Hull CCG awarded a 2.5% consolidated increase to both roles, in line with the 


increase experienced by the higher graded staff on the Agenda for Change pay scale, along 


with a 12.5% Non-Consolidated performance related pay increase linked to the additional 


responsibility of managing more than one organisation. 


 
For 2018/19 the remaining Directors on the VSM payscale were awarded a 2.02% uplift from 


January 4, 2018 by the Remuneration Committee, in line with the average annual increase 


experienced by the majority of CCG staff members who are on the Agenda for Change 


payscale. 


 
For 2019/20 the CCG expects to have a formal Performance Related Pay policy in place 


which will apply to the remuneration of both the Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer, and 


the other Very Senior Manager (VSM) Directors. 
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Remuneration of Very Senior Managers 


When non-consolidated bonuses (Performance Related Pay) are taken into account, the 


CCG does not have any employees who were paid a salary of £150,000 in 2018/19. 


 


Senior Manager remuneration (including salary and pension entitlements) 


Table 1A (further down) provides details of the salary and allowances paid to the CCG’s 


most senior staff during 2018/19, with Table 1B providing comparative values for 2017/18. 


 
Notes to assist the understanding of Table 1A and 1B are as follows. 


 
 


Column (a) salary bands of £5,000 


Salary includes all amounts paid or payable by the CCG including recharges from any other 


organisation, but excludes: 


 Recharges to any other organisation 


 Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 


 Reimbursement of travel and other allowances, including home to work travel costs 


 Employers’ superannuation and national insurance contributions 


 Performance related pay (which is reported separately) 


 Any amounts paid which the Director must subsequently repay. 


 


Column (b) all taxable benefits (to the nearest £100 and disclosed in £s) 


This is the gross value of such benefits, before tax, and for the CCG comprises car 


expenses – which are subject to UK tax. 


 
Column (c) Annual Performance Pay and Bonuses (in bandings of £5,000) 


These comprise money received for the financial year as a result of achieving performance 


measures and targets relating to 2018/19. 


 
Column (d) Long Term Performance Pay and Bonuses (in bandings of £5,000) 


The CCG has not paid any Long term Performance bonus, based on achievement of 


measures or targets which exceed more than the current financial year. 


 


Column (e) All Pension-Related Benefits (in bandings of £2,500) 


These benefits comprise the cash value of payments in lieu of retirement benefits, and all 


benefits from participating in pension schemes. The latter are the aggregate input amounts, 


calculated using the method set out in section 229 of the Finance Act 2004. 
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As a result of Paragraph 10(1)(e)(ii)(cc) of schedule 8 of SI 2013 No.1981, The Large and 


Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 


201336 (update to the Finance Act 2004) requires the exclusion of any employee 


contributions from the figure arrived at to reach the amount which must be disclosed. 


 
The figures disclosed will include those benefits accruing to senior managers from 


membership of the NHS Pensions Scheme which is a defined benefit scheme (although 


accounted for by NHS bodies as if it were a defined contribution scheme). The values 


disclosed are presented in £2,500 bands following the calculation expressed as follows: 


1) The real increase* in pensions multiplied by 20 


2) Plus The real increase* in any lump sum 


3) Less Contributions made by the individual 


4) Equals Accrued pensions benefits. 


 


*Where the real increase is the difference between the annual rate of pension payable to the 


director at the end of the financial year and the rate payable at the start of the year. It 


excludes increases due to inflation/decreases due to transfer of pensions rights. 


 
In other words, the value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated as the 


real increase in pension multiplied by 20, less, the contributions made by the individual. The 


real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or decrease due to a 


transfer of pension rights. 


 
This value does not represent an amount that will be received by the individual. It is a 


calculation that is intended to convey to the reader of the accounts an estimation of the 


benefit that being a member of the pension scheme could provide. 


 
The pension benefit tables later in this report provide further information on the pension 


benefits accruing to the individual. 


 
Looking year on year some significant variation is found between the pension related 


benefits calculated for certain individuals or certain roles which span both years. This is 


primarily because some individuals retired / took early retirement, or have left the pension 


scheme. In addition a number of individuals have also changed their role mid-year or started 


employment with the CCG mid-year so full year values are yet to be reflected in the tables. 
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Column (f) the total of the values disclosed in columns (a) to (e) (in bandings of 


£5,000) 


The values quoted here are expressed in bandings of £5,000 to be consistent with the salary 


and performance related pay bandings. 


 
Tables 1A & 1B now follow overleaf disclosing the salary and allowance figures for both 


2018/19 and 2017/18 respectively. 
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TABLE 1A: SALARIES & ALLOWANCES 2018/19 
 


 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E)  (F) 
  


   SALARY EXPENSE PAYMENTS £ PERFORMANCE LONG TERM ALL PENSION TOTAL 


   (Bands of £5,000) (Taxable - rounded to PAY & BONUSES PERFORMANCE RELATED BENEFITS SALARY & ALLOWANCES 


NAME POSITION TITLE PERIOD IN OFFICE 
 the Nearest £100) (Bands of £5,000) PAY & BONUSES 


(Bands of £5,000) 


(Bands of £2,500) (Bands of £5,000) 


(COLUMNS A TO E) 


          


Dr Faisel Baig Chair (Formerly GP Member & a Clinical Lead) 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 (Chair from 1/06/2018) 70-75 500 - - 15-17.5 85-90 


Dr Margaret Sanderson Chair 1/04/2018 to 31/05/2018 20-25 100 - - 0 20-25 


Dr Satpal Shekawat GP Member / Associate Medical Director (AMD) 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2018 (AMD only from 1/9/2018) 40-45 0 - - 10-12.5 55-60 


Dr Robert Jaggs-Fowler Director of Primary Care etc * 1/04/2017 to 31/08/2018 25-30 400 - - 0 25-30 


Dr Gary Armstrong GP Member 1/06/2018 to 31/03/2019 25-30 0 - - 0 25-30 


Dr Pratik Basu GP Member 1/010/2018 to 31/03/2019 15-20 0 - - 35-37.5 50-55 


Dr Hardik Gandhi GP Member 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 30-35 0 - - 0 30-35 


Dr Salim Modan GP Member 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 40-45 100 - - 62.5-65.0 105-110 


Dr Neeven Samuel GP Member 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 40-45 200 - - 0 40-45 


Dr Richard Shenderey Secondary Care Consultant ** 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 5-10 0 - - 0 5-10 


Emma Latimer Chief Officer (Note 1) 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 70-75 5,400 5-10 - See Hull CCG AR 85-90 


Liane Langdon Project Lead - Transforming Care (Note 2) 1/4/2018 to 17/06/2018. 10-15 300 - - 0 10-15 


Emma Sayner Chief Finance Officer (Note 3) 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 55-60 3,100 5-10 - See Hull CCG AR 65-70 


Julie Warren Turnaround Director (Note 4) 1/04/2018 to 31/10/2018 10-15 0 - - 0 10-15 


Alex Seale Chief Operating Officer 5/11/2018 to 31/03/2019 35-40 300 - - 55.0-57.5 95-100 


Clare Linley Director of Nursing & Quality 3/09/2018 to 31/03/2019 50-55 700 - - 55.0-57.5 105-110 


Catherine Wylie Director of Risk & Quality Assurance (& GB Nurse) 1/04/2018 to 03/09/2018 35-40 0 - - 0 35-40 


Richard Young Director of Commissioning 1/04/2018 to 17/08/2018 30-35 300 - - 0 30-35 


Caroline Briggs Transformation Programme Director *** 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 80-85 2,500 - - 0-2.5 85-90 


Janice Keilthy Lay Member NLCCG 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 5-10 200 - - 0 5-10 


Heather McSharry Lay Member NLCCG 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 5-10 200 - - 0 5-10 


Erika Stoddart Lay Member NLCCG 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 5-10 0 - - 0 5-10 
          


 


GENERAL NOTE The GPs who are listed in this Table have varying amounts of pay - because some GPs are only GP members, whilst other GPs are Clinical Leads and some GPs have combined both roles 


1) Emma Latimer (Chief Officer) is also Chief Officer at Hull CCG (with Salary costs split 50:50 between the two organisation) and is on the payroll at Hull CCG, with a Total Salary of £140k - £145k. 


2) Liane Langdon was on secondment to NHS England delivering this role. 


3) Emma Sayner (Chief Financial Officer) is also Chief Financial Officer at Hull CCG (with Salary costs split 50:50 between the two organisation) and is on the payroll at Hull CCG, with a Total Salary of £115k - £120k. 


4) Julie Warren (Turnaround Director) is the substantive Locality Director for North Yorkshire & The Humber, and is paid via the payroll of NHS England. She was the CCG Turnaround Director from 1/4/2018 through to 31/10/2018. 


NOTE 


NOTE 


NOTE 


NOTE 


Three Senior Postholders are not paid directly by North Lincolnshire CCG: 


Dr Robert Jaggs-Fowler's salary covered the following roles : Primary Care Director, Safeguarding GP & Medical Director 


Dr Richard Shenderey is remunerated via Airedale NHS Foundation Trust. The payment detail above relates only to his work for North Lincolnshire CCG. 


Caroline Briggs works jointly across both North Lincolnshire & North East Lincolnshire CCGs. 


* 


** 


*** 


TOTAL SALARY & 


ALLOWANCES (BANDS 


OF £5,000) 
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TABLE 1B: SALARIES & ALLOWANCES 2017/18 
 


 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E)  (F) 
  


 


 
NAME 


 


 
POSITION TITLE 


 


 
PERIOD IN OFFICE 


SALARY 


(Bands of £5,000) 


EXPENSE PAYMENTS £ 


(Taxable - rounded to 


the Nearest £100) 


PERFORMANCE 


PAY & BONUSES 


(Bands of £5,000) 


LONG TERM 


PERFORMANCE 


PAY & BONUSES 


(Bands of £5,000) 


ALL PENSION 


RELATED BENEFITS 


(Bands of £2,500) 


         


Dr Margaret Sanderson Chair 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 75 to 80 - - - - 


Dr Faisel Baig GP Member 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 50 to 55 - - - 22.5 - 25 


Dr Andrew Lee GP Member 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 40 to 45 - - - - 


Dr Salim Modan GP Member 1/07/2017 to 31/03/2018 20 to 25 - - - 82.5 to 85 


Dr Neeven Samuel GP Member 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 30 to 35 - - - 177.5 - 180 


Dr Satpal Shekhawat GP Member 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 30 to 35 - - - 10 - 12.5 


Dr Richard Shenderey ** Secondary Care Consultant 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 5 to 10 - - - - 


 
Liane 


 
Langdon 


 
Chief Officer 


Chief Officer until 31/10/2017, 


Project Director until 31/03/2018. 


 
90 to 95 


 


 
- 


 


 
- 


 


 
- 


 
42.5 - 45 


Emma Latimer Chief Officer 11/11/2017 to 31/03/2018 10 to 15 - - - 0 to 2.5 


Ian Holborn Chief Finance Officer 1/04/2017 to 31/12/2017 70 to75 - - - - 


Emma Sayner Chief Finance Officer 11/11/2017 to 31/03/2018 15 to 20 - - - 5 to 7.5 


Julie Warren Turnaround Director 1/11/2017 to 31/03/2018 5 to 10 - - - - 


Dr Robert Jaggs -Fowler * Director of Primary Care etc 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 90 to 95 - - - - 


Catherine Wylie 
Director of Risk & Quality 


Assurance (& GB Nurse) 
1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 80 to 85 


 
- 


 
- 


 
- 


12.5 - 15 


Richard Young Director of Commissioning 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 80 to 85 7,000 - - - 


Caroline Briggs *** 
Transformation Programme 


Director 
1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 80 to 85 


 
- 


 
- 


 
- 


22.5 - 25 


Janice Keilthy Lay Member NLCCG 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 5 to 10 - - - - 


Heather McSharry Lay Member NLCCG 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 5 to 10 - - - - 


Ian Reekie Lay Member NLCCG 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 5 to 10 - - - - 


Erika Stoddart Lay Member NLCCG 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 5 to 10 - - - - 
         


 


1) Emma Latimer (Chief Officer) is on the payroll of Hull CCG. Total Salary £135k - £140k 
2) Emma Sayner (Chief Finance Officer) is on the payroll of Hull CCG. Total Salary £105k - £110k 


3) Julie Warren (Turnaround Director) is the substantive Locality Director for North Yorkshire & The Humber, and is paid via the payroll of NHS England. Total Salary £120k - £125k 


Three Senior Postholders are not paid directly by North Lincolnshire CCG: 


Dr Robert Jaggs-Fowler's salary covers both his roles as Primary Care Director, Safeguarding GP & Medical Director 
Dr Richard Shenderey is remunerated via Airedale NHS Foundation 


Caroline Briggs works jointly across both North Lincolnshire & North East Lincolnshire CCGs. 


* 
** 


*** 


TOTAL  


SALARY & ALLOWANCES 


(Bands of £5,000) 


 


75 to 80 


70 to 75 


40 to 45 


140 to 145 


205 to 210 


40 to 45 


5 to 10 


 
135 to 140 


10 to 15 


70 to75 


15 to 20 


5 to 10 


90 to 95 


95 to 100 


85 to 90 


100 to 105 


5 to 10 


5 to 10 


5 to 10 


5 to 10 
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Pension benefits (as of March 31, 2019) 


Table 2A overleaf details the pension benefits relating to the CCG’s Directors / key decision 


makers for 2018/19, with Table 2B providing the same details for 2017/18. 


 
In order to understand the information in these tables, it is important to understand the 


concept of a Cash Equivalent Transfer Value, which is explained below. 


 
Cash Equivalent Transfer Values 


A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the 


pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits 


valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or other 


allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. 


 
A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension 


benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme 


and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures 


shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total 


membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which 


disclosure applies. 


 
The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension benefits 


in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS 


pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member 


as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their 


own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the 


Institute and Faculty of Actuaries. 


 
Real increase in CETV 


This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the 


increase in accrued pension due to inflation or contributions paid by the employee 


(including the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement). 


 
The McCloud Judgement 


The Coalition Government introduced reforms to public sector pensions, meaning most 


public sector workers were moved to new pension schemes in 2015. 
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In December 2018, the Court of Appeal ruled that the ‘transitional protection’ offered to 


some members as part of the reforms amounts to unlawful discrimination. The 


Government is seeking permission to appeal this decision. If this is unsuccessful, the 


Court will require steps to be taken to compensate employees who were transferred to the 


new schemes. 


 
The benefits and related CETVs in this report do not allow for a potential future 


adjustment arising from the McCloud judgement. 


 
Table 2A and Table 2B (which are subject to audit) Follow below and indicate the 


pension benefits accrued by the CCG’s Directors / key decision makers during 2018/19 


and 2017/18.
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TABLE 2A) PENSION BENEFITS 2018/19 
 


 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F) (G) (H) 
 


 
 


 
NAME 


 
 


 
POSITION TITLE 


 
 


 
PERIOD IN OFFICE 


REAL INCREASE IN 


PENSION - AT 


PENSION AGE 


 


 
(Bands of £2,500) 


REAL INCREASE IN 


PENSION LUMP SUM - 


AT PENSION AGE 


 


 
(Bands of £2,500) 


TOTAL ACCRUED 


PENSION AT 


PENSION AGE - AT 


31st MARCH 2019 


 


(Bands of £5,000) 


LUMP SUM AT 


PENSION AGE RELATED 


TO ACCRUED PENSION 


AT 31st MARCH 2019 


 


(Bands of £5,000) 


CASH EQUIVALENT 


TRANSFER VALUE - AT 


1st APRIL 2018 


 


 
£000 


REAL INCREASE IN 


CASH EQUIVALENT 


TRANSFER VALUE 


 


 
£000 


CASH EQUIVALENT 


TRANSFER VALUE - AT 


31st MARCH 2019 


 


 
£000 


EMPLOYER'S 


CONTRIBUTION TO 


STAKEHOLDER 


PENSION 


 


£000 


            


Dr Faisel Baig Chair (Formerly GP Member & a Clinical Lead) 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 (Chair from 1/06/2018) 0-2.5 0 5-10 25-30 144 35 189 - 


Dr Margaret Sanderson Chair * 1/04/2018 to 31/05/2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 


Dr Satpal Shekhawat GP Member / Associate Medical Director (AMD) 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 (AMD only from 1/9/2018) 0-2.5 0 5-10 10-15 71 15 93 - 


Dr Robert Jaggs -Fowler Director of Primary Care etc * 1/04/2018 to 31/08/2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 


Dr Gary Armstrong GP Member 1/06/2018 to 31/03/2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 


Dr Pratik Basu GP Member 1/10/2018 to 31/03/2019 0-2.5 0-2.5 5-10 20-25 74 17 114 - 


Dr Hardik Gandhi GP Member * 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 


Dr Salim Modan GP Member 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 2.5-5 7.5-10 5-10 20-25 82 61 150 - 


Dr Neeven Samuel GP Member * 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 0 0 0 20-25 0 0 0 - 


Dr Richard Shenderey Secondary Care Consultant ** 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 


Emma Latimer Chief Officer + 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 see Hull CCG AR - - - - - - - 


Liane Langdon Project Lead - Transforming Care * 1/4/2018 to 17/06/2018. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 


Emma Sayner Chief Finance Officer + 1/04/2018 to 31/032019 see Hull CCG AR - - - - - - - 


Julie Warren Turnaround Director ** 1/04/2018 to 31/10/2018 0 - - - - - - - 


Alex Seale Chief Operating Officer 5/11/2018 to 31/03/2019 0-2.5 0-2.5 30-35 70-75 415 39 529 - 


Clare Linley Director of Nursing & Quality 3/09/2018 to 31/03/2019 0-2.5 2.5-5 35-40 115-120 672 76 829 - 


Catherine Wylie Director of Risk & Quality Assurance (& GB Nurse) 1/04/2018 to 03/09/2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 


Richard Young Director of Commissioning * 1/04/2018 to 17/08/2018 0-2.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 


Caroline Briggs Transformation Programme Director 1/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 - 0 35-40 95-100 677 74 777 - 
            


 


PLEASE NOTE: COLUMNS (E) PLUS (F) DO NOT SUM TO EQUAL (G) DUE TO THE NATURE OF THE CALCULATION. 


For pension details related to these individuals please see Hull CCG's Annual Report & Accounts 2018/19 


Dr Richard Shenderey is remunerated via Airedale NHS Foundation Trust. The payment detail above relates only to his work for North Lincolnshire CCG. 


Catherine Wyle took Voluntary Early Retirement from September 2018. 


+ 


These members have either left the NHS pension scheme or are not members of the NHS pension scheme for managers. 


No pension details are available to the CCG for these individuals as they are not paid through the CCG's payroll. Dr Shenderey is paid by Airedale NHS Foundation Trust and Julie Warren is paid by NHS England. 


* 


** 


NOTES 
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TABLE 2B) PENSION BENEFITS 2017/18 
 


 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F) (G) (H) 
 


 
 


 
NAME 


 
 


 
POSITION TITLE 


 
 


 
PERIOD IN OFFICE 


REAL INCREASE IN 


PENSION - AT 


PENSION AGE 


 


 
(Bands of £2,500) 


REAL INCREASE IN 


PENSION LUMP SUM - 


AT PENSION AGE 


 


 
(Bands of £2,500) 


TOTAL ACCRUED 


PENSION AT 


PENSION AGE - AT 


31st MARCH 2018 


 
(Bands of £5,000) 


LUMP SUM AT 


PENSION AGE RELATED 


TO ACCRUED PENSION 


AT 31st MARCH 2018 


 
(Bands of £5,000) 


CASH EQUIVALENT 


TRANSFER VALUE - AT 


1st APRIL 2017 


 


 
£000 


REAL INCREASE IN 


CASH EQUIVALENT 


TRANSFER VALUE 


 


 
£000 


CASH EQUIVALENT 


TRANSFER VALUE - AT 


31st MARCH 2018 


 


 
£000 


EMPLOYER'S 


CONTRIBUTION TO 


STAKEHOLDER 


PENSION 


 
£000 


            


Dr Margaret Sanderson * Chair 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 


Dr Faisel Baig GP Member 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 0 to 2-5 0 to 2-5 10 to 15 25 to 30 132 12 144 0 


Dr Andrew Lee * GP Member 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 


Dr Salim Modan ** GP Member 1/07/2017 to 31/03/2018 2.5 to 5.0 10 to 12.5 5 to 10 10 to 15 21 62 82 0 


Dr Neeven Samuel ** GP Member 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 7.5 to 10.0 22.5 to 25.0 5 to 10 20 to 25 0 158 158 0 


Dr Satpal Shekhawat GP Member 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 0 to 2-5 0 to 2-5 5 to 10 10 to 15 65 7 71 0 


Dr Richard Shenderey *** Secondary Care Consultant 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 


 
 


Liane 


 
 


Langdon 


 
 


Chief Officer 


 


Chief Officer until 


31/10/2017, Project 


Director until 31/03/2018. 


 
 


0 to 2-5 


 
 


0 to Minus 2.5 


 
 


20 to 25 


 
 


50 to 55 


 
 


276 


 
 


37 


 
 


312 


 
 


0 


Emma Latimer + Chief Officer 11/11/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 


Ian Holborn ++ Chief Finance Officer 1/04/2017 to 31/12/2017 - - - - - - - - 


Emma Sayner + Chief Finance Officer 11/11/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 


Julie Warren *** Turnaround Director 1/11/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 


Dr Robert Jaggs -Fowler * Director of Primary Care 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 


Catherine Wylie 
Director of Risk & Quality 


Assurance (& GB Nurse) 
1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 0 to 2-5 0 to 2-5 35 to 40 115 to 120 746 54 800 0 


Richard Young Director of Commissioning 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 


Caroline Briggs 
Transformation Programme 


Director 
1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 0 to 2-5 0 to Minus 2.5 35 to 40 95 to 100 628 48 676 0 


Janice Keilthy +++ Lay Member NLCCG 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 


Heather McSharry +++ Lay Member NLCCG 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 


Ian Reekie Lay Member NLCCG 1/04/2017 to 31/03/2018 - - - - - - - - 
            


 


These members have left the NHS pension scheme. 


Postholders joining the NHS officer pension scheme in 2017/18: Dr Samuel joined on 1st April 2017 and opted out of the scheme on the 31st December 2017. Dr Modan joined the NHS Officer Pension scheme on 1/7/2017, and is still a member. 


No pension details are available to the CCG for these individuals as they are not paid through the CCG's payroll. 


For pension details related to these individuals please see Hull CCG's Annual Report & Accounts 2017/18 


This individual left the NHS Pension scheme with less than two years' eligible membership, so there are no figures to disclose. 


These lay members were drawn into the NHS pension scheme in error in 2016/17, and arrangements are in place to refund all contributions paid and cancel all benefits accrued. 


NOTES 


* 


** 


*** 


+ 


++ 


+++ 
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Compensation on early retirement or loss of office (subject to audit) 


The CCG made no payments in respect of early retirement or for loss of office in 2018/19. 


 
 


Payments to past members (subject to audit) 


The CCG made no payments to past members in 2018/19. 


 
 


Pay multiples (subject to audit) 


Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 


highest-paid director/member in their organisation and the median remuneration of the 


organisation’s workforce. 


 
The banded remuneration of the highest paid director/member in North Lincolnshire CCG in 


the financial year 2018/19 was £160-165 (2017/18: £165-170). This was 4.07 times 


(2017/18: 4.59) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £39.7k (2017/18: 


£36.6k). 


 
 


In 2018/19, there was one employee who received remuneration, at a rate in excess of the 


highest-paid Director/Member. Remuneration ranged from £17,460 to £168,167 (2017/18: 


(£16,104 to £168,167) 


 
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in- 


kind, but not severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and 


the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 


 
In interpreting the values disclosed above it is important to note that because the salary 


figures relate to the notional estimated full time level of remuneration for the employee, 


rather than the amount the CCG actually paid to the individual in question, the comparisons 


above do not reflect the costs which have been incurred by the CCG for these posts. 


The marginal reduction in the formal reported gap between the highest paid employee and 


the median pay of the CCG’s workforce, is due to the significant changes which have 


occurred in the CCG Senior Management team during 2018/19. 
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Staff Report 


Number of Senior Managers (subject to audit) 


As of March 31 2019, North Lincolnshire CCG had the following number of 


senior managers in post (based on headcount, with gender and grades also 


shown: 


 
 
 


Staff Numbers (subject to audit) 
 
 


Average number of people employed (whole time 
equivalents) 


 


 
YEAR 


  


Permanently 
employed 


  


Other 
Number 


  
Total 


 


      


2018/19  62  2  64 


       


2017/18  66  2  68 


 


 
Of the ab 


 


 
ove: 


     


No Whole Time Equivalent (WTE) people have been engaged on capital projects 
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Staff Costs (subject to audit) 
 
 


 


 


Salaries and wages  2,632  315  2,947 


Social security costs  281  -  281 


Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme  328  -  328 


Other pension costs  -  -  - 


Apprenticeship Levy  -  -  - 


Other post-employment benefits  -  -  - 


Other employment benefits  -  -  - 


Termination benefits  19  -  19 


Gross Employee Benefits Expenditure  3,260  315  3,575 
 


      


Less Recoveries in respect of Employee Benefits  -  -  - 
 


      


Total - Net Admin Employee Benefits (including capitalised costs)  3,260  315  3,575 
 


      


Less: Employee Costs Capitalised  -  -  - 
 


      


Net Employee Benefits (Excluding Capitalised Costs)  3,260  315  3,575 


 


 


 


Salaries and wages  2,631  293  2,924 


Social security costs  279  -  279 


Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme  323  -  323 


Other pension costs  0  -  0 


Apprenticeship Levy  -  -  - 


Other post-employment benefits  -  -  - 


Other employment benefits  -  -  - 


Termination benefits  -  -  - 


Gross Employee Benefits Expenditure  3,233  293  3,526 
 


      


Less Recoveries in respect of Employee Benefits  -  -  - 
 


      


Total - Net Admin Employee Benefits (including capitalised costs)  3,233  293  3,526 
 


      


Less: Employee Costs Capitalised  -  -  - 
 


      


Net Employee Benefits (Excluding Capitalised Costs)  3,233  293  3,526 


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


Employee Benefits 2018/19 
Permanent 


Employees 
Other Total 


Employee Benefits 2017/18 
Permanent 


Employees 
Other Total 


£'000 £'000 £'000 


£'000 £'000 £'000 
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Sickness absence data 


The CCG has received sickness data from the Department of Health, which 


indicates that the CCG had a sickness rate of 3.67 % for the calendar Year 


2018. 


 


 
    c= a/b*225  e=a/b 
 
 
 
 
 


Org Name 


 
 
 
 
 


Org Code 


 


Sum of FTE Days 


Sick 


a 


 


Sum of FTE 


Days Available 


b 


Average Annual 


Sick Days per 


FTE 


c 


 
 


Occurences d 


(months of data) 


 
 


% sickness 


e 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 03K 756 20,579 8 12 3.67% 


 


 
Staff policies 


The CCG values and recognises people as individuals and accommodates 


differences wherever possible by making adjustments to working arrangements 


or practices. Policies and processes in place to support this include Bullying 


and Harassment and Attendance Management. 


 
The following policies were reviewed/developed through to approval in 2018-19: 


 Change Management Policy 


 Pay Protection 


 Flexitime Policy 


 Retirement Policy 


 Equality and Inclusion Policy 


 Other Leave Policy 


 Recruitment and Selection Policy 


 Substance Misuse Policy 


 Starting Salaries and Reckonable Service Policy 


 Bullying and Harassment 


 Grievance Policy. 


 


Other employee matters 


The CCG has no other employee matters to disclose. 


 
 


Expenditure on consultancy (subject to audit) 


The CCG did not incur any consultancy expenditure for 2018/19. 
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Off-payroll engagements (subject to audit) 


 
Table 1: off-payroll engagements longer than six months 


Off-payroll engagements as of March 31, 2019, for more than £245 per day 


and that last longer than six months are as follows. 


 Number 


Number of existing engagements as of March 31, 2019 2 


Of which, the number that have existed: 


for less than one year at the time of reporting 2 


for between one and two years at the time of reporting  


for between two and three years at the time of reporting  


for between three and four years at the time of reporting  


for four or more years at the time of reporting  


 
The appointments have been subjected to an IR35 risk based assessment, and assurance 


has been sought from the employment agency that the individuals are paying the right 


amount of tax and, where necessary. 


 
Table 2: new off-payroll engagements 


 
The CCG, under the reformed public sector rules, must also disclose details in Table 2 below for 


all new off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between April 1, 


2018 and March 31 2019, for more than £245 per day and that last for longer than six months: 


 Number 


Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in 


duration, between April 1 2018 and March 31 2019 


2 


Of which: 


Number assessed as caught by IR35 2 


Number assessed as not caught by IR35  


  


Number engaged directly (via PSC contracted to department) and are 


on the departmental payroll 


 


Number of engagements reassessed for consistency / assurance 


purposes during the year 


 


Number of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following 


the consistency review 
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Table 3: off-payroll engagements and senior official engagements 


The CCG has had no off-payroll engagements of Board members or senior officials with 


significant financial responsibility between April 1, 2018 and March 31, 2019. 


 
Exit Packages, Including Special (Non-Contractual) Payments (Subject to audit) 


 
 


Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of 


NHS Agenda for Change terms and conditions. Exit costs in this note are accounted for in 


full in the year of departure. NHS North Lincolnshire CCG has not agreed any early 


retirements, where the additional costs are met by NHS North Lincolnshire CCG and not by 


the NHS Pensions Scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pensions 


Scheme and are not included in the table. 


 
 


Exit 


package 


cost band 


(inc. any 


special 


payment 


element 


 
 
 


Number of 


compulsory 


redundancies 


 
 
 


Cost of 


compulsory 


redundancies 


 


 
Number of 


other 


departures 


agreed 


 


 
Cost of 


other 


departures 


agreed 


 


 
Total 


number of 


exit 


packages 


 


 
Total 


cost of 


exit 


packages 


Number of 


departures 


where 


special 


payments 


have been 


made 


Cost of 


special 


payment 


element 


included 


in exit 


packages 


 WHOLE 


NUMBERS 


ONLY 


 
 
 


£s 


WHOLE 


NUMBERS 


ONLY 


 
 
 


£s 


WHOLE 


NUMBERS 


ONLY 


 
 
 


£s 


WHOLE 


NUMBERS 


ONLY 


 
 
 


£s 


Less than 


£10,000 
3 18,589 0 0 3 18,589 0 0 


£10,000 - 


£25,000 


        


£25,001 - 


£50,000 


        


£50,001 - 


£100,000 


        


£100,001 - 


£150,000 


        


£150,001 – 


£200,000 


        


>£200,000         


TOTALS 3 18.589 0 0 3 18,589 0 0 
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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended 


March 31, 2019 


 


 
2018-19 


Note £'000 


 
2017-18 


£'000 


Income from sale of goods and services 2 (375) 
 


(726) 


Other operating income 2  (500)    (656) 


Total operating income (875)  (1,382) 


Staff costs 4 3,575 
 


3,526 


Purchase of goods and services 5 236,710  227,494 


Depreciation and impairment charges 5 -  9 


Provision expense 5 -  - 


Other Operating Expenditure 5  444    405 


Total operating expenditure 240,729  231,434 


Net Operating Expenditure 239,854 
 


230,052 


Finance income 


Finance expense 


Net expenditure for the year 


- 


  - 


239,854 


 
- 


  - 


230,052 


Net (Gain)/Loss on Transfer by Absorption 


Total Net Expenditure for the Financial Year 


Other Comprehensive Expenditure 


Items which will not be reclassified to net operating costs 


Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of PPE 


Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of Intangibles 


Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of Financial Assets 


Actuarial (gain)/loss in pension schemes 


Impairments and reversals taken to Revaluation Reserve 


Items that may be reclassified to Net Operating Costs 


Net gain/loss on revaluation of available for sale financial assets 


Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 


Sub total 


  - 


239,854 


 


 
- 


- 


- 


- 


- 


 
- 


  - 


- 


 
  - 


230,052 


 


 
- 


- 


- 


- 


- 


 
- 


  - 


- 


Comprehensive Expenditure for the year   239,854    230,052 


 


 
Please note that throughout the accounts process the figures are presented in £000s. 


This rounding process has in places resulted in issues with the totals not reflecting the rounded figures.  
 


The notes on pages 116 to 138 form part of this statement. 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 


31 March 2019 


  


 
2018-19 


  


 
2017-18 


 


Non-current assets: 


Note £'000 
 


£'000 


Property, plant and equipment 


Intangible assets 


Investment property 


Trade and other receivables 


Other financial assets 


Total non-current assets 


8 - 


- 


- 


- 


  - 


- 


 - 


- 


- 


- 


  - 


- 


Current assets: 


Inventories 


  
- 


  
- 


Trade and other receivables 


Other financial assets 


Other current assets 


Cash and cash equivalents 


9 


 


 
10 


2,542 


- 


- 


26 


 1,212 


- 


- 


66 


Total current assets  2,568  1,278 


Non-current assets held for sale 
 


- 
 


- 


Total current assets  2,568  1,278 


Total assets    2,568    1,278 


Current liabilities 


Trade and other payables 


 


11 


 


(19,243) 


  


(16,100) 


Other financial liabilities 


Other liabilities 


Borrowings 


Provisions 


Total current liabilities 


 - 


- 


- 


- 


(19,243) 


 - 


- 


- 


- 


(16,100) 


Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities    (16,675)    (14,822) 


Non-current liabilities 


Trade and other payables 


  


- 


  


- 


Other financial liabilities 


Other liabilities 


Borrowings 


Provisions 


Total non-current liabilities 


 - 


- 


- 


- 


- 


 - 


- 


- 


- 


- 


Assets less Liabilities    (16,675)    (14,822) 


Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity 


General fund 


  


(16,675) 


  


(14,822) 


Revaluation reserve 


Other reserves 


Charitable Reserves 


Total taxpayers' equity: 


 - 


- 


  - 


  (16,675) 


 - 


- 


  - 


  (14,822) 
 


The notes on pages 116 to 138 form part of this statement. The financial statements on pages 112 to 115 were approved 


by the Integrated Audit and Governance Committee on May 22, 2019 and signed on its behalf by 


 


Chief Accountable Officer 
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended  


31 March 2019  
General 


 
Revaluation 


 
Other 


 
Total 


 fund 


£'000 


reserve 


£'000 


reserves 


£'000 


reserves 


£'000 


Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2018-19     


Balance at 01 April 2018 (14,822) 0 0 (14,822) 


Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from closed NHS bodies 0 0 0 0 


Impact of applying IFRS 9 to Opening Balances 0   0 


Impact of applying IFRS 15 to Opening Balances   0         0 


Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 31 March 2018 (14,822) 0 0 (14,822) 


Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2018-19 
    


Net operating expenditure for the financial year (239,854)   (239,854) 


Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
 


0 
 


0 


Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets  0  0 


Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets      0      0 


Total revaluations against revaluation reserve  0  0 


Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 


Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of other investments and financial assets (excluding available for 


sale financial assets) 


   
0 


 
0 


Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 


Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0 


Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions 0 0 0 0 


Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0 


Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0 


Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0 0 0 0 


Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 


Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies 0 0 0 0 


Reserves eliminated on dissolution   0   0   0   0 
     


 


Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial Year 
 


(239,854) 
 


0 
 


0 
 


(239,854) 


Net funding   238,001 0 0   238,001 


Balance at 31 March 2019   (16,675) 0 0   (16,675) 


 
 


 General 


fund 


Revaluation 


reserve 


Other 


reserves 


Total 


reserves 


 
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2017-18 


£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


Balance at 01 April 2017 


Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS bodies as a result of the 1 April 2013 transition 


(12,330) 0 0 (12,330) 


   0   0   0   0 


Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 31 March 2018 (12,330) 0 0 (12,330) 


Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2017-18 
    


Net operating costs for the financial year (230,052)   (230,052) 


Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
 


0 
 


0 


Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets  0  0 


Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets      0      0 


Total revaluations against revaluation reserve  0  0 


Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 


Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 


Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0 


Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions 0 0 0 0 


Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0 


Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0 


Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0 0 0 0 


Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 


Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies 0 0 0 0 


Reserves eliminated on dissolution   0   0   0   0 


Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial Year (230,052) 0 0 (230,052) 


Net funding   227,560   0   0   227,560 


Balance at 31 March 2018   (14,822)   0   0   (14,822) 


The notes on pages 116 to 138 form part of this statement. 
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 


31 March 2019 


  


 
2018-19 


  


 
2017-18 


 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 


Note £'000  £'000 


Net operating expenditure for the financial year 5 (239,854)  (230,052) 


Depreciation and amortisation  0  9 


Impairments and reversals  0  0 


Non-cash movements arising on application of new accounting standards  0  0 


Movement due to transfer by modified absorption  0  0 


Other gains (losses) on foreign exchange  0  0 


Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash  0  0 


Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash  0  0 


Interest paid  0  0 


Release of PFI deferred credit  0  0 


Other Gains and losses  0  0 


Finance Costs  0  0 


Unwinding of Discounts  0  0 


(Increase)/decrease in inventories  0  0 


(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 9 (1,330)  2,727 


(Increase)/decrease in other current assets  0  0 


Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 11 3,143  (248) 


Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities  0  0 


Provisions utilised  0  0 


Increase/(decrease) in provisions    0    0 


Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities  (238,041)  (227,564) 


Cash Flows from Investing Activities 


Interest received 


  


0 


  


0 


(Payments) for property, plant and equipment  0  0 


(Payments) for intangible assets  0  0 


(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health  0  0 


(Payments) for other financial assets  0  0 


(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT)  0  0 


Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and equipment  0  0 


Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets  0  0 


Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health  0  0 


Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets  0  0 


Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT)  0  0 


Non-cash movements arising on application of new accounting standards  0  0 


Loans made in respect of LIFT  0  0 


Loans repaid in respect of LIFT  0  0 


Rental revenue    0    0 


Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities  0  0 


Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing 
 


(238,041) 
 


(227,564) 


Cash Flows from Financing Activities 


Grant in Aid Funding Received 


  


238,001 


  


227,560 


Other loans received  0  0 


Other loans repaid  0  0 


Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on Statement of Financial Position PFI and LIFT  0  0 


Capital grants and other capital receipts  0  0 


Capital receipts surrendered  0  0 


Non-cash movements arising on application of new accounting standards    0    0 


Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities  238,001  227,560 


Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 10   (40)    (4) 


Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 
 


66 
 


70 


Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies    0    0 


Cash and Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year    26    66 


The notes on pages 116 to 138 form part of this statement. 
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Notes to the financial statements 


1 Accounting Policies 


 
NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Group 


Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in 


accordance with the Group Accounting Manual 2018-19 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the 


Group Accounting Manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to clinical 


commissioning groups, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the Group Accounting 


Manual permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the clinical 


commissioning group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical commissioning 


group are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts. 


1.1 Going Concern 
 These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 


 Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by 
inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents. 


 Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, by 


another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of financial statements. If services will continue 


to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis. 


1.2 Accounting Convention 


 These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, 


intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities. 


1.2 Pooled Budgets 


 The clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement with North Lincolnshire Council in accordance with section 75 of the 


NHS Act 2006. Under the arrangement, funds are pooled for the Better Care Fund and a note to the accounts provides details of the income and 


expenditure. 


 The pool is hosted by North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group. The clinical commissioning group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, 


income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement. 


1.3 Revenue 


 The transition to IFRS 15 has been completed in accordance with paragraph C3 (b) of the Standard, applying the Standard retrospectively recognising 
the cumulative effects at the date of initial application. 


 In the adoption of IFRS 15 a number of practical expedients offered in the Standard have been employed. These are as follows; 


 • As per paragraph 121 of the Standard the clinical commissioning group will not disclose information regarding performance obligations part of a 


contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less, 
 • The clinical commissioning group is to similarly not disclose information where revenue is recognised in line with the practical expedient offered in 


paragraph B16 of the Standard where the right to consideration corresponds directly with value of the performance completed to date. 


 • The FReM has mandated the exercise of the practical expedient offered in C7(a) of the Standard that requires the clinical commissioning group to 


reflect the aggregate effect of all contracts modified before the date of initial application. 


 
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised services to the 


customer, and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to that performance obligation. 
 Where income is received for a specific performance obligation that is to be satisfied in the following year, that income is deferred. 


 
Payment terms are standard reflecting cross government principles. 


 


1.4 Employee Benefits 


1.4.1 Short-term Employee Benefits 


 Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including payments arising from the apprenticeship levy, are recognised in the period in which the 


service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet taken. 
 The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are 


permitted to carry forward leave into the following period. 


1.4.2 Retirement Benefit Costs 


 Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Schemes. These schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes that 


cover NHS employers, general practices and other bodies allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The schemes 


are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the 


schemes are accounted for as though they were defined contribution schemes: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of participating in a scheme 
is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. 


 For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for 


the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of 
payment. 


 The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year. 


1.5 Other Expenses 


 Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair value 
of the consideration payable. 
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1.6 Property, Plant & Equipment 


 
1.6.1 Recognition 


Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if: 


· It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes; 


· It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the clinical commissioning group; 


· It is expected to be used for more than one financial year; 


· The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and, 


· The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or, 


· Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are 


functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under 


single managerial control; or, 


· Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost. 


Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components are treated 


as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives. 


1.6.2 Measurement 


All property, plant and equipment is measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and 


bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 


Assets that are held for their service potential and are in use are measured subsequently at their current value in existing use. Assets that were 


most recently held for their service potential but are surplus are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions preventing access to the 


market at the reporting date. 


Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would be determined 


at the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing use are determined as follows: 


· Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use; and, 


· Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost. 
 


Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes 


professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. 


Assets are re-valued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use. 


IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are valued at depreciated historic 


cost where these assets have short useful economic lives or low values or both, as this is not considered to be materially different from current 


value in existing use. 


An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset previously 


recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation decrease 


that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the 


extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of 


economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in 


the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. 


 
1.7 Leases 


Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are 


classified as operating leases. 


 
1.7.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee 


Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present 


value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between 


finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 


charges are recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit. 


Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a 


liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 


Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.  


Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are operating 


or finance leases. 


 
1.8 Cash and Cash Equivalents 


Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are 


investments that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 


insignificant risk of change in value. 


In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an 


integral part of the clinical commissioning group’s cash management. 
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1.9 Provisions 


Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is 


probable that the clinical commissioning group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 


obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting 


period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its 


carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows: 


Early retirement provisions are discounted using HM Treasury’s pension discount rate of positive 0.29% (2017-18: positive 0.10%) in real terms. All 


general provisions are subject to four separate discount rates according to the expected timing of cashflows from the Statement of Financial 


Position date: 


• A nominal short-term rate of 0.76% (2017-18: negative 2.42% in real terms) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows up to and including five 


years from Statement of Financial Position date. 


• A nominal medium-term rate of 1.14% (2017-18: negative 1.85% in real terms) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over five years up to 


and including 10 years from the Statement of Financial Position date. 


• A nominal long-term rate of 1.99% (2017-18: negative 1.56% in real terms) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 10 years and up to and 


including 40 years from the Statement of Financial Position date. 


• A nominal very long-term rate of 1.99% (2017-18: negative 1.56% in real terms) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows exceeding 40 years from 


the Statement of Financial Position date. 


All 2018-19 percentages are expressed in nominal terms with 2017-18 being the last financial year that HM Treasury provided real general provision 


discount rates. 


 
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is 


recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 


 
A restructuring provision is recognised when the clinical commissioning group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has 


raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to 


those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are 


those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with on-going activities of the entity. 


 
1.10 Clinical Negligence Costs 


NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, 


which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although NHS Resolution is administratively 


responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the clinical commissioning group. 


 
1.11 Non-clinical Risk Pooling 


The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling 


schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and, in return, receives assistance with 


the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to 


operating expenses as and when they become due. 


1.12 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 


A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non- 


occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group, or a present obligation that is 


not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 


measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a  payment is remote. 


A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 


one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group. A contingent asset is disclosed where an 


inflow of economic benefits is probable. 


Where the time value of money is material, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are disclosed at their present value.  


 


1.13 Financial Assets 


Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 


receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the 


asset has been transferred. 


Financial assets are classified into the following categories: 


· Financial assets at amortised cost; 


· Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and ; 


· Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. 


The classification is determined by the cash flow and business model characteristics of the financial assets, as set out in IFRS 9, and is 


determined at the time of initial recognition. 


 
1.13.1 Financial Assets at Amortised cost 


Financial assets measured at amortised cost are those held within a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash 


flows and where the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes most trade receivables and other simple debt 


instruments. After initial recognition these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any 


impairment. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the life of the financial asset to the 


gross carrying amount of the financial asset. 


 


 
1.14 Financial Liabilities 


Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the contractual 


provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de- 


recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired. 
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1.14.1 Other Financial Liabilities 


After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for loans from 


Department of Health and Social Care, which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 


future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised us ing the effective 


interest method. 


 
1.15 Value Added Tax 


Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on 


purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed 


assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT. 


 


 
1.16 Losses & Special Payments 


Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed 


legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the 


generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled. 


Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would 


have been made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then 


being included as normal revenue expenditure). 


 
1.17 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 


In the application of the clinical commissioning group's accounting policies, management is required to make various judgements, estimates and 


assumptions. These are regularly reviewed. 


 
1.17.1 Critical accounting judgements in applying accounting policies 


The following are the judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the clinical 


commissioning group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 


 
Disclosure of the critical judgements made by the clinical commissioning group's management, as required by IAS 1.122. The clinical 


commissioning group occupies property owned and managed by NHS Property Services Ltd. While our arrangements with NHS Property Services 


fall within the definition of operating leases, the rental charge for future years has not yet been agreed. Consequently, this note does not include 


future minimum lease payments for these arrangements. 


 
1.17.2 Sources of estimation uncertainty 


The following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in a 


material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabili ties within the next financial year. 


 
Vulnerable People Packages of Care 


The primary basis for estimating the forecast level of expenditure not yet invoiced is recorded package costs in the Broadcare patient database. 


Analysis during 2018-19 ( supported by similar analysis in previous financial years) has shown that due to peaks and troughs in the numbers of 


packages for individual months this basis can produce fluctuating expenditure trends which are difficult to justify. Therefore, the solution adopted to 


address this issue is summarised below: 


 
* First a simple rolling trend is generated using moving averages 


* Then the Broadcare based expenditure projection is reduced by a further proportion that is reflective of current delays in assessments and 


packages yet to be updated on Broadcare (estimated to be no more than 6%) 


* A sense check to invoiced spend is then completed and the value adjusted as appropriate 


For Continuing Healthcare Packages, the following adjustments are also made: 


* Pre panel packages are recorded on Broadcare at a nominal package value to reflect that on average only 1 in 5 will be found eligible. 


*NHS England are responsible for legacy cases that were included in the risk pool, therefore an adjustment will be made to ensure all such 


cases are not reflected in the CCG estimates. 


 
Prescribing 


There is a delay of almost two months between the end of an accounting period and receipt of the Practice Prescribing Monitoring Document (PMD) 


showing the actual prescribing expenditure by GPs. As a result data for February and March prescribing expenditure was not available at the time 


of production of the annual accounts. An estimate of outstanding prescribing expenditure is therefore calculated using the forecast in the NHS BSA 


PMD prescribing reports and any relevant local intelligence. 


 
Healthcare Non Contract Activity 


Due to the time lag between the end of a period and the invoicing of activity data to CCGs an estimate has been made  of expenditure. 


The estimated expenditure is based on expenditure incurred for the year to date, with a reference to the actual invoiced spend and activity recorded 


on the Secondary Uses Service (SUS). 


 
1.18 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted 


The DHSC GAM does not require the following IFRS Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2018-19. These Standards are still subject to 


HM Treasury FReM adoption, with IFRS 16 being for implementation in 2019-20, and the government implementation date for IFRS 17 still subject 


to HM Treasury consideration. 


● IFRS 16 Leases – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but not yet adopted by the FReM: early 


adoption is not therefore permitted. 


● IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, but not yet adopted by the 


FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted. 


● IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 
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2 Other Operating Revenue 


 2018-19 


Total 


 2017-18 


Total 


£'000  £'000 


Income from sale of goods and services (contracts) 


Education, training and research 


 


- 


  


- 


2* Non-patient care services to other bodies 


Patient transport services 


Prescription fees and charges 


Dental fees and charges 


Income generation 


Other Contract income 


Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 


Total income from sale of goods and services 


295 


- 


80 


- 


- 


- 


  - 


  375 


 655 


- 


70 


- 


- 


- 


  - 


  725 


Other operating income 


Rental revenue from finance leases 


 


- 


  


- 


Rental revenue from operating leases 


Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure: NHS 


Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure: non-NHS 


Receipt of donations (capital/cash) 


Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions 


Continuing Health Care risk pool contributions 


Non cash apprenticeship training grants revenue 


Other non contract revenue 


- 


- 


- 


- 


- 


- 


- 


  500 


 - 


- 


- 


- 


- 


- 


- 


  656 


Total other operating income   500    656 


Total operating Income   875    1,381 


 


 
Explanatory Notes 


1* IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers has been adopted for 2018/19. 


The impact of IFRS 15 for North Lincolnshire CCG is immaterial. 


 
2* Income from Non-patient care services to other bodies included £362k for the year end Mental 


Health and Learning Disability Pooled Budget transactions in 2017-18. In 2018-19 the pooled 


budgets have been suspended and therefore the value is nil. 







 


 
 


 
3.1 Disaggregation of Income - Income from sale of good and services (contracts) 


 


 
 


Education, training 


and research 


Non-patient care 


services to other 


bodies 


 
Patient transport 


services 


 
Prescription fees 


and charges 


 
Dental fees and 


charges 


 
Income 


generation 


 
Other Contract 


income 


Recoveries in 


respect of 


employee benefits 


£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


Source of Revenue 
        


NHS - 142 - - - - - - 
        


Non NHS   -  153  -  80  -  -  -  - 


Total   -  295  -  80  -  -  -  - 


 
 
 


Education, training 


and research 


Non-patient care 


services to other 


bodies 


 
Patient transport 


services 


 
Prescription fees 


and charges 


 
Dental fees and 


charges 


 
Income 


generation 


 
Other Contract 


income 


Recoveries in 


respect of 


employee benefits 


£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


Timing of Revenue 


Point in time  -  - -  - - - - - 


Over time   -  295  -  80  -  -  -  - 


Total   -  295  -  80  -  -  -  - 


 
 


 
3.2 Transaction price to remaining contract performance obligations 


 
North Lincolnshire CCG has no contract revenue expected to be recognised in the future periods related to contract performance obligations. 
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4. Employee benefits and staff numbers  


4.1.1 Employee benefits Total 2018-19 


  
Permanent 


Employees Other 


 
 


Total 


 
Employee Benefits 


£'000 £'000 £'000 


Salaries and wages 2,632 315 2,947 


Social security costs 281 - 281 


Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 328 - 328 


Other pension costs - - - 


Apprenticeship Levy - - - 


Other post-employment benefits - - - 


Other employment benefits - - - 


Termination benefits   19   -   19 


Gross employee benefits expenditure   3,260  315   3,575 


Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2)   -  -   - 


Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs   3,260  315   3,575 


Less: Employee costs capitalised   -  -   - 


Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs   3,260  315   3,575 


 


4.1.1 Employee benefits 
 


Total 
 


2017-18 


  
Permanent 


Employees Other 


 
 


Total 


 
Employee Benefits 


£'000 £'000 £'000 


Salaries and wages 2,631 293 2,924 


Social security costs 279 - 279 


Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 323 - 323 


Other pension costs 0 - 0 


Apprenticeship Levy - - - 


Other post-employment benefits - - - 


Other employment benefits - - - 


Termination benefits   -  -   - 


Gross employee benefits expenditure   3,233  293   3,526 


Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2)   -  -   - 


Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs   3,233  293   3,526 


Less: Employee costs capitalised   -  -   - 


Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs   3,233  293   3,526 
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4.2 Average number of people employed 
 
 
 


Permanently 


 


2018-19 


 
 
 


Permanently 


 


2017-18 


employed Other Total employed Other Total 


Number Number Number Number Number Number 


Total 62 2 64 66 2 68 


 
Of the above: 


Number of whole time equivalent people engaged on capital 


projects - - - - - - 


 
 


 
4.3 Exit packages agreed in the financial year  


 
 
 
 
Less than £10,000 


2018-19 


Compulsory redundancies 


Number £ 


3 18,589 


2018-19 


Other agreed departures 


Number £ 


- - 


2018-19 


Total 


Number £ 


3 18,589 


£10,001 to £25,000 - - - - - - 


£25,001 to £50,000 - - - - - - 


£50,001 to £100,000 - - - - - - 


£100,001 to £150,000 - - - - - - 


£150,001 to £200,000 - - - - - - 


Over £200,001   -  -   -  -   -  - 


Total   3  18,589   -  -   3  18,589 


 
 
 


 
Less than £10,000 


2017-18 


Compulsory redundancies 


Number £ 


- - 


2017-18 


Other agreed departures 


Number £ 


- - 


2017-18 


Total 


Number £ 


- - 


£10,001 to £25,000 - - - - - - 


£25,001 to £50,000 - - - - - - 


£50,001 to £100,000 - - - - - - 


£100,001 to £150,000 - - - - - - 


£150,001 to £200,000 - - - - - - 


Over £200,001   -  -   -  -   -  - 


Total   -  -   -  -   -  - 


 
 


 
* As a single exit package can be made up of several components each of which will be counted separately in this table, the total number will not necessarily match the total number in the 


table above, which will be the number of individuals. 


 
These tables report the number and value of exit packages agreed in the financial year. The expense associated with these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a 


previous period. 


 


Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the Agenda for Change, NHS Terms and Conditions of Service Handbook. 


Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest in full in the year of departure. 


The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report. 
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4.4 Pension costs 


 


 
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions  of the two NHS Pension Schemes.  Details of the benefits payable and  


rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded defined benefit 


schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State for Health in 


England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying 


scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore,  each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the  


NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period. 


 
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be 


determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be 


four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows: 


 


 
4.4.1 Accounting valuation 


 


 
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at 


the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated 


membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial  


reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at March 31 2019, is based on valuation data as March 31 2018, updated 


to March 31 2019 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology 


prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used. 


 
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual 


NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies 


can also be obtained from The Stationery Office. 


 
4.4.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation 


 
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account 


recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers.  


 
The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at March 31, 2016. The results of this 


valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019. The Department of Health and Social Care have recently laid 


Scheme Regulations confirming that the employer contribution rate will increase to 20.6% of pensionable pay from this date. 


 
The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap set following the 2012 


valuation. Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Government announced a pause to that part of the 


valuation process pending conclusion of the continuing legal process. 


 
For 2018-19, employers’ contributions of £327,706 were payable to the NHS Pensions Scheme (2017-18:  £323,006) were payable to 


the NHS Pension Scheme at the rate of 14.38% of pensionable pay. The scheme’s actuary reviews  employer contributions, usually 


every four years and now based on HMT Valuation Directions, following a full scheme valuation. The latest review used data from 31 


March 2012 and was published on the Government website on June 9, 2012. These costs are included in the NHS pension line of note 


4.1. 



http://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions
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6.1 Better Payment Practice Code     


Measure of compliance 2018-19 2018-19 2017-18 2017-18 
 Number £'000 Number £'000 


Non-NHS Payables     


Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the year 10,421 53,399 10,582 53,218 


Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 10,404 53,307 10,521 52,893 


Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 99.84% 99.83% 99.42% 99.39% 


NHS Payables 
    


Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the year 2,238 156,594 2,225 149,822 


Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 2,236 156,589 2,219 149,820 


Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 99.91% 100.00% 99.73% 100.00% 


 
 


6.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 


  
 


2018-19 


 
 


2017-18 


 


  £'000 £'000  


Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation 
 


- - 
 


Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation    -   -  


Total    -   -  







 


 
 
 
 


 
7. Operating Leases 


 
12.1 As lessee 
North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group has lease arrangements with NHS Property Services for the buildings it occupies. 


 
 
 
 


12.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense  
Land 


 
Buildings 


 
Other 


2018-19 


Total 
 


Land 
 


Buildings 
 


Other 


2017-18 


Total 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


Payments recognised as an expense         


Minimum lease payments  - 413  - 413  - 314  - 314 


Contingent rents  - -  - -  - -  - - 


Sub-lease payments   - - - -   - - - - 


Total   - 413 - 413   - 314 - 314 


 


 


Whilst our arrangements with NHS Property Services Limited fall within the definition of operating leases, rental charge for future years has not yet been agreed. Consequently this note does not 


include future minimum lease payments for the arrangements. 
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8 Property, plant and equipment 


 
 
 


 
2018-19 Land 


 


Buildings 


excluding 


dwellings 


 
 


 
Dwellings 


Assets under 


construction 


and payments 


on account 


 


 


Plant & 


machinery 


 


 


Transport 


equipment 


 


 


Information 


technology 


 


 


Furniture & 


fittings 


 
 


 
Total 


£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


Cost or valuation at April 1, 2018 -  -  - - -  -  25  - 25 


Addition of assets under construction and payments on account      -        - 


Additions purchased -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Additions donated -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Additions government granted -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Additions leased -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Reclassifications -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Reclassified as held for sale and reversals -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Disposals other than by sale -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Upward revaluation gains -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Impairments charged -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Reversal of impairments -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Transfer (to)/from other public sector body -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation   -    -    -   -   -    -    -    -   - 


Cost/Valuation at  March 31, 2019   -    -    -   -   -    -    25    -   25 


Depreciation April 1, 2018 - 
 


- 
 


- - - 
 


- 
 


25 
 


- 25 


Reclassifications - 
 


- 
 


- - - 
 


- 
 


- 
 


- - 


Reclassified as held for sale and reversals -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Disposals other than by sale -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Upward revaluation gains -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Impairments charged -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Reversal of impairments -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Charged during the year -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Transfer (to)/from other public sector body -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation   -    -    -   -   -    -    -    -   - 


Depreciation at March 31, 2019   -    -    -   -   -    -    25    -   25 


Net Book Value at March 31,  2019   -    -    -   -   -    -    -    -   - 


Purchased - 
 


- 
 


- - - 
 


- 
 


- 
 


- - 


Donated -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Government Granted   -    -    -   -   -    -    -    -   - 


Total at March 31,  2019   -    -    -   -   -    -    -    -   - 


Asset financing: 
              


Owned - 
 


- 
 


- - - 
 


- 
 


- 
 


- - 


Held on finance lease -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


On-SOFP Lift contracts -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


PFI residual: interests -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Total at March 31, 2019   -    -    -   -   -    -    -    -   - 


 
Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment 


              


      
Assets under 


construction & 


payments on 


 


 
Plant & 


  


 
Transport 


  


 
Information 


  


 
Furniture & 


 


 Land  Buildings  Dwellings account machinery  equipment  technology  fittings Total 
 £'000  £'000  £'000 £'000 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 £'000 


Balance at 01 April 2018 -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Revaluation gains - 
 


- 
 


- - - 
 


- 
 


- 
 


- - 


Impairments -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Release to general fund -  -  - - -  -  -  - - 


Other movements   -    -    -   -   -    -    -    -   - 


Balance at 31 March 2019   -    -    -   -   -    -    -    -   - 
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8.1 Cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets 


 
The cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets still in use was as follows: 


 
 
Land 


2018-19 


£'000 


- 


2017-18 


£'000 


- 


Buildings excluding dwellings - - 


Dwellings - - 


Plant and machinery - - 


Transport equipment - - 


Information technology 25 25 


Furniture and fittings   -   - 


Total   25   25 


 
8.2 Economic lives 


 


 
Minimum 


 


 
Maximum 


 
Buildings excluding dwellings 


Life (years) 


0 


Life (Years) 


0 


Dwellings 0 0 


Plant and machinery 0 0 


Transport equipment 0 0 


Information technology 3 5 


Furniture and fittings 0 0 
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 9 Trade and other receivables Current Non-current Current Non-current  


  2018-19 2018-19 2017-18 2017-18  


  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  


1* NHS receivables: Revenue 1,750 - 23 - 
 


 NHS receivables: Capital - - - -  


 NHS prepayments 595 - 549 -  


 NHS accrued income - - 60 -  


 NHS Contract Receivable not yet invoiced/non-invoice - - - -  


 NHS Non Contract trade receivable (i.e. pass through funding) - - - -  


 NHS Contract Assets - - - -  


 Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Revenue 174 - 76 -  


 Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Capital - - - -  


 Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments - - 241 -  


 Non-NHS and Other WGA accrued income 8 - 248 -  


 Non-NHS and Other WGA Contract Receivable not yet invoiced/non-invoice - - - -  


 Non-NHS and Other WGA Non Contract trade receivable (i.e. pass through funding) - - - -  


 Non-NHS Contract Assets - - - -  


 Expected credit loss allowance-receivables - - - -  


 VAT 15 - 15 -  


 Private finance initiative and other public private partnership arrangement prepayments and 


accrued income 


 
- 


 
- 


 
- 


 
- 


 


 Interest receivables - - - -  


 Finance lease receivables - - - -  


 Operating lease receivables - - - -  


 Other receivables and accruals   -    -    0   -   


 Total Trade and other receivables   2,542   -    1,212   -   


 Total current and non current   2,542    1,212   


 
Included above: 


     


 Prepaid pensions contributions -  -   


 
Explanatory Notes 


     


1* NHS receivables: Revenue has increased in 2018-19 as follows: £'000     


 
Bolton CCG 1,206 


For the recharge of package costs for a Learning Disability Placement 


as determined by NHS England during 2018-19 (balance paid in full 


   April 2019)    


  
West Lincolnshire CCG 


 
235 


For the recharge of 2017-18 costs in relation to the merger of the Kirton Lindsey 


and Hawthorn Practices 


 
Doncaster CCG 204 Pass through of non recurrent funding in respect of the Learning Disability (LD) 


      Transforming Care Programme (balance paid in full April 2019) 


   1,645     


  
9.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 


     


  2018-19 2018-19 2017-18 2017-18  


  DHSC Group 


Bodies 


Non DHSC 


Group Bodies 


DHSC Group 


Bodies 


Non DHSC 


Group Bodies 


 


  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  


 By up to three months 1,242 61 - 54  


 By three to six months - 25 - 4  


 By more than six months   235   44   -    18  


 Total   1,477   130   -    76  


  
Explanatory Notes 


     


1 £1,263k of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.     


2 The 2018-19 balance with DHSC Group Bodies of £1,477k includes £1,206k with Bolton CCG and £235k with Lincolnshire West CCG. 
   


3 North Lincolnshire CCG did not hold any collateral against receivables outstanding at  March 31, 201 9 
    


  


9.2 Impact of Application of IFRS 9 on financial assets at April 1, 2018 


     


  Trade and other 


receivables - 


NHSE bodies 


Trade and other 


receivables - 


other DHSC 
group bodies 


Trade and other 


receivables - 


external 


Other financial 


assets 


Total 


  £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 
 Classification under IAS 39 as at March 31, 2018      


 Financial Assets held at FVTPL - - - - - 
 Financial Assets held at Amortised cost 66 83 - 324 473 
 Financial Assets held at FVOCI   -    -    -    -        -  


 Total at  March 31, 2018   66   83   -    324        473 


 
Classification under IFRS 9 as at  April 1, 2018 


     


 Financial Assets designated to FVTPL - - - - - 
 Financial Assets mandated to FVTPL - - - - - 
 Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 66 83 - 324 473 
 Financial Assets measured at FVOCI   -    -    -    -        -  


 Total at April 1, 2018   66   83   -    324        473 


 
Changes due to change in measurement attribute - 0 - (0) (0) 


 Other changes   -    -    -    -        -  


 Change in carrying amount   -    0   -    (0)        (0)  


  


9.3 Movement in loss allowances due to application of IFRS 9 


     


 
North Lincolnshire CCG has had no movement in loss allowances due to the application of IFRS 9 
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- Annual Accounts 2018-19 


 
10 Cash and cash equivalents 


 


 
 


Balance at April 1, 2018 


2018-19 


£'000 


66 


 
2017-18 


£'000 


70 


Net change in year   (40)    (4) 


Balance at March 31, 2019   26    66 


Made up of: 


Cash with the Government Banking Service 


 


26 


  


66 


Cash with Commercial banks 


Cash in hand 


Current investments 


Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 


- 


0 


  - 


26 


 - 


0 


  - 


66 


Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service 


Bank overdraft: Commercial banks 


Total bank overdrafts 


- 


  - 


- 


 
- 


  - 


- 


Balance at March 31, 2019   26    66 


 
Patients’ money held by the clinical commissioning group, not included above. 


 
- 


  
- 
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11 Trade and other payables 


Current 


2018-19 


£'000 


Non-current Current 


2018-19 2017-18 


£'000 £'000 


Non-current 


2017-18 


£'000 


Interest payable - - - - 


NHS payables: Revenue 1,785 - 1,234 - 


NHS payables: Capital - - - - 


1* NHS accruals 4,312 - 1,659 - 


NHS deferred income - - - - 


NHS Contract Liabilities - - - - 


Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Revenue 1,413 - 984 - 


Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Capital - - - - 


Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals 11,551 - 12,035 - 


Non-NHS and Other WGA deferred income - - - - 


Non-NHS Contract Liabilities - - - - 


Social security costs 43 - 37 - 


VAT - - - - 


Tax 41 - 31 - 


Payments received on account - - - - 


2* Other payables and accruals   98   -  120   - 


Total Trade and Other Payables 19,243 - 16,100 - 


Total current and non-current   19,243   16,100  


 


Explanatory Notes 


1* NHS accruals includes increases with the following providers for 2018-19:   
 £'000 


Hull University Teaching Hospitals Trust  676 


Northern Lincolnshire and Goole Hospitals FT  523 


Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals FT  81 


Lincolnshire Community Heath Service Trust  182 


Lincolnshire Partnership FT  498 


 
2* Other payables include £48.84k outstanding pension contributions at March 31, 2019 (31 March 2018: £38.75k) 


 


 
11.1 Impact of Application of IFRS 9 on financial liabilities at April 1, 2018 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Classification under IAS 39 as at  March 31, 2018 


Trade and 


other 


payables - 


NHSE bodies 


 
£000s 


Trade and 


other 


payables - 


other DHSC 


group bodies 


£000s 


Trade and 


other 


payables - 


external 


 
£000s 


Other 


borrowings 


(including 


finance lease 


obligations) 


£000s 


Other 


financial 


liabilities 


 


 
£000s 


Total 
 
 
 
 


£000s 


Financial Assets held at FVTPL - - - - - - 


Financial Assets held at Amortised cost   2,894   -   13,139   -   -       16,032 


Total at 31st March 2018   2,894   -   13,139   -   -       16,032 


Classification under IFRS 9 as at April 1, 2018 


Financial Liabilities designated to FVTPL 


 


- 


 


- 


 


- 


 


- 


 


- 


 


- 


Financial Liabilities mandated to FVTPL - - - - - - 


Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost 2,894 - 13,139 - - 16,033 


Financial Assets measured at FVOCI   -   -   -   -   -   - 


Total at April 1, 2018   2,894   -   13,139   -   -       16,033 


Changes due to change in measurement attribute (0) - (0) - - (1) 


Other changes   -   -   -   -   -   - 


Change in carrying amount   (0)   -   (0)   -   -   (1) 
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12 Financial instruments 


 
12.1 Financial risk management 


 


Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or 


changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. 


 
Because NHS clinical commissioning group is financed through parliamentary funding,  it  is  not  exposed to the degree of financial  risk 


faced by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of 


listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly  apply.  The  clinical  commissioning group has  limited powers  to borrow 


or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by  day-to-day  operational  activities  rather than being held to 


change the risks facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking its activities. 


 
Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the NHS clinical 


commissioning group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury  activity  is  subject  to review by 


the NHS clinical commissioning group and internal auditors. 
 


12.1.1 Currency risk 
 


The NHS clinical commissioning group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities 


being in the UK and sterling based. The NHS clinical commissioning group has no overseas operations. The NHS clinical commissioning 


group and therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations. 
 


12.1.2 Interest rate risk 


 


The clinical commissioning group borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as  confirmed by  NHS  England. 


The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years,  in line with the life of the associated assets,  and interest  is  charged at  the National  Loans  Fund 


rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The clinical commissioning group therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations. 
 


12.1.3 Credit risk 


 


Because the majority of the NHS clinical commissioning group and revenue comes parliamentary funding, NHS  clinical  commissioning 


group has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as 


disclosed in the trade and other receivables note. 
 


12.1.4 Liquidity risk 


 
 


NHS clinical commissioning group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources 


voted annually by Parliament. The NHS clinical commissioning group draws down cash to cover expenditure,  as  the need arises.  The 


NHS clinical commissioning group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks. 
 


12.1.5 Financial Instruments 


 


As the cash requirements of NHS England are  met  through the Estimate process,  financial  instruments  play  a more limited role in 


creating and managing risk than would apply to a non-public sector body. The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts to buy non-


financial  items  in line with NHS  England's  expected purchase and usage requirements  and NHS  England is  therefore  exposed to  little 


credit, liquidity or market risk. 







134  


 
12.2 Financial assets 


 


Financial Assets 


measured at 


amortised cost 


Equity Instruments 


designated at 


FVOCI Total 


Financial Assets 


measured at 


amortised cost 


Equity Instruments 


designated at 


FVOCI Total 


2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 2017-18 2017-18 2017-18 


£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
 


Equity investment  in group bodies - - 


Equity investment  in external bodies - - 


Loans  receivable with group bodies - - 


Loans  receivable with external bodies - - 


Trade and other receivables  with NHSE bodies 1,739 1,739 


Trade and other receivables  with other DHSC group bodies 31 31 


Trade and other receivables  with external bodies 162 162 


Other financial assets - - 


Cash and cash equivalents 26 26 
  


- 


- 


- 


- 


83 


248 


76 


- 


66 
Total at 31 March 2019   1,958  -  1,958  473  -  473 


 
 


12.3 Financial liabilities 


 
 


Financial 


Liabilities 


measured at 


amortised cost Other Total 


 
 


Financial 


Liabilities 


measured at 


amortised cost Other Total 


2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 2017-18 2017-18 2017-18 


£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


 
Loans  with group bodies - - - - 


Loans  with external bodies - - - - 


Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies 151 151 137 137 


Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies 11,453 11,453 8,240 8,240 


Trade and other payables with external bodies 7,457 7,457 7,532 7,532 


Other financial liabilities 98 98 119 119 


Private Finance Initiative and finance lease obligations   -    -  -    - 


Total at 31 March 2019   19,159  -  19,159  16,028  -  16,028 


- 


- 


- 


- 


83 


248 


76 


- 


66 
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13 Contingent Liability 2018-19 2017-18 


 £'000 £'000 


Lead Provider Framework - potential VAT liability 472 - 


 
Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs (HMRC) are reviewing the Value Added Tax (VAT) that has been recovered in relation to the 


services provided by Kier Business Services LTD (eMBED Commissioning Support Contract) that was procured under the   


national Lead Provider Framework arrangement. 


 
The CCG has reclaimed VAT in line with the relevant VAT category, however should HMRC determine VAT has been incorrectly 


recovered there may be a cost to the organisation at some point in the future. 


 
NHS England are in discussion with HMRC in relation to this matter. 


 


 
14 Operating Segments 


 
North Lincolnshire CCG considers they only have one operating segment, namely the commissioning of healthcare services. 


 


 
15 Pooled Budgets 


 
North Lincolnshire CCG are part of a pooled budget arrangement for the Better Care Fund (BCF) with North Lincolnshire Council. 


 
During 2017-18 the CCG were also part of pooled budget with North Lincolnshire Council for Adult Mental Health and Learning Disability 


Services. These pooled budgets have been suspended in 2018-19. 


 
The table below includes details of these arrangements, along with the financial values recognised in the CCG's accounts: 


 


Amounts recognised in Entities books ONLY Amounts recognised in Entities books ONLY 


2018-19 2017-18 


Name of arrangement 
Parties to the 


Description of principal activities Assets     Liabilities   Income  Expenditure Assets Liabilities Income Expenditure 
arrangement 


   £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 


 


Pooled Budget - Better Care 


Fund (BCF) 


 


North Lincolnshire CCG & 


North Lincolnshire Council 


The integration of Health & Social Care 


so that people can manage their own 


health & wellbeing, to live independently 


in their community, for as long as 


possible. 


  


 
0 


  


 
0 


  


 
0 


 


 
11,338 


  


 
0 


  


 
0 


  


 
0 


 


 
11,125 


Pooled Budget - Adult Mental 


Health Services 


North Lincolnshire CCG & 


North Lincolnshire Council 


To support the provision of Mental Health 


Services for the population of North 


Lincolnshire 


  
0 


  
0 


  
0 


 
0 


  
0 


  
0 


  
0 


 
12,772 


Pooled Budget - Adult 


Learning Disability Services 


North Lincolnshire CCG & 


North Lincolnshire Council 


To support the provision of Learning 


Disability Services for the population of 


North Lincolnshire 


  
0 


  
0 


  
0 


 
0 


  
0 


  
0 


  
0 


 
425 
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16 Related party transactions     


Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows: 
    


  


 
Payments to 


Related Party 


Receipts 


from 


Related 


Party 


Amounts 


owed to 


Related 


Party 


Amounts 


due from 


Related 


Party 


 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


Dr Faisel Baig     


CCG Chair (from June 18)     


GP Member (up to May 18)     


Out of Hours GP - Core Care Links 22 1 0 0 


Member of Safecare, North Lincs GP Federation 1,003 0 6 0 


Dr Margaret L Sanderson 
    


CCG Chair (up to May 18)     


Partner in Trent View Medical Practice 54 1 0 0 


Member of Safecare, North Lincs GP Federation 1,003 0 6 0 


Out of Hours/Extended Access - Core Care Links 22 1 0 0 


Emma Latimer 
    


Interim Chief Officer     


Chief Officer - Hull CCG 1,002 20 0 20 


Emma Sayner 
    


Interim Chief Finance Officer     


Chief Finance Officer - Hull CCG 1,002 20 0 20 


Alex Seale 
    


Chief Operating Officer     


Partner Governor for Northern Lincolnshire & Goole NHS FT 110,954 4 597 4 


Dr Satpal Singh Shekhawat 
    


Associate Medical Director (from Sept 18)     


GP Member (up to Aug 18)     


GP Partner at Kirton Lindsey Surgery, including MCATs provider 351 1 16 0 


Member of Safecare, North Lincs GP Federation 1,003 0 6 0 


Geoff Day 
    


Interim Director of Primary Care     


Head of Commissioning Yorkshire and Humber NHS England 140 460 1 24 


Julie Warren 
    


Interim Chief Operating Officer / Director of Commissioning (up to Oct 18)     


Locality Director (North) Yorkshire & Humber NHS England 140 460 1 24 


Catherine Wylie 
    


Director of Quality & Risk Assurance and Nurse Member (up to Sept 18)     


Partner Governor for Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber Mental Health FT 15,456 0 37 0 


Dr Richard Shenderey 
    


Secondary Care Consultant to Governing Body     


Consultant at Airedale General Hospital 21 0 0 0 


Dr Naveen Samuel 
    


GP Member     


Partner at Winterton Practice including Minor Surgery provider 269 1 0 0 


Member of Safecare, North Lincs GP Federation 1,003 0 6 0 


Dr Salim Modan 
    


GP Member     


Partner at Riverside Surgery 59 1 0 0 


Member of Safecare, North Lincs GP Federation 1,003 0 6 0 


Out of Hours/Extended Access - Core Care Links 269 1 0 0 


Dr Hardik Gandhi 
    


GP Member     


Partner at Cedar Medical Practice 32 1 0 0 


Member of Safecare, North Lincs GP Federation 1,003 0 6 0 


Out of Hours/Extended Access - Core Care Links 1,003 0 6 0 


Spouse works as a Consultant Obstetrician and Gynaecologist in Scunthorpe General Hospital 110,954 4 597 4 


Dr Pratik Basu 
    


GP Member     


Salaried GP at the Birches Practice 18 1 0 0 


Salaried GP at Market Hill Practice 5 0 0 0 


Member of Safecare, North Lincs GP Federation 1,003 0 6 0 


Dr Gary Armstrong 
    


GP Member     


Partner at South Axholme Practice 68 1 0 0 


Member of Safecare, North Lincs GP Federation 1,003 0 6 0 


 
Explanatory Note 


    


The transactions noted above are between North Lincolnshire CCG and the stated organisation and have been conducted during the normal course of 


trading. No guarantees or provision for irrecoverable balances have been made.     


Only relationships with a financial transaction are disclosed. 
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16 Related party transactions cont'd 
 


The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) is regarded as a related party. During the year the clinical commissioning group has  


had a significant number of material transactions with entities for which the DHSC is regarded as the parent Department. 
 


· NHS England 


· North East Lincolnshire CCG 


 


 
. NHS Trusts Hull & East Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust 


East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust 


Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 


United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust 


Lincolnshire Community Health Services NHS Trust 


Yorkshire Ambulance Service NHS Trust 


 
. NHS Foundation Trusts Northern Lincolnshire & Goole NHS Foundation Trust 


Rotherham Doncaster & South Humber NHS Foundation Trust 


Doncaster & Bassetlaw Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 


Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 


Sheffield Children's NHS Foundation Trust 


Northumberland, Tyne & Wear NHS Foundation Trust 


· NHS Litigation Authority; and, 


· NHS Business Services Authority. 


· NHS Property Services 
 


In addition, the clinical commissioning group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other 


central and local government bodies. Most of these transactions have been with : 


North Lincolnshire Council 


HM Revenue and Customs 


National Insurance Fund 
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17 Financial performance targets 


 
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 


(as amended). NHS Clinical Commissioning Group performance against those duties was as 


follows: 


 
 2018-19 


Target 


2018-19 


Performance 


2017-18 


Target 


2017-18 


Performance 


Expenditure not to exceed income 240,740 240,729 225,408 231,433 


Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - - 


Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 239,865 239,854 224,027 230,052 


Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - - 


Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - - 


Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 3,831 3,520 3,831 3,238 


 
 
 


After receipt of £4m Commissioner Sustainability Fund in 2018-19, North Lincolnshire CCG has achieved its financial performance targets. 


 


18 Events after the end of the reporting period 


 
North Lincolnshire CCG has made no adjustments for events at the end of the reporting period. 


 
From 1 April 2019 the CCG has taken the delegated co-commissioning of Primary Care budgets with an annual value of £24,921k. 


 


 
19 Losses and Special 


Payments Losses 


The total number of NHS clinical commissioning group losses and special payments cases, and their total value, was as follows: 


 
 Total Number 


of Cases 


Total Value of 


Cases 


Total Number of 


Cases 


Total Value of 


Cases 


2018-19 


Number 


2018-19 


£'000 


2017-18 


Number 


2017-18 


£'000 


Administrative write-offs - - - - 


Fruitless payments - - 1 2 


Store losses - - - - 


Book Keeping Losses - - - - 


Constructive loss - - - - 


Cash losses - - - - 


Claims abandoned   1   7   -   - 


Total   1   7   1   2 


 
20 Continuing Healthcare Retrospective Claims: Accounting Treatment 


    


 
Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, NHS England is responsible for accounting for liabilities relating to NHS Continuing 


Healthcare claims relating to periods of care before establishment of the clinical commissioning group. However, the legal liability remains with the CCG. The 


total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare Claims accounted for by NHS England on behalf of this CCG is as follows: 


 


2018-19 2017-18 


£000's £000's 


Accrual 0 162 


Provision 0 0 


Contingent Liability 581 0 


  581  162 
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Independent auditor's report to the Governing Body of NHS North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group 


 
Opinion on the financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements of NHS North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group ('the CCG') 
for the year ended 31 March 2019, which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, 
the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity, the Statement of Cash 
Flows, and notes to the financial statements, including the summary of significant accounting policies. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as interpreted and adapted by the Government Financial Reporting 
Manual 2018/19 as contained in the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 
2018/19, and the Accounts Direction issued by the NHS Commissioning Board with the approval of the 
Secretary of State as relevant to Clinical Commissioning Groups in England ("the Accounts Direction"). 


 
In our opinion, the financial statements: 


• give a true and fair view of the state of the CCG's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its net 
operating expenditure for the year then ended; 


• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual 2018/19; and 


• have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Service Act 
2006 and the Accounts Direction issued thereunder. 


 
Opinion on regularity 


In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income reflected in the financial statements have 
been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities 
which govern them. 


 
Basis for opinion 


We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
responsibilities section of our report. We are independent of the CCG in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 


 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report 
to you where: 


• the Accountable Officer's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is not appropriate; or 


• the Accountable Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the CCG's ability to continue to adopt the going 
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue. 


 
Other information 


The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report 
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thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 


 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. 


 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 


 
Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer's Responsibilities the Accountable Officer is 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair 
view, and for such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Accountable 
Officer is also responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. 


 
The Accountable Officer is required to comply with the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless the CCG is informed 
of the intention for dissolution without transfer of services or function to another entity. The Accountable 
Officer is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for the CCG to prepare its accounts 
on the going concern basis and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. 


 


Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 


Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 


 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's 
report. 


 
We are also responsible for giving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the 
Code of Audit Practice prepared by the Comptroller and Auditor General as required by the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. 


 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Code of Audit Practice 


In our opinion: 


• pages 96 to 105 of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been properly 
prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction made under the National Health Service Act 2006; 
and 



http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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• the other information published together with the audited financial statements in the Annual Report 
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements. 


 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 


We are required to report to you if: 


• in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance issued by NHS 
England; or 


• we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
because we have reason to believe that the CCG, or an officer of the CCG, is about to make, or has 
made, a decision which involves or would involve the body incurring unlawful expenditure, or is 
about to take, or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be 
unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or 


• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24and schedule 7(1) of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014; or 


• we make a written recommendation to the CCG under section 24 and schedule 7(2) of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014. 


 
We have nothing to report in these respects. 


 


 
The CCG's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resources 


 
Matter on which we are required to report by exception 


We are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we are not satisfied that the CCG has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 
31 March 2019. 


 
We have nothing to report in this respect. 


 
Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer 
As explained in the Statement of Accountable Officer's responsibilities, the Accountable Officer is 
responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the 
use of the CCG's resources. 


 
Auditor's responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 
We are required under section 21(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the 
CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, 
and to report where we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that it has done so. We are not required to 
consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the CCG's arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 


 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance 
on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to whether the CCG 
had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned 
and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this 
criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether 
the CCG put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2019. 
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We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such 
work as we considered necessary. 


 
 


Use of the audit report 


This report is made solely to the members of the Governing Body of NHS North Lincolnshire CCG, as a body, in 
accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the members of the Governing Body of the CCG those matters we are required to state to them in an 
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 
to anyone other than the Governing Body of the CCG, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions 
we have formed. 


 


 
Certificate 


We certify that we have completed the audit of NHS North Lincolnshire CCG in accordance with the requirements of 


the Loca! Audit and ,1\ccountability ,a.ct 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 


 


Mark Kirkham 


For and on behalf of Mazars LLP Mazars LLP 


5th Floor 
3 Wellington Place Leeds 


LS1 4AP 


 
28 May 2019 
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Executive Summary (Question, Options, Recommendations): 


 
The Annual Audit Letter summarises the work undertaken by Mazars (External Audit) and their key 
findings for the year ended 31 March 2019. 
 
Members are asked to note the positive conclusion for all areas considered by the report, including the 
unqualified opinion on the financial statements, regularity and value for money. 
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Reports and letters prepared by the auditor and addressed to the CCG are prepared for the sole use of the CCG and we 


take no responsibility to any member or officer in their individual capacity or to any third party.
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Purpose of the Annual Audit Letter


Our Annual Audit Letter summarises the work we have undertaken as the auditor for North Lincolnshire CCG (the CCG) for the year 


ended 31 March 2019.  Although this letter is addressed to the CCG, it is designed to be read by a wider audience including members of 


the public and other external stakeholders.  


Our responsibilities are defined by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice issued by 


the National Audit Office (the NAO).  The detailed sections of this letter provide details on those responsibilities, the work we have done 


to discharge them, and the key findings arising from our work.  These are summarised below.


1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
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Area of responsibility Summary


Audit of the financial statements


Our auditor’s report issued on 28 May 2019 included our opinion that: 


• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the CCG’s financial position as 


at 31 March 2019 and of its financial performance for the year then ended; and


• income and expenditure has, in all material respects, been applied for the purposes 


intended by Parliament. 


Value for money conclusion
Our auditor’s report stated that we had no matters to report in respect of the CCG’s 


arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 


Reporting to the group auditor


In line with group audit instructions issued by the NAO, on 28 May 2019 we reported 


that the CCG’s consolidation schedules were consistent with the audited financial 


statements. 







The scope of our audit and the results of our work


The purpose of our audit is to provide reasonable assurance to users that the financial statements are free from material error. We do 


this by expressing an opinion on whether the statements are prepared, in all material respects, in line with the financial reporting 


framework applicable to the CCG and whether they give a true and fair view of the CCG’s financial position as at 31 March 2019 and of 


its financial performance for the year then ended. 


Our audit was conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice issued by the NAO, and International 


Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  These require us to consider whether:


 the accounting policies are appropriate to the CCG’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 


disclosed;


 the significant accounting estimates made by management in the preparation of the financial statements are reasonable; and


 the overall presentation of the financial statements provides a true and fair view.


Our auditor’s report, issued to the CCG on 28 May 2019,  stated that, in our view, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the 


CCG’s financial position as at 31 March 2019 and of its financial performance for the year then ended. 


The Code of Audit Practice also requires us to form and express an opinion on whether the CCG’s expenditure has been, in all material 


respects, applied for the purposes intended by Parliament (our regularity opinion). Our auditor’s report also confirmed that, in our view, 


income and expenditure has, in all material respects, been applied for the purposes intended by Parliament. 


2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Opinion on the financial statements Unqualified


Opinion on regularity Unqualified
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Our approach to materiality


We apply the concept of materiality when planning and performing our audit, and when evaluating the effect of misstatements identified 


as part of our work.   We consider the concept of materiality at numerous stages throughout the audit process, in particular when 


determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures, and when evaluating the effect of uncorrected misstatements. An 


item is considered material if its misstatement or omission could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users of 


the financial statements. 


Judgements about materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by both qualitative and quantitative 


factors.  As a result we have set materiality for the financial statements as a whole (financial statement materiality) and a lower level of 


materiality for specific items of account (specific materiality) if there are items of account that require a lower materiality level.  We also 


set a threshold for reporting identified misstatements to the Integrated Audit and Governance Committee.  We call this our trivial 


threshold.


The table below provides details of the materiality levels applied in the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 


2019:


2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial statement materiality 
Our financial statement materiality is based on 2% 


of Gross Operating Expenditure


.


£4.8m


Trivial threshold
Our trivial threshold is based on 1% of financial


statement materiality.
£48,000
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2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Our response to significant risks
As part of our continuous planning procedures we considered whether there were risks of material misstatement in the CCG’s financial 


statements that required special audit consideration. We reported significant risks identified at the planning stage to the Integrated Audit 


and Governance Committee within our Audit Strategy Memorandum and provided details of how we responded to those risks in our 


Audit Completion Report.  The table below outlines the identified significant risks, the work we carried out on those risks and our 


conclusions.
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Identified significant risk Our response
Our findings and 


conclusions


Management override of controls


In all entities, management at various levels 


within an organisation are in a unique 


position to perpetrate fraud because of their 


ability to manipulate accounting records and 


prepare fraudulent financial statements by 


overriding controls that otherwise appear to 


be operating effectively. Because of the 


unpredictable way in which such override 


could occur, we consider there to be a risk 


of material misstatement due to fraud and 


thus a significant risk on all audits


We addressed this risk by performing audit work in 


the following areas:


• accounting estimates impacting on amounts 


included in the financial statements;


• consideration of identified significant 


transactions outside the normal course of 


business; and


• journals recorded in the general ledger and 


other adjustments made in preparation of the 


financial statements.


Our work has provided us 


with the assurance we 


sought.


Revenue Recognition 


In all entities, there is a risk of fraud in 


financial reporting relating to revenue 


recognition due to the potential to 


inappropriately record income in the wrong 


period. This is not to imply we suspect 


actual fraud, but that we approach our audit 


maintaining due professional scepticism.


We addressed this risk by: 


• undertaking cut-off testing of receipts around 


the year-end; and


• reviewing inter-NHS reconciliations and data 


matches provided by the NHSE (income and 


receivables).


Our work has provided us 


with the assurance we 


sought.


Related Parties 


GPs are members of the Governing Body 


and also potential service providers.


We addressed this risk by:


• reviewing the CCG’s arrangements for 


identifying and recording potential related party 


transactions;


• reviewing a range of documents including 


minutes of meetings and declarations of 


interest for evidence of potential related party 


transactions; and 


• testing disclosures in the financial statements.


Our work has provided us 


with the assurance we 


sought.
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Our audit approach
We are required to consider whether the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 


use of resources.  The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out in order to form our


conclusion, and sets out the criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. We are only required to report if we conclude that 


the CCG has not made proper arrangements..  


The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the CCG had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 


and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’  To assist auditors in reaching a 


conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:


 informed decision making;


 sustainable resource deployment; and


 working with partners and other third parties.


Our auditor’s report, issued to the CCG on 28 May 2019 confirmed that we had no matters to report in respect of the CCG’s 


arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.


7


3. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION


Sub-criteria Commentary Matters 


to 


report


Informed 


decision 


making


Our audit work has confirmed there is evidence that the CCG acts in the public interest, 


demonstrating and applying the principles and values of sound governance. The CCG has 


responded well to a critical governance review completed in November 2017 the expected 


arrangements were in place for the full financial year. 


In August 2018 the CCG exited Legal Directions which had been put in place to support 


the CCG  during its transformation process. A detailed Improvement Plan was accepted by 


NHS England. We have seen evidence through these developments that the CCG better 


understands and uses appropriate and reliable financial and performance information to 


support informed decision making and performance management.  


None


Sustainable 


resource 


deployment


There is evidence that the CCG has planned finances effectively to support the 


sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory functions. For 2018/19, 


the CCG achieved a break-even position with £4m of additional funding from the 


Commissioner Sustainability Fund. The financial positon is reported to the Governing Body 


and IAGC during the year and these reports accurately predicted the closing financial 


position for 2018/19.


None 


Working with 


partners and 


other third 


parties


Audit work has confirmed there is evidence the CCG works with third parties to deliver 


strategic priorities. The Improvement Plan highlights the CCG’s intention to work more 


closely with its partners and we have already seen evidence of this which includes: 


• the CCG is now commissioning services from North Lincolnshire and Goole Hospitals 


NHS Foundation Trust (NLAG) jointly with North East Lincolnshire CCG; 


• the CCG has planned agreed contract values in place for its of main contracts in 


2019/20; and


• continuing weekly senior manager meetings with key stakeholders including North 


Lincolnshire Council and NLAG. 


None 


Value for Money conclusion Unqualified
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Significant audit risks
The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work to identify whether or not a risk to our value for money conclusion exists.  Risk, in the 


context of our work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place at the CCG 


being inadequate.  In our Audit Strategy Memorandum, we reported that we had identified one significant audit risk.  The work we carried 


out in relation to significant risks is outlined below.
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3. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION


Risk Work undertaken Conclusion


Risk heading


In 2018/19 the CCG had plans in 


place to deliver a reduced deficit. 


The medium term financial plan 


indicates that for 2018/19 the CCG  


forecast  a deficit of £4m, but 


could break-even with additional 


funding of £4m from the 


Commissioner Sustainability Fund. 


Remaining risks to the delivery of 


the plan included: 


• an overspend of £1.3m which 


is in accordance with the plan; 


and


• slippage on QIPP schemes 


with year to date achievement 


of £2.2m against planned 


savings of £2.5m. The CCG 


reported that it would  deliver 


the full savings plan by the end 


of the financial year.


We addressed this risk by undertaking the


following work:


• identifying and reviewing arrangements


for managing the contract; and


• monitoring the progress the CCG makes


in meeting contractual obligations during


the year to consider whether there is


evidence of any weakness in


arrangements.


The CCG: 


• achieved a break-even


positon in 2018/19 with £4m 


assistance from the CSF and 


has the expected 


arrangements to monitor 


financial performance; and


• is planning to meet financial 


targets in 2019/20.


Our work has provided us with 


the assurance we sought and 


has not highlighted any issues to 


bring to your attention. 
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The NAO’s Code of Audit Practice and the 2014 Act place wider reporting responsibilities on us, as the CCG’s external auditor.  We set 


out below, the context of these reporting responsibilities and our findings for each.


Matters which we report by exception


The 2014 Act provides us with specific powers where matters come to our attention that, in our judgement, require reporting action to be 


taken.  We have the power to:


 issue a report in the public interest;


 make a referral to the Secretary of State where we believe that a decision has led to, or would lead to, unlawful expenditure, or 


an action has been, or would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; and


 make written recommendations to the CCG which must be responded to publically. 


We have not exercised any of these statutory reporting powers.


We are also required to report if, in our opinion, the governance statement does not comply with the guidance issued by NHS England or 


is inconsistent with our knowledge and understanding of the CCG. We did not identify any matters to report in this regard. 


Reporting to the NAO in respect of consolidation data


The NAO, as group auditor, requires us to report to them whether consolidation data that the CCG has submitted is consistent with the 


audited financial statements.  We have concluded and reported that the consolidation data is consistent with the audited financial 


statements.


Other information published alongside the financial statements 


The Code of Audit Practice requires us to consider whether information published alongside the financial statements is consistent with 


those statements and our knowledge and understanding of the CCG.  In our opinion, the information in the Annual Report is consistent 


with the audited financial statements.
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4. OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES


Exercise of statutory reporting powers No matters to report


Governance Statement No matters to report


Consistency of consolidation data with the audited financial 


statements
Consistent


Other information published alongside the audited financial 


statements
Consistent
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Fees for work as the CCG’s auditor


We reported our proposed fees for the delivery of our work in the Audit Strategy Memorandum, presented to the Integrated audit and 


governance committee in November 2018. 


Having completed our work for the 2018/19 financial year, we can confirm that our final fees are as follows:


Fees for other work


We confirm that we have not undertaken any non-audit services for the CCG in the year.


We anticipate being engaged by the CCG to carry out work mandated by NHSE in respect of the Mental Health Investment Standard for


2018/19. The review will be conducted according to a standard scope agreed by NHSE. While the engagement has not yet been


formally agreed, the fee is expected to be £7,500 (excluding VAT). The final fee will be dependent on any potential changes to the scope


of the work following national consideration of the outcomes from pilot sites.
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5. OUR FEES


Area of work 2018/19 proposed fee 2018/19 final fee


Delivery of audit work under the NAO Code of Audit Practice £35,725 + vat £35,725 + vat
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Financial outlook
The medium term financial plan indicates that for 2019/20 the CCG is forecast to make a deficit of £1m, but should break-


even with additional funding of £1m from the Commissioner Sustainability Fund. The CCG has also finalised its budget for


2019/20 which includes risks including the contract with the main hospital services provider (NLAG) if activity continued to


rise. Contracts have been agreed with main providers and the CCG has set a challenging efficiency target of £8.2m. The


CCG has plans in place to deliver the efficiency targets although £3.2m has yet to be fully developed. The CCG has


arrangements in place to identify savings and monitor progress as it demonstrated in 2018/19 and a budget contingency of


£1.4m.


Future actions
The CCG continues to face financial pressures and is well aware of the challenges and risks involved in delivering its future


plans. It is continuing to work more closely with the local authority across all areas of work but significant difficulties remain


around finance and operational performance at NLAG - the main provider of acute hospital services.


How we will work with the CCG
We continue to be grateful to the CCG and its officers for the cooperation and open dialogue during the year and look


forward to continuing to work closely with the CCG in delivering our Code of Audit Practice responsibilities.
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Date: 13th June 2019  Report Title 


Meeting: Governing Body   Integrated Quality, Performance and Finance 
Report. 


Item Number: Item 8.1   


Public/Private: Public ☒     Private☐   


   Decisions to be made  


Author: 


(Name, Title) 


Chloe Nicholson, Head of 
Quality. 


 


Louise Tilley, Senior 
Finance Manager. 


 


Emma Mundey, 
Performance & Information 
Manager. 


 Members are asked to:  


 note and be assured by the content of this 
report.  


GB Lead: 


(Name, Title) 


Clare E. Linley, Director of 
Nursing and Quality. 


 


Emma Sayner 


Chief Finance Officer. 


 


Director 
approval  


(Name) 


Clare E. Linley, Director of 
Nursing & Quality. 


 


Director 
Signature 


 
 


 


 


Link to a Strategic 
Objective? 


☒ 
This report supports the CCG in delivering its statutory duties, as 
defined by the NHS Constitution.  


Link to a Strategic Risk ☒ Delivery of statutory functions.  


 


Continue to improve the quality of 
services 


☒ Improve patient experience ☒ 


Reduced unwarranted variations in 
services 


☒ 
Reduce the inequalities gap in North 
Lincolnshire 


☒ 


Deliver the best outcomes for every 
patient 


☒ Statutory/Regulatory ☒ 


Purpose  
Approval


  ☐ 


Information 


 ☐ 


To 


note   ☒ 


Decision 


  ☐ 


Assurance 


☒ 


 


 


Executive Summary (Question, Options, Recommendations): 


The integrated Quality Performance & Finance (QP&F) report provides an overview of the key points 
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to note in relation to finance, performance and quality within the CCG and across the CCG’s main 


providers. The information contained within this report reflects the latest published data available to 


the CCG at the time of writing.  


 


1. Finance (as at 31st March 2019) 


The 2018/19 Annual Accounts and Annual Report have been completed and successfully submitted to 


NHS England. The audit of the financial statements concluded that they give a true and fair view of the 


CCG’s financial position as at 31 March 2019 and provided a positive opinion on regularity and value 


for money. 


 


The CCG achieved all of its financial performance targets for 2018/19, as set out in the table below: 


 
Reporting for the 2019/20 financial position will begin in Month 2. 


 


2. Performance and Quality  
 
2.1 Improvements to the integrated QP&F report  


 
Since the previous report was submitted to the Governing Body on 11th April 2019 a new CCG 
Performance Dashboard has been added to Section 3 of the report.  
 
The dashboard provides a rolling 12 month overview of CCG performance against 31 constitutional 
and operational indicators enabling members to see a longer term view of performance. Exception 
reports are provided where the required standard has not been achieved and/or where performance 
has deteriorated since the previous report. .  
 
2.2 Performance against constitutional standards  


 


At 31st March 2019 the CCG is meeting 14 of the 31 constitutional standards and operational 


indicators. Since the previous report was submitted to the Governing Body on 11th April 2019 the CCG 


is meeting one more standard, this is the 12 Hour Trolley Wait Standard.  


 


Tables 1 and 2 below provide an overview of CCG performance against constitutional standards and 


operational indicators (using latest data available).   


Table 1 


Table 1: Performance has been maintained and the required standard has been achieved in 







Page 3 of 5 
 


the following standards: 


 All Cancer 2 Week Waits  
 Cancer 31 Day Subsequent Waits – Surgery  
 Cancer 31 Day Subsequent Waits – Anti Drug Regimens  
 Cancer 31 Day Subsequent Waits – Radiotherapy 
 No urgent operations cancelled for 2nd time  
 % of people who have depression and receive psychological therapies  
 % patients on Care Programme Approach and receive follow-up in 7 


days  
 Early Intervention in psychosis  
 IAPT 18 Week Waits  
 MRSA 
 Clostridium Difficile  


 


 


Table 2  


 
Standards have not been achieved and performance challenges remain in the following: 
 


 18 Week Referral to Treatment Times 


 52 Week Waiting Times  


 4 Hour A&E Waiting Times 


 Ambulance Category 1 Mean Waiting Times 


 Ambulance Category 2 Mean Waiting Times 


 Ambulance Category 1 90th Centile 


 Ambulance Category 2 90th Centile 


 Ambulance Category 3 90th Centile  


 Ambulance Category 4 90th Centile 


 IAPT % of patients moving to recovery  


 Mixed Sex Accommodation 


 Diagnostic 6 week waiting time  


 Breast Cancer 2 Week Wait 


 Cancer 31 Day Wait - first definitive treatment 


 Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment Times – first definitive treatment from GP referral   


 Cancelled operations not offered another date within 28 days  


 %  patients who wait 6 weeks or less from referral to accessing IAPT services 


The CCG closely monitors the impact on safety, experience and effectiveness in those areas where 
performance has fallen below required standards.  
 
 
2.3 Quality  
 
2.3.1 Quality impact of performance   


The main quality concerns currently affecting North Lincolnshire relate to Northern Lincolnshire and 
Goole NHS Foundation Trust (NLaG), East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS) and Rotherham 
Doncaster and South Humber NHS Trust (RDaSH).  


Table 2:  Performance has improved and the required standard has been achieved in the 


following indicators: 


 12 Hour Trolley Waits 
 Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment Times – Screening Service 
 Cancer 62 day waiting time – Consultant decision to upgrade status   


 







Page 4 of 5 
 


 
A summary of these concerns and other areas of exception are provided below with further details 
provided in Section 3 and Section 4 of this report. 
 


a. Quality impact of waiting times in Ophthalmology Services at NLaG.  


 


The CCG remains concerned with the quality impact of performance of local Ophthalmology Services 


provided by NLaG; these concerns include the following:   


 continuation in the number of serious incidents and incidents affecting North Lincolnshire 


patients during quarters 3 and 4 2018/19 and to date in 2019/20;  


 long waiting times to access treatment;  


 capacity issues in the service; 


 negative feedback on Ophthalmology services provided to the Trust by patients. 


 


In response to these challenges the Trust is undertaking several improvement actions including  


• development of an action plan to oversee improvements across the service; 


• reviewing opportunities to secure further capacity within community based services; 


• undertaking interviews for two Consultant posts in June 2019; 


• implementing a risk stratification process for patients on the waiting list; 


• successfully appointed a Failsafe Officer to track patients who are considered to be a high risk.  


 


b. Serious Incidents (SIs) at NLaG   


Since the previous report to the Governing Body on 11th April 2019, the Trust reported the following 
serious incidents (SIs) relating to North Lincolnshire patients:  


 one serious incident (SI) relating to delayed treatment of a North Lincolnshire patient in 
Endoscopy services; 


 one SI reported relating to delay in receiving treatment causing deterioration of sight in 
Ophthalmology services; 


 one SI relating to a hospital acquired pressure ulcer; 


 one SI relating to a postpartum haemorrhage following a caesarean section;  


 four community acquired pressure ulcers for North Lincolnshire patients that met the criteria for 
a serious incident (SIs). Please note, two of these SIs were identified by the Trust in November 
2018 and two were identified in December 2018. 


These SIs are being investigated via the SI process. There have been no SIs reported by other 


providers in relation to North Lincolnshire patients since the previous report to the Governing Body.  


 


c. Quality impact of delayed ambulance response at EMAS.  


 


The CCG remains challenged in determining the quality impact of EMAS performance in North 


Lincolnshire due to limited quality data provided by the Trust. The Trust is currently reviewing its data 


processes to identify where improvements can be made to provide more meaningful quality 


information to commissioners.  


 


The CCG continues to work closely with EMAS and NELCCG to implement the joint EMAS 


Improvement Plan. The Plan incorporates quality and performance improvement actions to be 


delivered across the Northern Lincolnshire area by EMAS, North Lincolnshire CCG and North East 


Lincolnshire CCG.  


 


The CCG has arranged a meeting with North East Lincolnshire CCG and EMAS on 14th June 2019 to 


review progress made with the joint EMAS Improvement Plan and to identify any additional actions 


that need to be included in the Plan.   







Page 5 of 5 
 


 


d. Access to Adult Mental Health Crisis Services provided by RDaSH.  


 


Access to the local Adult Crisis Service is reported as an exception due to concerns raised by GP 


members of the CCG in regards to prompt and timely access to the local adult Crisis Service for 


patients experiencing an acute mental health crisis. These concerns are being addressed via the 


CCGs Crisis Service Improvement Plan.  


 


The CCG remains concerned in regards to capacity within the Crisis service to meet current and 


future demand; the CCG is working with the Trust to review the needs of this service and to identify 


where further capacity is required.   


Recommendations 


Members are asked to:  


 note the content of this report; 


 be assured of the approach taken by the CCG.   


Report history This report has not been received by any other CCG Committee.  


Equality Impact Yes ☐     No ☒  


Sustainability Yes ☒     No ☐ 
The report highlights areas of concern and pressure in 
relation to sustainability of services and the CCG. 


Risk Yes ☒     No ☐ 


The report supports the Quality/Performance section of the 
CCG Assurance Map, in particular Performance reporting – 
Financial and Quality.  
 
It provides management level assurance to the CCG to 
enable them to provide second line assurance to the 
Members. 
 
The content of the report also provides assurance in 
support of the NHS England Assurance Framework. 
In addition the report provides assurance against the CCG 
Board Assurance Framework (BAF) Risk FP1. Position 
monitored by CCG Executive Meeting and Governing Body. 


Legal Yes ☒     No ☐ 
This report covers the NHS Constitution and NHS Standard 
Contract with providers. 


Finance Yes ☒     No ☐ Ongoing Financial sustainability impacted. 


 


Patient, Public, Clinical and Stakeholder Engagement to date 


 N/A Y N Date  N/A Y N Date 


Patient: ☐ ☐ ☒  Clinical: ☐ ☐ ☒  


Public: ☐ ☐ ☒  Other:  ☐ ☐ ☒  
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Introduction   
                                  
This is the integrated report for the Governing Body on 13th June 2019. This report contains an update 


on the latest position in relation to quality, performance and finance using the most recent data 


available at the time of writing.   
 


Financial Position  


 


The 2018/19 Annual Accounts and Annual Report have been completed and successfully submitted 


to NHS England. The audit of the financial statements concluded that they give a true and fair view of 


the CCG’s financial position as at 31 March 2019 and provided a positive opinion on regularity and 


value for money. Reporting for the 2019/20 financial position will begin in Month 2. 


 


The CCG achieved all of its financial performance targets for 2018/19, as set out in the table below: 


 
3. CCG Quality and Performance Summary  


This section provides an overview of CCG performance against the following by exception:  


 constitutional standards; 


 operational performance indicators including quality impact and risk relating to safety, experience 


and effectiveness across our main providers.  


Section 4 of this report includes a summary of concerns identified in our main providers by exception.  


The information provided in this section reflects the latest published data available at the time of 


writing.  


Gaps in reporting  


The following information is not included in this report:  


Updated information from Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust (NLaG) in relation 


to 
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- serious incidents (Latest data February 19); 


- incidents (Latest data February 19); 


- complaints (Latest data quarter 3 2018/19); 


- PALS contacts (Latest data quarter 3 2018/19) 


The above data is not available as it is currently being reviewed via the Trust’s internal governance 


processes and is not yet available to the CCG. The CCG has submitted a formal request to the Trust 


to ensure more timely submission of this data. The work plan for the NLaG Quality Review Meeting is 


being refreshed to ensure that this data is provided more frequently.  


As a result of the delay in receiving this data the CCG is currently unable to make a full assessment of 


performance or the quality impact of performance against some of the constitutional and operational 


standards contained in section 3 of this report. The CCG has utilised all information available at the 


time of writing to provide an overview of the quality impact of performance where possible.  


CCG performance against constitutional standard and operational indicators  


The CCG performance dashboard below is new to this report. The dashboard provides an overview of 


performance against constitutional and operational standards at CCG level by month and the rolling 


year position.  


 


 


Actual 72.26% 73.68% 74.19% 74.21% 72.51% 72.43% 74.95% 76.14% 75.49% 76.35% 76.67% 77.44%


Target 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92%


Imp 


Traj.
80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%


Num. 11,120 11,654 11,980 11,880 11,327 11,156 11,642 11,689 11,353 11,078 11,158 11,285


Den. 15,389 15,816 16,147 16,009 15,622 15,403 15,533 15,351 15,039 14,510 14,554 14,572


Actual 183 171 171 155 165 165 116 68 68 36 39 18


Target 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Actual 14.95% 19.64% 13.22% 10.62% 13.06% 11.07% 7.16% 4.87% 11.71% 12.23% 7.31% 11.84%


Target 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%


Num. 896 1161 755 579 673 611 424 294 670 745 444 792


Den. 5994 5911 5712 5451 5154 5521 5920 6033 5724 6092 6070 6687


Actual 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0


Target 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Actual 85.3% 88.3% 88.1% 84.0% 87.0% 89.2% 86.4% 86.8% 85.1% 80.5% 77.6% 82.1%


Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%


Actual 95.5% 95.1% 93.6% 95.8% 96.7% 99.2% 97.9% 97.9% 98.4% 97.2% 96.5% 94.0%


Target 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93%


Num. 551 540 615 544 585 514 596 502 549 549 435 513


Den. 577 568 657 568 605 518 609 513 558 565 451 546


Actual 89.2% 86.2% 72.2% 81.8% 84.0% 88.5% 97.1% 88.9% 87.8% 97.8% 88.0% 85.7%


Target 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93%


Num. 33 25 26 36 21 23 34 32 43 45 44 48


Den. 37 29 36 44 25 26 35 36 49 46 50 56


Actual 97.8% 96.8% 97.1% 97.2% 98.9% 94.6% 97.0% 94.6% 98.8% 95.1% 96.3% 94.8%


Target 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96%


Num. 87 92 102 104 91 88 97 88 82 116 77 91


Den. 89 95 105 107 92 93 100 93 83 122 80 96


Actual 95.2% 100.0% 92.9% 91.7% 95.8% 87.0% 92.0% 90.5% 78.9% 95.5% 100.0% 100.0%


Target 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94%


Num. 20 11 13 22 23 20 23 19 15 21 17 18


Den. 21 11 14 24 24 23 25 21 19 22 17 18


Actual 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 96.9% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%


Target 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98%


Num. 21 24 17 27 27 26 26 32 31 28 34 34


Den. 21 24 17 27 27 26 26 32 32 28 34 34


Actual 93.1% 100.0% 94.7% 100.0% 100.0% 94.3% 97.0% 100% 93.8% 93.9% 100.0% 100.0%


Target 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 94%


Num. 27 24 18 13 32 33 32 32 15 31 33 38


Den. 29 24 19 13 32 35 33 32 16 33 33 38


Sep-18Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18


Referral to Treatment pathways: 


incomplete


Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19Nov-18Oct-18Indicator Jul-18 Aug-18


Number of >52 week Referral to 


Treatment in Incomplete Pathways


Diagnostic test waiting times


12 hour trolley waits in A&E - NL CCG


A&E performance - NLAG Trustwide 


Position


All Cancer 2 week waits


Breast Cancer 2 week waits


Cancer 31 day waits: subsequent 


cancer treatments-surgery


Cancer 31 day waits: subsequent 


cancer treatments-anti cancer drug 


regimens


Cancer 31 day waits: first definitive 


treatment


Cancer 31 day waits: subsequent 


cancer treatments-radiotherapy
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Indicator Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19


Actual 70.7% 67.8% 73.2% 61.8% 72.3% 68.3% 70.8% 67.5% 83.3% 72.9% 71.4% 63.4%


Target 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85%


Num. 29 40 41 34 34 28 34 27 30 43 25 26


Den. 41 59 56 55 47 41 48 40 36 59 35 41


Actual 100.0% 50.0% 100.0% 50.0% 75.0% 100.0% 85.7% 90.0% 84.6% 81.8% 85.7% 100.0%


Target 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90%


Num. 1 1 6 3 9 8 6 9 11 9 6 7


Den. 1 2 6 6 12 8 7 10 13 11 7 7


Actual 66.7% Nil Return 100.0% Nil Return 66.7% 50.0% 40.0% 100.0% 66.7% Nil Return Nil Return 100.0%


Target 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90%


Num. 2 0 2 0 2 1 2 2 2 0 0 3


Den. 3 0 2 0 3 2 5 2 3 0 0 3


Actual 00:08:28 00:08:39 00:06:59 00:07:49 00:07:56 00:07:37 00:08:05 00:08:29 00:07:37 00:07:48 00:08:20 00:08:25


Target 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00


Actual 00:16:56 00:16:39 00:13:07 00:14:46 00:14:40 00:13:56 00:14:37 00:16:40 00:15:12 00:14:18 00:15:37 00:14:37


Target 00:15:00 00:15:00 00:15:00 00:15:00 00:15:00 00:15:00 00:15:00 00:15:00 00:15:00 00:15:00 00:15:00 00:15:00


Actual 00:29:47 00:28:16 00:32:14 00:32:04 00:32:34 00:34:39 00:32:30 00:29:45 00:31:47 00:33:35 00:39:00 00:30:05


Target 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00


Actual 01:03:23 00:59:59 01:07:34 01:06:06 01:09:52 01:13:01 01:09:39 01:05:11 01:09:02 01:12:11 01:26:01 01:05:12


Target 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00


Actual 02:16:29 02:20:09 02:55:00 03:34:52 02:34:20 03:51:46 03:10:46 03:13:49 02:27:55 03:29:07 03:58:01 03:24:25


Target 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00


Actual 01:15:03 02:50:33 01:16:07 01:39:00 04:23:09 02:18:26 03:54:37 02:40:30 01:11:08 00:28:58 02:12:54 03:14:19


Target 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00


Actual 16 6 6 5 12 0 0 0 0 2 3 1


Target 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Actual 26.4% 5.2% 1.9% 7.0%


Target 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8%


Num. 28 6 2 7


Den. 106 115 106 100


Actual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Target 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Actual 1.4% 1.7% 2.0% 1.8% 1.3% 1.4% 1.1% 1.0% 1.0% 1.4% 2.0% 2.6%


Target 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.5% 1.5%


Num. 195 235 270 248 180 193 149 140 139 191 274 345


Den. 13460 13460 13460 13460 13460 13460 13460 13460 13460 13460 13460 13460


Actual 60.0% 64.3% 50.0% 50.0% 51.6% 44.6% 48.0% 51.8% 52.3% 49.1% 46.4% 46.4%


Target 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%


Num. 81 101 60 87 80 75 85 58 46 56 51 51


Den. 135 157 120 174 155 168 177 112 88 114 110 110


Actual 100.00% 90.91% 100.00% 100.00%


Target 95% 95% 95% 95%


Num. 43 10 15 20


Den. 43 11 15 20


Actual
NIL 


Return
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 85.71% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 66.67% 100.00% 100.00%


Target 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%


Num. 0 2 4 1 2 6 7 4 4 4 2 6


Den. 0 2 4 1 2 7 7 4 4 6 2 6


Actual 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 99.14% 100.00% 99.11%


Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%


Num. 135 160 122 176 156 168 179 114 88 115 110 111


Den. 135 160 122 176 156 168 179 114 88 116 110 112


Actual 94.07% 96.25% 96.72% 94.89% 96.15% 97.62% 95.53% 98.25% 96.59% 90.52% 77.27% 65.18%


Target 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75%


Num. 127 154 118 167 150 164 171 112 85 105 85 73


Den. 135 160 122 176 156 168 179 114 88 116 110 112


Actual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0


Target 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Actual 7 3 1 3 1 2 3 1 1 2 2 2


Target 3 2 3 3 2 3 2 3 3 1 3 2


Percentage of patients receiving first 


definitive treatment for cancer within 62-


days of a consultant decision to upgrade 


their priority status.


% patients receiving first definitive 


treatment for cancer within two months 


(62 days) of an urgent GP referral for 


suspected cancer (inc 31 day Rare 


cancers)


Percentage of patients receiving first 


definitive treatment for cancer within 62-


days of referral from an NHS Cancer 


Screening Service.


Ambulance clinical quality: Category 1 - 


7 Minute Mean; 15 minute 90th centile 


response time (NL CCG) - 


Ambulance clinical quality: Category 3 - 


120 minute response time (NL CCG)


Ambulance clinical quality: Category 2 - 


18 Minute Mean; 40 minute 90th 


centile response time (NL CCG) - 


Ambulance clinical quality: Category 4 - 


180 minute response time (NL CCG)


No urgent operations cancelled for a 2nd 


time (NLAG Trust Position)


Cancelled Operations not offered 


another date within 28 days. (NLAG 


Trust position)


% of people who have depression and/or 


anxiety disorders who receive 


psychological therapies


Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP First 


Episode Pyschosis)


The proportion of people that wait 18 


weeks or less from referral to entering a 


course of IAPT treatment against the 


number of people who finish a course of 


treatment in the reporting period.


% of people who are moving to recovery


% of those patients on Care Programme 


Approach (CPA) discharged from 


inpatient care who are followed up 


within 7 days


The proportion of people that wait 6 


weeks or less from referral to entering a 


course of IAPT treatment against the 


number of people who finish a course of 


treatment in the reporting period.


Incidence of healthcare associated 


infection (HCAI): Clostridium difficile 


(C.difficile).


Number of MSA breaches for the 


reporting month in question


Incidence of healthcare associated 


infection (HCAI): MRSA
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With regards to performance the CCG is currently meeting 14 of the 31 constitutional standards and 


operational requirements; these areas are identified as green in the performance dashboard above 


and are provided in Table 1 and Table 2 below.  


Table 1  


Table 1: Performance has been maintained and the required standard has been achieved in 


the following standards: 


 All Cancer 2 Week Waits  
 Cancer 31 Day Subsequent Waits – Surgery  
 Cancer 31 Day Subsequent Waits – Anti Drug Regimens  
 Cancer 31 Day Subsequent Waits – Radiotherapy 
 No urgent operations cancelled for 2nd time  
 % of people who have depression and receive psychological therapies  


 % patients on Care Programme Approach and receive follow-up in 7 
days  


 Early Intervention in psychosis  
 IAPT 18 Week Waits  
 MRSA 
 Clostridium Difficile  


 


 


Table 2  


 
 
Table 3  


 


 


 


 


Table 2:  Performance has improved and the required standard has been achieved in the 


following indicators: 


 12 Hour Trolley Waits 
 Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment Times – Screening Service 
 Cancer 62 day waiting time – Consultant decision to upgrade status   


 


Table 3: Performance has been maintained but the standard has not been achieved in the 
following indicators: 


 18 Week Referral to Treatment Times 
 52 Week Waiting Times  
 4 Hour A&E Waiting Times 


 Ambulance Category 1 Mean Waiting Times 
 Ambulance Category 2 Mean Waiting Times 
 Ambulance Category 1 90th Centile 
 Ambulance Category 2 90th Centile 
 Ambulance Category 3 90th Centile  


 Ambulance Category 4 90th Centile 
 IAPT % of patients moving to recovery  
 Mixed Sex Accommodation 
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Table 4  


 


Exception reports 


Exception reports are provided where the required standard has not been achieved and/or where 


performance has deteriorated since the previous report. Exceptions are included in the following 


areas (the following are linked to the CCG performance dashboard provided at page 3 and 4 of this 


report):  


- Referral To Treatment (RTT) (3.1)  


- 52 week waiting time standard (3.2)  


- Diagnostic 6 Week Waiting Time Standard (3.3)  


- A&E / Urgent care (3.4)  


- Cancer 2 Week Waits: Breast Symptom (3.5.1)  


- Cancer 31 Day Wait: First Definitive Treatment (3.5.2)  


- Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment Times – first definitive treatment from GP referral (3.5.3)  


- Ambulance Response Times (3.6)  


- Mixed Sex Accommodation (3.7)  


- IAPT Recovery Rate (3.8)  


- IAPT 6 Week Waits (3.8)  


- Cancelled Operations (3.9) 


In addition to the above, an exception report is also provided for the following indicator from the CCG 


Improvement and Assessment Framework (IAF): 


- Dementia Diagnosis Rates in primary Care (aged 65 years and over) (3.10) 


 


3.1 Referral to Treatment Times (RTT) 


 


3.1.1 The table below reflects CCG performance against the national RTT standard and 


performance against the local RTT improvement trajectory to date in 2018/19 (as at 31st March 


19). 


 


 


Actual 72.26% 73.68% 74.19% 74.21% 72.51% 72.43% 74.95% 76.14% 75.49% 76.35% 76.67% 77.44%


Target 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92% 92%


Imp 


Traj.
80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%


Num. 11,120 11,654 11,980 11,880 11,327 11,156 11,642 11,689 11,353 11,078 11,158 11,285


Den. 15,389 15,816 16,147 16,009 15,622 15,403 15,533 15,351 15,039 14,510 14,554 14,572


Actual 183 171 171 155 165 165 116 68 68 36 39 18


Target 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Number of >52 week Referral to 


Treatment in Incomplete Pathways


Referral to Treatment pathways: 


incomplete


Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19Nov-18Oct-18Indicator Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18


Table 4:  Performance has deteriorated and is not being achieved in the following standards 


 Diagnostic 6 week waiting time  
 Breast Cancer 2 Week Wait 
 Cancer 31 Day Wait - first definitive treatment 
 Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment Times – first definitive treatment 


from GP referral   
 Cancelled operations not offered another date within 28 days  
 %  patients who wait 6 weeks or less from referral to accessing IAPT 


services  
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3.1.2 Performance against the CCG level RTT waiting time standard improved to 77.44% in March 


19 (76.67% in February 19). This fell below the national target of 92%. Deterioration in the 


CCG position is largely due to challenges in RTT performance at NLaG. 


3.1.3 Since the previous report the Trust has reported further pressures in Ophthalmology services 


and Ear Nose and Throat services due to significant capacity constraints, resulting in 


increasing delays in accessing these services.  


 


Pressures in the RTT incomplete pathway largely relate to reduced MRI capacity in diagnostic 


pathways which has had a negative impact on waiting times in some pathways. The Trust 


continues to review options to improve this position through external outsourcing and internal 


provision in order to reduce waiting times.    


 


3.1.4 Whilst RTT performance remains an area of challenge, the Trust did achieve the local 


improvement trajectory at the end of 2018/19 (as at 31st March 2019). Table 1 provides an 


overview of the Trust’s RTT performance against the local RTT improvement trajectory in 


2018/19.  


 


 Table 1: NLaG RTT performance against the local improvement trajectory.  


 
3.1.5 As at 31st March 2019, the Trust reported an improvement in RTT performance and a 


reduction in the number of patients waiting for an appointment on the RTT (incomplete) 


pathway. This position is summarised in Table 2 below.    


 


Table 2: NLaG RTT performance during 2018/19 and number of patients on an incomplete 


Patient Tracking List.  
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3.1.6 During 2018/19 the Trust implemented the following improvement actions to support 


improvement in RTT performance across all Trust sites:  


 Secured additional capacity through the independent sector; 


 Increased provision in the community and transferred patients to community services 


where it was considered to be appropriate for the patient; 


 Developed new patient pathways to improve the flow of patients through the Trust. E.g. 


Development of new Clinical Nurse Specialist clinics and virtual clinics from March 2019;  


 Secured additional theatre capacity through mobile theatres at Scunthorpe Hospital and 


Grimsby Hospital;  


 Increased Executive level oversight of RTT performance via the weekly Patient Tracking 


List Meeting; 


 Successfully appointed a dedicated Project Manager to drive sustained improvement in 


RTT performance.  


 


3.2 52 Week Waiting Time Standard  


 


3.2.1 The number of North Lincolnshire patients waiting over 52 weeks for an appointment reduced 


to 18 in March 2019. Of these breaches, 13 took place at NLaG with the remaining 5 breaches 


being at St Hugh’s Hospital. 


 


Table 1 below provides a breakdown of 52 week breaches and RTT 18 week performance 


position reported at NLaG at specialty level relating to North Lincolnshire patients, as at 31st 


March 2019. 


 


Table 1: 52 week breaches reported at NLaG for those specialties reporting breaches for 
North Lincolnshire patients in March 2019.  


 


Specialty 52 week  
Breaches (NLCCG) 


2018 week  RTT Performance  
(against 92% standard)  
 


No. 
breaches 
in Feb 
2019 


Reduced/ 
increased 
since prev  
month 


Performance in 
Feb 2019   


Improved/deteri
orated  since 
prev month 


ENT 3 Reduced 65.85% 
 


Improved  


General Surgery 10 
 


Reduced  69.99% 
 


Improved 


Total        13 


 


3.2.2 The local improvement trajectory for 52 week waiting time breaches was to report no breaches 


by 31st March 2019. The Trust did not achieve this target, reporting 24 breaches of the 52 


week waiting time standard across all CCGs at 31st March 2019. The Trust has confirmed that 


these breaches were due to patient choice.  


 


 Table 2 below provides an overview of the Trust’s performance against the local improvement 


trajectory for 52 week waiting time standard during 2018/19 (as at 31st March 2019).  


  


 Table 2: NLaG performance against the local 52 week waiting time improvement trajectory 


during 2018/19.  
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3.2.3   Since the previous report to the Governing Body the CCG has identified negative impact on 


patient safety and experience of patients as a result of long waiting times.  


 


3.2.4 In May 2019, NLaG reported one serious incident (SI) for a North Lincolnshire patient relating 


to delay in receiving treatment causing deterioration of sight in Ophthalmology services. This 


SI is currently being reviewed via the SI process.   


 


In May 2019 one incident was reported by a GP on the CCG Incident App relating to long 


waiting times in Ophthalmology services at NLaG. This incident is currently being investigated 


via the CCG incident management process.   


 


3.2.5 At the NLaG Quality Review Meeting on 18th April 2019, the Trust reported that they had 


received negative feedback from patients in relation to their Ophthalmology services. This 


feedback reflects the pressures being experienced in this service.  


 


During May 2019 the CCG did not receive any new complaints, PALS concerns or MP queries 


relating to long waiting times at NLaG.  


 


3.3 Diagnostic 6 Week Waiting Time Standard 


 


3.3.1 The table below reflects CCG performance against the national diagnostic waiting time 


standard of no more than 1% of patients should wait in excess of 6 weeks for an appointment, 


as at 31st March 19.  


 


 
 


3.3.2 CCG performance failed to achieve the national diagnostic test waiting time standard in March 


2019 achieving 11.84% against the standard of <1%.  This is deterioration from the February 


19 position of 7.31% against the <1% standard.   


 


In March 2019 there were 792 breaches of the diagnostic waiting time standard reported for 


North Lincolnshire patients. Of these breaches, 777 related to NLaG, 12 related to Hull 


University Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (HUTH) and 3 related to provider organisations in 


other areas. 


 


Actual 14.95% 19.64% 13.22% 10.62% 13.06% 11.07% 7.16% 4.87% 11.71% 12.23% 7.31% 11.84%


Target 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%


Num. 896 1161 755 579 673 611 424 294 670 745 444 792


Den. 5994 5911 5712 5451 5154 5521 5920 6033 5724 6092 6070 6687


Diagnostic test waiting times


Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18Indicator Apr-18 May-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18
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MRI services continue to be an area of pressure with insufficient capacity to meet current 


demand. MRI scanners at Scunthorpe Hospital and Grimsby Hospital are operational 15 hours 


per day, 7 days per week, and in addition the Trust is using as much mobile scanning capacity 


as is available. 


 


These diagnostic capacity pressures continue to cause challenges in the Radiology diagnostic 


pathway, the Cardiology diagnostic pathway and the Cancer pathways.  


 


3.3.3 Since the previous report, NHS England has published updated diagnostic performance data 


at CCG level and provider level for the Yorkshire and Humber region. NHS England data for 


CCGs reflects that of the 21 CCGs that fall within the Yorkshire and Humber region, North 


Lincolnshire is the third worst performing CCG for diagnostics (as at 29th February 2019).  


 


 NHS England data for providers in the Yorkshire and Humber region reflects that NLaG is the 


second to worst performing Trust.  


 


3.3.4 In response to the challenges in achieving the national diagnostic performance standard, the 


Trust has implemented the following  


 On 23rd April 2019 the Trust’s second CT scanner went live at Scunthorpe Hospital; 


 commenced work to build an MRI unit at DPOW with 2 scanners, followed by a second CT 


scanner at DPOW and a further extension to the Blue Sky Unit at Scunthorpe for a second 


MRI scanner; 


 The Trust has put arrangements in place to outsource diagnostic reporting; this is currently 


undertaken on an ad hoc basis and is therefore subject to the availability of outsourced 


providers. The Trust is working towards a fixed contract with these providers with 


guaranteed volumes of work should enable the Trust to achieve satisfactory reporting 


times. 


 


3.3.5 Delays in accessing diagnostic services have impacted the quality of some diagnostic 


services.  


 


NLaG reported one serious incident (SI) relating to delayed treatment of a North Lincolnshire 


patient in Endoscopy services in April 2019.  


 


The CCG did not identify any incidents or serious incidents in diagnostic services relating to 


North Lincolnshire patients in May 2019.  


 


3.3.6 The CCG did not receive any complaints or PALS concerns relating to diagnostic services in 


May 2019. 


 


3.4 A&E 4 hour Waiting Time  


 


The table below reflects CCG and Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust (NLaG) 


performance against the A&E 4 hour waiting time target, and the number of 12 hour trolley breaches 


reported at CCG level for 2018/19 (as at 31st March 19). 
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3.4.1  Trust level performance against the A&E 4 hour waiting time target improved to 82.1% in 


March 19 (77.6% in February 19) against the national target of 95% and the local A&E 


improvement trajectory of 90%. 


 


3.4.2 A&E performance at the Trust’s Scunthorpe General Hospital site improved from 77.0% to 


83.2% in March 2019 and performance at Diana Princes of Wales Hospital also improved to 


81.1%, against the national target of 95% and the local improvement trajectory of 90%. 


 


3.4.3 In March 2019, NLaG did not report any 12 hour trolley wait breaches in relation to North 


Lincolnshire patients. 


 


3.4.4 During 2018/19, NLaG’s performance in A&E fell below the England average. NLaG has 


reported that reduced A&E performance at neighbouring hospitals has had an adverse impact 


on NLaG’s A&E performance as patients are being transferred from these neighbouring 


hospitals due to pressures in A&E in these areas. Table 1 below provides an overview of A&E 


performance at NLAG compared to the England average and neighbouring Trusts in quarter 3 


and quarter 4 2018/19.  


 


 Table 1: NLaG A&E performance compared to neighbouring Trusts and England average.  


 
 


3.4.5 In response to these performance challenges, NLaG has implemented the following initiatives 


to support improvement in A&E performance across the Trust:  


 Increased the number of patients being referred to the ambulatory care and frailty 


pathway; 


 Introducing an Emergency Operations Centre Co-ordinator to support flow of patients in 


A&E during the evening;   


 Roll out of Care Navigator role across several ward areas to improve the flow of patients; 


Actual 85.2% 88.1% 88.0% 83.8% 87.0% 89.2% 86.6% 86.7% 84.7% 80.2% 77.5% 82.1%


Improv 


Traj.
90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90% 90%


Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%


Actual 85.3% 88.3% 88.1% 84.0% 87.0% 89.2% 86.4% 86.8% 85.1% 80.5% 77.6% 82.1%


Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%


A&E performance - local performance 


(NLAG Performance)


A&E waiting time - total time in the 


A&E department, SitRep data


Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19Indicator Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Nov-18 Dec-18Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18
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 Ensuring that a Senior Nurse is available on all shifts to 01.00 am; 


 Implementation of a joint assessment unit at Scunthorpe Hospital and Grimsby Hospital 


sites; 


 Implementation of formal daily walk rounds by members of the Trust Board across 


Medicine Division.  


 


3.4.6 In May 2019, one incident was reported by a GP on the CCG Incident App regarding the 


transfer of work from A&E at NLaG to primary care.  


 


There were no serious incidents reported in May 2019 relating to North Lincolnshire patients in 


A&E.   


 


3.4.7 The CCG did not receive any complaints or PALS contacts relating to A&E services in May 


2019. 


 


3.4.8 The response rate for the Friends and Family Test (FFT) in A&E at NLaG improved to 5.7% in 


March 2019 (5.2% in February 2019; 4.6% in January 2019) against the England average of 


12.2%. The percentage of responses that were positive continued to fall below required levels 


in March 2019 achieving 75.2% against the England average of 86% (compared to 73% in 


February 2019).  


 


Further detail on action taken to improve this position is provided in this report at paragraph 


4.1.10.  


 


3.5 Cancer Waiting Times 


 


3.5.1 Breast Cancer 2 Week Wait 


 


The table below reflects CCG performance against the national Cancer 2 week waiting time target (as 


at 31st March 2019). 


 
 


CCG performance against the Breast Cancer symptoms 2 week waiting time standard deteriorated to 


85.7% in March 2019 (compared to 88.0% in February 2019), which failed to achieve the national 


standard of 93%.  


 


This reduced performance related to 8 breaches of this standard; 3 of these breaches were due to 


insufficient outpatient capacity, 3 breaches were due to patient choice, 1 breach was due to 


administrative delay and 1 breach was due to the cancellation of a clinic.  


 


3.5.2 Cancer 31 Day Wait: First Definitive Treatment  


 


The table below reflects CCG performance against the national Cancer 31 day waiting time standard 


(as at 31st March 2019). 


 


Actual 89.2% 86.2% 72.2% 81.8% 84.0% 88.5% 97.1% 88.9% 87.8% 97.8% 88.0% 85.7%


Target 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93% 93%


Num. 33 25 26 36 21 23 34 32 43 45 44 48


Den. 37 29 36 44 25 26 35 36 49 46 50 56


Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19Indicator


Breast Cancer 2 week waits


May-18 Jun-18 Nov-18 Dec-18Apr-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18
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The CCG did not meet the 31 day Cancer diagnosis to first definitive treatment waiting time standard 


in March 2019 at 94.8% against the national standard of 96%.  


 


This reduced performance related to 5 breaches of this standard; 3 of these breaches were due to 


inadequate elective capacity, 1 breach related to delayed treatment for medical reasons and 1 breach 


was due to delay in accessing diagnostic test or treatment planning.  


 


3.5.3 Cancer 62 Day Referral to Treatment Waits – First definitive treatment for Cancer within 


2 months of an urgent GP referral 


 


The table below reflects CCG performance against the national Cancer 62 day waiting time standard 


(as at 31st March 2019). 


 
 


The CCG commissioned providers failed to achieve the required level of performance against the 62 


day Cancer first definitive treatment within 2 months of an urgent GP referral standard in March 2019, 


achieving 63.4% against the 85% standard.  


 


Reduced performance against this standard related to 15 patient breaches; these breaches were due 


to delays in accessing diagnostic tests, complexity of the patient’s pathway, patient initiated delay and 


delay for medical reasons pertaining to the patient.  


 


3.5.4 In response to the performance challenges identified in cancer services, NLaG has 


implemented the following actions to improve access to these services and build additional 


capacity:  


 increased access to diagnostics services in the community where it is deemed to be 


appropriate for the patient;  


 improved access to Urology services through Clinical Nurse Specialist clinics; 


 implementation of virtual clinics in March 2019.  


3.5.5 In May 2019 the Trust reported one serious incident (SI) relating to delayed follow-up of a 


North Lincolnshire patient in cancer services. This incident was escalated as a serious incident 


(SI) by the CCG and is currently being investigated via the SI process.  


The CCG did not identify any incidents relating to cancer services for North Lincolnshire 


patients in May 2019.   


3.5.6 The CCG did not receive any complaints or PALS concerns relating to local cancer services in 


May 2019.  


 


Actual 97.8% 96.8% 97.1% 97.2% 98.9% 94.6% 97.0% 94.6% 98.8% 95.1% 96.3% 94.8%


Target 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96%


Num. 87 92 102 104 91 88 97 88 82 116 77 91


Den. 89 95 105 107 92 93 100 93 83 122 80 96


Cancer 31 day waits: first definitive 


treatment


Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18Jun-18 Jul-18Indicator Apr-18 May-18 Aug-18 Sep-18


Actual 70.7% 67.8% 73.2% 61.8% 72.3% 68.3% 70.8% 67.5% 83.3% 72.9% 71.4% 63.4%


Target 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85%


Num. 29 40 41 34 34 28 34 27 30 43 25 26


Den. 41 59 56 55 47 41 48 40 36 59 35 41


% patients receiving first definitive 


treatment for cancer within two 


months (62 days) of an urgent GP 


referral for suspected cancer (inc 31 


day Rare cancers)


Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19Indicator Apr-18 May-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Dec-18Nov-18Jun-18 Sep-18 Oct-18
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3.6 Ambulance Response Times at East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust (EMAS) 


 


3.6.1 Ambulance response times are measured against the Ambulance Response Programme 


(ARP). The ARP performance standards are summarised in the table below: 


 


Category of call The average 
(mean) will be 
less than 


9 out of 10 will 
arrive in less than 
(90th percentile) 


Category One (C1) - Life Threatening 
 


For people with a life-threatening injury or illness 


7 minutes  15 minutes 


Category Two (C2) - Emergency 
 


For emergency calls 


18 minutes  40 minutes 


Category Three (C3) – Urgent 
 


For urgent calls. In some instances the patient may 
be treated by ambulance staff in their own home 


40 minutes 120 minutes 


Category Four (C4) - Less Urgent 
 


For less urgent calls. In some instances patients 
may be given advice over the telephone or referred 
to another service such as a GP or pharmacist. C4 
responses now exclude calls from Healthcare 
Professionals (HCPs) as these calls will be reported 
separately by EMAS.  


2 hours 180 minutes 


 


Table 1 – CCG level performance 


 
 


3.6.2 In March 19, the Trust did not achieve the required standards for Category 1 calls (mean 


standard) Category 2 calls, Category 3 calls and Category 4 calls in North Lincolnshire. The 


Trust did achieve the 90th Centile standard for Category 1 calls in North Lincolnshire in March 


2019.  


 


Trust level performance in Lincolnshire remains worse than all other divisions across the 


EMAS footprint, and performance in North Lincolnshire remains worse than the Trust level 


position. 


 


In May 2019 the CCG submitted a formal request to EMAS to provide details on the number of 


North Lincolnshire patients that breached the ARP standards in March 2019. The CCG awaits 


receipt of this data. Once received, this data will be included in this report.  


 


Actual 00:08:28 00:08:39 00:06:59 00:07:49 00:07:56 00:07:37 00:08:05 00:08:29 00:07:37 00:07:48 00:08:20 00:08:25


Target 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00 00:07:00


Actual 00:29:47 00:28:16 00:32:14 00:32:04 00:32:34 00:34:39 00:32:30 00:29:45 00:31:47 00:33:35 00:39:00 00:30:05


Target 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00 00:18:00


Actual 01:03:23 00:59:59 01:07:34 01:06:06 01:09:52 01:13:01 01:09:39 01:05:11 01:09:02 01:12:11 01:26:01 01:05:12


Target 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00 00:40:00


Actual 02:16:29 02:20:09 02:55:00 03:34:52 02:34:20 03:51:46 03:10:46 03:13:49 02:27:55 03:29:07 03:58:01 03:24:25


Target 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00 02:00:00


Actual 01:15:03 02:50:33 01:16:07 01:39:00 04:23:09 02:18:26 03:54:37 02:40:30 01:11:08 00:28:58 02:12:54 03:14:19


Target 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00 03:00:00


Indicator


Ambulance clinical quality: Category 


4 - 180 minute response time (NL 


CCG)


Ambulance clinical quality: Category 


3 - 120 minute response time (NL 


CCG)


Ambulance clinical quality: Category 


2 - 18 Minute Mean; 40 minute 90th 


centile response time (NL CCG) - 


Nov-18Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19


Ambulance clinical quality: Category 


1 - 7 Minute Mean; 15 minute 90th 


centile response time (NL CCG) - 


Apr-18 May-18 Oct-18 Dec-18
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3.6.3 The CCG continues to work closely with the Trust and with North East Lincolnshire CCG to 


improve Ambulance response times in Northern Lincolnshire. Progress is overseen via the 


joint EMAS Improvement Plan which is led by North Lincolnshire CCG. Expected outcomes 


from the Plan are as follows: 


 


 Development of a joint approach to improving EMAS services between NLCCG and 


NELCCG; 


 Governance and assurance processes are strengthened through  the CCGs internal 


governance and commissioning arrangements;  


 Improved quality and performance relating to EMAS and General Practice; 


 Learning from incidents and serious incidents (SIs); 


 Clear understanding of the quality impact of poor performance;  


 The provider (EMAS) and partners in the place have robust plans to secure improvement 


against the national ARP standards. 


 


The CCG has arranged a meeting with NELCCG and EMAS on 14th June 2019 to review 


progress made with the joint EMAS Improvement Plan and identify any additional actions that 


need to be included in the Plan.  


 


3.6.4 In addition to the above, the Trust has implemented the following actions to secure 


improvement in performance across the Lincolnshire Division:  


 Undertaken a pilot project of placing a Clinical Decision Maker in the EMAS Operations 


Centre to optimise the use of resources and resolve delays; 


 Increased Executive level oversight of performance in the Lincolnshire Division; 


 A Clinical Summit with representation from the EMAS Executive Team and key internal 


and external stakeholders is being implemented in the Lincolnshire Division to review 


progress made against improvement actions; 


 Implementation of a review of vehicle ‘off road’ time arrangements currently being 


undertaken to identify where further efficiencies in capacity can be made.  


 


3.6.5 One incident was reported by a GP via the CCG Incident App relating to delayed ambulance 


response by EMAS in North Lincolnshire in May 2019.  


 


There were no serious incidents reported by EMAS relating to North Lincolnshire patients in 


May 2019.  


 


3.6.6 The CCG did not receive any complaints or PALS contacts relating to EMAS in May 2019.  


 


The CCG has not been made aware of any complaints or PALS reported to EMAS relating to 


delayed ambulance response in North Lincolnshire in May 2019.  


 


 3.7 Mixed Sex Accommodation (MSA) 


  


 
 


Actual 16 6 6 5 12 0 0 0 0 2 3 1


Target 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Number of MSA breaches for the 


reporting month in question


Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19Indicator Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Dec-18Oct-18 Nov-18Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18







Page 16 of 42 
 


3.7.1 One MSA breach relating to a North Lincolnshire patient was reported in March 2019, this 


breach took place at NLaG. This breach was due to challenges in the flow of patients 


throughout the Trust and bed pressures on inpatient wards.  


 


3.7.2 The CCG has not received any complaints, concerns or queries relating to mixed sex 


accommodation in May 2019.  


 


3.7.3 The CCG has not been made aware of any clinical incidents relating to the accommodation of 


North Lincolnshire patients on mixed sex wards during May 2019. 


 


3.8  Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 


 


3.8.1 Table 1 below contains CCG performance against the Improving Access to Psychological 


Therapies (IAPT) standards. The IAPT service in North Lincolnshire is provided by Rotherham 


Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust (RDaSH).   


 


Table 1: CCG performance against IAPT standards (latest data available) 


 


 
3.8.2 In March 2019 the percentage of people who were moved to recovery fell below required 


standards at 46.4% against the national standard of 50%.  


  


3.8.3 In March 2019 the proportion of people who waited 6 weeks or less from the point of referral to 


entering a course of IAPT treatment reduced to 65.18% against the national standard of 75% 


(77.27% in February 2019).  


 


3.8.4 There were no SIs were reported by RDaSH in relation to North Lincolnshire patients in May 


2019.  


 


In May 2019 the following incidents were reported by GPs via the CCG Incident App relating to 


local mental health services: 


 One incident relating to the transfer of work from the adult mental health Crisis Service and 


IAPT service to primary care in North Lincolnshire; and 


 One incident relating to a patient referral to Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 


(CAMHS) which was declined as the service is not commissioned by the CCG.  


 


Both of these incidents are currently being investigated by the CCG.  


 


3.8.5 In May 2019 the Trust received one new concern via a Member of Parliament on behalf of a 


North Lincolnshire constituent relating to the local mental health adult Crisis service, and one 


concern regarding access to local CAMHS in May 2019. These concerns are currently being 


investigated by the CCG.  


Actual 60.0% 64.3% 50.0% 50.0% 51.6% 44.6% 48.0% 51.8% 52.3% 49.1% 46.4% 46.4%


Target 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%


Num. 81 101 60 87 80 75 85 58 46 56 51 51


Den. 135 157 120 174 155 168 177 112 88 114 110 110


Actual 94.07% 96.25% 96.72% 94.89% 96.15% 97.62% 95.53% 98.25% 96.59% 90.52% 77.27% 65.18%


Target 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75%


Num. 127 154 118 167 150 164 171 112 85 105 85 73


Den. 135 160 122 176 156 168 179 114 88 116 110 112


The proportion of people that wait 6 


weeks or less from referral to 


entering a course of IAPT treatment 


against the number of people who 


finish a course of treatment in the 


reporting period.


% of people who are moving to 


recovery


Aug-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19Oct-18Indicator Apr-18 May-18 Sep-18Jun-18 Jul-18
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3.8.6 During March 2019 (latest data available) RDaSH received 149 responses to the Friends and 


Family Test (FFT) out of a possible 19,470. This is improvement on the previous month (84 


responses in February 2019) but response rates to the FFT remain low.  


 


Of the 149 responses received 94% would recommend the Trust, 3% would not recommend 


the trust to friends and family and 3% declined to confirm.   


 


3.9 Cancelled Operations 


   


3.9.1 During quarter 4 2018/19 (latest data available) NLaG reported that 4 North Lincolnshire 


patients had their operation cancelled and were not re-admitted within the required timescale 


of 28 days. All of these cancellations took place in Surgery and Critical Care. All patients have 


subsequently been treated. No patients have had their operations cancelled for a second time. 


 


 
 


3.10 Dementia Diagnosis Rates in Primary Care (aged 65 years and over)  


 


3.10.1 The CCG level position in relation to the percentage of dementia diagnosis rates in primary 


care for aged 65 years and over is under achieving at 61.4% in March 2019 against the 66.7% 


standard (61.9% in February 2019).  


 


The latest Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) position is higher than the 


CCG position at 72.5%.   


 


3.10.2 The following actions have been undertaken to improve this position:  


 Plans are being developed by the CCG to incorporate dementia screening into the primary 


care quality scheme, which will delivered at care network level in 19/20;  


 The CCG is working with Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust 


(RDaSH) to streamline the dementia diagnosis pathway.  


 


In addition to the above, the CCG Dementia Strategy has been approved and is being 


implemented.  


 


 


4. Overview of the CCG’s Main Providers  


This section of the report provides an overview of the CCG’s main providers that are not already 


covered in section 3. Information contained in this section includes areas of quality performance that 


has either been rated red in the Quality Dashboard (See Appendix 1 at paragraph 6.1) or where 


Actual 26.4% 5.2% 1.9% 7.0%


Target 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8%


Num. 28 6 2 7


Den. 106 115 106 100


Cancelled Operations not offered 


another date within 28 days. (NLAG 


Trust position)


Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19Oct-18 Nov-18Indicator Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18


Patients on dementia register 1439 1431 1444 1441 1449 1448 1435 1450 1442 1437 1420 1413


Estimated prevalence 2232.4 2238.1 2246.9 2251.9 2262.3 2269.1 2268.8 2274.6 2284.1 2290.5 2294.1 2299.9


Diagnosis Rate 64.46% 63.94% 64.27% 63.99% 64.05% 63.81% 63.25% 63.75% 63.13% 62.74% 61.90% 61.40%


Planned Rate 66.71% 66.71% 66.71% 66.71% 66.71% 66.71% 66.71% 66.71% 66.71% 66.71% 66.71% 66.71%


Variance to plan -0.02251937 -0.0277355 -0.024453892 -0.027213036 -0.02661851 -0.02897865 -0.034624169 -0.029642396 -0.0357962 -0.03974318 -0.048137997 -0.052742579


Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19


Dementia diagnosis rate 67%
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concerns, exceptions or new information is identified that relate to the standards contained within the 


standard NHS contract.  


4.1 Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust (NLaG)  


4.1.1 Care Quality Commission inspection: Progress with Must Do and Should Do actions  
 


The Trust provided an update on progress made against the CQC actions at the System 


Improvement Board Patient Safety Group (SIBPSG) on 3rd June 2019.  


The update was provided through  


 a paper on the outcome from the Trust’s internal audit of arrangements to oversee 


progress with the CQC actions arrangements; 


 four presentations from clinical teams to demonstrate improvement action taken in regards 


to waiting lists, Critical Care, Paediatrics and Fractured Neck of Femur.  


The paper on the outcome from the Trust’s internal audit of arrangements to oversee progress 


with the CQC actions confirmed that overall the auditors were significantly assured of the 


governance arrangements in place in the Trust to manage and monitor achievement of the 


CQC actions, and that these arrangements are largely operating as designed. 


The four presentations from clinical teams provided some assurance that improvement 


continues to be made in these areas, although the Trust continues to report challenges in 


reducing the waiting list position.  


The Trust confirmed at the meeting that improvements made in regards to reducing waiting 


lists, Critical Care, Paediatrics and Fractured Neck of Femur are also mapped to the specific 


CQC actions.  


The date of the next CQC inspection of Trust services is yet to be confirmed.  


4.1.2  Serious Incidents (Acute services)  


Since the previous report to the Governing Body on 11th Aril 2019 the following serious 
incidents (SI) have been reported in relation to North Lincolnshire patients:  


 one SI reported by NLaG relating to delayed treatment in Endoscopy services; 


 one SI reported by NLaG relating to delay in receiving treatment causing deterioration of 


sight in Ophthalmology services; 


 one SI reported by NLaG relating to a hospital acquired pressure ulcer; 


All of these SI’s are being investigated via the CCG SI process.  


4.1.3 Ophthalmology Services  


The CCG remains concerned with the performance and the quality impact of performance of 
local Ophthalmology Services, provided by NLaG. These concerns relate to insufficient 
capacity to meet demand, long waiting times to access treatment, and an increase in the 
number of serious incidents and incidents identified in these services in quarters 3 and 4 
2018/19 and to date in 2019/20.   


In addition to these concerns, at the NLaG Quality Review Meeting on 18th April 2019 the 
Trust reported that they had received negative feedback from patients in relation to their 
Ophthalmology services. This feedback further reflects the pressures being experienced in this 
service. 


In response to these challenges the Trust is undertaking the following: 
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 Developing an action plan to oversee improvements across the service; 


 Reviewing opportunities to secure further capacity within community based services; 


 Undertaking interviews for two Consultant posts in June 2019; 


 Implementing a risk stratification process for patients on the waiting list; 


 Successfully appointed a Failsafe Officer to track patients who are considered to be a 
high risk and ensure that they are managed appropriately. 
 


4.1.3 Maternity services  


 Local Quality Standards  


Table 1 below provides details of the Trust’s latest published performance against the 
maternity measures contained with the local quality schedule (Schedule 4.C of the NHS 
Contract) of the NLaG contract for 2018/2019.  


 


In March 2019 (latest data available) NLaG did not achieve the required levels in the following 
Maternity standards: 


 percentage of women referred to smoking cessation services and had stopped smoking at 
the time of delivery; and,  


 percentage of patients that initiate breastfeeding within 6 hours of delivery.  


In regards to the percentage of women who stopped smoking at the time of delivery, the two 
Public Health teams in North Lincolnshire and North East Lincolnshire are working together in 
respect of a joint Tobacco Control plan and a smoking in pregnancy plan. The aim is to reduce 
the percentage of women who smoke in pregnancy to less than 15% in the next 12 months 
and to 11% by 2020.  


The CCG Director of Nursing and Quality and the Director of Public Health for North 
Lincolnshire are arranging a summit in July 2019 to bring partners together to develop a 
system wide approach to improving performance against these indicators.  


 Friends and Family Test in Maternity Services at NLaG  


In March 2019 the response rate for the FFT in Maternity services was 21.4% against the 
standard of 21.6%, this is improvement on the previous month at 18.9% in February 2019 
although the response rate fell below the required standard. Of the resposnes submitted in 
March 2019, 100% were positive.  


 Serious Incidents and Incidents relating to Maternity Services  


In May 2019 the Trust reported one serious incident (SI) relating to a North Lincolnshire 
patient in maternity services at Scunthorpe Hospital. This SI related to a postpartum 
hemorrhage following caesarean. This SI is currently beig investigated.  


No incidents were reported to the CCG Incident App relating to North Lincolnshire patients in 
maternity services during May 2019.  


4.1.4 Community services in North Lincolnshire (provided by NLaG) 


 Local Quality Standards  
The draft quality and performance metrics for Community services in North Lincolnshire 
were reviewed at the Community Services quality and Performance Metric Working Group 
met on 17th April 2019, and submitted to the Community Services Contract Meeting on 13th 
May 2019 for consideration.  


Actual 13.0% 7.0% 10.0% 4.0% 7.0% 6.0% 11.0% 11.0% 6.0% 15.0% 11.0% 11.0%


Target 17% 17% 17% 17% 17% 17% 17% 17% 17% 17% 17% 17%


Actual 58.3% 55.8% 58.4% 57.4% 55.8% 55.0% 61.2% 58.3% 58.4% 59.3% 59.3% 52.9%


Target 59.6% 59.6% 59.6% 59.6% 59.6% 59.6% 59.6% 59.6% 59.6% 59.6% 59.6% 59.6%


Indicator Apr-18 May-18 Mar-19


Maternity - percentage of women that 


were referred to the smoking 


cessation services stopped at the 


time of delivery.


Maternity patients that initiate 


breastfeeding within 6 hours of 


delivery (excludes any transfers to 


NICU) 


Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18
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Members of the Community Services Contract Meeting provided valuable feedback on the 
metrics, and the CCG continues to work with the Trust Community Services Management 
Team to develop the metrics in line with this feedback.  
 
The updated draft metrics will be submitted to the Community Services Contract Meeting 
in July 2019 for final approval.  
 


 Friends and Family Test in Community Services at NLaG  
Response rates to the Friends and Family Test in Community services remains low at 
1.4% of patients against the standard of 5%, of these responses 99.2% were positive. 
 


 Serious incidents and incidents relating to Community Services  
During April 2019 and May 2019 the Trust reported four community acquired pressure 
ulcers for North Lincolnshire patients that met the criteria for a serious incident (SIs). Two 
of these SIs were identified by the Trust in November 2018 and two were identified in 
December 2018. These SI’s are currently being investigated through the SI process and 
any learning identified through the SI investigation will be included in this report to the 
QP&F in July 2019.  


No incidents were reported on the CCG Incident App relating to Community services in 
North Lincolnshire in May 2019.  


In March 2019 (latest published data available) NLaG Community Services reported that 
94.6% of patients received harm free care; this fell below the standard of 95%.  
 


 Complaints and PALS contacts  
In May 2019 the CCG did not identify any new complaints or PALS concerns relating to 
community services provided in North Lincolnshire.  


4.1.5 Registered Nurse Staffing  


 Registered Nursing vacancy position  


In March 2019 (latest published data available) the Registered Nursing vacancy position 
remained outside of target at 8.63% against the target of 6%.  


The Trust has implemented plans to improve this position, focusing on areas of particular 
pressure including Medicine Division and Surgery Division.  


Table 1 below provides an overview of the latest vacancy position across all staff groups at 
NLaG. Table 1: Trust wide vacancy position at 31st March 2019 across all staff groups.  


 


4.1.6 Venous thromboembolism (VTE) 


The NHS Patient Safety Thermometer reflects that the Trust achieved 93.4% against the 95% 
performance indicator for the percentage of patients who receive a VTE assessment in April 
2019; this is a reduction on the previous position at 95.8% in March 2019.  
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Latest published performance data for the Trust reflects that 93.7% of patients received a VTE 
assessment in Match 2019 against the standard of 95%, this is improvement on the previous 
position of 92.6% in February 2019.  


The Trust has not published updated information on progress made against their VTE 
improvement plan since this report was submitted to the QP&F on 2nd May 2019. Further detail 
on this position will be provided in this report once available.  


4.1.7 National Early Warning Score (NEWS) 


In February 2019 (latest data available) the Trust reported 69% compliance against the local 
standard of >90% in regards to timely recording of NEWS in A&E.   


Performance against the NEWS is monitored by the Trust via their Deteriorating Patient Group 
Meeting. This Group will focus on any wards that report less than 75% compliance, in these 
circumstances a matron will be assigned to support the ward. Performance against NEWS will 
also be reported to the NLaG Quality Review Meeting in 2019/20 via the Trust’s refreshed 
integrated quality report.  


4.1.8 Mortality position 


On 16th May 2019 the national SHMI (Standardised Hospital Mortality Index) was released 
which showed the Trust as having a SHMI of 112 for the period 1st January 2018 to 31st 
December 2018. This places the Trust within the “as expected” range. The latest SHMI 
position is an improvement on the Trust’s previous SHMI position of 113 (October 2017 – 
September 2018) which placed the Trust in the “higher than expected” band  


For comparison, the Trust’s SHMI position for the period January 2017 – December 2017 was 
119; the latest position reflects an improving trend in the Trust’s SHMI position.  


4.1.9 Duty of Candour 


In March 2019 the Trust reported that 77% of incidents that were reported under the Duty of 
Candour category were met in line with Trust policy for the Management of Serous Incidents, 
against the standard of 100%.  


The CCG is currently working with the Trust to  


 determine the status of these breaches; and to 


 establish whether any of the breaches of the Duty of Candour standard related to North 
Lincolnshire patients.  


The Trust has not reported any adverse impact on patients as a result of these breaches.  


4.1.10  Friends and Family Test (FFT) in A&E  


In March 2019 response rates to the FFT in A&E remained low in 2018/19 at 5.7% of patients. 
The percentage of responses that were positive deteriorated to 75.2% in March 2019.  


Table 1 below provides an overview of the FFT response rates and percentage of positive 
responses during 2018/19, as at 31t March 2019.  


Response rates to the FFT in A&E did not exceed 9.4% during 2018/19. The percentage of 
positive recommendations to the FFT in A&E did not exceed 80.6% in 2018/19.  


Table 1: Response rates and percentage of positive responses to FFT in A&E at NLaG, as at 
31st March 2019.  


 


In response to these concerns, the Trust has  


 developed key performance indicators (KPIs) to improve response rates in A&E; and, 


 has implemented a Working Group to focus on improving response rates and positive 
recommendation for the FFT in A&E.  
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Once established, the outcomes from the KPIs and the Working Group will be reviewed via the 
NLaG Quality Review Meeting.   


4.2 Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust (RDaSH)  


4.2.1    Access to Crisis Services 


During quarters 3 and 4 of 2018/19 and in quarter 1 2019/10, GPs in North Lincolnshire raised 


concern regarding the local mental health Adult Crisis Service. These concerns specifically 


related to circumstances where GPs are faced with a patient who they consider to be in crisis, 


and access to the Crisis Team is not provided in the timeframes that the GP assess are 


needed.  


 


Since the previous report, the CCG has developed an Improvement Plan for the Crisis service 


to co-ordinate all improvement action taken by the CCG into one combined Plan. The Plan 


includes quality and performance improvement actions.  


 


The CCG is also undertaking the following improvement actions to support improvement in 


this service:  


 Relaunching the crisis care concordat in North Lincolnshire; 


 Working collaboratively with public health and Humber Coast and Vale Health and Care 


Partnership to develop the local suicide prevention strategy; and 


 The CCG Head of Nursing is arranging a further clinical site visit to the Crisis Service in 


quarter 2 2018/19.  


In May 2019 one incident was reported on the CCG Incident Reporting App by a GP relating to 


the local adult Crisis Service (previously referenced in this report at paragraph 3.6.4). This 


incident highlighted a concern regarding the level of support and advice provided to patients 


by the Crisis Service and the IAPT Service in North Lincolnshire.  


 


Lessons and outcomes identified that are from this incident and from the actions contained in 


the Improvement Plan are being reviewed with the Trust via the monthly RDaSH Quality 


Assurance and Improvement Meeting.  


4.2.2 Child and adolescent mental health services (CAMHS) - Getting Advice (ASD) Pathway 


Referral to Assessment  


The Trust achieved 80% against the 95% standard for the percentage of patients seen by the 
Getting Advice (ASD) service within 10 weeks in April 2019. This equates to 12 out of 15 
patients. This is improvement from the previous position of 21% in February 2019.  


The Trust has not reported any negative impact on patients as a result of delays in accessing 
this service. The Trust continues to prioritise long waiting patients and has a risk stratification 
process in place to ensure that patients are not harmed as a result of long waiting times.  


4.2.3 Staffing  
 
In April 2019 the Trust reported a high risk in regards to recruitment and retention of clinical 
staff. In response to this the Trust is undertaking the following actions to support improvement: 


 A Recruitment and Retention Steering Group has been established to review this position 
in further detail; 


 The RDaSH Director of Nursing is leading a 20 day review of staffing arrangements in May 
2019.  
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The Trust’s staffing position, including action taken to support staffing pressures, will be 
discussed at the RDaSH Quality Assurance and Improvement Meeting (North Lincolnshire) on 
10th June 2019.  


4.2.4 Duty of Candour 
 
The Trust reported two Duty of Candour incidents in March 2019 (latest data available) 
relating to North Lincolnshire patients. One of these incidents related to Older People’s Mental 
Health Services and one related to Adult Mental Health Services in North Lincolnshire.  
 
These incidents are currently being investigated in line with the agreed time frame; the 
outcome from the investigations will be provided to the CCG by the Trust via the RDASH 
Incident Meeting in June 2019.  
 


4.2.5 Reducing Restrictive Interventions (use of restraint) 
 
The Trust reported 10 incidents where restraint was used on the inpatient mental health ward 
in North Lincolnshire in March 2019 (latest data available), compared to 6 incidents in 
February 2019.  
 
Eight of these incidents were reported in the Trust’s Older People’s Mental Health Services, 
one incident was reported in the Trust’s Adult Mental Health Services and one incident was 
reported in Learning Disability Services. The Trust monitors the use of restraint via its internal 
Restrictive Interventions Group, and any specific concerns or issues are raised with the CCG 
via the monthly RDaSH Quality Assurance and Improvement Meeting. 
 


4.2.6 Patient Safety Thermometer (Classic Thermometer)  
 
The classic patient safety thermometer collects data relating to 


 Pressure Ulcers; 


 Falls; 


 Catheters; 


 Venous thromboembolism (VTE).  
 


In April 2019 the percentage of patients who received harm free care at RDaSH reduced to 
89.7% against the national standard of 92.3%. This is deterioration from the previous position 
of 97.1% harm free care in March 2019.  
 
The patient safety thermometer reflects that 10.3% of patients experienced harm, this relates 
to  


 increase in the percentage of patients who had a pressure ulcer (8.8% in April 2019 
against the national standard of 4.7%, compared to 2.3% in March 2019); 


 increase in the percentage of patients who required catheterisation (7.1% in April 2019 
against the national position of 5%, compared to 2.9% in March 2019).  


 
4.3 East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS) 
 


 Staffing  
 


The Trust continued to report staffing pressures across the Lincolnshire Division in April 2019, 
with staff abstraction rates exceeding the Trust standard at 33.49% of staff against the Trust 
standard of up to 30.2%. The Trust is utilising all available options to increase capacity across 
Lincolnshire including the use of Private Ambulance Services (please note, this is at no 
additional cost to commissioners).  
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Whilst the staffing position in Lincolnshire is challenging, staffing levels in North Lincolnshire 
are meeting required levels.  
 
The Trust is currently undertaking a review of its vehicle ‘off-road’ time to ensure that all 
capacity is utilised effectively and that all efficiencies are realised. Details on the outcome from 
this review will be provided in this report to the QP&F Committee in July 2019.  


 


 Friends and Family Test data  
  
During quarter 4 2018/19 and to date in 2019/10 (as at 31st May 2019) the Trust has not 
submitted Friends and Family Test data to NHS England. As a result of this the CCG is 
currently unable to make a comprehensive assessment of the impact of emergency 
ambulance services provided by EMAS in North Lincolnshire.  
 
The CCG has raised this with the Trust’s IT Department to identify reasons for this and to 
establish when FFT data will be available.  


 


4.4 Hull and East Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust (HEY)  
 
4.4.1 No concerns or issues have been identified in relation to North Lincolnshire patients at HEY 


since the previous report. 
 
4.5 Patient Transport Services (PTS) provided by Savoy Ventures Limited  
 
4.5.1 Complaints  
 


During May 2019 the CCG received three complaints and one MP concern regarding local 
non-emergency Patient Transport Services provided in North Lincolnshire. All of these related 
to eligibility criteria for to local patient transport services.   
 
These complaints and concerns are being currently being investigated by the CCG. The CCG 
will review this position with Savoy via the Savoy Contract Meeting on 5th June 2019.  


 
4.6 Spire Hull and East Riding Hospital 


 
4.6.1 National Early Warning Score (NEWS) checklist 


In March 2019 Spire Hospital achieved 91% compliance against the NEWS checklist against 


the required standard of 100%. Compliance is based on the number of patient records that 


include a completed NEWS checklist.  Spire has not achieved the required standard since 


November 2018.  


In response to this, Spire has implemented further staff training and support to staff to ensure 


that the NEWS checklist is completed for all relevant patients.  


5. Primary Care Update  


The primary care scorecard for quarter 4 2018/19 (latest published data available) is provided below.  
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NHS North Lincolnshire CCG - Primary Care Reporting South


Key Indicators West


East


Occurring at the 


practice


Occurring 


outside the 


practice


Occurring at the 


practice


Occurring 


outside the 


practice


2017/18
Q1 


2018/19
Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19


B81045 Ashby Turn PC Partners 12649 0.08% 91.84% 6.74% 78.48% 86% 18.13% 18.12% 545.2 May 2016 - Good 5 2


B81118 West Common Lane Teaching Practice 8006 -0.26% 89.13% 7.97% 73.76% 86% 18.21% 18.10% 546.3 Feb 2016 - Good 106 22 2


B81113 Cedar Medical Practice 7409 0.24% 95.68% 2.16% 89.62% 93% 13.06% 13.04% 547.3 Feb 2016 - Good 3 2


B81026 Ancora Medical Practice 19923 0.18% No Data No Data 81.01% 92% 30.24% 30.24% 545.4 November 2015 - Good 12 9 1


4 - 3 x Query around IFR referral & decision, 


1 x Unhappy with waiting times for 


appointments


B81022 Cambridge Avenue Medical Centre 13873 -0.09% 87.22% 8.31% 75.14% 81% 28.73% 28.60% 554.5 June 2016 - Good 12 4 1


2 - 1 x Pt wanted to understand diagnosis as 


they had been given conflicting information 


from different clinicians . 1 x Pt called 


regarding the wait time for an appointment 


for pain injections at SGH. 1


B81099 Kirton Lindsey Surgery 10167 -0.02% No Data No Data 77.42% 92% 21.01% 21.00% 551.3 May 2016 - Good 7 2 3 1


B81648 The Killingholme Surgery 1445 0.76% No Data No Data 83.08% 91% 14.22% 14.36% 553.0 Oct 2017 - Good 1 14


B81109 Riverside Surgery (Brigg) 12786 0.05% * * 83.43% 84% 24.61% 22.85% 527.6 March 2016 - Good 1 7 1 1


B81647 West Town Surgery (Barton on Humber) 3046 -0.36% 84.38% 9.38% 78.50% 86% 19.75% 19.78% 558.1 August 2016 - Good 5 1 1


B81628 The Medical Centre (Barnetby) 2991 0.30% * * 90.31% 96% 15.50% 15.36% 553.2 Jan 2017 - Good 3 2


B81007 Winterton Medical Practice 9768 0.01% 93.19% 4.68% 90.36% 90% 13.22% 13.22% 550.2 April 2015 - Good 41 8 1 - Pt unhappy with wait times to see GP 


B81005 Central Surgery (Barton on Humber) 16908 0.05% 82.14% 0.00% 62.55% 68% 23.80% 23.80% 549.0 Nov 2017 - Good 5 1 1 - Query around IFR referral and decision 


B81063 Bridge Street Surgery (Brigg) 6376 0.06% No Data No Data 99.41% 95% 50.47% 50.33% 558.5 Jan 2017 - Good 17 1 1


B81617 The Birches Medical Practice 8827 -0.07% 85.71% 9.52% 64.93% 72% 0.70% 0.70% 551.1 April 2016 - Good 13 1 2 5 1


Y02787 Market Hill 6281 0.72% 88.30% 9.57% 60.01% 79% 21.51% 21.51% 529.6


April 2018 - Requires 


Improvement
11 1


3


B81064 Church Lane Medical Centre 9040 0.31% 93.64% 4.95% 81.45% 88% 22.92% 22.88% 511.2 May 2015 - Good 22 4 2 - Query around IFR referral and decision 2


B81090 The Oswald Road Medical Centre 4558 0.37% 94.37% 5.63% 71.10% 89% 21.48% 21.43% 555.4 June 2015 - Good 16 2 1


B81043 South Axholme Practice 14898 -0.11% 92.92% 5.15% 80.23% 87% 15.87% 15.87% 516.2 May 2018 -  Good 1 9 1


B81065 Trent View Medical Practice 11505 -0.03% 89.22% 6.86% 59.92% 73% 11.80% 11.80% 539.9 March 2015 - Good 20 2 4


F&F Test - extremely low numbers of responses - needs promotion?


Flu 65 & Over as at Jan 2019


Under 65 at 


risk as at Jan 


2019


Flu Pregnant Women 


at Risk as at Jan 2019


Flu Pregnant 


Women NOT at Risk 


as at Jan 2019


Flu - HCW Feb 19
Pneumo 65s & Over as 


at 31/03/2018


MenACWY 18-20 yr olds 


at 31/08/2018


Cervical 


QOF Dec 2016


Breast Round 


8 2011-2014
Breast Round 9 2014-2017


B81045 Ashby Turn PC Partners 72.6% 48.0% 60.0% 39.7% 78.1% 51% 46% 74% 67% 68%


B81118 West Common Lane Teaching Practice 78.5% 59.8% 100% 51.5% 55.6% 75% 42% 72% 67% 70%


B81113 Cedar Medical Practice 68.8% 45.2% 100% 44.4% 55.6% 74% 47% 73% 69% 59%


B81026 Ancora Medical Practice 67.4% 53.4% 60.0% 42.4% 0% 70% 50% 73% 69% 67%


B81022 Cambridge Avenue Medical Centre 71.2% 45.4% 85.7% 43.8% 71.1% 61% 56% 81% 62% 79%


B81099 Kirton Lindsey Surgery 68.1% 44.9% 0.0% 46.9% 85.7% 66% 52% 80% 70% 78%


B81648 The Killingholme Surgery 67.5% 51.0% 100% 36.4% 100% 75% 41% 78% 63% 62%


B81109 Riverside Surgery (Brigg) 71.0% 45.7% 60.0% 60.4% 77.6% 67% 46% 80% 77% 78%


B81647 West Town Surgery (Barton on Humber) 68.8% 51.2% 66.7% 63.2% 62.5% 69% 65% 80% 73% 74%


B81628 The Medical Centre (Barnetby) 70.5% 50.6% 0.0% 50.0% 0% 64% 28% 88% 71% 77%


B81007 Winterton Medical Practice 75.1% 50.8% 0.0% 59.5% 42.9% 74% 64% 77% 73% 78%


B81005 Central Surgery (Barton on Humber) 71.8% 47.8% 72.7% 51.3% 7.3% 65% 54% 78% 77% 75%


B81063 Bridge Street Surgery (Brigg) 71.0% 50.3% 100% 60.9% 31.6% 37% 38% 78% 75% 74%


B81617 The Birches Medical Practice 72.0% 58.2% 57.1% 34.4% 0% 78% 11% 70% 59% 60%


Y02787 Market Hill 50.8% 41.4% 66.7% 39.4% 0% 38% 15% 59% 37% 50%


B81064 Church Lane Medical Centre 73.5% 51.1% 80.0% 54.3% 70.4% 67% 48% 75% 74% 77%


B81090 The Oswald Road Medical Centre 72.3% 51.3% 33.3% 58.5% 35.7% 71% 58% 73% 72% 72%


B81043 South Axholme Practice 0% 0% 0% 0% 71.9% 64% 69% 82% 74% 76%


B81065 Trent View Medical Practice 69.3% 39.7% 71.4% 53.5% 79.2% 54% 42% 75% 70% 74%


Practice 


No.
Practice Name


Imms & Vaccs - % Uptake Screening


Annual GP Patient 


Survey % Patients 


would recommend 


2016/17         (CCG 


Average 76.93%.    


England Average 


77.4%)


Overall Patient 


Experience Very 


Good/Good  (GP 


Survey 2018)


Patient OnLine - 


Patients enabled to 


electronically book or 


cancel an appointment - 


Mar 19


Patient OnLine - 


Patients 


enabled to 


electronically 


order repeat 


prescriptions - 


Mar 19


QOF - Practice 


Overall 


Achievement 


17/18


CQC
Practice 


No.
Practice Name Practice List Size May 19


List size 


increase / 


decrease 


(from 


previous 


month)


GP Friends & 


Family % Patients 


would 


reccommend Mar 


19


GP Friends and 


Family % 


Patients would 


not recommend 


Mar 19


Quality Issue reporting - 


Overview of incidents reported 


from GP Practices either 


internally or against another 


Provider & from a provider 


against the GP Practice during 


2017-2018


Quality Issue reporting - 


Overview of incidents reported 


from GP Practices either 


internally or against another 


Provider & from a provider 


against the GP Practice during 


Q1 18/19


Patient OnLine - the GMS/PMS regulations 2017/18 and APMS regulations, the BMA and NHS England have made a joint commitment to encourage practices to register a minimum of 20 per cent of their patients for at least one online service by 31 March 2018. 


Practices are also required to support patients to use apps to access Patient Online services. [Technical support for the apps will be provided by the app supplier.] Finally, practices should continue to provide patients who request it, with online access to clinical correspondence.


PALS/Concerns*
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NHS North Lincolnshire CCG - Primary Care Reporting


Secondary Care Utilisation Scorecard - Q4


GP Referrals -
(All Specialties) 


Other Referrals 
(All Specialties)      


Outpatient


First 


Appointments


Outpatient 


Follow-up 


Appointments


Outpatient 


Procedure 


Appointments


Outpatient First 


Appointments 


Discharged % 


***


A&E 
(Arrival Mode 


Ambulance)


A&E 
(Arrival Mode 


Other)


Non-Elective 


Emergency 


Discharges 
(Admission 


Method A&E)


Non-Elective 


Emergency 


Discharges 
(Admission 


Method Other)


Elective 


Discharges


Ashby Turn PC Partners 47.9 48.9 74.6 146.6 63.3 36.7% 28.0 78.4 23.2 5.5 42.2


West Common Lane Teaching Practice 32.9 51.7 60.6 126.9 54.5 36.5% 22.1 82.3 21.7 5.8 40.3


The Killingholme Surgery 37.3 35.1 60.1 125.7 50.4 37.9% 26.9 47.7 15.2 2.8 24.2


The Birches Medical Practice 39.9 53.5 61.4 114.1 58.0 37.1% 20.4 92.5 19.7 4.4 33.1


Riverside Surgery (Brigg) 43.3 47.2 66.8 146.0 56.6 34.8% 25.7 60.8 23.6 3.9 47.0


Cedar Medical Practice 37.0 58.0 74.5 149.2 68.9 37.4% 30.1 84.4 28.4 5.9 48.0


Ancora Medical Practice 42.7 54.5 63.4 125.5 61.1 35.8% 31.1 79.1 25.8 5.8 37.8


Cambridge Avenue Medical Centre 56.1 51.1 87.0 172.5 77.6 36.5% 24.2 74.0 26.7 5.7 46.5


Market Hill 36.6 48.3 53.8 73.0 29.9 36.6% 22.3 110.0 14.9 3.6 17.0


Church Lane Medical Centre 53.3 49.4 77.8 150.5 66.4 38.3% 26.4 76.9 26.7 4.7 42.0


West Town Surgery (Barton on Humber) 50.3 36.0 69.6 144.1 45.8 38.5% 16.0 50.3 14.7 5.6 37.3


Kirton Lindsey Surgery 44.0 46.9 70.5 155.0 57.5 34.7% 17.2 64.2 19.5 4.8 43.3


The Oswald Road Medical Centre 52.3 47.0 71.6 139.9 78.0 39.8% 25.4 74.3 23.2 5.7 41.3


South Axholme Practice 49.3 47.8 74.6 147.5 64.0 32.7% 19.5 52.2 18.0 5.0 39.4


Trent View Medical Practice 57.3 47.3 80.0 159.9 71.1 34.0% 22.9 72.3 25.4 5.1 48.7


The Medical Centre (Barnetby) 53.9 40.5 76.2 174.2 62.8 38.8% 19.1 53.7 18.1 5.4 37.6


Winterton Medical Practice 46.9 45.6 69.5 151.6 70.0 39.6% 18.9 63.4 21.0 5.3 48.6


Central Surgery (Barton on Humber) 48.3 40.1 65.1 148.4 51.4 39.1% 21.4 48.5 16.2 3.8 41.1


Bridge Street Surgery (Brigg) 62.6 44.6 80.6 165.8 72.1 33.1% 23.4 54.2 21.8 4.2 52.6


South Network 44.8 51.8 70.4 140.9 63.7 36.2% 26.1 76.8 24.4 5.6 44.9


East Network 48.7 43.0 66.1 142.0 60.8 37.3% 21.9 55.3 19.5 4.3 43.8


West Network 49.0 48.9 70.0 131.6 61.6 35.5% 22.3 75.3 21.3 4.8 38.8


CCG Average 46.9 47.0 70.4 143.0 61.0 36.9% 23.2 69.4 21.3 4.9 40.4


Care Network RAG Red Amber Green


South Network E-Referral Utilisation < 80% - >= 80%


East Network GP Referrals


West Network Other Referrals


Outpatient First Appointments


Outpatient Follow-up Appointments


Outpatient Procedure Appointments


Outpatient First Appointments Discharged


A&E Arrival Mode Ambulance


A&E Arrival Mode Other


Non-Elective Emergency Admission Method A&E


Non-Elective Emergency Admission Method Other


Elective Admissions


2 standard 


deviations 


above /below 


average


1 standard 


deviations 


above /below 


average


Within 


average range 


Crude rate per 1000 registered practice population (as at 31st March 2019) *


Notes / Caveats 


Method of RAG Rating currently set based on deviation from the CCG average (above or below) based on the rate not the underlying data


* Kirton Lindsey practice population size now includes Scotter patients.  Activity levels will not yet include these patients and, therefore, this practice will currently be misrepresented when benchmarking.


*** Outpatient First Appointments Discharged will be based on rolling 12 months and expressed as a percentage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


Key
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6. Appendices 


6.1 Appendix 1 – Quality Dashboard  


1. Introduction  
 


The NLCCG quality dashboard contains an overview of performance against national and local quality 
indicators across the CCG’s main providers, using latest data available.  
 
The CCG’s main providers are provided in diagram 1 below.  
 
Quality indicators are categorised into three section; these are safety, effectiveness and experience.  
Each provider is RAG rated according to their performance.  
 


Diagram 1 – CCG’s main providers  
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2. The RAG Rating Key  


 


The RAG rating key is based on the Yorkshire and Humber Quality Surveillance Group rating 


system.  
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3. Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection ratings for the CCG’s main providers (as at 19th 


April 2019) 


Provider  
Overall CQC rating (latest 


position) 
Breakdown of CQC Rating  


Northern Lincolnshire & 
Goole NHS Foundation Trust  


Requires Improvement  


Latest report published on 12 September 
2018.  
Safe - Requires improvement 
Effective - Requires improvement 
Caring - Good 
Responsive - Requires improvement 
Well-led - Inadequate 


Hull and East Yorkshire 
Hospitals NHS Trust  


Requires Improvement  


Latest report published on 1 June 2018. 
Safe - Requires improvement 
Effective - Good 
Caring - Good 
Responsive - Requires improvement 
Well-led - Good 


East Midlands Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust   


Requires Improvement 


Latest report published on 13 June 2017. 
Safe - Requires improvement 
Effective - Requires improvement 
Caring - Good 
Responsive - Good 
Well-led - Requires improvement 


Rotherham Doncaster and 
South Humber NHS 
Foundation Trust  


Good  


Latest report published on 28 June 2017. 
Safe - Requires improvement 
Effective - Good 
Caring - Good 
Responsive - Good 
Well-led - Good 


Thames Ambulance Service 
Limited  


Inadequate  


Latest report published February 2019.  
Safe - Inadequate 
Effective - Inadequate 
Caring - Inadequate 
Responsive - Inadequate 
Well-led - Inadequate 


HMT St Hugh's Hospital   Requires improvement  


Latest report published on 22 December 
2017. 
Safe - Requires improvement 
Effective - Requires improvement 
Caring - Not assessed 
Responsive - Not assessed 
Well-led - Requires improvement 


Spire Hull and East Riding 
Hospital  


Good  


Latest report published 15 November 
2018. 
Safe – Good;  
Effective – Good;  
Caring - Good 
Responsive – Good;  
Well-led - Good 
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4. Quality Dashboard  


Table 2: for the CCG’s main providers, using latest published data available at the time of writing  


CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Safe 


NLAG 
Requires 


improvement 


No. of C.Difficile cases  
Mar 2019 


21 lapses 
in care 


5 lapses in 
care 


Remains the 
same     


No. of MRSA cases  
Mar 2019 


Nil  Nil 
Remains the 


same   


Patient Safety 
Thermometer  


Mar 2019 


95% 
 93.8% 
(Acute) Improvement     


Staffing - Vacancy rate 
(Medical) 


Mar 2019 


<15% 14.53% 
Remains the 


same    


Staffing - Vacancy rate 
(Registered Nurses) 


  Mar 2019 


<6% 8.63% 
Remains the 


same      


Staffing - Vacancy rates 
(Unregistered Nurses) 


Mar 2019 


<2% 1.45% Improvement   


Duty of Candour incidents 
(reported as an SI – failure 
to notify relevant person) 


Mar 2019 
Nil 3 Deterioration 


  


National Early Warning 
Score (NEWS) 


Feb 2019 


<90% 73.16% Deterioration   


WHO Safer Surgery 
checklists Dec 2018 


95% 99.8% Improvement  
  


HEY 
Requires 


improvement  


No. of C.Difficile cases  
Mar 2019 53 


Nil (lapse in 
care) Improvement    


No. of MRSA cases  
Mar 2019 Nil  Nil 


Remains the 
same    
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Patient Safety 
Thermometer  Mar 2019 91.7 93.8% Improvement   


Staffing Vacancy  
Nov - 2018 


Not 
defined 


RN: 10.9% 
Improvement    


Incident management  
Mar 2019 


No 
concerns  No concerns 


Remains the 
same     


Safer Surgery checklists Q3 
2018/2019 100% 100% 


Remains the 
same    


RDASH  
Requires 


improvement  


No. of C.Difficile cases  
Feb 2019  Nil Nil 


Remains the 
same     


No. of MRSA cases  
Feb 2019  Nil Nil 


Remains 
same   


Patient Safety 
Thermometer  Mar 2019 94 87.9% Deterioration   


Staffing  
Mar 2019 


Nil 
concerns  Concerns Deterioration   


Duty of Candour incidents 
Feb 2019 Nil 1 Improvement    


Reducing Restrictive 
Interventions (use of 


restraint)  Feb 2019 
Not 


defined 6 Deterioration    


Incident management  
Feb 2019 


Not 
defined No concerns  


Remains the 
same     


EMAS 
Requires 


improvement  


Hand hygiene  April 2019  100% 80% Improvement    


Deep cleans  
April 2019 100% 100% Improvement   


Staffing  
April 2019 No 


concerns  
Concerns 
identified  


Remains the 
same    
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Incident management  
April 2019 No 


concerns  
Some 


concerns  
Remains the 


same    


St Hugh's 
hospital  


Requires 
Improvement 


No. of C.Difficile cases  
Feb 2019 Not 


defined Nil 
Remains the 


same    


No. of MRSA cases  
Feb 2019 Not 


defined Nil 
Remains the 


same    


Patient Safety 
Thermometer  


April 2019 


92.3% 100%  Improvement    


National Early Warning 
Score (NEWS) 


Feb 2019 


>95% 99% Improvement   


Staffing  
Feb 2019 No 


concerns  
No concerns 


identified  
Remains the 


same    


Incident management  
Feb 2019 No 


concerns  
No concerns  


identified  Improvement    


Safer Surgery checklists 
Feb 2019 


100% 100% 
Improvement    


Spire 
hospital  


Good 


No. of C.Difficile cases  
Mar 2019 Nil  Nil 


Remains the 
same    


No. of MRSA cases  
Mar 2019 


Nil  Nil 
Remains the 


same    


Patient Safety 
Thermometer  


Mar 2019 


100% 100% 
Remains the 


same   


National Early Warning 
Score (NEWS) 


Mar 2019 


95% 91% Deterioration   


Staffing  
Mar 2019 No 


concerns  No concerns  No concerns    


Incident management  
Mar 2019 No 


concerns  No concerns  No concerns    
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Safer Surgery checklists 
Mar 2019 


100% 95% Deterioration   


Effective 


NLAG 
Requires 


improvement  


Audit  Mar 2019 
No 


concerns  
No 


Concerns  
Remains the 


same     


NICE compliance  
Mar 2019 95% 94.6% 


Remains the 
same   


CAS  
Mar 2019 100% 


Some alerts 
outstanding Improvement   


Mortality position  
Dec 2018 100 


SHMI: 112; 
HSMR: 113 Improvement   


Accreditation  Mar 2019 
Fully 


compliant 


Non-
compliant 


with JAG at 
SGH 


Remains the 
same   


  


Nutrition & Hydration  
Nov-17 95% 


Food: 93.3%; 
Fluid: 87.9% 


Remains the 
same    


HEY Good 


Audit 
Mar 2019 


No 
concerns   


No 
significant 
concerns  


Remains the 
same     


NICE Guidance 
compliance  Feb 2019 


Not 
defined  


No sig 
concerns  


Remains the 
same    


CAS  
Feb 2019 100% 100% 


Remains the 
same   


Mortality position  
June 2018 95 


HSMR 82.6 
(SHMI: 95.8) 


Remains the 
same   


Accreditation  
Feb 2019 


No 
concerns  No concerns  


Remains the 
same   
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Nutrition & Hydration  
Jan 2019 


No 
concerns  


No sig 
concerns  


Remains the 
same   


RDASH  
Requires 


improvement 


Audit 
Feb 2019 Fully 


compliant 
No concerns 


identified  
Remains the 


same    


NICE compliance  
Feb 2019 Fully 


compliant 
No concerns 


identified  
Remains the 


same    


CAS  
Feb 2019 Not 


defined  
No concerns 


identified Improvement   


Accreditation  
Feb 2019  Fully 


compliant No concerns  
Remains the 


same   


EMAS 
Requires 


improvement  


Audit 
Aril 2019 No 


concerns  No concerns  Improvement    


ACQI compliance  
April 19 No 


concerns 
No sig 


concerns 
Remains the 


same    


CAS  
Feb 19 


100% 100% 
Remains the 


same    


Accreditation / Standards  
April 2019 No 


concerns  No concerns  
Remains the 


same   


St Hugh's 
hospital  


Requires 
Improvement 


Audit  
Feb 2019 


95% 
81% - Fluid 


Management 
Remains the 


same   


NICE compliance  
Feb 2019 


Fully 
compliant  


55% - NICE 
CG65 


Hypothermia 
Remains the 


same    


CAS  
Feb 2019 


100% 


Non-
compliant in 


1 area Improvement    


Accreditation 
Feb 2019 


100% 100% 
Remains the 


same   
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Nutrition & Hydration  
Feb 2019 No 


concerns  No concerns  Improvement    


Spire 
hospital  


Good 


Audit 
Mar 2019 


No 
concerns  


No concerns  
Remains the 


same    


NICE compliance  
Mar 2019 


100% 100% 
Remains the 


same   


CAS  
Mar 2019 


100% 100% 
Remains the 


same   


Accreditation  
Mar 2019 


100% 100% 
Remains the 


same   


Caring  


NLAG Good 


Pressure ulcers  


Mar 2019 


Not 
defined  


55 (35 x 
grade 2; 


grade 3 x 9; 
nil x grade 4) 


Remains the 
same  


  


Falls 
Mar 2019 


 


All: 117; 1 x 
serious harm Improvement   


HEY Good 


Pressure ulcers  
Feb 2019 Not 


defined 
19 (5 


avoidable) 
Remains the 


same    


Falls (per 1000 bed days) 
Feb 2019 Reduction 


on 17/18  0.25 
Remains the 


same    


RDASH  Good 


Falls (North Lincs) 
Feb 2019 Not 


defined 3 Improvement    


Pressure ulcers (NL) 
Feb 2019 


Nil Nil  
Remains the 


same    


EMAS Good Regulator feedback  
April 2019 


No 
concerns  


No sig 
concerns  


Remains the 
same    


Spire Good Falls  
Feb 2019 <0.2%  Nil   


Improvement  
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


hospital  
Pressure ulcers  


Mar 2019 Nil Nil  
Remains the 


same    


St Hugh's 
hospital  


Good 


Falls  
Feb 2019 Not 


confirmed  Nil Improvement   


Pressure ulcers  
Feb 2019 


Nil Nil 
Remains the 


same    


Well-led 


NLAG Inadequate  


Risk Management  
Mar 2019 


No 
concerns  


No 
significant 
concerns  


Remains the 
same     


Culture  


Mar 2019 
No 


concerns  
Concerns 
identified  


Remains the 
same    


Staff training  
Mar 2019 85% 80%  Improvement      


Governance  Mar 2019 
No 


concerns  
No concerns  


Remains the 
same     


Equality & diversity  
Mar 2019 


Fully 
assured  No concerns  


Remains the 
same    


HEY Good 


Risk Management  


Feb 2019 


No 
concerns  No concerns  


Remains the 
same   


Culture  
Feb 2019 


No 
concerns  No concerns  


Remains the 


same 
  


Staff training  
Feb 2019 


90% 91%  


Remains the 


same 
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Governance  
Feb 2019 


No 
concerns  


No 
significant 
concerns  


Remains the 


same 
  


Equality & diversity  
Feb 2019 


Not 
defined  


No 
significant 
concerns  


Remains the 
same    


RDASH  Good 


Risk Management  
Feb 2019 No 


concerns  
No concerns  


Remains the 
same   


Culture  
Feb 2019 Not 


recorded  
No concerns 


identified  
Remains the 


same   


Staff training  
Feb 2019 No 


concerns  
No sig 


concerns  
Remains the 


same    


Governance  
Feb 2019 No 


concerns  No concerns  
Remains the 


same    


Equality & diversity  
Feb 2019 


No 
concerns  No concerns 


Remains the 
same   


EMAS 
Requires 


improvement  


Risk Management  
April 2019  


Nil 
concerns  


No sig 
concerns  


Remains the 


same 
  


Culture  
April 2019 


Nil 
concerns  No concerns  


Remains the 


same 
  


Staffing  


April 2019 


Nil 
concerns  


Concerns 
identified  


Remains the 


same 


  


Governance  
April 2019 


Nil 
concerns  


No sig 
concerns 


Remains the 


same 
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Equality & diversity  
April 2019 


Nil 
concerns No  concerns 


Remains the 


same 
  


St Hugh's 
hospital  


Requires 
Improvement 


Risk Management  
Feb 2019 Nil 


concerns  No Concerns  
Remains the 


same    


Culture  
Feb 2019 Nil 


concerns  No concerns  
Remains the 


same    


Staff training  
Feb 2019 Not 


recorded  
No concerns Remains the 


same    


Governance  
Feb 2019 Nil 


concerns  
Concerns 
identified 


Remains the 
same     


Equality & Diversity  
Feb 2019 Nil 


concerns  
No concerns 


identified  
Remains the 


same    


Spire 
hospital  


Good 


Risk Management  
Mar 2019 


Nil 
concerns  


No concerns 
identified  


Remains the 
same    


Culture  
Mar 2019 Nil 


concerns  
No concerns 


identified  
Remains the 


same    


Staff training  


Mar 2019 


85% 


Prevent 
training 20% 
(commenced 


1st Jan 19) 
Remains the 


same    


Governance  
Mar 2019 No 


concerns  
No concerns 


identified  
Remains the 


same    


Equality & diversity  
Mar 2019 Nil 


concerns  
No concerns 


identified  
Remains the 


same    


Responsive NL&G 
Requires 


improvement  
Friends & Family Test - 


Response Rate 


Mar 2019 


12.2% 


A&E: 5.7%;  
Inpatients:  


9% Improvement   
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Friends & Family Test - 
Positive response 


Mar 2019 


85% 


A&E:  75%; 
Inpatients: 


99% Improvement   


Complaints  
Q3 


2018/19 Not 
defined 130 


Remains the 
same    


Mixed Sex 
Accommodation  


Mar 2019 


Nil  Nil Improvement   


Access & Flow  


Mar 2019 


92% 
RTT - 76.2%; 
A&E: 83.8% 


Improvement  


  


HEY 
Requires 


improvement  


Friends & Family Test - 
Response rate 


Mar 2019 
12.2%; 
24.6% 


A&E:  16.9%; 
Inpatient: 


14.4% 


Remains the 
same   


  


Friends & Family Test - 
Positive response 


Mar 2019 


85%; 99% 


A&E – 83%; 
Inpatient: 


98% 


Remains the 
same  


  


Complaints  
Feb 2019 


Not 
defined  61 


Remains the 
same     


Mixed Sex 
Accommodation  Feb 2019 Nil Nil  


Remains the 
same    


Access & Flow  
Feb 2019 


No 
concerns  


RTT 78.09%; 
A&E 73.42% 


Remains the 
same    


RDASH  Good 


Friends & Family Test  - 
Response rate 


Mar 2019 Not 
defined 


>1% Remains the 
same    


Friends & Family Test - 
Positive response 


Mar 2019 Not 
defined 


93% Remains the 
same    


Complaints  
Feb 2019  Not 


defined  2 
Remains the 


same    
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Mixed Sex 
Accommodation  


Feb 2019 


Nil Nil  
Remains the 


same    


Access & Flow  
Feb 2019 No 


concerns  
Concerns 
identified  


Remains the 
same     


EMAS Good 


Friends & Family Test  - 
Response rate 


Mar 2019 Not 
defined 


Nil response  
NA   


Friends & Family Test - 
Positive response 


Mar 2019 Not 
defined 


Nil response 
NA   


Complaints (Lincs) 
April 2019 Not 


defined 3 Improvement   


Access & Flow  


Feb 2019 


National 
ARP 


Non-
compliant 


with Cat 1, 2, 
& 3 


Remains the 
same     


St Hugh's 
hospital  


Good 


FFT response  (inpatients) 
Mar 2019 Not 


defined 100% 
positive Improvement   


FFT response 
(Outpatients) 


Jan 2019 Not 


defined 
99% positive  Improvement   


Complaints  
Jan 2019 Not 


defined 1 Improvement   


Mixed Sex 
Accommodation  


Feb 2019 


Nil  Nil 
Remains the 


same    


Access & Flow  
Feb 2019 Nil 


concerns 
Some 


concerns  Improvement    


Spire 
hospital  


Good 
Friends & Family Test (% 


response rate) 
Mar 2019 Not 


defined  29.4% 


Improvement 
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CQC domain  Provider  
Latest CQC 


rating  
Quality indicator  


Latest 
Reporting 


Period 


Target/  
Tolerance 


Actual 
Direction of 


travel  
Current RAG 


rating  


Friends & Family Test (% 
Positive 


Recommendation)  Mar 2019 
Not 


defined 97% 
Remains the 


same  


Complaints  
Mar 2019 


24 per 
annum 


5 (total 19 per 


annum) 


Remains the 
same    


Mixed Sex 
Accommodation  Mar 2019 Nil Nil  


Remains the 
same    


Access & Flow  
Mar 2019 


No 
concerns  


No concerns  
Remains the 


same  
  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


42 
 


6.2 Appendix 2 - Glossary of Abbreviations 


 
NHS National Health Service  


NLCCG North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group  


NLaG Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust 


HEY Hull and East Yorkshire NHS Hospitals Trust 


RDASH Rotherham Doncaster & South Humber NHS Mental Health Trust 


EMAS East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust  


TASL  Thames Ambulance Service Limited  


Spire Hull & East Riding Spire Hospital 


St Hugh’s HMT St Hugh’s Hospital (Grimsby) 


ULHT United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust 


NHS NHS England 


YTD Year To Date  


A&E Accident & Emergency  


MRI Magnetic Resonance Imaging 


CT Computerised Tomography scan 


HDU High Dependency Unit 


CHC Continuing Healthcare 


FNC  Funded Nursing Care  


QIPP Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention programme 


MH Mental Health 


LD Learning Disability  


IP&C Infection Prevention & Control  


MRSA Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus 


MSSA Methicillin-sensitive Staphylococcus aureus 


E-Coli  Escherichia coli 


SHMI  Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator 


ARP Ambulance Response Programme  


IAPT Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 


CPA Care Programme Approach 


RTT  Referral to Treatment waiting times  
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Date: 13 June 2019  Report Title: 


Meeting: NL CCG Governing 
Body Meeting 


 Planning Update 2019/20  


Item Number: 9.1  


Public/Private: Public ☒     Private☐   


   Decisions to be made:  


Author: 


(Name, Title) 


Emma Sayner 


Chief Finance Officer 


 The Governing Body Members are asked to note the 
report including the presentation and letter from the 
Accountable Officers to the Regional Director. 


 GB Lead: 


(Name, Title) 


  


Director 
approval  


(Name) 


Emma Sayner  


Director 
Signature 


  


 


 


Link to a Strategic 
Objective? 


☒ 
 


Link to a Strategic Risk ☒  


 


Continue to improve the quality of 
services 


☒ Improve patient experience ☐ 


Reduced unwarranted variations in 
services 


☒ 
Reduce the inequalities gap in North 
Lincolnshire 


☐ 


Deliver the best outcomes for every 
patient 


☒ Statutory/Regulatory ☐ 


Purpose (tick one only) 
Approval


  ☐ 


Information 


 ☐ 


To 


note   ☒ 


Decision 


  ☐ 


Assurance 


☐ 


 


Executive Summary (Question, Options, Recommendations): 


The enclosed documents provide an update to the Governing Body on the recent communication 
between NL CCG, NEL CCG and Northern Lincolnshire and Goole Foundation Trust with the regional 
NHS Improvement/England team.  The report comprises a presentation pack and a follow up letter to 
the Regional Director.   


As previously reported the CCG has agreed and signed the contract for 2019/20 with Northern 
Lincolnshire and Goole Foundation Trust.  


The purpose of taking the governing body through this detail is to provide wider context to how the 
teams are attempting to work together to ensure, in the short, medium and long term, the system 
achieves the highest possible quality and efficiency for the services the population require across 
Northern Lincolnshire.  


Recommendations  







 


 


1 The Board are asked to note the attached presentation and letter. 
 


Report history 
The presentation has been made to NHS Improvement/England colleagues and 
to internal team meetings. 
 


Equality Impact Yes ☐     No ☒  


Sustainability Yes ☒     No ☐ 


The way of working described is wholly aimed at ensuring 
the CCG has sustainable service provision for the 
population. 
 


Risk Yes ☒     No ☐ 


This heralds a new way of working which by virtue is a risk 
the specifics will be discussed and debated during the 
discussion. 
 


Legal Yes ☐     No ☒  


Finance Yes ☒     No ☐ 


There will be financial implications of the system wide 
arrangement that will be both positive and negative in terms 
of impact for the CCG. 
 


 


Patient, Public, Clinical and Stakeholder Engagement to date 


 N/A Y N Date  N/A Y N Date 


Patient: ☐ ☐ ☐  Clinical: ☐ ☐ ☐  


Public: ☐ ☐ ☐  Other:  ☐ ☐ ☐  


 







 
 
 


 
 
8 May 2019 


 
 
Dear Richard and Andrew 
 
Northern Lincolnshire System Plan for 2019/20 


           
Firstly we would like to express our appreciation to you and your colleagues for the time taken in 
understanding the significant challenges we face but also specifically the offer that is being made 
as outlined in your letter dated 2 May 2019.   
 
As described in the presentation we made to you on 12 April 2019, there has been a huge amount 
of multi-disciplinary work and focus undertaken during 2018/19 by the leaders as well as the 
operational members of our respective organisations in order to get us to this position. 
 
Each of the terms of the offer as described in your letter has now been completed and specifically 
we have undertaken the following: 
 
1) Provided written and detailed confirmation of the schemes and financial flows that will deliver 


the residual £2m financial benefit which will be made available into Northern Lincolnshire and 


Goole Foundation Trust during 2019/20. 


 
2) Recommended and had specific Trust Board approval on 7 May 2019 for Northern Lincolnshire 


and Goole Foundation Trust. 


We are pleased to formally confirm our collective agreement to the offer being made. The three 
organisations have agreed to work on system transformation and financial sustainability and whilst 
there will be unanticipated and unknown factors that will emerge during the financial year, we 
confirm our commitment to doing everything in our power to ensure we achieve financial 
performance against the revised aggregate system control total across the Northern Lincolnshire 
System.    
 
We are aware that as a result of agreeing to the aggregate system control total that this 
automatically removes the financial consequences of the known penalty regime.  However, we do 
want to respectfully re-iterate the basis on which this offer is accepted must also be that any further 
guidance which may result in penalties, that are not currently confirmed, will not be externally 
imposed on the system (for example commissioner based penalties linked to 52 week targets) as 
this would directly compromise delivery.   
 
We hope this provides you with the written assurance you require. 
 
Yours sincerely 


 
 
Emma Latimer   Dr Peter Reading   Dr Peter Melton 


Chief Officer   Chief Executive    Clinical Chief Officer 
North Lincolnshire CCG  Northern Lincolnshire and Goole  North East Lincolnshire CCG 


NHS Foundation Trust 
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NLAG System Meeting  
12 April 2019 



http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj6xa_6uMndAhVKQBoKHQBMC38QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=http://www.lincsfm.co.uk/news/local-news/head-of-north-lincolnshire-ccg-steps-down-after-finance-warnings/&psig=AOvVaw2mI8O640zcjgKyiGbqWgI2&ust=1537528163903301





Agenda 
  
1.  Purpose of Meeting  - Richard & STP  - To understand the  


a) level of financial and delivery risk within the system for 19/20 (covered below)  
b) steps to address these challenges during the year (covered below) 


  
2.  Summary of 19/20 system plans 


a) Control Total position & reported risk, including bridge from 18/19 to 19/20  
b) Key performance target delivery & how reflected in the above  


  
3.    Proposals to address the 19/20 system financial & performance challenges  -  


System Leaders    
  
4.  Response & Agreement of next steps – Richard & STP  


a) Timescale for System Action Plan development, including the Humber Acute 
Services Review  -  


b) Future review arrangements   
  
5.  Closing  Reflections 


 







How the Northern Lincolnshire System has 
operated during 2018/9 and into 2019/20 


• Weekly structured meetings in place for the entire year (ranging from half day to 
full day sessions) in addition to the formal contract management arrangements 
 


• Focussed on gaining a consistent understanding of the technical agenda and 
activity alignment 
 


• Established a clearly defined work plan that has seen us debate issues, fix, 
agree and then move on 
 


• Principles of working clearly defined 
 
• When things have got tricky this has been invaluable 
  
• Conversations have not been easy but without question constructive 
 
• Given the changes in key personnel it’s been a year of getting to know each 


other  


 







What has been achieved so far? 


• System wide focus which has achieved a single version of the truth 
specifically in relation to technical aspects of the contract  


 
• Gained agreement on the required levels of activity in 2019/20  
 
• Signed contracts on 21 March 2019 for 2019/20 
 
• Comprehensive and focussed Service Development Improvement Plan 


(SDIP) formally incorporated into the contract 
 
• The SDIP describes the priority areas of focus for in year improvement 


financially, operationally and clinically 


 







 
2) Summary of 2019/20 system plans  


a) Control total position and reported risk; 
including bridge 2018/19 to 2019/20 


 
– NLaG 
– NL CCG 
– NEL CCG 







Northern Lincolnshire and Goole Foundation Trust 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


• Control total set without recognising the final outturn position for 2018/19  of a (£60m )deficit 
• Budget set on agreed activity levels with CCG s including QIPP plans, except £1m difference with east Lincs 
• CIP set at £20m, of which £4.4m defined as high risk 
• Currently therefore £12m off the target control total, or £13m once additional interest costs included, and therefore Trust 


not accepted for 2019/20 
 


CONTROL TOTAL LETTER
Baseline deficit recognised by NHSI -
AS PER LETTER (46.8)


Funding via Tariff
Uplift in Urgent Care Prices 6.1
CNST (1.0)
Other (1.3) 3.8


Additional cip above 1.1%  (0.5%) 1.8
MRET central funding 3.7 5.5


Non-Recurring PSF and MSF 22.1


DEFICIT CONTROL TOTAL (15.4)


Base Deficit


Deficit due to 
not accepting 
Control Total


£m £m £m £m
Forecast Outturn -60075 -60075


Tariff uplift 9940 9940
Margin on Activity 4328 4328
Inflation and related -13285 -13851
Rollover Costs -9606 -9606
Change to Asset Life -1746 -1746
Developments/Reserves -3000 -13369 -3000 -13935


Gross Deficit -73444 -74010


CIPs 20000 20000


Revised defict -53444 -54010


MRET Central Funding 3700 0
MSF/PSF 22100 0
Donations adj 100 100


DEFICIT -27544 -53910







NLAG 2019/20 COST IMPROVEMENT  


2019-20 COST IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME DASHBOARD - 


Pipeline


Workstream Idea Only Scoping In Progress Ready In Delivery
FY 19-20 


Identified
Clinical Workforce - Medical Staff 191.3 658.3 1,601.3 106.4 1,827.6 4,384.9
Clinical Workforce - Nursing and Midwifery 162.6 83.0 1,099.7 15.6 680.4 2,041.3
Clinical Workforce - AHP Staff 24.0 0.0 698.2 0.0 0.0 722.2
Clinical Productivity 274.0 2,547.5 607.3 0.0 0.0 3,428.8
Clinical Strategy 0.0 40.0 499.0 69.0 0.0 608.0
Non-Pay and Procurement 467.2 712.0 1,421.5 786.5 1,403.7 4,790.9
Income 138.0 800.0 2,346.5 21.8 0.0 3,306.3
Estates & Facilities 614.9 0.0 674.3 0.0 141.3 1,430.5
Corporate and Non-Clinical Workforce 12.0 3,326.7 578.4 0.0 193.0 4,110.1
Grip & Control 0.0 0.0 686.6 0.0 0.0 686.6
Unallocated 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


2019-20 TOTAL CIP PROGRAM 1,884.0 8,167.5 10,212.8 999.3 4,246.0 25,509.6


Risk Adjusted 20,095.0







 
North Lincolnshire CCG 


 
• 2019/20 Control Total accepted at £1m deficit reflected in the 


latest financial plan submission 
• Legal Directions exited August 2018 
• 2018/19 draft financial position achieved 
• Financial Recovery Plan refreshed  
• Historical financial  and QIPP performance  
• Bridge diagram 2018/19 to 2019/20 
• 2019/20 QIPP Plan 
 


 











2018/19 QIPP Delivery 
 
Plan  £6m 
Achieved £7.2m 
20% over-achieved 















North East Lincolnshire CCG 
 


• Control Total of in-year breakeven reflected in the latest financial 
plan submission 
 


• 2018/19 draft financial position achieved 
 


• Analysis of QIPP 
 


• Bridge diagram 2018/19 to 2019/20 
 
 


 


 







NEL CCG – QIPP analysis 
QIPP 


£'m 


NLAG transformation schemes (consistent with SDIP) 1.901 


- Day case to Outpatient 


- Right Care (Gastro,Respiratory & Cardio) 


- High Cost Drugs 


- Advice & Guidance 


Non Elective Demand Management 2.000 


Prescribing (GPs & Nurse) 0.700 


Integrated Care Partnership - system productivity 0.250 


Continuing Health Care 0.250 


Primary Care Premises  0.326 


Unidentified 0.167 


Total (2% of allocation) 5.594 


£600k - potential Further Risk/QIPP re Primary Care delegated allocation top slice. CCG uplift after top slice of 
only 1.57% 







NEL CCG Bridge diagram 
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Movement between 2018/19 Outturn and 2019/20 Plan Surplus 







 
2) Summary of 2019/20 system plans  


b) Key performance target delivery and how 
reflected in the above 


 







19-20 Outturn Performance Plan 
Constitutional Performance targets 


19-20 Forecast Outturn 


NLAG NL CCG NEL CCG 


RTT Incomplete Pathway 81.20% 81.50% 83.20% 
RTT 52 Week Waits 0 0 0 
Diagnostics Test Waiting Times 7.20% 7.40% 11.90% 
Cancer Waiting Times - 2 Week Wait 95.60% 93% 93% 
Cancer Waiting Times - 2 Week Wait (Breast Symptoms) 95.70% 93% 93% 
Cancer Waiting Times - 31 Day First Treatment 99.40% 96.20% 96% 
Cancer Waiting Times - 31 Day Surgery 100% 94.10% 94% 
Cancer Waiting Times - 31 Day Drugs 100% 98% 98% 
Cancer Waiting Times - 31 Day Radiotherapy   94.10% 94% 
Cancer Waiting Times - 62 Day GP Referral 80.80% 82.50% 77.10% 
Cancer Waiting Times - 62 Day Screening 90.90% 90% 90% 
Cancer Waiting Times - 62 Day Upgrade 83.30% 100% 90% 
A&E  89.80%     


Notes: 
 
• Performance trajectory consistent with control total  
• Plans for a continuing reduction in Waiting list by 2311 
• Increase in compliance of RTT to 81.2% ( 5.8%) 
• A&E 2.5% increase planned for Q4 







 
 


 
3) Proposals to address the 2019/20 
system financial and performance 


challenges  
 







 
System wide approach to financial and delivery risk 


 
•  Tactical 


– PBR based approach but with aligned incentive approach to maximise joint working to support 
delivery of system requirements 


– Robust intelligence for service redesign rather than contract challenge 
– Focus on cost out and “win win” scenarios 
– Reviewed SDIP to ensure we’ve prioritised areas of greatest system impact 


• Outpatient transformation 
• Repatriation of activity to NLG (as they build up capacity) 
• Drug efficiencies 
• UTC & Integrated Urgent Care 


 
• Operational 


– NLAG Cost Improvement Programme 
– CCG QIPPs 
– Pathway transformation linked to HASR but that can be implemented in year e.g. cardiology  
– Aligned governance and transformation programmes 


 
• Strategic 


– Genuine commitment to managing system wide financial risk 
– GIRFT, RightCare and Model Hospital programmes 
– Elective Care programme 
– HASR 


 







    SRO Leads Delivery Group: 


NLaG SDIP Schemes Summary of Project NLaG  NLCCG  NELCCG NLaG  NLCCG  NELCCG Support
ed by 


 UTC 


To developed implement Urgent Treatment centres inline with national guidance in 
partnership/alliance with local providers.  The new pathways are due to be 
implemented in the Q3 and the funding flows will be redesigned as part of the 
programme 


Shaun 
Stacey 


Alex 
Seale 


Helen 
Kenyon 


Pete 
Bowker 


Jane 
Ellerton 


Andy 
Ombler 


Claire 
Algar 


Outpatient 
Transformation  


A radical transformation of outpatient services is being undertaken for 7 specialities 
(ENT, Ophthalmology, Urology, Colorectal, Gastroenterology. Respiratory, Cardiology) to 
include virtual clinics, Advice & Guidance, pathway changes to reduce follow-up by 
discharging back to primary care, primary care demand management by new ways of 
working in the community.  They transformation schemes will be delivered on a 
30/60/90 day mandate will accountability held both internally within the Trust and at 
Contracting meetings 


Shaun 
Stacey 


Alex 
Seale 


Helen 
Kenyon 


Kerry 
Higgins 


Jane 
Ellerton Julie Wilson   


Counting and Coding 


The Trust in partnership with commissioners is reviewing counting and coding practices 
to ensure compliance with the data dictionary, accurate coding so the associated HRG is 
an accurate reflection of the acuity of the patients care.   
This is an open book exercise with support from Grant Thornton to ensure clarity of 
information flows and data sets for all commissioners, improved clinical engagement 
with reference to clinical coding and co-morbidity recording, accuracy of point of 
delivery and associated coding, impact assessment of changing practices and 
subsequent agreement in line with the cap of increase income of £3m. 


Richard 
Eley 


Emma 
Sayner 


Laura 
Whitton Zoe Plant Emma 


Mundey 
Martin 


Rabbetts 


Grant 
Thornto


n 


High Cost Drugs 
A review of opportunities to identify QIPP/CIP/Gain Share i.e. Win/Wins for partner 
organisations by implementation of electronic prescribing, Blueteq,  and pump priming 
of a High Cost Drugs Pharmacist.  


Shaun 
Stacey 


Alex 
Seale 


Helen 
Kenyon 


Simon 
Priestley 


Emma 
Mundey 


Eddie 
McCabe 


Rachel 
Stanifor


th 


Day Case to 
Outpatient 
Procedures 


This is part of the outpatient and the counting and coding work above.  Specifically it is 
to ensure all procedures that can be moved to an outpatient setting are reviewed and 
plans put in place to transition them once the accommodation/equipment needs have 
been identified.  The coding of these procedures is problematic as there currently is no 
outpatient procedure waiting list on the system so a mechanism will need to be found 
to reduce the HRG tariff from the DC to the OPD Tariff. 


Shaun 
Stacey 


Alex 
Seale 


Helen 
Kenyon 


Paul 
Hinchliffe / 


Jackie 
France 


Jane 
Ellerton Julie Wilson Kerry 


Higgins 


Detailed and focussed 2019/20 SDIP  







Humber Acute Services Review 


• Refreshed pace and focus established 
• Initial meeting sorted governance and purpose  
• Second meeting high level assessment of each 


speciality by site , risks and areas of best practice 
• Last meeting reviewed the case for change; close down 


original  programme plans for the 6 fragile specialities  
• Production of spec for additional external support for 


support for demand/activity/cost 
• Feedback from NLaG - HUTHT board to board  
• Real requirement to strengthen clinical leadership  







Longer term focus 
• Continue transformation using GIRFT, Right Care and 


Model hospitals  
• Continue focus on admission prevention – Urgent 


care/Frail Elderly – North Humber learning ( reduced 
admissions and decrease in LoS). 


• Repatriation of planned work  - GP referrals 40% NL,  
33% NEL  and 25% of DC/IP for both CCG’s 


• HASR – 
–  Best use of workforce, standardisation and improved 


productivity 
– Centralisation of ‘acute’ element where appropriate 
– ROI and improved productivity for Capital investment 


 
 


 
 







Support required from NHSE/I 
• Approval of the short medium and long term system 


plan/narrative 
• Recognition of how far we have come working together as a 


system 
• Despite a financial gap resource cover in lieu of MRET, PSF, 


FRP  
• Relaxation of penalty regime 
• Additional capability from displaced NHSE/I capacity (or 


others) 
• Clinical Lead for HASR accountable to NHSE/I 
• Specific resource to cover the detailed modelling piece for 


HASR 
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Executive Summary (Question, Options, Recommendations): 


 


 
The BMA GP (England) committee and NHS England have agreed, through the national contract 
negotiations, for the development and rollout of PCNs (Primary Care Networks). PCNs are groups of 
GP practices working more closely together, with other primary and community care staff and health 
and care organisations, providing integrated services to their local populations. 
 
GP practices will be able to establish or join PCNs covering populations of between 30,000 to 50,000 
(with some flexibility).  A DES (directed enhanced service) will support the development of PCNs and 
will cover a number of areas, including funding for the provision of additional workforce and services 
that the PCN will be required to provide. 







 
To be recognised as a PCN, individual GP practices were required to make a brief joint 
submission outlining: 
 


 the names and the ODS codes of the member practices 


 the network list size (i.e. the sum of member practices’ lists as of 1 January 2019) 


 a map clearly marking the agreed network area 


 a copy of the initial network agreement signed by all member practices (see below) 


 a named clinical director from among the clinicians in the network (additional funding is 
provided for this role) 


 the single practice or provider that will receive funding on behalf of the PCN. 
 
PCN’s were required to submit a registration request to the CCG by 15th May 2019 for consideration 
and approval. 
 
This paper is to update the Governing Body on the outcome of the application and approval process  
 
 
 


Recommendations Governing Body are asked to note the contents of this report 


Report history N/A 


Equality Impact Yes ☐     No ☒ An equality impact assessment is not required for this report 


Sustainability Yes ☒     No ☐ NHS Long Term Plan 


Risk Yes ☒     No ☐ 
Risk associated with areas detailed on this report have 
been linked to organisational strategic risks 


Legal Yes ☐     No ☒ 
Legal responsibilities for primary care contracting remain 
with NHSE 


Finance Yes ☒     No ☐ 
PCN fund holding arrangements are detailed within this 
report 


 


Patient, Public, Clinical and Stakeholder Engagement to date 


 N/A Y N Date  N/A Y N Date 


Patient: ☒ ☐ ☐  Clinical: ☒ ☐ ☐  


Public: ☒ ☐ ☐ 
 
 


Other:  ☒ ☐ ☐ 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Introduction 
 
Following the conclusion of the national GP contract negotiations the BMA GP (England) 
Committee and NHS England have agreed for the development and rollout of Primary Care 
Networks (PCNs) PCNs are groups of GP practices working more closely together, with other 
primary and community care staff and health and care organisations, providing integrated services 
to their local populations.  
 
GP practices have the option to choose how they come together to form PCNs, however they do 
have to meet certain criteria to be authorised, as follows :- 
 


 They must cover populations of between 30,000 to 50,000 patients, however there is 
flexibility for them being over 50k. 
 


 Each PCN must appoint a Clinical Network Director from within the participating practices, 
it does not have to be a GP. This person will be accountable for the delivery of the PCNs 
objectives. 
 


 The network areas must be contiguous and make sense geographically to the 
commissioner and local Integrated Care Partnership 
 


 The Network Contract Directed Enhanced Service (DES) will support the development of 
PCNs and be a vehicle to commission services through, for example local enhanced 
services, improved access to primary care. 


 
Applications received 
 
North Lincolnshire CCG received 3 applications from our 19 practices to organise themselves into 
3 Primary care networks. East, South and West made up as follows:- 
  


 
West Network Member Practices 


ODS code Practice’s 
registered list size 
(as at 1 January 
2019) 


Church Lane Medical Centre B81064 8974 


Market Hill Y02787 6204 


South Axholme Practice B81043 14917 


The Birches Medical Practice B81617 8868 


The Oswald Road Medical Practice B81090 4524 


Total  43487 


Clinical Network Director Dr Gary Armstrong 
 


 
South Network Member Practices 


ODS code Practice’s 
registered list size 
(as at 1 January 
2019) 


Ancora Medical Practice B81026 19762 


Cambridge Avenue Medical Centre B81022 13943 


Ashby Turn Primary Care Partners B81045 12660 


Cedar Medical Practice B81113 7321 


West Common Lane B81118 7964 


The Kirton Lindsey and Scotter Surgery B81099 10124 


Total  71774 


Clinical Network Director Dr Hardik Ghandi (accountable) supported by Dr Andrew Lee 







 


 
East Network Member Practices 


ODS code Practice’s 
registered list size 
(as at 1 January 
2019) 


   


Dr S Ahmed B81628 2977 


Bridge Street Practice B81063 6368 


Central Surgery B81005 16841 


The Killingholme Surgery B81648 1441 


Riverside Surgery B81109 12824 


Trent View B81065 11501 


West Town Surgery B81647 3063 


Winterton Medical Practice B81007 9788 


Total  64803 


Clinical Network Director Dr Salim Modan 
 
Process 
 
Having ensured that the applications met the required criteria the Primary Care 
Commissioning Committee were asked to approve the applications at their meeting on 23rd 
May 2019 and I am pleased to report supported all 3 of the applications. The final stage in 
the process was to secure approval from the Humber Coast and Vale Health and Care 
Partnership through the Primary Care Programme Board their approval was obtained 30th 
May 2019. 
 
The PCNs now have until 30th June to agree their network agreement and complete sign up 
to the Network Contract Directed Enhanced Service. 
 
Summary 
 
The approval of the 3 primary care networks combined with the work the CCG has been 
undertaking with primary care over the last 18 months places the CCG and Primary Care in 
an excellent position to move at pace towards further developing and delivering care out of 
hospital. 
 
The Governing Body are asked to note the contents of this report.  
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Executive Summary (Question, Options, Recommendations): 


The enclosed paper provides a summary of the Quality Performance & Finance Committee meeting   
held on the 2nd May 2019.  
 


Recommendations 
1.  Please note the contents of the update 
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Patient, Public, Clinical and Stakeholder Engagement to date 


 N/A Y N Date  N/A Y N Date 


Patient: ☒ ☐ ☐  Clinical: ☒ ☐ ☐  


Public: ☒ ☐ ☐  Other:  ☒ ☐ ☐  


 







 


Chair’s Report to the Governing Body 


Quality, Performance and Finance Committee  


Meeting held on 2nd May 2019 


In accordance with the constitution, standing orders and Scheme of delegation, NLCCG has 


established the Quality, Performance and Finance committee. The purpose of the group is to 


ensure the continuing development of the monitoring and reporting of performance outcome 


metrics in relation to the CCG quality improvement, financial performance and management 


plans. The committee will ensure delivery of improved outcomes for patients in relation to the 


CCGs strategic objectives and continually aim to improve the quality of the services 


provided.   


This report reflects a summary of the meeting held on 2nd May 2019 and the agreed action 


points.   


Finance  


 
2nd May 2019  
 
 
 
 


The Committee were pleased to note a positive year-end position will all 
financial performance targets being achieved, including the agreed control 
total. 
 
The QIPP achievement for 2018-19 was £7,239m against a target of 
£5,997m. 
 
The Committee were fully assured of the CCGs year-end financial 
position.  


Quality and Performance 


 
2nd May 2019 
 


The Committee commenced using the new Assurance Criteria on each 
agenda items to agree the level of assurance in regards to  


 the CCG approach to managing quality and performance; and, 


 the quality and performance of services commissioned by the 
CCG.   


 
The Committee considered the performance data from a range of 
providers and undertook robust discussion in relation to the quality and 
performance implications within the Integrated Quality Performance and 
Finance Report (IQPF).  
 
The CCG is currently achieving 14 of the 31 constitutional and operational 
standards. This reflects improvement in one standard since the previous 
reported position; this was the 12 hour trolley breach indicator. NLaG 
continue to report challenges in meeting some of their constitutional 
standards including RTT standards, A&E standards and Cancer 62 day 
waiting time standards. The Trust has implemented plans to secure 
sustained improvement in these areas. The CCG continue to support the 
Trust in making these improvements, and this support has been well 
received. The Committee were partially assured of this position.  







 
EMAS performance against national standards remains challenging. A 
joint improvement plan has been developed with NELCCG to oversee 
improvement in the performance and quality of EMAS services. The 
Committee were not assured of the performance position, but were 
assured of the CCGs approach to securing improvement.  
 
The local Patient Transport Service transferred from Thames Ambulance 
Service Limited to Savoy Ventures on 7th March 2019. This was a smooth 
transition with no significant negative impact identified.  
 
In response to concerns identified by the CQC in NLaG Maternity services 
in their previous inspection, the CCG(s) undertook a Quality Risk Profile 
(QRP) of Maternity Services in April 2019. The overall risk score from the 
latest QRP was 7; this is improvement from the previous QRP that was 
undertaken in December 18 with an overall risk score of 14. 
 
Whilst further progress has been made by NLaG against the CQC ‘Must 
Do and ‘Should Do’ actions, the Committee are partially assured with the 
level of progress made by the Trust due to a number of actions in the 
Trust’s Improvement Plan that remain outstanding. However, the 
committee are assured with action taken by the CCG to monitor this 
position.  
 
No significant risks were identified from the agenda items. However the 
Committee identified that further assurance and escalation to other 
committees is required in the following areas:  
 
1. North Lincolnshire remains a low reporter of cases under the Learning 


Disabilities Mortality Review (LeDeR) Programme. The CCG is 
focusing on raising awareness of the Learning LeDeR process in 
primary care and care settings. The Committee were partially assured 
of this position and recognise that further work is needed to raise the 
profile of LeDeR in North Lincolnshire.  
 


2. The Committee were partially assured with the CCG current 
Improvement Assessment Framework (IAF) position in regards to 
antibiotic prescribing. The Committee were assured by the approach 
taken by the Medicines Management Team in reducing antibiotic 
prescribing, but further work is required to understand the CCG 
position in regards to the antimicrobial Resistance and antibiotic 
prescribing indicator in the IAF.  


 
3. The re-assessment of CCG compliance against the Equality Delivery 


System (EDS) identified that two of the EDS standards are rated as 
‘achieved’, and the remaining standards are rated as ‘developing’. The 
Committee were partially assured of the CCG assessment against the 
EDS ratings due to the number of areas that are rated as developing, 
but were assured of the approach taken by the CCG Equality and 
Inclusion (E&I) Meeting in progressing those actions rated as 
developing during 2019/20.    
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Executive Summary (Question, Options, Recommendations): 


Please see Report 
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Integrated Audit & Governance Committee (IA&GC) Update for Jun 2019 Governing Body 


17 April 2019 (Extraordinary Meeting) 


The committee reviewed the annual accounts and the annual governance statement as they both stood on 
that date and highlighted any changes that were required.  There was good progress at that date and no 
substantive issues from the external auditors 


22 May 2019 (Extraordinary Meeting) 


The final annual report and accounts were reviewed by the committee.  There were no issues on the annual 
accounts and the external auditors gave a clean audit.  The finance team should be commended for their 
handling of the audit and the effort they put in.  The annual report was also reviewed.  There were minor 
amends but the final document was much improved on previous years.  Many of the CCG team worked 
tirelessly to get the reports completed on time for the deadline. 


The committee signed off the accounts on behalf of the Governing Body.  It is noted that this is the first time 
in 3 years that the CCG was given an unqualified opinion for the financial statements, for regularity and VfM.  
CCG officers especially the CFO and her team should be commended for this result.   


22nd May – Main Meeting 


Papers 6.1 to 6.3 - Internal Audit 


The committee discussed a number of internal audit reports.  The governance and Risk Management audit 
was given “reasonable assurance”, the Patient and Stakeholder audit was given “good assurance” and 
Primary Care Medical Commissioning was given “substantial assurance”.  The committee received the 
reports and were comfortable with the assurance levels. 


The committee reviewed the audit plan for 2019/20 and are comfortable that it will be sufficient to give an 
internal audit opinion at the end of the year. 


Internal Audit gave the organisation a rating of “Good” for its annual report.  This is an improvement on the 
previous year.  The list of audits undertaken during the year is given below: 


   


Paper 7.2 Annual Contracts 


The committee received a summary report on the 2019/20 major contracts.  All but the EMAS contract 
which is let through another CCG are signed off.  This is an excellent result and the committee is assured that 
the signing of the contracts will help mitigate any risks of overspends. 


Paper 8.1 Risk Management Strategy 


The committee approved the revised risk management strategy which was updated to account for the new 
role of Chief Operating Officer (COO) and also the governing body’s risk appetite. 


 


 







 


 


Paper 8.2 Annual Health and Safety Report 


The committee received the annual health and safety report and appoved it.  There were minor comments 
around an outstanding fire risk assessment that has now been completed and H&S being on department 
agendas.  The committee felt it was good progress and a useful report. 


Papers 10.1 to 10.8 


The Committee received and noted the minutes from other committees and had nothing further to add.  The 
Chair of the Audit Committee will attend one of each of the meetings in the next 6 months as part of the 
committee’s assurance function 


Overall 


Overall the committee has a good level of assurance over the policies, papers and audits that it reviewed. 


 


 


Erika Stoddart 


Lay Chair of Governance and Chair of the Integrated Audit and Governance Committee 


04 June 2019 
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Executive Summary (Question, Options, Recommendations): 


The enclosed paper provides a summary of the Planning & Commissioning Committee meeting 
virtually held on Thursday 18th April 2019.  


 


Recommendations 
1: Governing Body is requested to note the report. 
 


Report history  


Equality Impact Yes ☐     No ☒ There are no direct implications from this report.  
However, any implications from the matters reported in this Sustainability Yes ☐     No ☒ 







 


 


Risk Yes ☐     No ☒ report have been included within the original documentation 
provided to the committee 


Legal Yes ☐     No ☒ 


Finance Yes ☐     No ☒ 
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 N/A Y N Date  N/A Y N Date 
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PLANNING & COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE 


MEETING HELD VIRTUALLY ON THURSDAY, 18TH APRIL 2019 


CHAIRS UPDATE REPORT 


 


Introduction  


This is the Chair’s report to the Clinical Commissioning Group Board following the Planning and 
Commissioning Committee held virtually on Thursday 18th April 2019.   
 


Medicines Optimisation Work Plan 


The Committee received the work plan virtually for comments and approval.  


The paper set out the proposal for a common approach to therapeutic areas where there is an 
opportunity to tackle such issues at scale across the Humber CCGs, the wider Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership (STP) and the support provided to the CCGs supported by NECS. The 
paper noted the potential benefit from such an approach as this would give a consistent message 
and reduce duplication. 


The members noted the content and approved the Medicines Optimisation work plan for 2019/20.  
 


Commissioning Work Plan 


The Committee received the work plan virtually for noting.  


The commissioning work-plan set out the priority areas for quarters 1 and 2, which reflect the 
content of the CCG Operational plan. Members were asked to support the prioritisation of the plans 
in order to focus capacity at the most essential elements of the plan.  


The members considered and noted the proposed commissioning work plan with minor 
amendments to ensure clarity.  
 


Programme Update – Hospital Care 


The Committee received the Programme Update for noting virtually.  


 
A summary of updates on the programme objectives along with risks, programme of work, outcome 
delivery and programme reporting were received.  
 
The members considered and noted the updated contents on the report.  
 
Patient Stories  
It was agreed at a previous committee meeting that the Head of Quality would identify a patient 
story relating to patient and carer experience of local dementia services, following a diagnosis of 
dementia. The Committee received an example and were asked to note and consider the impact of 
the findings described on the CCG commissioning process.   
 
The committee noted the patient story.   
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PRIMARY CARE COMMISSIONING (PUBLIC) 
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON  


23rd MAY 2019 


    CHAIR'S UPDATE REPORT 


 


INTRODUCTION 


 


This is the Chair's report to the Clinical Commissioning Group Board following the first 


meeting (post delegation) of the Primary Care Commissioning Committee. 


 


AGENDA ITEM 10.   UPDATED COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WORKPLAN 


 


The Committee accepted the updated Terms of Reference, in line with National Guidance, which 


have been updated to reflect delegation of the CCG.  The Committee accepted the updated workplan 


for 2019/20. 


 


AGENDA 9.   RISK BASED AUDIT OF PRIMARY CARE 


 


The Committee received the final internal audit report of Primary Medical Care Commissioning.  


NHS England issued an internal audit framework for delegated Clinical Commissioning Groups 


covering Primary Medical Care Commissioning and Contracting.  The framework is aimed at 


CCG’s who have fully delegated responsibilities however, at the time the framework was issued, 


NHS North Lincolnshire had not yet taken on delegated responsibilities but did work with NHS 


England on a joint basis.  


 


Results of the audit state that “Governance, risk management and control arrangements provide 


substantial assurance that the risks identified are managed effectively.  Compliance with the 


control framework was found to be taking place”. 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 11.  5 YEAR FRAMEWORK FOR GP CONTRACT 


REFORMS 


 


The Committee received a presentation on the 5 Year Framework for Contract Reform to implement the 


NHS Long Term Plan.  The information presented included details on Primary Care Networks, the DES 


contract, workforce and various funding flows and timelines. 


 


• 
AGENDA ITEM 13.   NHS ENGLAND UPDATE 


 
The Committee received an update from NHS England, the main areas to note were; 


 Primary Medical Care (PMS) Funding Differential Letter 


The national contract agreement has now been finalised and a letter has been distributed to 


practices on 12th April 2019 which included a financial statement for each practice, outlining next 


steps. 


 


 







 


 


 The GP Retention Scheme is a package of financial and educational support to help doctors, who 


might otherwise leave the profession, remain in clinical general practice. The GP Retention Scheme 


replaces the Retained Doctors Scheme 2016. The scheme continues to be managed jointly by the 


local offices of Health Education England (HEE) (through the designated HEE RGP Scheme Lead) 


and NHS England.  The Committee approved a recommendation to alter the approval process of 


the scheme to ensure that this is more steam lined and decision making based on local intelligence. 


 Funding for four of the Primary Care Transformation Fund Programme budgets will be going direct 


to Humber Coast and Vale Health and Care Partnership for 2019/20 rather than directly to CCGs or 


NHS England. The four programme areas included in the allocation are:  


 General Practice Resilience Programme  
 GP Recruitment and Retention Programme  
 Reception and Clerical Staff Training  
 Online Consultation 


 


 


 


Janice Keilthy 


Primary Care Commissioning Committee Chair 


May2019 
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING 


PRESENT: 


NAME TITLE ORGANISATION 


Dr Faisel Baig NL CCG Chair NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Emma Latimer Chief Officer NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Erika Stoddart  NL CCG Vice Chair  
Lay Member – Governance 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Emma Sayner 
Left at 14:50 
Re-entered at 15:10 


Chief Finance Officer NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Alex Seale Chief Operating Officer Designate NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Dr Satpal Shekhawat Associate Medical Director NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Geoff Day Director of Primary Care NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Clare Linley Director of Nursing & Quality 
Assurance 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Dr Hardik Gandhi 
Arrived at 1.35 pm 


NL CCG GP Member NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Dr Salim Modan NL CCG GP Member NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Dr Neveen Samuel NL CCG GP Member NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Dr Richard Shenderey Secondary Care Doctor NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Janice Keilthy NL CCG Lay Member,  
Patient & Public Involvement 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Heather McSharry 
Left at 14:40 
Re-entered at 14:45 


NL CCG Lay Member,  
Equality & Diversity 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Penny Spring Director of Public Health North Lincolnshire Council 


IN ATTENDANCE: 


Sally Andrews  PA -  to record the minutes of the 
meeting 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


John Pougher Head of Governance NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Mike Napier 
 


Associate Director of Corporate 
Affairs 


NHS Hull CCG 


Mark Williams Communications and Engagement 
Manager 


NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Amy Byard Communications Manager NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


APOLOGIES: 


Dr Gary Armstrong NL CCG GP Member NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


Dr Pratik Basu NL CCG GP Member NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 


 
 
 


MEETING: The 44th Meeting in Public of the 
NHS North Lincolnshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group Governing 
Body 
 


 
 
 


 
 


GOVERNING BODY  
PUBLIC MEETING 


MEETING DATE: Thursday 11 April 2019 


VENUE: Health Place, Wrawby Road, 
Brigg DN20 8GS 


TIME: 1.30 pm – 3.15 pm 
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1. WELCOME, ANNOUNCEMENTS, APOLOGIES AND QUORACY 
1.1     WELCOME 


The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed members and attendees to the 44th 
meeting, “in public” of the North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group Governing 
Body. 


 
1.2 ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 The Chair informed the meeting there were no announcements. 
 
1.3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 Apologies for absence were received and noted from: 
 Dr Gary Armstrong – GP Member  
 Dr Pratik Basu – GP Member 
 
1.4 QUORACY 


The Chair confirmed that the meeting was quorate to proceed. 


2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
In relation to any item on the agenda of the meeting members are reminded of the  
need to declare:   
 


 any interests which are relevant or material to the CCG  


 any changes in interest previously declared; or 


 any financial interest (direct or indirect) on any item on the agenda 
 
Any declaration of interest should be brought to the attention of the Chair in advance of 
the meeting or as soon as they become apparent in the meeting. For any interest 
declared the minutes of the meeting must record: 
 


 the name of the person declaring the interest 


 the agenda number to which the interest relates 


 the nature of the interest and the Action taken 


 be declared under this section and at the top of the agenda item which it relates to:  
 


Agreed Outcomes:   


(a) Agenda item 9.3 - Integrated Urgent Care – Urgent Treatment Centre:  
Dr Faisel Baig; Hardik Gandhi; Dr Salim Modan; Dr Neveen Samuel and 
Dr Satpal Shekhawat all declared direct interests as members of the 
Safecare Federation. 
Dr Faisel Baig and Dr Hardik Gandhi also declared direct interests as Out 
of Hours GPs for Core Care Links Limited. 
It was confirmed that they could remain present during consideration of 
the item. 


(b) Agenda item 9.4 – Estates Strategy and Plan 
Dr Hardik Gandhi; Dr Salim Modan; Dr Neveen Samuel and Dr Satpal 
Shekhawat all declared direct pecuniary interests as partners in  their 
Practices. 
Dr Faisel Baig declared an indirect interest as a GP working in the area. 
It was confirmed that they could remain present during consideration of 
the item. 


 
3. GIFTS & HOSPITALITY DECLARATIONS 
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Members were asked to state any Gifts and/or Hospitality received since the last 
Governing Body Meeting held on 13 December 2018.  


 
Agreed Outcome:   


(a) There were no gifts or hospitality declarations reported by members of 
the NL CCG Governing Body since the last Governing Body Meeting 
held on 14 February 2019. 


 
4. MINUTES OF THE NL CCG GOVERNING BODY MEETING HELD ON 14 


FEBRUARY 2019  
 The minutes of the NL CCG Governing Body meeting of 14 February 2019 were 


considered for approval. 
 Agreed outcome:  


(a) It was agreed that subject to the amendment of:- 
 
Page 2,  1.2 Announcements 
Dr Elisabeth Alston to read Dr Elisabeth Alton 
 
Page 3  Dr HK arrived, to read, DR HG arrived 
 
Page 4, 7.2 Chief Officer’s Update – Strategic Update 
Moira Dummer to read Moira Dumma 
 
Page 11 8.2 North Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Annual Report 
2017/18 insert after her informative report “and her responses to 
members’ questions. 
Members asked questions of the speaker……. 
 
Page 13 9.1, The NHS Long Term Plan  
“As a system we working …” to read “As a system we are working …” 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 February 2019 were approved as 
an accurate record of the meeting.  


 
 


5. ACTION LOG – ACTIONS UPDATE FROM 14 FEBRUARY 2019  
 21.06.19 Minute 9.2 Integrated Quality, Performance and Finance Report   
 The inclusion of bowel screening data in the report. 
 The DoPH circulated information relating to Humber, Coast and Vale CCGs Bowel 


Screening Uptake, 2017/18 Q4 – 2018/19 Q1.  Members were advised that this 
information is included in a quarterly report to the Clinical Advisory Group (CAG) and 
the report will be brought to future Governing Body meetings. 


 Action: Close and remove from the action log. 
  
 14.02.19 – Board Assurance Framework 
  The use and application of risk appetite to be reviewed. 
 The COO informed the meeting that the HoG is working on this, an additional column 


may be added to the Risk Register(s). 
 Action: Close and remove from the action log. 
 
 14.02.19 – Governance Review Quarterly Update 
 The COO confirmed that the amendments have been made. 
 Action: Close and remove from the action log. 
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 14.02.19 – NL CCG Constitution 
 It was confirmed the amendments specified have been made, item covered by the 


agenda at today’s meeting. 
 Action: Close and remove from the action log. 
 
 14.02.19 – NHS Long Term Plan 
 Item covered by the agenda at today’s meeting. 
 Action: Close and remove from the action log. 
  
 14.02.19 – NL CCG Refreshed Engagement and Involvement Strategy 
 This is complete. 
 Action: Close and remove from the action log. 


  
 
6.  MATTERS ARISING FROM THE (PUBLIC) MINUTES OF THE NL CCG 


GOVERNING BODY MEETING OF 14 FEBRUARY 2019 (not covered by the 
agenda)  
Agreed outcome:  


(a) There were no matters arising from the (Public) minutes of the NL CCG 
Governing Body Meeting of 14 February 2019, not covered by the agenda.  


  
7. GOVERNANCE AND ASSURANCE 
7.1 USE OF CORPORATE SEAL 
 Agreed outcome:  


(a) The Chair reported there had been no use of the Corporate Seal since 
the previous NL CCG Governing Body meeting held on 14 February 
2019. 


 
7.2 CHIEF OFFICER’S UPDATE 
 Delegated Commissioning: 
 The Chief Officer expressed her delight that the CCG has been successful in its 
 application to  take on the delegated commissioning of Primary Medical Care (GP 
 services) – this came into effect on 1 April 2019. 
  
 This is extremely positive news and means that North Lincolnshire CCG now has 
 responsibility for decision-making for primary care;  at the same time the full primary 
 care budget will transfer to the CCG.  
 
 This is the latest development in a long line of improvements that illustrate how far 
 the CCG has come in the last 12 months. 
 


 The Chief Officer expressed her sincere thanks to everyone who has been involved 
 in this vital piece of work, with particular thanks to Dr Salim Modan and the Director 
 of Primary Care for their leadership and support. 
  
 NHS England meeting:  
 The CCG Chair, Chief Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Finance Officer 
 recently met with NHSE.  The Chief Officer reported that NHSE  gave very positive 
 feedback and both recognise and acknowledge the progress and  improvements 
 made by the CCG.    NHSE is assured by the work that has been  done and the 
 relationships built with the local authority and providers. The meeting  was a 
 positive indicator that the CCG is heading in the right direction.  The Chief 
 Officer wished to record her thanks to the staff who have helped the CCG get to this 
 position and the Governing Body for the continued support.  







These minutes remain in draft form until approved at the next Governing Body meeting 


on 13 June 2019 


Page 5 of 23 


 
 Annual General Meeting: 
 The Chief Officer confirmed that the 2019 Annual General Meeting will take 
 place at 6 pm on Thursday 11 July at the Baths Hall, Scunthorpe.  The decision to 
 hold the meeting in the evening is to attract  as many members of the public as 
 possible. It is hoped that CCG Staff, primary care colleagues, local authority and 
 health colleagues will make every effort to attend the event. The event will be widely 
 publicised. 
 
 Successful men’s health event: 
 The CCG held its first Men’s Health event in March at British Steel in Scunthorpe and 


 was centred on their workforce – of which around 4,000 employees are men. 


 The Chef Officer thanked the Chair for attending and talking to employees 
 about key men’s health issues and signs and symptoms to look out for. 
 
 The CCG is building a strong working relationship with one of the biggest employer’s 
 in North Lincolnshire and the Chief Officer is looking forward to seeing this event 
 grow to new heights next year. 
 
 Time to Test – Cervical Screening: 
 As a caring employer the CCG wants to do all it can to encourage staff to take up 


 invitations to attend screening appointments. 


 There was a national focus recently on cervical cancer screening, a subject 
 close to the Chief Officer’s heart, having recently talked about her experience in a 
 short video. 
  
 Time for Test covers all CCG staff cancer screening appointments – not just cervical 
 cancer. 
 
 The Chief Officer’s intention is to sign the Jo’s Cervical Cancer Trust Time to Test 
 pledge, promising that all CCG staff would be able to attend these important 
 cancer screening appointments within work time.   
  
 Staff Engagement Group: 
 The Chief Officer was pleased to report that the CCG’s staff engagement group has 


 been relaunched; Members have decided to rename the group the Staff Forum. 


 The Chief Officer stated that Staff engagement and wellbeing is pivotal for any 
 organisation to succeed and it is no  different here. 
 
 The group consists of at least one member from every team so every department 
 has a say in ideas on how to continue improving staff morale, staff events, working 
 more efficiently and as a team. 
 
 Any CCG member who wants to be a part of the new group should get  in touch 
 with Gill Mackin, Head of People, or Mark Williams, Head of Communications and 
 Engagement. The more people involved the better. 
  
 End of year assessment 
 The 360° assessment produced an 86% response rate; amongst the top 5% of 
 CCG’s in the country.  The Chief Officer expressed her delight that people are telling 
 the CCG what they think. 
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 The Chair thanked the Chief Officer for her informative update. 
  
 
7.3 COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WORKPLANS 
 The Chief Operating Officer referee members to the report previously circulated.  The 
 Governing Body is asked to review and approve work plans for the Governing Body 
 and its formal committees.  She advised that, as part of good governance, it is 
 important that work plans are regularly updated and are clearly aligned to and 
 supportive of the CCG’s strategic objectives. 
 
 The Governing Body was also asked to review and approve Terms of Reference for 
 the  Planning and Commissioning Committee; the Quality, Performance and 
 Finance Committee and the Executive Team Committee. 
 
 As part of the CCG’s corporate governance framework all committees will review 
 their Terms of Reference on an annual basis. 
   
 Agreed outcomes – Workplans 2019/20:  


(a) NL CCG Governing Body approved the Governing Body Work Planner 
2019/20. 


(b) NL CCG Governing Body approved the Integrated Audit and 
Governance Committee Work Planner 2019/20. 


(c) NL CCG Governing Body approved the Planning and Commissioning 
Committee Work Planner 2019/20. 


(d) NL CCG Governing Body approved the Quality, Performance and 
Finance Committee Work Planner 2019/20. 


 
 Agreed outcomes – Terms of Reference 
  


(a) NL CCG Governing Body approved the Executive Team Committee 
Terms of Reference. 


(b) Planning and Commissioning Committee Terms of Reference: 
Subject to the following amendments NL CCG Governing Body 
approved the Planning and Commissioning Committee Terms of 
Reference. 
Quoracy – 7.1(iii) 
To read – At least 2 CCG Board GP members (which can include the 
Chair) 
11.2 – System Development and Implementation 
v. Remove question mark at the end of the sentence. 
Appendix 1 – Members 
iv – Lay members to read 2 


(c) NL CCG Governing Body approved the Quality, Performance and 
Finance Committee Terms of Reference 


  
 Members were reminded that the Terms of Reference for the Primary Care 
 Commissioning Committee; Remuneration Committee and the Integrated Audit and 
 Governance Committee were approved at the 14 February 2019 meeting as they 
 were included in the revised Constitution. 
  
7.4 NL CCG CONSTITUTIONAL UPDATE 
 The Associate Director – Corporate Affairs – Hull CCG referred members to the 
 paper previously circulated.   
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 The CCG was approved to take on fully delegated primary care commissioning from 
 01 April 2019. This necessitates an update to the CCG’s Constitution, including a 
 change from a Primary Care Joint Commissioning Committee to a Primary Care 
 Commissioning Committee. 
 


 The CCG previously submitted its updated Constitution to NHS England for their 
consideration and approval, as appropriate, following approval of the documentation 
by the Governing Body and Council of Members. 


 
 
 NHS England have provided feedback and sought clarification on three matters, as 
 follows: 


 
i) Confirmation of the CCG boundary being the same as N Lincs Council; 
 
ii) Clarification of the lay chair and vice-chair of the remuneration committee (in 


the light of NHSE recommended best practice); and 
 


 iii) Clarification of the lay chair and vice-chair of the Primary Care   
  Commissioning Committee (in the light of NHSE recommended best practice) 
 


 The following amendments are proposed to the constitution and associated 
documentation in the light of the feedback from NHS England: 


 
Document 
Reference 


Current wording Proposed Amended Wording 


Section 2.1.1. (p9) The area of the CCG is the 
county of North Lincolnshire 


The area of the CCG is the area 
covered by North Lincolnshire 
Council 


Remuneration 
Committee 
Membership (p43) 


Lay Member – PPI (Chair) 
Lay Member – Audit (Vice-chair) 


Addition of Lay Member – 
Equality and Inclusion as Vice 
Chair of the Committee 


Primary Care 
Commissioning 
Committee 
Membership (p47) 


Two lay members, one of whom 
shall act as Chair and one of 
whom shall act as Vice-chair of 
the committee 


Lay Member – Patient and Public 
Involvement (Chair) 
 
Lay Member – Equality and 
Inclusion (Vice Chair) 
 


 
 Member discussed the boundary perimeters of NL CCG and NLC.  The Associate 
 Director – Corporate Affairs clarified that NHSE recommend that the NL CCG 
 boundary is the same as NLC.  It was acknowledged that there is cross boundary 
 flow. 
  
 Agreed outcome:  


(a) NL CCG Governing Body approved the three proposed amendments to 
the NL CCG Constitution. 


 
 
 
8. QUALITY, PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE 
8.1 INTEGRATED QUALITY, PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT 
 The Integrated Quality, Performance and Finance report provides an overview of the 
 key points to note in relation to finance, performance and quality within the CCG and 
 across the CCG’s main providers. 
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 Finance as at 28 February 2019 
 The Chief Finance Officer advised members that although NL CCG exited legal 
 directions in August 2018, special measures will continue until year end is delivered.  
 The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that as NL CCG is on track to deliver its 
 financial targets for 2018/19 confirmation has been received that NL CCG will be 
 exiting special measures too.  The finance team are in the process of closing the 
 ledger, Integrated Audit & Governance Committee will consider the draft annual 
 accounts on 17 April and the final submission will go to NHSE on 24 April 2019.  In 
 terms of QIPP targets, 2017/18 was about stabilisation; 2018/19 was about 
 consolidation and grip, and 2019/20 is with a  view to transformation and delivery. 
  
 Year to Date performance  
 At Month 11 the CCG is reporting a YTD overspend of £892k which is £175k less 
 than plan. The forecast position is as per plan at £1.4m which is after the receipt of 
 £0.4m Commissioner Sustainability Fund (CSF) money for quarter 1 (received in 
 July), £1m CSF money for quarter 2 (received in October) and £1.2m CSF money for 
 quarter 3 (received in January). 
 
 Acute Services 
 At Month 11 the CCG has continued to over trade across the majority of its Acute 
 Contracts. This is mainly due to higher than planned elective activity at our out of 
 area Acute and Independent Sector providers. 
 
 Northern Lincolnshire and Goole Hospitals NHS FT (NLaG) 
 The 2018/19 contract continues to trade on a Payment by Results (PBR) basis. The 
 value reflected in the CCG’s month 11 accounts is based on the latest available 
 contract data less an agreed adjustment for a non-elective coding change.   
 The 2019/20 contract with NLAG has been signed by both North Lincolnshire CCG 
 and North East Lincolnshire CCG.  
 
 Mental Health Services 
 Mental Health Services include £1.2m income in relation to the favourable in-year 
 arbitration outcome for a high cost Learning Disability Placement. 
 
 
 Primary Care Services 
 The YTD underspend relates mainly to Prescribing which was £1,402k under spent 
 at Month 11. This comprises a YTD underspend on PMD prescribing costs of £624k 
 based on Month 9 PMD data, £292k of income from NHSE in relation to Flu 
 recharges and a benefit from prior year of £316k.. 
  
 Running Costs 
 The CCG is reporting a YTD underspend of £253k on running costs, mainly as a 
 result of vacant posts within the establishment. An in depth piece of work to review 
 running cost commitments for the next 3 years is being undertaken to help ensure 
 that the CCG is able to meet future running cost targets.   
 
 Risks 
 At Month 11 the CCG has continued to report a financial risk in relation to the NLAG 
 contract position. The contract remains on a PBR basis and there are a small number 
 of outstanding issues which are still to be resolved with the Trust. 
 
 NHS England Specialised Commissioning Group has confirmed that there are no 
 planned discharges of North Lincolnshire CCG patients for the remainder of 2018/19. 
 This risk has therefore been removed for 2018/19. 
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 Revenue Resource Limit  
 The annual Revenue Resource Limit for the CCG was £238,200k for both 
 ‘Programme’ and ‘Running’ costs. This has increased by £131k in February, £127k 
 for Improvement in Cancer 62 Day Performance and £4k received to fund backfill for 
 GP’s to test the Workforce Tool.   
 
 Working Balance Management  
 
 Cash: 
 The closing cash for February was £176k which was below the 1.25% target of 
 £229k.  
 
 Better Payment Practice Code 
 
 North Lincolnshire CCG achieved the Better Payment Practice Code target of 95%.  
 
  a. Non NHS 
 The Non NHS performance for February was 98.94% on the value and 99.88% on 
 the number of invoices, whilst the YTD position is 99.84% achievement on the value 
 and 99.84% on number.  
 
 
 b. NHS 
 The NHS performance for February was 100% on the value and number of invoices, 
 whilst the YTD position is 99.99% achievement on the value and 99.95% on number. 
 
 QIPP 
 At Month 11 the CCG has reported a YTD achievement of £6.808m (124%) of QIPP 
 savings against the year to date plan of £5.497m and is forecasting £7.277m QIPP 
 savings by 31 March 2019. 
 The YTD actual achievement of £1.865m for Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 
 includes £1.2m as a result of an arbitration decision during 2018/19. 
 
 The Vice Chair remarked that the QIPP results were stunning and she commended 
 the financial professionals, the finance team and others involved in delivering such 
 solid performance. 
 
 Performance and Quality 
 With regards to performance, the CCG is currently meeting 13 of the 31 constitutional 
 standards. This reflects an improvement in one standard since the previous 
 position reported in the Integrated QP&F Report submitted to the QP&F  Committee 
 on 7th March 202019, this is the Cancer 2 Week Waits Breast Symptom standard.  


 Dr HG enquired whether a trend diagram reflecting constitutional standards could be 
 provided in future reports. 


 Performance maintained and the required standard has been met in the 
 following: 


 Cancer 2 Week Waits 
 Operations Cancelled for the 2nd time 
 Early Intervention 2 Week Waits 
 IAPT 2018 Week Waits 
 IAPT 6 Week Waits   
 Mental Health CPA Follow Up 
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 Ambulance Category 1 90th Centile (EMAS Trust wide position)  
 Ambulance Category 4 90th Centile (NLCCG position)  
 MRSA 
  


 Performance challenges remain across a range of indicators including the following: 


 
 Referral to Treatment times at Northern Lincolnshire & Goole NHS Foundation Trust 
 (NLaG) and Hull and East Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust (HEY) continued to fall 
 below required standards in January 2019.  
 NLaG failed to achieve the A&E 4 Hour waiting time improvement trajectory in 
 February 2019 and overall performance deteriorated compared to the previous 
 month. There was one 12 hour trolley wait breach reported to the CCG in February 
 2019.  
 Performance against the 31 day Cancer Diagnosis first definitive treatment and 
 subsequent treatments in Radiotherapy did not achieve required levels in January 
 2019.  
 Performance against the 62 Day Cancer waiting times continues to underachieve in 
 the urgent GP referral standard. The CCG did not achieve the required standard for 
 screening service standard in January 2019.  
 Diagnostic 6 Week waiting times remains an area of significant concern with CCG 
 level performance continuing to fall below required standards in January 2019.  
 Ambulance response times in North Lincolnshire continue to exceed required levels 
 for Category 1 to 3 calls.   
 


 The report also includes a range of non-constitutional standards where exception 


 reports are provided including  


 National Ambulance Clinical Quality Indicators; 
 GP Out of Hours Quality Standards; 
 Staffing; 
 Maternity standards; 
 Serious Incidents and Incidents.  
 
 Where performance falls below required standards the CCG is closely monitoring the 
 impact on safety, experience and effectiveness.  


 
 Quality 


Progress against CQC actions at NLaG  


 Since the previous report NLaG provided a series of detailed reports to CCG(s) at 
 Director level via the System Improvement Board Patient Safety Group (SIBPSG) on 
 1st April 2019; these reports demonstrated that progress has been made against the 
 CQC actions.  
 The CCG remains concerned regarding the relatively slow progress made by NLaG 
 in relation to some actions, and the low number of actions currently rated as 
 actions with NLaG at the SIB PSG on 1st April 2019.  
 NLaG has not yet received confirmation of the date of the next CQC inspection  (as 
 at the time of writing), however it is anticipated that the re-inspection will take 
 place by 31st May 2019 in line with the CQC’s 12 month re-inspection timeframe. 
 


Quality Priorities for 2019/20 at NLaG.  
 In March 2019, NLaG agreed its Quality Priorities for 2019/20. These priorities are 
 mapped to the objectives of the National Quality Board and build on work undertaken 
 by the Trust in response to the CQC’s latest inspection. These priorities are 
 summarised below:  
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 Mortality reduction 
 Improved management of the deteriorating patient 
 Medication safety 
 Improved patient flow 
 Cancer pathways 


   Delivery against these priorities will be reviewed via the monthly NLaG Quality 
 Review 


 


Community Services Contract Meeting  
 The inaugural meeting of the NLCCG and NELCCG Community Services Quality, 
 Performance and Contract Meeting (Community Contract Meeting) took place on 
 18th March 2019. At this meeting it was agreed that a multi-agency time limited 
 working group would be established to review and refresh the performance and 
 quality indicators for Community services.  
 


Ofsted Focused Visit to North Lincolnshire Services to Children on 6 March 
2019 


 Ofsted undertook a focused visit to North Lincolnshire Services to Children on 6 
 March 2019. The positive outcome from this visit was published via letter to the Local 
 Authority on 29th March 2019.  
 


 Quality impact of delayed ambulance response at EMAS.  
 Concerns have been raised by member practices of the CCG with regards to the 
 continued failure of EMAS to meet some national and local performance and quality 
 standards.  
 In response to these concerns the CCG is working closely with NELCCG to improve 
 EMAS performance in Northern Lincolnshire. An action plan has been developed to 
 oversee improvement actions.  
 


 Access to Adult Mental Health Crisis Services provided by RDaSH.  
 GP members of the CCG continue to express concerns with regards to access to 
 prompt and timely access to the local adult Crisis Service provided by RDaSH for 
 patients experiencing an acute mental health crisis.  
 These concerns specifically relate to circumstances where GPs are faced with a 
 patient who they consider to be in crisis and access to the Crisis Team is not 
 provided in the timeframes that the GP assess are needed.  
 The CCG Chief Operating Officer and the CCG Director of Nursing and Quality met 
 with Trust Executive Directors at the RDaSH Executive Contract Board for North 
 Lincolnshire on 21st March 2019 and agreed a number of actions to progress 
 improvement in this area.  
   


 Serious Incidents (SIs) at NLaG  
 Since the previous report to the Governing Body NLaG has reported  


 one SI relating to a 12 hour trolley wait breach in A&E for a North Lincolnshire 
 resident in February 2019; 
 one SI relating to implementation of a new clinical code set within the RTT process 
 that affected multiple CCGs in February 2019; 
 one SI relating to the discovery of a small number of referrals related to patients who 
 had been transferred to an external provider. The external provider had then sent 
 these patients back to NLaG for treatment but the referrals from the external provider 
 had not been acted upon by the Trust. 
 Maternity standards  


 NLaG has not achieved the required levels in the following Maternity standards 
 during 2018/19 (as at 31 January 2019, latest published data available): 
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 percentage of women referred to smoking cessation services and had stopped 
 smoking at the time of delivery; and  percentage of patients that initiate breastfeeding 
 within 6 hours of delivery.  


 In addition to the above, NLaG exceeded the tolerance rate of still births in January 
 19 for the first time in 2018/19. (In response to a query the Director of Nursing & 
 Quality confirmed that the maternity voices organisation is represented on the 
 Local Maternity Service Board). 


 An amendment to Page 70, Table 1: 52 week breaches – General Surgery – 
 Numbers breached in 2019 to read 18 not 2018. 


 Regarding Ambulance Response times – It was requested if it would be possible to 
 have data regarding Cat1; Cat2; Cat3 and Cat 4 numbers. 


 The Director of Nursing and  Quality confirmed that Senior Manager(s) from EMAS 
 will attend the Governing Body in June. 


 Agreed outcomes:  


(a) The Lay member Equality and Diversity requested that for future 
performance and quality reporting purposes the terms “met” or “not met 
“are used. 


(b) Page 68 Misidentification of patients – clarification was requested on 
what this means (i.e. an admin error) 


(c) The NL CCG Governing Body received and noted the Integrated Quality, 
Performance and Finance Report. 


 
   
9. STRATEGY AND COMMISSIONING 
9.1 NL CCG STRATEGY 
 
 The Chief Operating Officer referred to the report previously circulated.  The NHS NL 
 CCG Strategy sets out the CCG’s high-level ambition and plans for the next 5 years. 
 It also  includes, as appendices, the CCG’s 2-year commissioning Plans.   The 
 Strategy has been developed over the last 4 months by collating feedback from 
 various engagement events held with the public locally; CCG membership and our 
 partners in North Lincolnshire.  


 In summary, the Strategy sets out a blueprint for how the CCG will deliver a healthy 
 future  for its population through high quality, proactive care; which is more joined 
 up,  improves outcomes, safety and experience and increases value for the North 
 Lincolnshire pound. It will act as a guiding framework for the CCG’s commissioning 
 intentions and for the CCG’s partner health and care organisations, community 
 partners, professionals, service users, and the CCG’s population.   


 Members were informed that at its heart is a new approach based on the principles of 
 population health management - targeting resources where they will have the 
 greatest impact on health and wellbeing outcomes, care quality, and 
 sustainability.  In doing so it is recognised that the CCG’s population is made up of 
 individuals who live in local communities, and services must be wrapped around  
 people rather than their conditions or diseases.  


 The Chief Operating Officer explained that whilst there are a number of changes 
 outlined in the strategy covering all parts of  the system the significant features are:  
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Shifting focus from ‘in hospital’ services to increasing investment in ‘out of 
hospital’ services to manage demand in a different way.  This means integrated, 
person centred models of care designed around the needs of the local population, 
delivered closer to home in local Primary Care Networks. Care will be less 
fragmented, more proactive, and enable individuals to do more not less  


Effective and efficient interventions are available when they are needed, delivered 
in the right place, by the right person, at the right time, in a way which adds the most 
value. This will result in a shift from reactive to preventative care, and consistent 
pathways which reduce unwarranted variation in outcomes 


Cultural and organisational behavioural change the changes described in the 
document will only be delivered through cultural and organisational behavioural 
change. Care professionals, service users, families, and carers will play an active 
role in the delivery of the CCG’s strategy and will be empowered to drive change 
throughout the system. People will take a greater responsibility for their own health 
and wellbeing 


Demonstrating that we place equal value on mental and physical health 
throughout all we do.  People’s psychological and emotional wellbeing will be 
supported alongside their physical health and care needs. Mental Health will be a 
core component within our new model of care. 


 
 In delivering, the strategy changes will be implemented at pace and scale, adopting 


best practice across the system to make rapid improvements to people’s care and to 
support a healthier, more sustainable, future for North Lincolnshire. 


 
 It was pointed out by Dr SM that Primary Care Networks will be a key element in 


delivery of the strategy, with NL CCG already 1 year ahead of the timeline for 
development.  Primary Care Networks will enable work to be carried out in a way that 
will allow services to be delivered closer to patients’ homes. 


 
 The Lay member, equality and diversity referred to the earlier statement made about 


cultural and behavioural change and the involvement of families and carers; She 
queried how much engagement had been undertaken in this area.  The Chief 
Operating Officer confirmed that plan is to turn the strategy into a public facing 
document in order to attract public involvement in shaping the strategy. The Chair 
confirmed that the outcome of various engagement events have been fed into the 
strategy which will remain a fluid document.  The Chief Officer concurred, the 
strategy is the start of the journey for NL CCG, and it sets the direction of travel for 
NL CCG and shows the golden thread. 


 
 The DoPH referred to the recent Governing Body Workshop at which she felt very 


engaged, the Local Authority can be clearly seen in the strategy, with clear 
engagement. 


 
   
 Agreed outcomes:  


(a) Our Plan on a page - NL CCG Governing Body recommended that 
substance misuse be added to the prevention outcomes section to read: 
Reduced harm from tobacco, alcohol and substance misuse. 


(b) Our Plan on a page – NL CCG Governing Body recommended that 
reference is made to the avoidance/reduction of hospital acquired 
infections for patients (e.g. MRSA) in the Hospital Care outcomes section. 
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 The Lay member Equality and Diversity stated that engagement emphasis used to be 
on Health Matters and would like to see some mention about how it has improved. 


 
 Agreed outcome: 


(a) NL CCG Governing Body recommended that reference to Health Matters 
is included in the strategy. 


 
   
9.2 OPERATIONAL PLAN 
 
 The Chief Operating Officer advised members that that the NL CCG 
 Operational Plan reflects the NHS Operational Planning and Contracting  Guidance 
 2019/20 (January 2019) and subsequent Humber,  Coast and Vale Health 
 Care Partnership 2019/20 Operational Planning Narrative  Guidance for  CCGs 
 (March 2019). In developing this plan the CCG has  worked closely with North 
 East Lincolnshire CCG and Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS  Foundation Trust 
 to ensure alignment of plans  including activity plans and trajectories where 
 appropriate. Included in this  report is a summary of the finance plan submitted as 
 part of the planning requirements.  
 In addition to this plan submission, the CCG was required to submit finance and 
 activity plans including trajectories for 2019/20 delivery against constitutional 
 indicators.  
 The plan was submitted to NHS England on 4th April in line with national 


requirements and is presented to the Governing Body for approval. 
 
 The Chief Finance Officer advised members that from a financial perspective NL 


CCG have signed contracts in place with NLaG.  Breaking down the technical 
agenda the CCG has worked on every issue raised during the financial year.  The 
CCG’s real focus has been around value for money; the payment by results contract 
is established with NLaG. 


 
 The plan provides the NL CCG response to the planning guidance however is not 
 exhaustive. It represents the joint planning between North and North East 
 Lincolnshire CCGs and Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust in 
 terms of a system plan. This signals a significant shift in the approach to planning 
 compared to previous years, resulting in a plan that all parties recognise and own. 
 However the CCG works with a wider range of providers and these providers have 
 been engaged in the development of the out of hospital model as equal partners and 
 through the Planned Care Board and A&E Delivery Board. 


 
Agreed outcome: 


(a) NL CCG Governing Body approved the NL CCG Operational Plan 
2019/20. 


(b) NL CCG Governing Body approved the Finance Plan 2019/20. 


 
 


9.3 INTEGRATED URGENT CARE – URGENT TREATMENT CENTRE 
  
 Dr Faisel Baig; Hardik Gandhi; Dr Salim Modan; Dr Neveen Samuel and Dr 
 Satpal Shekhawat all declared direct interests as members of the Safecare 
 Federation. 
 Dr Faisel Baig and Dr Hardik Gandhi also declared direct interests as Out of 
 Hours GPs for Core Care Links Limited. 
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 It was confirmed that they could remain present during consideration of the 
 item. 
  
 The report provides an overview of current local urgent care services and their 
 commissioning arrangements; sets out the future model and proposes arrangements 
 to secure delivery of the future model. This element of transformation is part of a 
 larger scheme of change within urgent care services.  


  
 The approach to how this service change can be delivered has been considered  in 
 light of legal advice to the CCG on fit with procurement legislation, NHS Long 
 Term Plan and the developing primary care contracting approach. 
 


 On evaluation of the advice provided, and the confirmation of the scope of the 
 Primary Care Networks contract it is proposed that the CCG adopt a transformational 
 change approach to secure delivery of the model rather than a procurement 
 approach as this better supports the delivery of the integrated model required to 
 deliver the improved health outcomes required for the population.  
 
 To deliver the integrated model of care, the  CCG will  continue to contract with 
 Northern Lincolnshire and Goole Hospitals and SafeCare the GP Federation (who 
 will from July 2019 contract extended access services via the Care Networks) to 
 deliver an integrated model for the UTC incorporating extended access, OOH 
 services and the UTC.  The two providers will develop an alliance agreement 
 between them to enable the delivery of the model. This will be a direct contractual 
 link between the parties to deliver integrated services to agreed principles/objectives 
 and outcomes. It would be expected to be legally binding in part and would 
 demonstrate a level of commitment of all parties to deliver services in an integrated 
 way. Given that the integration of the out of hours services with extended access and 
 core GP provision is an essential element in the specification for the CCG’s model 
 then provided the Primary Care Networks are capable of meeting the CCG’s required 
 specification/outcomes in this regard then they would be the only capable provider to 
 deliver the integrated extended and out of hours service, delivering better outcomes 
 for the population over which it will already provide core services for. It is therefore 
 anticipated that the OOH service will be delivered by the Care Networks to facilitate 
 this integrated approach.  The CCG will assure itself of the Primary Care Networks 
 abilities to deliver this. 
 
 A contract variation will be used to secure the UTC and GP OOHs within the existing 
 contract arrangements. The delivery of the model will be supported by a 
 transformational change management process.  
 
 The rationale for this is as follows; 


Successful delivery of the model is reliant on integration of the three elements of 
service, which will need to be underpinned by strong provider relationships and is 
contingent on an integrated approach by providers.  


By delivering an integrated approach this model will best enable the delivery of the 
required outcomes for integrated urgent care and the Urgent Treatment Centre  and 
is the most efficient and effective way of delivering the model and enables an 
iterative approach to understanding the activity flows and financial impacts of the new 
model 


Focuses on a strengths based approach; Primary Care driving primary care 
transformation. 
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 The Governing Body supported the principles of this approach at its meeting in 
 February 2019. In order to progress this approach, following appropriate 
 assessments  to satisfy itself that the position is as set out above, the CCG will need 
 to consider making a contract variation to the current NLAG contract for the UTC  and 
 then  following the issue of the revised GP Contract DES for Primary Care 
 Networks make the appropriate revisions to extended access and GP Out of 
 Hours. In order to implement the model, it is proposed that the CCG set up 
 formal governance arrangements under an Urgent Care Transformation Board and 
 Working Group to support the transformation programme and develop the 
 alliance approach between  the providers. Recommended draft Terms of Reference 
 for the  Transformation Board – Urgent Care are included within the report.  Members 
 considered the proposed timeline for implementation of the service by September 
 2019. 
 
  Agreed outcome:  


(a) NL CCG Governing Body noted and approved the proposed direction of 
travel for implementation of the Urgent Treatment Centre by September 
2019. 


(b) NL CCG Governing Body approved the North Lincolnshire 
Transformation Board: Urgent Care Terms of Reference. 


 
The Chair thanked Dr SM and Dr NS for their hard work and involvement with this 
initiative 


  
9.4 ESTATES STRATEGY AND PLAN 
  
 Dr Hardik Gandhi; Dr Salim Modan; Dr Neveen Samuel and Dr Satpal 
 Shekhawat all declared direct pecuniary interests as partners in  their 
 Practices. 
 Dr Faisel Baig declared an indirect interest as a GP working in the area. 
 It was confirmed that they could remain present during consideration of the 
 item. 
 
 The Director of Primary Care referred members to the  North Lincolnshire CCG 
 Estates Strategy and Plan, which details the findings of an in depth property 
 assessment of local GP premises, establishes their future expansion potential, and 
 using additional consulting rooms as a proxy measure, using Local Authority 
 data on future housing developments to establish future capacity requirements. In 
 drawing this study together the plan also recommends a number of proposals for 
 further consideration by the CCG. 
 
 In order to visualise the wider picture of health and care services currently located 
 within the area it expands further to map out the location of community, mental health 
 and social care sites. 
 
 Further analysis is presented at care network level. 
  
 Process - Following a property assessment scored on the following set of criteria an 
 overall  property score was calculated for each property.   
 


Is the existing building suitable for long term retention? 
Is a more in depth feasibility study required? 
Is the current premise a strategic fit for further investment, when considering against 
the developed GP care networks? 
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 The strategy identifies a prioritised project list aimed at identifying and delivering 
 individual locality solutions within North Lincolnshire to meet future capacity and 
 condition requirements.  
 
 The proposed project list overall supports:- 
 Delivery of the existing primary care strategy 
 Delivers a fit for purpose estate with sufficient capacity to meet future demand 
 Provides evidence to support investment decisions 
 Provides data to facilitate debate around future operational delivery to drive out 
 efficiencies in ways of working and service models 
  
 Summary 
 
 The key findings as detailed in this Strategy are highlighted below: 


 


Overall, the current estate, subject to some individual projects to provide expansion 
and/or reconfiguration, is capable of meeting future clinical space requirements.  


 
There is a requirement for either a new premises or significant expansion of the 
retained GP estate in the West Scunthorpe locality, subject to further feasibility.  


 
Recommendations have also been made of properties that are considered not to be 
a strategic fit, and as such further investment in the premises is not recommended 
due to suitability, condition and accessibility.  3 premises fall within this category, 
(Killingholme; Bridge Street and Trent View).  The Director of Primary Care confirmed 
that a letter of clarification has been sent to the 3 practices concerned. 


 


10 properties are recommend as potentials which mean they may or may not be a 
strategic fit and a feasibility project may be required to deem them suitable in the 
longer term.  


 
19 properties are recommended as retained; they are considered to be a strategic fit 
in terms of suitability, condition & accessibility both now and into the future. 
 


 The proposals from the report authors are as follows: 
 


West Scunthorpe care network feasibility study, including potential South Axholme 
remodel as Epworth hub facility and solution to the Lincolnshire Lakes development 
(6000 new homes/apartments) 
North Lincolnshire compliance and backlog maintenance requirements study for 
premises recommended for longer term retention 
North Lincolnshire GP and Community administration review 
Ironstone Centre - utilisation and Scunthorpe hub feasibility study. (This piece of 
work has already been commissioned) 
Feasibility study of the 3 properties not considered a strategic fit 
Feasibility study Kirton in Lindsey locality requirement 


 
 
 GP Premises contractual briefing - In order to assist members in interpreting the 
 outcome from the North Lincolnshire CCG Estates Strategy and Plan and the 
 challenges of implementing the proposals contained within the following narrative 
 explains the key contractual arrangements that underpin premises funding flows to 
 GP contractors. 
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 GP Contract holders are entitled to premises payments to contribute towards the 
 costs of delivering GMS/PMS and APMS services, The range of entitlements is set 
 out in  The National Health Service (General Medical Services - Premises Cost) 
 Directions 2013 (available here) 
 
 In summary the key GP entitlements are as follows:- 
 
 Rent Contract holders receive a notional rent for premises owned by the partners on 
 space approved by the commissioner. This amount is reviewed in a 3 yearly cycle by 
 the District Valuer on behalf of the commissioner 


 
Contract holders receive actual rent reimbursement where the contractor has entered 
into a lease arrangement with a landlord on a demise approved by the commissioner. 
Rental reviews in accordance with the lease requirements which will usually be 3 
yearly. The District Valuer acts on behalf of the commissioner. Where the lease has a 
tenant insuring and repairing clause the commissioner can consider, subject to 
affordability, providing an additional 5% on top of the actual rent to contribute towards 
a sinking fund. 
 
To qualify for either of the above payments the premises must meet the minimum 
required standards; if they fall below minimum standards they are not eligible for 
notional or actual rent. 


  
 Other premises costs - 100% reimbursement of council rates, water and sewerage 
 on the agreed area; 100% reimbursement of clinical waste disposal 


 
 Premises Developments - There are a considerable number of options for 
 facilitating changes to GP premises set out within the directions and there use would 
 be considered depending on the issue that required addressing. Whilst they are 
 entitled directions, the flexibilities within them do allow the commissioner to give 
 consideration to affordability. In the main improvements to existing buildings allow the 
 commissioner to make a maximum contribution towards the capital cost of the 
 development set at 66% plus an allowance for professional fees and VAT where 
 applicable and agreed. Access to the 66% is currently via capital allocations to the 
 NHS England Regional Team, although in future it is envisaged that this function may 
 be delegated to local Health and Care Partnerships and CCG budgets. The 
 remaining 34% of the cost needs to be raised by the contract holders, for which they 
 would seek reimbursement through the notional rent scheme. Depending on the 
 value of the 66% an abatement period set out within the directions would apply. 
 Currently the Directions do not allow capital funding for new builds.  


 
 It is worth noting that from a contractual perspective providing the existing buildings 
 meet the minimum requirements the practice can continue to deliver services from 
 them irrespective of any desire from the commissioners or patients to relocate 
 services elsewhere.    
 
 Members discussed the importance of the need to communicate and engage as 
 widely as possible on  the Estates Strategy and Plan ensuring Practices are clear that 
 the CCG is here to support them. 
 
  


 Agreed outcome: 
  


(a) NL CCG Governing Body stressed the need to communicate and engage 



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/184017/NHS__General_Medical_Services_-_Premises_Costs__Directions_2013.pdf
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as widely as possible on the Estates Strategy, using language 
appropriate to the target audience. 


(b) Practices to be enabled to feed back on the proposals contained within 
the Estates Strategy. 


(c) NL CCG Governing Body recommended the avoidance of the term 
disposal in reference to any practices within the Estates Strategy. 


(a) NL CCG Governing Body approved the NL CCG Estates Strategy and 
Plan. 


 
  
10. GENERAL 
10.1  RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT UPDATE 
 The Associate Medical Director referred members to the report.  He informed 
 members that The UK government is committed to promoting research throughout 
 every level of the NHS. It views research as a core function of health and social care 
 that can lead to improvements in people’s quality of care and health outcomes as 
 well as increases in staff skills, organisational cost-efficiencies and the availability of 
 robust evidence (UK policy framework for  Health and Social Care Research, 
 2017).  
  
 This commitment has been recently reinforced in the NHS Long Term Plan (2019) 
 which outlines measures to support the growth of research and innovation across the 
 NHS over the next decade; a pledge underpinned by the Health and Social Care Act 
 (2012) which places a legal duty on Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s) to: - 
 “…promote research on matters relevant to the health service and the use in the 
 health service of evidence obtained from research on matters relevant to the health 
 service and the use in the health service of evidence obtained from research.” 
  
 Commissioners are directed on how to support research, innovation and growth in 
 the latest NHS Planning Guidance 2016/17-2020/21 which argues for building on the 
 research infrastructure as a pathway to generate new innovative approaches to 
 service development that impact on service delivery and improve patient outcomes.    
 The evidence outlined below demonstrates how in 2018-19 North Lincolnshire 
 Clinical Commissioning Group (NL CCG) have endeavoured to meet its statutory 
 duty to ‘promote research, innovation and the use of research evidence’ (Health and 
 Social Care Act, 2012). 
 What is the Evidence telling us? 


In 2018-19 the percentage of North Lincolnshire GP Practices recruiting into the 
National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) clinical research trials has increased 
from 19% to 37%, which means that nearly half of the GP practices in North 
Lincolnshire are taking part in NIHR research ( data extracted from the NIHR Clinical 
Research Network Business Intelligence Unit). 


 
During 2018- 19 North Lincolnshire CCG has shown a commitment to promoting 
research and the use of research evidence by approving five Excess treatment cost 
requests which have been part of the normal commissioning arrangements. 


 
A Northern Lincolnshire Research and Development group has been established 
with the principle aim of helping to support and grow research in the health and care 
community. This includes a range of stakeholders and has a North Lincolnshire 
community member representative on the group. 
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Work has begun with the Associate Medical Director at NL CCG to explore how the 
research agenda can be further strengthened and grown. The key aims of the 
development work will be to: - 
Further develop and raise the awareness of the primary care research agenda within 
North Lincolnshire specifically across the three localities and GP Federation in North 
Lincolnshire.  
Support and further develop practices within the localities and GP Federation to 
become more research aware and potentially facilitate them to become more 
involved in primary care research activities. 
Increase patient numbers within primary care research in North Lincolnshire. 
Support  shared learning and experience to enable GPs and other health care 
professionals to have the necessary ‘headspace’ and time to build up the knowledge 
and skill set(s), for example, from developing an  idea(s) into asking a specific 
research question or undertake a piece of evaluative work. 
The aims set out above will be developed in 2019- 20 in the following ways: 
The potential development of a CCG GP Clinical Lead for research who will help 
drive forward the key areas above. 
Form collaborative links with the Professor of Primary Care Research, Director of 
research at the Academy of Primary Care- Hull York Medical School located within 
the Institute for Clinical and Applied Health Research (ICAHR) at the University of 
Hull, and explore different work streams which will cut across Research, Education 
and Innovation. 
Explore possible academia links with the Medical School at the University of Lincoln 
and the Professor of Primary care.    


  
 Agreed outcome:  


(a) NL CCG Governing Body received and noted the Research and 
Development Update report. 


 
 
10.2 EU EXIT PLANNING PAPER 
 The Chief Operating Officer referred to the report previously circulated and advised 
 members that  NL CCG has a duty to work with partner organisations from across the 
 health, care and wider public sector services to ensure that plans are in place to 
 minimise disruption to service delivery in the event of a national or local change 
 which may have a negative impact on service / system delivery. 


 


NATIONAL BACKGROUND - At some point in the future Britain's relationship with 
 the European Union will change. The precise details are not yet known and will 
 depend on the final deal negotiated between the UK government and Brussels. 


NL CCG, as part of the multi-agency Humber Local Resilience Forum, has been 
working for the last few months to understand the consequences of a 'No Deal EU 
exit' for the Humber area and to prepare proportionate contingency plans. 


All Local Resilience Forums (LRF) nationally have been asked to consider 
preparations for a range of possible scenarios that could occur as a result of a 'No 
Deal EU Exit' 


NLCCG has reviewed contingency plans with partners covering seven areas of 
potential impact identified for the NHS: - 


Supply of medicines and vaccines; 
Supply of medical devices and clinical consumables; 
Supply of non-clinical consumables, goods and services; 
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Workforce; 
Reciprocal healthcare; 
Research and clinical trials;  
Data sharing, processing and access 
 


NHS organisations have been asked to identify a Senior Responsible Officer to lead 
the EU Exit preparations. Alex Seale, as the Accountable Emergency Officer, will be 
the Senior Responsible Officer with Gary Johnson, Risk Manager acting as the 
operational lead. 


A task & finish group has been established with the Head of Governance as chair to 
conduct ongoing reviews of the seven impact areas and CCG business continuity 
plans. 


The CCG now completes daily situation reporting in addition to a weekly report to a 
Government database which will highlight any emerging issues for the CCG or local 
partners. 


The CCG Senior Responsible officer has confirmed via teleconference with NHS 
England a ‘temperature check’ reference the CCG position with local providers and 
partners on the 06th March. 


The CCG continues to work with all partners involved in the LRF to make sure that 
the appropriate multi agency emergency coordination structures are in place before 
and after the EU exit to respond to any issues that might arise from a No Deal EU 
exit. 


 Agreed outcome: 
  


(a) The NL CCG Governing Body is assured that what needs to be done is 
being done in readiness for EU Exit Planning. 


 
 
11.0 REPORTS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
 
11.1 NL CCG QUALITY, PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE CHAIR’S 


SUMMARY REPORT OF THE MEETING HELD ON 7 MARCH 2019  
 
 Agreed outcome:  


(a) The NL CCG Governing Body received and noted the NL CCG Quality, 
Performance and Finance Committee Chair’s summary report of the 
meeting held on 7 March 2019. 


 
11.2 NL CCG INTEGRATED AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHAIR’S 
 SUMMARY REPORT OF THE MEETING HELD ON 6 MARCH 2019 
  


Agreed outcome:  


(a) The NL CCG Governing Body received and noted the NL CCG Integrated 
Audit & Governance Committee Chair’s summary report of the meeting 
held on 6 March 2019. 


 
11.3 NL CCG PLANNING AND COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE CHAIR’S SUMMARY 


REPORT OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 21 FEBRUARY 2019 AND 21 MARCH 
2019. 
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Agreed outcome:  


(a) The NL CCG Governing Body received and noted the NL CCG Planning 
and Commissioning Committee Chair’s summary report of the meetings 
held on 21 February 2019 and 21 March 2019. 


 
11.4 NL CCG JOINT PRIMARY CARE COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE CHAIR’S 


SUMMARY OF THE (PUBLIC) MEETING HELD ON 28 FEBRUARY 2019 
  


Agreed outcome: 


(a) The NL CCG Governing Body received and noted the NL CCG Joint 
Primary Care Commissioning Committee Chair’s summary of the 
(Public) meeting held on 28 February 2019. 


 
11.5 HUMBER COAST AND VALE HEALTH AND CARE PARTNERSHIP  UPDATE 
 REPORT – 5 MARCH 2019 
  
 Agreed outcome:  


(a) The NL CCG Governing Body received and noted the Humber Coast and 
Vale Health and Care Partnership Update Report – 5 March 2019.   


 
 
11.6 HUMBER ACUTE SERVICE REVIEW PROGRAMME UPDATE 20 
 FEBRUARY 2019 
 
 Agreed outcome:  


(a) The NL CCG Governing Body received and noted the Humber Acute 
Service Review Programme Update – 20 February 2019.   


 
 
12.0 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 There were no items raised for consideration.   


 
 


13.0 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
The 45th NL CCG Governing Body meeting in public will take place on Thursday 13 
June 2019 at 1.30 pm in the boardroom, Health Place, Brigg DN20 8GS. 


 
  
Signed:  …………………………………………………………………………………………. 


Dr Faisel Baig 
NL CCG Chair 


 
 ABBREVIATIONS 


ADoCA Associate Director of Corporate Affairs 


APMS Alternate Personal Medical Services 


CAG Clinical Advisory Group 


CCG(s) Clinical Commissioning Group(s) 


CFO Chief Finance Officer 


COO Chief Operating Officer 


CPA Care Programme Approach 


CQC Care Quality Commission 


CSF Commissioner Sustainability Fund 


DoN&Q Director of Nursing & Quality 







These minutes remain in draft form until approved at the next Governing Body meeting 


on 13 June 2019 


Page 23 of 23 


DoPC Director of Primary Care 


DoPH Director of Public Health 


EMAS East Midlands Ambulance Service 


EU European Union 


GMS General Medical Services 


GP General Practitioner 


HEY Hull and East Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust 


HoC&E Head of Communications & Engagement 


HoG Head of Governance 


IAPT Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 


ICHR The Institute for Clinical and Applied Research 


LRF Local Resilience Forum 


NHS National Health Service 


NHSE National Health Service, England 


NLaG Northern Lincolnshire and Goole Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 


NEL CCG North East Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 


NL CCG North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 


OOH Out of Hospital 


PMD Prescribing Monitoring Document 


PMS Personal Medical Services 


QIPP Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention 


QP&F Quality, performance and Finance 


RDaSH Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust 


SI Serious Incident 


SIBPSG System Improvement Board Patient Safety Plan 


UK United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland 


UTC Urgent Treatment Centre 


YTD Year to Date 
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MEETING: North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
Governing Body 


(Public Agenda) 
 


 
 


 MEETING DATE: Thursday 11 April 2019 


VENUE: Boardroom, Health Place, Wrawby Road, Brigg. 
DN20 8GS GOVERNING BODY 


TIME: 13:30 – 15.15 


ACTION LOG 
OUTSTANDING ACTIONS AND ACTIONS FROM THE LAST MEETING 


(Completed Actions have been archived) 
 


Item Number Action Captured Owner Action Required Time Scales/Progress Made 


 


 


11 April 2019 
7.3 


Committee Terms of 
Reference and 
Workplans 
Planning and 
Commissioning 


COO/HoG Subject to the following amendments NL CCG 
Governing Body approved the Planning and 
Commissioning Committee Terms of Reference. 
Quoracy – 7.1(iii) 
To read – At least 2 CCG Board GP members 
(which can include the Chair) 
11.2 – System Development and Implementation 
v. Remove question mark at the end of the 
sentence. 
Appendix 1 – Members 
iv – Lay members to read 2 


Update June meeting 


11 April 2019 
8.1 


Integrated Quality, 
Performance and 
Finance Report  


COO/DoN&Q/CFO 1. Page 68 Misidentification of patients – 
clarification was requested on what this means 
(i.e. an admin error) 


Update June meeting 


11 April 2019 
9.1 


NL CCG Strategy COO 1. Our Plan on a page - NL CCG Governing Body 
recommended that substance misuse be added 
to the prevention outcomes section to read: 
Reduced harm from tobacco, alcohol and 
substance misuse. 
2. Our Plan on a page – NL CCG Governing 
Body recommended that reference is made to 


Update June meeting 
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the avoidance/reduction of hospital acquired 
infections for patients (e.g. MRSA) in the 
Hospital Care outcomes section. 
3. NL CCG Governing Body recommended that 
reference to Health Matters is included in the 
strategy. 


11 April 2019 
9.4 


Estates Strategy & 
Plan 


DoPC 1. NL CCG stressed the need to communicate 
and engage as widely as possible on the 
Estates Strategy, using language appropriate to 
the target audience. 
2. Practices to be enabled to feed back on the 
proposals contained within the Estates 
Strategy. 
3. NL CCG recommended the avoidance of the 
term disposal in reference to any practices 
within the Estates Strategy. 


Update June meeting 


 
 


    


 


 






